
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

Agenda - Final 

Wednesday, June 17, 2020
1:30 PM

MEETING LOCATION: REFER TO COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICE

NVTA Board of Directors

****COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICE*****
PUBLIC MEETING GUIDELINES FOR PARTICIPATING 

VIA PHONE/VIDEO CONFERENCE

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and N-29-20 from the Executive Department of 
the State of California and Napa County's Shelter in Home Order issued March 18, 2020 and 
further extended, a physical location will not be provided for the Napa Valley Transportation 
Board of Directors meeting.  The public is invited to participate telephonically or electronically 
via the methods below:

To observe the meeting by video conference, click on the link below at the noticed meeting 
time: https://countyofnapa.zoom.us/j/99750072830

Instructions on how to join a video conference are available at: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-
us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting

To observe the meeting by phone, call 1 (669) 900-6833 at the noticed meeting time, then 
enter Meeting ID 997 5007 2830.  When asked for the participant ID or code, press #. 

Instructions on how to join a meeting by phone are available at: https://support.zoom.us/hc/
en-us/articles/201362663-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone



How to Submit a Public Comment

1. Members of the public may submit a public in writing by emailing info@nvta.ca.gov by 11 a.m. on the day of
the meeting with PUBLIC COMMENT identified in the subject line of the email.  For comments to be read into
record, emails with the equivalent of a  maximum of 3 minutes shall contain in the subject line "Public
Comment-Not on the Agenda" or "Public Comment-Agenda Item # (include item number)".  All written
comments should be 350 works or less, which corresponds to approximately 3 minutes of less of speaking
time.  All other written comments received will still be provided to the Board of Directors and be included as
part of the meeting record.

2. To comment during a virtual meeting (Zoom), click the "Raise Your Hand" button to request to speak when
Public Comment is being taken on the Agenda item.  You will be unmuted when it is your turn to make your
comment for up to 3 minutes.  After allotted time, you will be re-muted.

Instructions for how to "Raise Your Hand" are available at: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/
articles/205566129-Raise-Hand-In-Webinar.

3. To comment by phone, press "*9" to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the Agenda
item. You will be unmuted when it is your turn to make your comment for up to 3 minutes.  After your allotted
time, you will be re-muted.

This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate formats to persons with a disability.  Persons 
requesting a disability-related modification or accommodation should contact Karrie Sanderlin, NVTA Board 
Secretary, at (707) 259-8633 during regular business hours, at least 48 hours prio to the time of the meeting.

Translation Services:  If you require a translator to facilitate testimony to the NVTA, please contact Karrie 
Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary, at (707) 259-8633 no later than 48 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting

This Agenda may also be viewed online by visiting the NVTA website https://legistar.com/Calendar.aspx.

Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates only, and 
may be shorter or longer as needed. 

Acceso y el Titulo VI: La NVTA puede proveer asistencia/facilitar la comunicación a las personas discapacitadas y 
los individuos con conocimiento limitado del inglés quienes quieran dirigirse a la Autoridad.  Para solicitar 
asistencia, por favor llame al número (707) 259-8633.  Requerimos que solicite asistencia con tres días hábiles 
de anticipación para poderle proveer asistencia.

Ang Accessibility at Title VI: Ang NVTA ay nagkakaloob ng mga serbisyo/akomodasyon kung hilingin ang mga ito, 
ng mga taong may kapansanan at mga indibiduwal na may limitadong kaalaman sa wikang Ingles, na nais na 
matugunan ang mga bagay-bagay na may kinalaman sa NVTA Board.  Para sa mga tulong sa akomodasyon o 
pagsasalin-wika, mangyari lang tumawag sa (707) 259-8633.  Kakailanganin namin ng paunang abiso na tatlong 
araw na may pasok sa trabaho para matugunan ang inyong kahilingan.



June 17, 2020NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

1.  Call to Order

2.  Roll Call

3.  Pledge of Allegiance

4.  Adoption of the Agenda

5.  Public Comment

6.  Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's, 

and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

7.  Director's Update

8.  Caltrans' Update

Note:  Where times are indicated for the agenda item, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only and may be shorter or longer as needed.

9.  CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (9.1 - 9.5)

9.1 Approval of Meeting Minutes of May 20, 2020 (Karrie Sanderlin) 
(Pages 9-13)

Board action will approve the meeting minutes of May 20, 2020.

  

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Draft Meeting MinutesAttachments:

9.2 Approval of Resolution No. 20-08 Amending the Active 

Transportation Advisory Committee Bylaws (Diana Meehan) 
(Pages 14-21)

Board action will approve amending the ATAC bylaws.Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 3 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/11/2020

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0deafe3c-7820-4f0b-9fb3-e93e75c4eede.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b4b1200b-388f-46e1-8b86-70819840a7c1.pdf


June 17, 2020NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

9.3 Approval of (1) Resolution No. 20-09 Request to the Metropolitan 

Transportation Commission (MTC) for the Allocation of Fiscal 

Year (FY) 2020-21 Transportation Development Act Article 3 

(TDA-3) Funds and (2) Resolution 20-10 Authorizing the Submittal 

of the Countywide Coordinated Claim to MTC for the Allocation of 

FY 2020-21 TDA-3 Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funds to Claimants 

in Napa County (Diana Meehan) (Pages 22-30)

Board action will approve the TDA-3 FY 2020-21 Countywide Claim.Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.4 Approval of Resolution No. 20-11 Authorization for the Execution 

of the Certifications and Assurances and Authorized Agent 

Forms for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) 

for Imola Avenue and State Route (SR) 29 Improvement Project 

(Antonio Onorato) (Pages 31-35)

Board action will approve Resolution No. 20-11 approving the Fiscal Year 

2019-20 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) project.  

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.5 Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointments 

(Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 36-38)

Board action will approve the re-appointment of member Larry Kormann 

to the Citizen Advocacy Committee.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

Page 4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/11/2020

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1cc06f3f-9dea-4ccb-bee9-7e9ecc240fa5.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d7536603-d331-4ea0-a96b-b4b132456646.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6c9af374-6ff7-4e7d-ae6a-11f8cf8b2872.pdf


June 17, 2020NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

10.1 Nomination, Discussion, and Election of Chair and Vice Chair for 

Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 (Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 39-40)

Board action will elect a Chair and Vice Chair for FY 2020-21.Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.2 Draft Environmental Document for the Napa Valley Vine Trail 

Project - St. Helena to Calistoga Segment (Rebecca Schenck) 
(Pages 41-46)

Board action will release the draft Environmental Document for the Napa 

Valley Vine Trail Project - St. Helena to Calistoga Segment for public 

review and comment.

Recommendation:

2:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.3 Approval of (1) Resolution No. 20-12 Support for the Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority (NVTA) Nomination of Soscol Junction 

for the 2020 Local Partnership Program (LPP) Competitive Grant, 

(2) Resolution No. 20-13 Support for the Napa Valley

Transportation Authority (NVTA) Nomination of Soscol Junction

for the Solutions for Congested Corridor (SCC) Funding, and (3)

Resolution No. 20-14 Support for the Napa Valley Transportation

Authority (NVTA) Nomination of Vine Transit Maintenance Facility

for the Local Partnership Program (LLP) Formulaic Funds

(Danielle Schmitz) (Pages 47-63)

Board action will approve (1) Support for the NVTA nomination of Soscol 

Junction for the 2020 LPP competitive grant, (2) Support for the NVTA 

nomination of Soscol Junction for the SCC funding, and (3) Support for 

NVTA nomination of the Vine Transit Maintenance Facility for LLP 

formulaic funds. 

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/11/2020

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d29ea5be-960e-4c8e-a79a-a03756305c92.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7659211b-ee4e-420a-82e7-61dd60e35774.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=58176641-d418-4568-879a-5112c2f61a5c.pdf


June 17, 2020NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

10.4 Draft Napa Valley Community Based Transportation Plan (CBTP) 

(Danielle Schmitz) (Pages 64-170)

Board action will release the CBTP for public review and comment.Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.5 Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) - Advancing Mobility 2045: 

Performance Measures (Alberto Esqueda) (Pages 171-199)

Board action will approve the  Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) 

performance measures and evaluation criteria.

Recommendation:

2:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.6 Legislative and State Bill Matrix Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 

200-213)

The Board will receive the State Legislative update prepared by Platinum 

Advisors and approve board position recommendations for bills on the 

State Bill Matrix.

Recommendation:

3:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

12. ADJOURNMENT

12.1 Approval of Next Regular Meeting of Wednesday, July 15, 2020 

and Adjournment

3:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

I hereby certify that the agenda for the above stated meeting was posted at a location freely accessible 

to members of the public at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA by 5:00 p.m. by Friday, 

June 12, 2020.

____________________________________

Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Page 6 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/11/2020

Karalyn E. Sanderlin (e-sign) June 11, 2020

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=32d03be4-46f8-4aba-9338-ffc4c0f87ae3.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ee49b48a-fcbe-415b-8fb2-ef71d4fe3933.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a2106b54-cecd-447e-8cd6-eef275cebed2.pdf


Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 05/20 

AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 

ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 

ADA American with Disabilities Act 

ATAC Active Transportation Advisory Committee 

ATP Active Transportation Program 

BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

BUILD Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage 
Development 

CAC Citizen Advisory Committee 

CAP Climate Action Plan  

Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CASA Committee to House the Bay Area 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA Congestion Management Agency 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CalSTA California State Transportation Agency 

CTP Countywide Transportation Plan  

COC Communities of Concern 

CTC California Transportation Commission 

DAA Design Alternative Analyst 

DBB Design-Bid-Build 

DBF Design-Build-Finance 

DBFOM Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain 

DED Draft Environmental Document  

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EJ Environmental Justice 

FAS Federal Aid Secondary  

FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

GGRF Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund 

GTFS General Transit Feed Specification 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Program  

HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  

HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program 

HTF Highway Trust Fund  

HUTA Highway Users Tax Account 

IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program 

ITOC Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  

LCTOP Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 

LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

LS&R Local Streets & Roads 

MaaS Mobility as a Service 

MAP 21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century 
Act 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

ND Negative Declaration   

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOAH Natural Occurring Affordable Housing  

NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

NVTA-TA Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax 
Agency 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PA&ED Project Approval Environmental Document 

7



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 05/20 

P3 or PPP Public-Private Partnership 

PCC Paratransit Coordination Council 

PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PCA Priority Conservation Area 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PIR Project Initiation Report 

PMS Pavement Management System 

Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of 
gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSE Plans, Specifications and Estimates 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  

RM2 Regional Measure 2 (Bridge Toll) 

RM3 Regional Measure 3 

RMRP Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Program 

ROW Right of Way  

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SB 375 Sustainable Communities and Climate 
Protection Act 2008 

SB 1 The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHA State Highway Account 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program  

SNTDM Solano Napa Travel Demand Model 

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIC Small Transit Intensive Cities 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 

TCM Transportation Control Measure 

TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management 
Transportation Demand Model 

TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century 

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

TIGER Transportation Investments Generation 
Economic Recovery  

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TIRCP Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TLU Transportation and Land Use 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TNC Transportation Network Companies 

TOAH Transit Oriented Affordable Housing  

TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPA Transit Priority Area  

TPI Transit Performance Initiative 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 

8



625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

Napa Valley Transportation 

Authority
Meeting Minutes - Draft

NVTA Board of Directors

1:30 PMMEETING LOCATION: REFER TO COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICEWednesday, May 20, 2020

1. Call to Order

Chair Canning called the meeting to order at 1:59 p.m.

2. Roll Call

Leon Garcia

Chris Canning

Jill Techel

Alfredo Pedroza

Paul Dohring

Mark Joseph

John F. Dunbar

Kerri Dorman

Belia Ramos

Geoff Ellsworth

Liz Alessio

Gary Kraus

Beth Kahiga

3. Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited at the preceding NVTA-TA meeting.

4. Adoption of the Agenda

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE adoption of the agenda.  Motion 

carried by the following roll call vote:

Aye: Garcia, Canning, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Dorman, Ramos, Ellsworth, 

Alessio, and Kraus

24 - 

5. Public Comment - Please refer to the COVID-19 Special Notice for Public

Comment Guidelines

None

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's,

and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

MTC Commissioners Update

Alfredo Pedroza provided an update of recent MTC activities.

ABAG Update

Leon Garcia provided an update of recent ABAG activities.

Page 1Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/8/2020

June 17, 2020
NVTA Agenda Item 9.1

Continued From: New
Action Requested: APPROVE

9



May 20, 2020NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft

7.  Director's Update

•  Introduced NVTA’s new Financial Analyst, Roxanna Moradi.

•  Introduced NVTA's new Communications Officer, Robin Craig.

•  Reported that Vine ridership has continued to decline across the system in reaction to the 

COVID-19 crisis and related Shelter at Home orders affecting Napa County.  The steepest drops 

occurred in Demand Response, which declined 89% year over year between April 2019 and April 

2020, including Vine GO paratransit trips.  Overall, Fixed Route declined 63% in the same period, 

while commuter routes including Routes 21 and 29 declining the least at 46%.  This decline 

compares to the 80-90% drops in ridership among other system in the central Bay Area. 

•  Reported that on April 27th, NVTA introduced a local On Demand service for the City of Napa 

Routes (replacing fixed routes A-H).  Instead of waiting for scheduled departures, customers can 

call or use the Ride the Vine mobile application to request a trip between any two bus stops in 

the City.   On average 118 riders per day completed trips over the first two weeks of service, 

totaling 1,421 passengers.  Under the current lower level of demand, the average response time 

has been just 7 minutes 17 seconds and many riders are enjoying shorter trips overall with an 

average on board ride times under 9 minutes.  

•  Announced that face masks are now required for everyone on all transit vehicles and all 

NVTA’s facilities.

8.  Caltrans' Update

Caltrans provided no oral report.  The May 2020 Caltrans reporting memo was provided for 

review in the meeting handout packet.

9.  PUBLIC HEARING (TIME CERTAIN 1:30 P.M.)

9.1 Public Hearing and Approval of Resolution No. 20-06 Adopting the Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority's (NVTA's) Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years (FY) 

2020-21 and 2021-22 (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 9-29) 

Staff ReportAttachments:

Chair Canning opened the Public Hearing at 2:17 p.m.

Staff reviewed the NVTA biennial budgets for Fiscal Year's 2020-21 and 2021-22. 

Public Comment was provided by:

Justin Hole, City of Napa resident.

Chair Canning closed the Public Hearing at 2:50 p.m.

Motion MOVED by KRAUS, SECONDED by DOHRING to APPROVE Resolution No. 20-06 adopting 

(1) FY 2020-21 (FY21) NVTA annual operating budget of $31,119,900; capital budget of $9,789,200, 

and depreciation budget of $3,062,000 for a total amount of $43,971,100, and approve FY 2020-21 

appropriations limit of $43,971,000, and (2) the FY 2021-22 (FY22) NVTA annual operating of 

$15,481,700; capital budget of $0, and a depreciation budget of $3,062,000 for a total amount of 

$18,543,700, and approve FY 2021-22 appropriations limit of $18,543,700.  Motion carried by the 

following roll call vote:

Aye: Garcia, Canning, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Dorman, Ramos, Ellsworth, 

Alessio, and Kraus

24 - 

Page 2Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/8/2020

10

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dc87438a-15dd-4526-b600-36b95fc5d61c.pdf


May 20, 2020NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft

10.  CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (10.1 - 10.2)

Motion MOVED by TECHEL, SECONDED by DORHING to APPROVE Consent Items 10.1 - 10.2.  

Motion carried by the following roll call vote:

Aye: Garcia, Canning, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Dorman, Ramos, Ellsworth, 

Alessio, and Kraus

24 - 

10.1 Approval of Meeting Minutes of April 15,2020 (Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 30-34)

Draft MinutesAttachments:

Board action approved the meeting minutes of April 15, 2020.

10.2 Sub-Housing Incentive Pool (HIP) Program Submission of Letter of Intent for 

the Imola Park & Ride Project (Danielle Schmitz) (Pages 35-46)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Board action approved the submittal of a Letter of Intent to the Metropolitan Transportation 

Commission (MTC) to use $300,000 in Sub-Housing Incentive Pool (HIP) program funds on the 

Imola Park & Ride Project.

11.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

11.1 Chair and Vice Chair Nominating Committee for Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 

(Karrie Sanderlin) (pages 47-48)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Board action appointed members Canning, Dunbar and Garcia to the Chair and Vice Chair 

Nominating Committee for FY 2020-21.

Motion MOVED by CANNING, SECONDED by PEDROZA to APPROVE the appointment of members 

Canning, Dunbar, and Garcia to the Chair and Vice Chair Nominating Committee for FY 2020-21.  

Motion carried by the following roll call vote:

Aye: Garcia, Canning, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Dorman, Ramos, Ellsworth, 

Alessio, and Kraus

24 - 

Page 3Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/8/2020

11

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b8177f3d-99ca-4091-baaa-778859dd02df.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=60214ca3-6926-4745-ad5c-2176c87a4335.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9e8f622c-d463-4fda-83ad-39023c005897.pdf


May 20, 2020NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft

11.2 Sub-Committee Appointments to Review Legal Services Request for 

Proposals (Kate Miller) (pages 49-50)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Board action appointed members Dohring and Dorman to serve on an Ad Hoc Committee to 

review General Counsel Submittals in response to proposals and recommend a firm to NVTA 

Board for appointment to serve as NVTA and NVTA-TA General Counsel.

Motion MOVED by CANNING, SECONDED by RAMOS to APPROVE the appointment of members 

Dohring and Dorman to serve on an Ad Hoc Committee to review proposals and to recommend a 

candidate firm to serve as General Counsel to the NVTA and NVTA-TA Boards.  Motion carried by 

the following roll call vote:

Aye: Garcia, Canning, Techel, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Dorman, Ramos, Ellsworth, 

Alessio, and Kraus

24 - 

11.3 Final State Route Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan (SR 29 CMCP) 

(Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 51-185)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Staff reviewed the final State Route 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan. 

Public Comment

Patrick Band, Napa Bicycle Coalition, requested the following changes:

•  Add a minor intersection improvement designation to the intersection at SR 29 and North Kelly 

Road.

•  In the SR 29 Multimodal Improvements Section (Segment 2 Napa Junction Road to Paoli Loop 

and the Segment 3 South Kelly Road to Soscol Junction): Add language to indicate that as 

right-of-way (ROW) and funding allow, the Class II paths can be upgraded to Class I in these 

locations.

Motion MOVED by GARCIA, SECONDED by ALESSIO to APPROVE, adoption of the Final State 

Route 29 Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan (SR 29 CMCP) as amended to include the 

above requested changes to the plan.  Motion carried by the following roll call vote:

Aye: Garcia, Canning, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Dorman, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, 

and Kraus

19 - 

Absent: Techel5 - 

11.4 Economic Outlook and Transportation Funding and Program Update (Kate 

Miller) (Pages 186-189)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Information Only / No Action Taken

The Board received a report on the projected economic impacts to transportation revenues and 

programs associated with the COVID-19 stay at home order.

Page 4Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/8/2020

12

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ef6fa27c-5f1e-4372-8557-d0a34a90153f.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fe3a8c8d-3c8f-4a33-beb4-3df1ddd675e7.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=87d57d70-b365-4d68-8853-7f0bf85662ae.pdf


May 20, 2020NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft

11.5 Legislative and State Bill Matrix Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 190-199)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Information Only / No Action Taken

The Board received the State Legislative update and State Bill Matrix prepared by Platinum 

Advisors.

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

None

13. ADJOURNMENT

13.1 Approval of Next Regular Meeting of Wednesday, June 17, 2020 and 

Adjournment

The next regular meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, June 17, 2020 at 1:30 p.m.

Chair Canning adjourned the meeting at 3:30 p.m.

____________________________________

Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Page 5Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 6/8/2020

13

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=82287986-831b-4829-8ce0-c7029540b6a7.pdf


June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Approval to Amend the Active Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC) Bylaws 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 20-
08 amending the ATAC Bylaws to change the meeting frequency to bi-monthly and minor 
ministerial changes as advised by legal counsel. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Active Transportation Advisory Committee is currently the only NVTA advisory 
committee meeting on a monthly basis. Members of the ATAC agreed that bi-monthly 
meetings would meet the frequency required to respond to active transportation-related 
issues in the county. 

NVTA legal counsel requested changes to language in Article IX to reflect current legal 
description. 

The NVTA ATAC meetings fall under the requirements of the State of California Brown Act, 
and therefore must establish a regular meeting date, time, and place, and publish notice of 
each meeting.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

14



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Diana Meehan, Senior Planner/Program Administrator 

(707) 259-8327 / Email: dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Approval of Resolution No. 20-08 Amending the Active Transportation 
Advisory Committee (ATAC) Bylaws 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 20-
08 (Attachment 1) amending the Active Transportation Advisory Committee bylaws to 
change the meeting frequency to bi-monthly. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
At its May 18th meeting the Active Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC) 
recommended that the NVTA Board of Directors approve changing the Bylaws to reflect 
meeting frequency of bi-monthly 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
NVTA has established three advisory committees serving the NVTA Board on various 
transportation matters.  Each of the advisory committee has an established meeting 
calendar adopted by the Board in December for the following calendar year. Each 
committee has at least one member of the NVTA staff to serve as committee liaison and 
provide meeting support.  
 
The Active Transportation Advisory Committee is the only NVTA committee meeting on 
a monthly basis. In the past three years, it is typical for at least three of these meetings 
to be canceled due to lack of substantive business.  Staff is proposing to change the 
ATAC Bylaws, Article VI paragraph 1 (Attachment 1) to establish the regular meeting 
frequency to bi-monthly.  There will be no change to the day and time of the meeting.  
Should additional meetings be required to provide time-sensitive review of matters, 
special meetings can be scheduled as provided in Article VI, paragraph 1. 

15

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority              Agenda Item 9.2 
June 17, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NVTA legal counsel requested amending the language in Article IX. DISTURBANCE OF 
MEETING to reflect current legal description. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
Do not change the meeting frequency/Bylaws for the Active Transportation Advisory 
Committee or amend Bylaws language to reflect current legal description.  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 3 – Use taxpayer dollars efficiently 
 
Reducing the frequency of advisory committee meetings will reduce demand for staff time 
and other agency resources. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
(1) Resolution No. 20-08 

16



 
 

RESOLUTION No. 20-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORTY (NVTA) 

AMENDING THE BYLAWS OF THE  
ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (ATAC) 

 
WHEREAS, the NVTA joint powers agreement calls for the Active Transportation 

Advisory Committee (ATAC), and 
 

WHEREAS, the ATAC Bylaws require changes to be adopted by the NVTA Board, 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the current ATAC Bylaws require meetings be held monthly, and 
 

WHEREAS, the ATAC is recommending changes to its Bylaws, Article IV, paragraph 
1 to modify the frequency of meetings to bi-monthly, and 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority hereby amends the Bylaws for the Active Transportation Advisory Committee to 
read in full as set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein 
and the attached provisions of Exhibit “A” shall become effective immediately. 
 
Passed and adopted this 17th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
______________________ 
Chris Canning, NVTA Chair     Ayes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
               Nays: 
 
 
 
               Absent: 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.2 

June 17, 2020 

17



 
Resolution No. 20-08 

Page 2 of 5 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_________________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA General Counsel 

18



 Resolution No. 20-08 
Page 3 of 5 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Active Transportation Advisory Committee 
 

BYLAWS 
 

Article I - NAME 

The name of this committee shall be the Active Transportation Advisory Committee 
(ATAC).  Establishment of the committee is authorized under section 4.4.4 of the Joint 
Powers Agreement of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA).  

Article II - OBJECTIVE 

The ATAC serves to advise NVTA on the development of bicycle and pedestrian facilities 
as alternative modes of transportation. The ATAC shall review and/or prioritize 
Transportation Development Act, Article 3 (TDA-3) Program funds for projects and 
participate in the development and review of comprehensive bicycle, pedestrian and 
active transportation plans of interest to the citizens of Napa County.  The committee 
shall serve in an advisory capacity.  Its objective is to assist NVTA staff in developing 
active transportation plans and programs to address connectivity, safety, and equity.  The 
functions of the committee shall include, but are not limited to the following: 

1. Advise NVTA staff and the NVTA Board on plans including but not limited to Active 
Transportation Plans, Safety Plans, and project specific plans. 

2. Act as Active Transportation liaisons to the communities and councils they are 
representing by staying informed of local priorities and needs for walking and 
biking in those communities. 

Article III - COMPOSITION-QUALIFICATION AND TERMS 

All ATAC members shall be appointed by NVTA, and shall serve at the pleasure of NVTA.  
Members will represent specific jurisdictions and will be nominated by their respective 
jurisdiction.  The NVTA Board will strive to appoint Committee members that represent the 
diverse make-up of Napa Valley community including members of underrepresented 
groups.  

The ATAC will consist of eleven (11) members from six (6) jurisdictions. Four (4) members 
from the City of Napa; two (2) members from the County of Napa, two (2) members from 
the City of American Canyon, and one (1) member each from the Town of Yountville, City 
of St. Helena, and City of Calistoga. At no time shall fewer than four (4) of the six (6) 
jurisdictions be represented. Each member shall have one (1) vote.   

Appointments to the Committee shall be for three-year terms. 

Article IV - MEMBERSHIP WITHDRAWAL 

Membership may be withdrawn for any of the following reasons at the direction of the 
NVTA Executive Director: 

19



1. Three (3) consecutive unexcused absences or five (5) absences in an eighteen
month period.

2. Misrepresentation at time of appointment with respect to personal use of NVTA’s
service.

3. If member does not reside in Napa County or ceases to represent the constituency
to which the member was assigned.

Article V - OFFICERS AND DUTIES 

The committee members will elect a committee Chair and Vice-Chair by a majority of the 
members present at the January meeting.  A quorum is necessary to hold the elections. 
Offices will be held for one year or until their successors are elected. 

The Chair will preside at all meetings.  Should the Chair be absent, the Vice-Chair will 
preside. In the unlikely event both Chair and Vice-Chair are absent; the remaining 
members will select an alternate member to preside. 

The Chair may appoint ad hoc committees on an as-needed, non-scheduled basis to 
accomplish a specific task and report back to the full ATAC.  Ad hoc committees must have 
less than a quorum of ATAC members and are exempt from the requirements of the Brown 
Act.  The ATAC may not direct the ad hoc committee on how to fulfill its function or when it 
should meet. 

NVTA staff will provide the administrative support for the committee including providing 
minutes, mailing agendas to members, and any other related duties. 

Article VI - MEETINGS 

The ATAC shall meet bi-monthly on the fourth Monday unless otherwise scheduled by 
the majority of a quorum.  Additional meetings may be required to address time sensitive 
matters.  

All ATAC meetings will be held in accordance the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code 
section 54950 et seq.).  Agenda items will be agreed upon by the Chair and the NVTA 
staff representative, or upon motion of the committee.  Any committee member may 
make recommendations for the agenda.  

Each member shall have one (1) vote and a quorum shall consist of a majority of filled 
positions present, representing at least two jurisdictions.  A majority vote of the quorum 
shall be necessary to present an issue to the Executive Director and to the NVTA Board 
of Directors.  

All actions of the committee shall require the approval of a majority of the quorum present. 

Article VII - PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE 

The rules contained in "Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure", by A. Sturgis, shall 
govern the Council in all cases to which they are applicable, and not inconsistent with the 
Bylaws of the Council. 

Resolution No. 19-04 
Page 4 of 5 

20



 

Public Notice of all meetings shall be given pursuant to the Brown Act in compliance with 
the 72-hour posting deadline for regular meetings and the 24-hour deadline for special 
meetings. 

Article VIII - PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES 

No individual member shall represent the ATAC to the general public or at a NVTA Board 
meeting without majority vote of a quorum at an ATAC meeting prior to the 
representation. 

No ATAC member will represent NVTA to the general public without consent of the 
Executive Director (or designee) prior to the representation. 

Article IX.  IMPERTINENCE-DISTURBANCE AND MEETING  

Any person, including committee members, making personal, who commits disorderly or 
disruptive behavior which substantially delays, interrupts, impedes, disrupts or disturbs the 
proceedings of impertinent or indecorous remarks while addressing the Committee may be 
barred by the chairperson from further appearance before the Committee at that meeting, 
unless permission to continue is granted by an affirmative vote of the Committee.  The 
chairperson may order any person, including committee members, removed from the 
Committee meeting who cause a disturbance or interferes with the conduct of the 
meeting, and the chairperson may direct the meeting room cleared when deemed 
necessary to maintain order. 

Article X. ADOPTION AND AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS 

1. Adoption of the ATAC Bylaws will be by a majority vote of the NVTA Board of
Directors

2. Amendments to the ATAC Bylaws will be by a majority vote of the NVTA Board of
Directors

3. Suggested amendments to the ATAC Bylaws by the ATAC shall be forwarded to
the NVTA Board of Directors

Resolution No. 19-04 
Page 5 of 5 

21



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Approval of Resolution Requesting Allocation of Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 Transportation 
Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Funds and Submittal of the Countywide Coordinated 
Claim to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Board approve (1) Resolution No. 20-09 request for allocation 
of TDA-3 funds for the Napa Valley Vine Trail Calistoga to St. Helena, and (2) adopt 
Resolution No. 20-10 TDA-3 FY 2020-21 Countywide Claim. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The NVTA adopted the FY 2018-19 through FY 2020-21 Three-Year TDA-3 Program in 
June 2018 with five (5) projects from three jurisdictions.  All projects were fully funded 
under the three-year program.  A review of the program is performed annually to manage 
any additional revenue or program changes.  There is $89,928 in surplus funds available 
and staff is recommending that it be programmed to the Napa Valley Vine Trail to cover 
project funding shortfalls. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No, the funds will be passed through to project sponsors and will not be retained by NVTA. 

22



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Diana Meehan, Senior Planner/Program Administrator 

(707) 259-8327 / Email: dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Approval of (1) Resolution No. 20-09 Request to the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) for the Allocation of Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2020-21 Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) 
Funds and (2) Resolution 20-10 Authorizing the Submittal of the 
Countywide Coordinated Claim to MTC for the Allocation of FY 2020-
21 TDA-3 Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funds to Claimants in Napa 
County 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve (1) Resolution No. 
20-09 Request to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for the Allocation 
of Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Funds for 
the Napa Valley Vine Trail Calistoga to St. Helena (Attachment 1), and (2) Resolution 20-
10 Authorizing the Submittal of the Countywide Coordinated Claim to MTC for the 
Allocation of FY 2020-21 TDA-3 Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funds to Claimants in Napa 
County (Attachment 2). 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
At its April 2nd meeting, the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) recommended that the 
NVTA Board of Directors approve submitting the TDA 3 FY 2020-21 Countywide Claim 
to MTC. 
 
At its May 18th meeting, the Active Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC) 
recommended that the NVTA Board of Directors approve submitting the TDA 3 FY 2020-
21 Countywide Claim to MTC. 
  

23

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority              Agenda Item 9.3 
June 17, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The TDA-3 program is for bicycle and pedestrian projects funded by approximately 2% of 
the ¼ cent statewide sales tax.  This generates roughly $160,000 per year for Napa 
County jurisdictions.  Priority is given to capital projects.  Planning is a permissible activity 
under TDA-3 revenues but the funds can only be used for comprehensive planning 
activities every 5 years per jurisdiction.  Unallocated funds are rolled over for 
programming to projects in Napa County in future years.  The MTC accepts project 
applications annually.  Projects must be completed within two (2) years plus the fiscal 
year of allocation.  
 
A call for projects for a three-year program was issued on April 18, 2018.  Five (5) 
applications were received totaling $599,099 dollars.  All project requests were fully 
funded under the recommended three-year programming cycle. 
 
The FY 2020-21 program was revised to reflect actual revenues received and carryover 
amounts from previous cycles.  Actual revenues are $89,448 higher than initially 
estimated, and staff recommends programming to the Napa Valley Vine Trail Calistoga 
to St. Helena segment to cover project funding shortfalls. The next three-year call for 
projects will take place in March 2021. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board may choose to carry over additional revenue until the next three-year call for 
projects in March 2021.  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1 – Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability 
 
Funding through TDA-3 is reserved for bicycle and pedestrian projects and/or planning. 
This funding has provided for a wide variety of projects in this category countywide to 
serve the needs of many community members. 
 
Goal 5 – Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods 
 
Bicycle and pedestrian projects can significantly benefit air quality and reduce congestion 
by providing an alternative to transport using vehicles. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Resolution No. 20-09 
(2) Resolution No. 20-10 

24



ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

June 17, 2020 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-09 

 
Request to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the Allocation of 

Fiscal Year (FY) 20-21 Transportation Development Act Article 3 
Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funding 

Findings 
1. That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is not legally impeded from 

submitting a request to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the 
allocation of Transportation Development Act (TDA) Article 3 funds, nor is the NVTA 
legally impeded from undertaking the project(s) described in “Attachment B” of this 
resolution.   

2. That the NVTA has committed adequate staffing resources to complete the 
project(s) described in Attachment B. 

3. A review of the project(s) described in Attachment B has resulted in the 
consideration of all pertinent matters, including those related to environmental and 
right-of-way permits and clearances, attendant to the successful completion of the 
project(s).   

4. Issues attendant to securing environmental and right-of-way permits and clearances 
for the projects described in Attachment B have been reviewed and will be concluded 
in a manner and on a schedule that will not jeopardize the deadline for the use of 
the TDA funds being requested. 

5. That the project(s) described in Attachment B comply with the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code Sections 
21000 et seq.).   

6. That as portrayed in the budgetary description(s) of the project(s) in Attachment B, 
the sources of funding other than TDA are assured and adequate for completion of 
the project(s).   

7. That the project(s) described in Attachment B are for capital construction and/or 
design engineering; and/or for the maintenance of a Class I bikeway which is closed 
to motorized traffic; and/or for the purposes of restriping Class II bicycle lanes; and/or 
for the development or support of a bicycle safety education program; and/or for the 
development of a comprehensive bicycle and/or pedestrian facilities plan, and an 
allocation of TDA Article 3 funding for such a plan has not been received by the 
NVTA within the prior five fiscal years.   

8. That the project(s) described in Attachment B is included in a locally approved 
bicycle, pedestrian, transit, multimodal, complete streets, or other relevant plan.  

9. That any project described in Attachment B that is a bikeway meets the mandatory 
minimum safety design criteria published in Chapter 1000 of the California Highway 
Design Manual.  

10. That the project(s) described in Attachment B will be completed before the funds 
expire. 

11. That the NVTA agrees to maintain, or provide for the maintenance of, the project(s) 
and facilities described in Attachment B, for the benefit of and use by the public. 
  

25



Resolution No. 20-09 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
Passed and Adopted the 17th day of June 2020. 
 
 
______________________ 
Chris Canning, NVTA Chair  Ayes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      Nays: 
 
 
 
      Absent: 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 
  

26



Resolution No. 20-09 
Page 3 of 3 

Attachment B 
TDA Article 3 Project Application Form 

Fiscal Year of this Claim: FY 20-21 Applicant: Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
Contact person: Sanjay Mishra 
Mailing Address:  625 Burnell St., Napa, Ca 94559 
E-Mail Address: smishra@nvta.ca.gov Telephone: (707) 259 5951  
Secondary Contact (in event primary not available): Diana Meehan  
E-Mail Address: dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov Telephone: (707) 259 8327  
Short Title Description of Project: : Napa Valley Vine Trail St. Helena to Calistoga 
Amount of claim: $89,928 
Functional Description of Project: 
The Vine Trail-Calistoga to ST Helena project runs mostly along the State Route 29 and starts from the intersection of 
Fair Way at Lincoln Ave at the northern end in Calistoga to Pratt Ave in St. Helena to the south. The Napa Valley Vine Trail 
is envisioned as a 47-mile Class I multi-use path for pedestrians and cyclists. This segment of the project will construct 
a 9mi Class I multi-use path that includes three bridges. This project is funded by local, state, federal and private sources. 
 
Financial Plan: 
List the project elements for which TDA funding is being requested (e.g., planning, engineering, construction, contingency). Use 
the table below to show the project budget for the phase being funded or total project. Include prior and proposed future funding 
of the project.  Planning funds may only be used for comprehensive bicycle and pedestrian plans.  Project level planning is not an 
eligible use of TDA Article 3. 
 
Project Elements: TDA-3 funds will be used for Construction and/or contingency to complete the project.  
 

Funding Source All Prior FYs Application FY20/21 Next FY Following FYs Totals 
TDA Article 3  $89,928   $89,928 
list all other sources:      
1. ATP $6,106,000    $6,106,000 
2. OBAG 2 $711,000    $711,000 
3.Ridge Trail $125,000    $125,000 
4. Private $1,144,301    $1,144,301 
5.TFCA $200,000    $200,000 
6. TDA $140,000    $140,000 

Totals     $8,516,229 
 

Project Eligibility:   YES?/NO? 
A. Has the project been approved by the claimant's governing body?  (If "NO," provide the approximate date approval 

is anticipated). 
YES 

B. Has this project previously received TDA Article 3 funding?  If "YES," provide an explanation on a separate page. NO 
C. For "bikeways," does the project meet Caltrans minimum safety design criteria pursuant to Chapter 1000 of the 

California Highway Design Manual? (Available on the internet via: http://www.dot.ca.gov). 
YES 

D. Has the project been reviewed by a Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC)? (If "NO," provide an explanation).  Enter 
date the project was reviewed by the BAC: January 2020 

YES 

E. Has the public availability of the environmental compliance documentation for the project (pursuant to CEQA) been 
evidenced by the dated stamping of the document by the county clerk or county recorder?  (required only for 
projects that include construction). 

NO-Expected 
June 2020 

F. Will the project be completed before the allocation expires?  Enter the anticipated completion date of project (month 
and year)   June 2023 

YES 

G. Have provisions been made by the claimant to maintain the project or facility, or has the claimant arranged for such 
maintenance by another agency?  (If an agency other than the Claimant is to maintain the facility provide its name:  
County of Napa 

YES 

 

27



  

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION No. 20-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF 
COUNTYWIDE COORDINATED CLAIM TO THE 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (MTC) 
FOR THE ALLOCATION OF FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2020-21 

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT ARTICLE 3 (TDA-3) 
PEDESTRIAN/BICYCLE PROJECT FUNDS TO CLAIMANTS IN NAPA COUNTY 

 
 WHEREAS, Article 3 of the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Public Utilities 
Code (PUC) Section 99200 et seq., authorizes the submission of claims to a regional 
transportation planning agency for the funding of projects exclusively for the benefit 
and/or use of pedestrians and bicyclists; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), as the regional 
transportation planning agency for the San Francisco Bay region, has adopted MTC 
Resolution No. 4108, which delineates procedures and criteria for submission of requests 
for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, MTC Resolution No. 4108 requires that requests from eligible 
claimants for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funds be submitted as part of a single, 
countywide coordinated claim, composed of certain required documents; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority has undertaken a process 
in compliance with MTC Resolution No. 4108 for consideration of project proposals 
submitted by eligible claimants of TDA Article 3 funds in Napa County, and a prioritized 
list of projects, included as Attachment A of this resolution, was developed as a result of 
this process; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each claimant in Napa County whose project or projects have been 
prioritized for inclusion in the fiscal year (FY) 2010-21 TDA Article 3 countywide 
coordinated claim, has forwarded to the Napa Valley Transportation Authority a certified 
copy of its governing body resolution for submittal to MTC requesting an allocation of TDA 
Article 3 funds; now, therefore, be it 
 

RESOLVED, that the Napa Valley Transportation Authority approves the 
prioritized list of projects included as Attachment A to this resolution; and furthermore, be 
it 
  

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

June 17, 2020 

28



Resolution No. 20-10 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 
 RESOLVED, that the Napa Valley Transportation Authority approves the submittal 
to MTC, of the Napa County fiscal year (FY) 2020-21 TDA Article 3 countywide, 
coordinated claim, composed of the following required documents:   
 

A. transmittal letter 
 
B. a certified copy of this resolution, including Attachment A;  
 
C. one copy of the governing body resolution and required attachments, for each 

claimant whose project or projects are the subject of the coordinated claim;  
 
D. a description of the process for public and staff review of all proposed projects 

submitted by eligible claimants for prioritization and inclusion in the countywide, 
coordinated claim; 

 
Passed and Adopted the 17th day of June 2020. 
 
 
______________________ 
Chris Canning, NVTA Chair  Ayes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      Nays: 
 
 
 
      Absent: 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 
  

29



Resolution No. 20-10 
Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENT A 

Re: Submittal of Countywide Coordinated Claim to the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission for the Allocation of Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 TDA Article 3 
Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funds to Claimants in Napa County 

Prioritized List of Projects (FY 2018-19) 

Short Title Description of Project 
TDA 

Article 3 
Amount 

Total 
Project 

Cost 

1. Napa Valley Vine Trail-Calistoga to St. Helena $ 89,928 $   8,516,229 

2. City of Calistoga-Bike/Ped Bridge over Napa 
River at Pioneer Park $117,341 $  420,000 

TOTALS $ 207,269 $  8,936,229 

30



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Approval of Resolution to Execute the Certifications and Assurances and Authorize Agent 
Forms for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for Imola Avenue and 
State Route (SR)- 29/121 Express Bus Stop Improvement Project 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 20-
11 supporting the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) 
project.   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is eligible to receive funds in FY 2019-20 
for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP).  These funds are disbursed on 
a formula basis by the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) and the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), and are generated from Assembly Bill 
32 Cap & Trade proceeds.  The application requests LCTOP funds as a local match for 
the Imola Park and Ride improvement project.  Caltrans requires that recipients provide 
a board approved resolution per project to receive the funds. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Grants funds of $1,052,102 will be awarded to the project. 

31



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director - Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Approval of Resolution No. 20-11 Authorization for the Execution of 
the Certifications and Assurances and Authorized Agent Forms for the 
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for Imola Avenue 
and State Route (SR) 29 Improvement Project 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 20-
11 (Attachment 1) supporting the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Program (LCTOP) project.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Imola Park and Ride improvements project is intended to overhaul the Imola Park 
and Ride on State Route (SR) 121 (SR 121) adjacent to SR 29.  This will allow NVTA to 
increase express bus frequencies with existing operating resources.  The improvements 
include in-line passenger loading and alighting at the Imola on/off ramps, improved 
pedestrian facilities that connect the ramps directly to the park and ride, and safety 
improvements, such as improved lighting and signal improvements.  The facility 
improvements will also include long-term bicycle parking in the park and ride lot.   
 
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) issued a call for projects for its 
Transit Performance Initiative – Major Corridors program in January 2020.  MTC 
approved NVTA’s application as a contributing sponsor for the project.  A formal 
application with a Resolution must be submitted to Caltrans to complete the application 
process and to program the funds.  

32

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 9.4 
June 17, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NVTA is finalizing the environmental document and design on this project, which is 
expected to be completed in summer of 2020.  Project construction could begin as early 
as fall/winter 2020 and can be in-service by summer 2021. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The agency could forgo the funds and seek other grants to construct the facility or cancel 
the project.  Pursuing other funds would delay the project and compromise future funding 
to the agency for other projects. 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently. 
 
Goal 5: Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods. 
 
LCTOP funding supplements the budget for the Imola Park and Ride improvements.  
Without this funding source, NVTA must use TDA as a local match for funding that could 
be used for other projects and hinder further efforts to upgrade the facility.  
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
(1) Resolution No. 20-11 

33



 
ATTACHMENT 1 

NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 
June 17, 2020 

 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION No. 20-11 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF THE 
CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES AND AUTHORIZED AGENT FORMS 

FOR THE LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM (LCTOP) 
FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT(S): 

IMOLA AVE. AT SR29/121 EXPRESS BUS STOP IMPROVMENTS: $1,052,102 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority is an eligible project sponsor 
and may receive state funding from the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 
(LCTOP) for transit projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or 

regional implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and 
 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 862 (2014) named the Department of Transportation 
(Department) as the administrative agency for the LCTOP; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Department has developed guidelines for the purpose of 
administering and distributing LCTOP funds to eligible project sponsors (local agencies); 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority wishes to delegate 
authorization to execute these documents and any amendments thereto to Kate Miller, 
Executive Director or designee; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority wishes to implement the 
LCTOP project(s) listed above. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Napa 
Valley Transportation Authority that the fund recipient agrees to comply with all conditions 
and requirements set forth in the Certification and Assurances and the Authorized Agent 
documents and applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines for all LCTOP funded 
transit projects. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Kate Miller, Executive 
Director or designee be authorized to execute all required documents of the LCTOP 
program and any Amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation. 
  

34



Resolution No. 20-11 
Page 2 of 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Napa 
Valley Transportation Authority that it hereby authorizes the submittal of the following 
project nomination(s) and allocation request(s) to the Department in FY 2019-20 LCTOP 
funds: 

Project Name: Imola Ave. at SR29/121 Express Bus Stop Improvements 
Amount of LCTOP funds requested: $1,052,102 

Short description of project: Grants funds used to upgrade the Imola Park and Ride on 
SR 29/121 to improve express bus service. 

Benefit to a Priority Population:  AB 1550 Census Tracts – 6055200900, 6055200301 

Contributing Sponsors:  Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 

Passed and adopted the 17th day of June 2020. 

______________________ 
Chris Canning, NVTA Chair Ayes: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

35



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointment 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the re-appointment 
of member Larry Kormann representing Low-Income Housing to the Citizen Advocacy 
Committee. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The CAC was formed by NVTA to replace a number of ad hoc committees that were 
convened to advise the NVTA Board and NVTA staff on specific modes, projects, and 
programs.  The CAC was formed to ensure representation from all aspects of the 
communities in Napa Valley and to retain the expertise and institutional knowledge that 
was lost when committees convened for specific projects or purposes were disbanded. 
With the reappointment of Larry Kormann, the CAC will consist of fourteen (14) members. 
Larry Kormann represents the Low-Income Housing interest. 

There are six (6) existing vacancies on the committee and NVTA staff is actively recruiting 
to fill positions.  These include members representing the City of St. Helena, the City of 
Calistoga, the Town of Yountville, an Agriculture member, Chamber/Business member 
and an Active Transportation member. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

ATTACHMENT 

None 

36



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Karrie Sanderlin, Program Manager-Administration and Human 

Resources 
(707) 259-8633 / Email: ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointment 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the re-appointment 
of member Larry Kormann, representing Low-Income Housing, to the Citizen Advocacy 
Committee. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The CAC was formed by NVTA to replace a number of ad hoc committees that were 
convened to advise the NVTA Board and NVTA staff on specific modes, projects, and 
programs.  The CAC was formed to ensure representation from all aspects of the 
communities in Napa Valley and to retain the expertise and institutional knowledge that 
was lost when committees convened for specific projects or purposes were disbanded. 
 
The CAC by-laws approved by the NVTA Board state that the committee structure and 
representation should strive to represent a diverse cross-section of the community 
including members of underrepresented groups in Napa Valley.  
 
City/Town/County members will be appointed by their respective Councils or Board of 
Supervisors whichever is applicable before being approved by the NVTA Board.  If 
representation of a certain faction or jurisdiction cannot be filled after solicitation for that 
position, the vacancy may be filled with a member at-large.  
 

37

mailto:ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority   Agenda Item 9.5 
June 17, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

There are six (6) existing vacancies on the committee and NVTA staff is actively recruiting 
to fill positions.  These include members representing the City of St. Helena, the City of 
Calistoga, the Town of Yountville, an Agriculture member, Chamber/Business member 
and an Active Transportation member. 

Ideally, members will serve two years.  Terms are staggered to ensure continuity. 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board could decide not to approve Larry Kromann for reappointment and the CAC 
would be missing a member that represents affordable housing interests.  

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 1 – Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability. 

Goal 4 – Support Napa County’s economic vitality 

The CAC is comprised of members from the community representing various interests in 
Napa Valley.  The purpose of the CAC is to advise the board (via NVTA staff) on projects 
and programs. 

38



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Nomination, Discussion, and Election of Chair and Vice Chair for Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-
21 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the report from the 
nominating committee and elect a Chair and Vice Chair for NVTA for Fiscal Year (FY) 
2020-21. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The term for the Chair Canning and Vice Chair Pedroza will end in June of this year.  The 
nominating committee composed of Board members Chris Canning, John Dunbar, and 
Leon Garcia conferred.  Their recommendation will be presented at the meeting for the 
Board’s consideration. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

39



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Karrie Sanderlin, Program Manager-Administration and Human 

Resources 
(707) 259-8633 / Email: ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Nomination, Discussion, and Election of Chair and Vice Chair for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the report from the 
nominating committee and elect a Chair and Vice Chair for NVTA for Fiscal Year (FY) 
2020-21 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND 

The NVTA bylaws, which were adopted in July 1998, require an annual election of Chair 
and Vice Chair at the first annual meeting.  The Chair and Vice Chair hold office for one 
year or until their successors have been appointed.  In June of 2000 a subcommittee of 
the Board recommended, and the Board adopted, a policy that allows a two-year term for 
the Chair and Vice Chair with an annual vote of approval by the Board.  The Board terms 
are consistent with the agency’s fiscal year and begin on July 1 and end on June 30. 

The term for the Chair Canning and Vice Chair Pedroza will end in June of this year.  The 
nominating committee composed of Board members Chris Canning, John Dunbar, and 
Leon Garcia conferred.  Their recommendation will be presented at the meeting for the 
Board’s consideration. 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board could decide not to appoint a new chair or vice chair and Chair Canning and 
Vice Chair Pedroza would continue serving in those positions until new appointments are 
made. 

40

mailto:ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Draft Environmental Document for the Napa Valley Vine Trail Project - St. Helena to 
Calistoga Segment 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) approve releasing the Draft Initial 
Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the Napa Valley Vine Trail Project – 
St. Helena to Calistoga Segment pending concurrence of State Historic Preservation 
Office (SHPO). It is anticipated that it will be released to the public and all affected 
agencies for a 30-day comment period on or about June 17th to July 20th, 2020. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is the Lead Agency under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the Napa Valley Vine Trail Project - St. Helena to 
Calistoga (Project). NVTA has prepared an IS/MND for the Project and is requesting that 
the NVTA Board approve releasing it the public and all affected agencies for comment.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

41



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Principal Planner 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Draft Environmental Document for the Napa Valley Vine Trail Project 
- St. Helena to Calistoga Segment 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) approve releasing the Draft Initial 
Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the Napa Valley Vine Trail Project – 
St. Helena to Calistoga Segment pending concurrence of State Historic Preservation 
Office (SHPO). It is anticipated that it will be released to the public and all affected 
agencies for a 30-day comment period on or about June 17th to July 20th, 2020. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) granted NVTA’s request to 
be CEQA Lead Agency for the Napa Valley Vine Trail – St. Helena to Calistoga Project 
(Project) in June of 2019.  NVTA conducted the studies and assessed the 
environmental impacts of the project. Caltrans is still the CEQA responsible agency. 
Therefore, NVTA prepared and submitted the environmental documentation and 
necessary associated technical studies for Caltrans review and comments. Caltrans 
as well as State Parks and Middletown Rancheria have already commented on the 
Draft IS/MND. 
 
Description 
The Project would consist of an approximately 6.8-mile Class I bicycle and pedestrian 
trail within St. Helena and Napa County. The Napa Valley Vine Trail – St. Helena to 
Calistoga project would be located within California Department of Transportation 

42

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.2 
June 17, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
(Caltrans) right of way (ROW), State Park lands, existing easements, and easements to 
be granted from property owners. The St. Helena to Calistoga project would begin in St. 
Helena at the intersection of Pratt Avenue and State Route (SR) 29 at postmile (PM) 
29.244 and extend to the north end where it would terminate at Dunaweal Lane east of 
SR 29 at PM 35.308 near the city limits of Calistoga. 
 
The proposed path would be 10-feet wide with 2-foot shoulders for a total width of 14 feet 
in most locations, narrowing to a lesser width (minimum 8 feet) in constrained locations. 
In most locations the Vine Trail would be an asphalt trail installed over aggregate base, 
with gravel shoulders. With exception of a portion of Vine Trail through Bothe-Napa Valley 
State Park, most of the proposed Vine Trail would be on the east side of SR 29. Most of 
the Vine Trail would be separated from SR 29, though a few portions of the proposed 
Vine Trail would occur on the shoulder of SR 29.  
 
An additional segment called the Fair Way Path Extension would be constructed at the 
same time as the proposed project. The Fair Way Extension would be a 0.6-mile Class I 
trail that extends north from an existing segment of the Napa Valley Vine Trail, from 
Washington Avenue in Calistoga to the intersection of Fair Way and Lincoln Avenue in 
Calistoga (east of SR 29  and approximately between PM  36.45 to 37.22). The Fair Way 
Path Extension was previously analyzed under CEQA and a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration has been approved by the City of Calistoga’s Planning Commission (PC 
Resolution 2014-29; November 26, 2014).  
 
CEQA Environmental Impacts 
In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the CEQA 
Guidelines, NVTA has prepared an Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(IS/MND). Based on the Initial Study, the project effects were found to have a less than 
significant impact on the environment with implementation of identified mitigation 
measures. CEQA requires this notice to disclose whether any listed toxic sites are present 
at the project location. Listed toxic sites are not present at the project location. 
 
The public and all affected agencies are invited to review the Draft IS/MND and submit 
written comments. The IS/MND can be reviewed and accessed at: 
http://www.nvta.ca.gov/vinetrail.   
 
Usually hard copies would be available at the following locations:  

• Napa Valley Transportation Authority, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA 94559 
• St Helena Public Library, 1492 Library Ln #1143, St Helena, CA 94574 

 
Due to current situation under the coronavirus related Shelter-in-Place policy, these 
locations are closed to the public. Therefore, if requested, a hard copy will be mailed to 
members of the public and agencies upon request.   

43

http://www.nvta.ca.gov/vinetrail


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.2 
June 17, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
Next Steps 
After the comment period ends NVTA and its consultants will address the comments 
received and present a final IS/MND to the NVTA Board to adopt.  
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
1) Delay the release of the Draft IS/MND until a later date.  This alternative would delay 

the Project schedule 
2) Decide not to release the Draft IS/MND. This alternative would result in  the Project 

not moving forward at this time and result in delays that could result in losing the Active 
Transportation Program grant funds. 
 

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1- Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability 
 
The Vine Trail is a critical project that supports alternative transportation for individuals 
who may not have the income or the ability to drive an automobile. 
 
Goal 2 – Improve system safety in order to support all modes and serve all users 
 
This segment of the Vine Trail will allow bikers and walkers to safely navigate from St. 
Helena to Calistoga on a Class I bike path – separated from automobile traffic. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(2) Napa Valley Vine Trail Project – St. Helena to Calistoga Segment Draft Initial 

Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (due to file size, the document is available for 
review on the NVTA website at: https://www.nvta.ca.gov/vinetrail) 

44

https://www.nvta.ca.gov/vinetrail


 

NOTICE OF INTENT  
TO ADOPT A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

 
Napa Valley Vine Trail Project – St. Helena to Calistoga 

 
 

Project Description and Location 
The Napa Valley Vine Trail – St. Helena to Calistoga project would consist of an approximately 6.8-
mile Class I bicycle and pedestrian trail within St. Helena and Napa County. The Napa Valley Vine Trail 
– St. Helena to Calistoga project would be located within California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) right of way (ROW), State Park lands, existing easements, and easements to be granted 
from property owners. The St. Helena to Calistoga project would begin in St. Helena at the intersection 
of Pratt Avenue and State Route (SR) 29 at postmile (PM) 29.244 and extends to the north end where 
it would terminate at Dunaweal Lane east of SR 29 at PM 35.308 near the city limits of Calistoga. 
 
The proposed path would be 10-feet wide with 2-foot shoulders for a total width of 14 feet in most 
locations, narrowing to a lesser width (minimum 8 feet) in constrained locations. In most locations the 
Vine Trail would be an asphalt trail installed over aggregate base, with gravel shoulders. With exception 
of a portion of Vine Trail through Bothe-Napa Valley State Park, most of the proposed Vine Trail would 
be on the east side of SR 29. Most of the Vine Trail would be separated from SR 29, though a few 
portions of the proposed Vine Trail would occur on the shoulder of SR 29.  
 
An additional segment called the Fair Way Path Extension would be constructed at the same time as 
the proposed project. The Fair Way Extension would be a 0.6-mile Class I trail that extends north from 
an existing segment of the Napa Valley Vine Trail, from Washington Avenue in Calistoga to the 
intersection of Fair Way and Lincoln Avenue in Calistoga (east of SR 29  and approximately between 
PM  36.45 to 37.22). The Fair Way Path Extension was previously analyzed under CEQA and a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration has been approved by the City of Calistoga’s Planning Commission (PC 
Resolution 2014-29; November 26, 2014).  
 
CEQA Environmental Impacts 
In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the CEQA Guidelines, NVTA 
has prepared a Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND). Based on the Initial Study, the 
project effects were found to have a less than significant impact on the environment with implementation 
of identified mitigation measures. CEQA requires this notice to disclose whether any listed toxic sites 
are present at the project location. Listed toxic sites are not present at the project location. 
 
The public and all affected agencies are invited to review the Draft IS/MND and submit written 
comments. The IS/MND can be reviewed and accessed at: http://www.nvta.ca.gov/vinetrail.  The thirty 
(30) day comment period is from June XX, 2020 to July XX, 2020. Usually hard copies would be 
available at the following locations:  
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

June 17, 2020 

45

http://www.nvta.ca.gov/vinetrail


• Napa Valley Transportation Authority, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA 94559
• St Helena Public Library, 1492 Library Ln #1143, St Helena, CA 94574

Due to current situation under the coronavirus related Shelter-in-Place policy, these locations are 
closed to the public. Therefore, if requested, a hard copy will be mailed to you. Please allow time for 
printing and delivery.  

Public Review Period 
The public review period will start on June XX, 2020 and end on July XX, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. Please 
submit any comments in writing that you may have on the draft Mitigated Negative Declaration by July 
XX, 2020 to Rebecca Schenck at rschenck@nvta.ca.gov or mail comments to the following address.  

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
Attention of Rebecca Schenck 

625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA 94559 

Public Hearing 
Following the close of the public review period, a public hearing for the recommended adoption of the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration and approval of the project will be heard at a NVTA Board of Director’s 
meeting.  Please check the Board Agenda at http://www.nvta.ca.gov for the scheduled hearing date 
and location.  

46

http://www.nvta.ca.gov/


June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Resolutions of Support for the Soscol Junction for the 2020 Local Partnership Program 
(LPP) and for the Solutions for Congested Corridor (SCC) Funding and for the Vine 
Transit Maintenance Facility for the Local Partnership Program Formula Funds.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Governor Browns signed Senate Bill 1 (SB 1) into law in April 2017.  SB 1 makes funds 
available through a number of programs for transportation improvements, including the 
LPP and SCC program.  Staff is requesting the Board’s support for its two grant 
applications in the amount of $25 million for funding from each these programs for the 
Soscol Junction Project.  This strategy would grant the ultimate flexibility to CTC to identify 
funding from one program or a subset of funds from both programs.  In addition, staff is 
seeking support from the Board to use $1.1 million in the Local Partnership Program 
Formulaic Funds for the Vine Transit Maintenance Facility.  

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve (1) Resolution No. 
20-12 Support for NVTA Nomination of Soscol Junction for the 2020 Local Partnership
Program (LPP) Competitive Grant (Attachment 1) and (2) Resolution No. 20-13 Support
for NVTA Nomination of Soscol Junction for the Solutions for Congested Corridor (SCC)
Funding (Attachment 2) and (3) Resolution No. 20-14 Support for NVTA Nomination of
Vine Transit Maintenance Facility for the Local Partnership Program (LPP) Formulaic
Funds.

FISCAL IMPACT 

Not for this action. 

47



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Danielle Schmitz, Director –Capital Development and Planning  

(707) 259-5968 / Email: dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Approval of (1) Resolution No. 20-12 Support for the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority (NVTA) Nomination of Soscol Junction for the 
2020 Competitive Local Partnership Program (LPP), (2) Resolution 
No. 20-13 Support for the Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
(NVTA) Nomination of Soscol Junction for the Solutions for Congested 
Corridor (SCC), and (3) Resolution No. 20-14 Support for Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority (NVTA) Nomination of the Vine Transit 
Maintenance Facility for the Local Partnership Program (LPP) Formula 
Funds 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve (1) Resolution No. 
20-12 Support for the NVTA Nomination of Soscol Junction for the 2020 Competitive 
Local Partnership Program (Attachment 1), (2) Resolution No. 20-13 Support for the 
NVTA Nomination of Soscol Junction for the Solutions for Congested Corridor Program 
(Attachment 2), and (3) Resolution No 20-14 Support for NVTA Nomination of Vine 
Transit Maintenance Facility for Local Partnership Program Formulaic Funds (Attachment 
3). 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Senate Bill SB 1, Chapter 5, Statutes 
of 2017) created the Local Partnership Program (LPP) and appropriates $200 million 
annually to be allocated by the California Transportation Commission (CTC) to local or 
regional transportation agencies that have sought and received voter approval of taxes 

48

mailto:dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.3 
June 17, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
or that have imposed fees dedicated solely for transportation improvements.  The 2020 
LPP cycle covers three years 2020-21 through 2022-23.  The LPP funds are divided 60% 
formula and 40% competitive after $20 million is taken off the top for the Formulaic 
Incentive Fund each year. The LPP competitive amount available for the 2020 cycle is 
approximately $216 million.  LPP competitive funds must be used for project construction 
and requires a 1:1 match.  
 
LPP competitive projects are evaluated on the following criteria: 

• Cost effectiveness 
• Deliverability 
• Leverage of Funds 
• Air Quality Benefits 
• VMT reduction 
• Regional and Community Support 
• Safety 
• System Preservation 
• Efficient Land Use 

 
SB 1 also created the Solutions for Congested Corridors (SCC) Program and 
appropriates $250 million annually to the CTC for projects nominated by a Regional 
Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) or Caltrans.  The Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) serves as the RTPA for the 9-county Bay Area.  Soscol Junction is 
MTC’s only rural priority.  
 
The 2020 SCC program will provide $500 million over the two year cycle 2021-22 through 
2022-23 for projects that reduce congestion in highly traveled and highly congested 
corridors. Project improvements should balance transportation impacts with community 
impacts and environmental benefits. The SCC program does not require matching funds, 
but additional consideration will be given to projects that have matching funds during the 
evaluation process.  Projects must be identified in an approved Comprehensive 
Multimodal Corridor Plan (CMCP).  Projects will be evaluated on the primary criteria of 
reducing congestion and maximizing throughput while reducing vehicle miles traveled and 
impacts on the environment.  The secondary evaluation criteria for SCC is the following: 
 

• Safety 
• Accessibility 
• Economic Development and job creation 
• Air Quality Benefit 
• Efficient Land Use 

 
The timeline for the SB 1 competitive programs is as follows: 
  

49



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.3 
June 17, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Table 1. SB1 Program Timelines  

Program Application Due 
Date 

Staff 
Recommendations Program Adoption 

LPP (Formula) June 12, 2020 November 12, 2020 December 2-3, 2020 

LPP (Competitive) June 30, 2020  November 12, 2020 December 2-3, 2020 
Solutions for 
Congested 
Corridors 

Revised: July 17, 
2020  November 12, 2020 December 2-3, 2020 

 
Staff is recommending applying for $25 million from each program for the Soscol Junction 
Project that will make improvements at SR 29 and SR 221.  Staff anticipates that the 
programs will be severely oversubscribed.  Applying for funding from both programs 
would provide additional flexibility for CTC to award funding from either program or a 
subset of funding from both programs.  The Soscol Junction project environmental 
document was signed by Caltrans in March 2020 and the design contract was awarded 
to GHD in April 2020.  NVTA has also entered into a cooperative agreement with Caltrans 
for the structures design. 
 
NVTA will match the LPP competitive funds with Napa County Regional Transportation 
Improvement Program funds, LPP formula funds, Regional Measure 3 and local 
developer fees.  NVTA has received approximately $1.5 million in LPP formula funds to 
date.  Roughly, $400,000 will be used for the Soscol Junction project and $1.1 million has 
been committed to the Vine Maintenance Facility. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could not approve submitting applications for the Solutions for Congested 
Corridor or Local Partnership Program grant funds and the projects will be delayed until 
other funding is identified. In addition, the LPP formula funds could be reallocated to the 
SHOPP or other state program. 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 4: Support Napa County’s Economic Vitality  

• Identify and improve key goods movement routes  
 
Goal 5: Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods.  

• Prioritize projects that reduce greenhouse gas  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Resolution No. 20-12 

50



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.3 
June 17, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
(2) Resolution No. 20-13 
(3) Resolution No. 20-14 
(4) Staff Recommendations for 2018 LPP Formulaic Program  
(5) LPP Guidelines https://catc.ca.gov/programs/sb1/local-partnership-program 
(6) SCCP Guidelines https://catc.ca.gov/programs/sb1/solutions-for-congested-

corridors-program 

51

https://catc.ca.gov/programs/sb1/local-partnership-program
https://catc.ca.gov/programs/sb1/solutions-for-congested-corridors-program
https://catc.ca.gov/programs/sb1/solutions-for-congested-corridors-program


 
 

RESOLUTION No. 20-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

NOMINATION OF SOSCOL JUNCTION FOR THE  
2020 LOCAL PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM (LLP) COMPETITIVE GRANT 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) passed Measure T 
in 2012, a half-cent sales tax dedicated solely to transportation improvements, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Senate Bill 1) 

created the Local Partnership Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Local Partnership Program provides $200 million annually in 

matching funds to support local transportation investments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2020 Local Partnership Program distributes matching funds via a 

60% formula and 40% competitive program to cities and counties with voter approved tax 
measures; and 

 
WHEREAS, NVTA in its capacity as a taxing authority and eligible applicant can 

nominate projects for funding in the Local Partnership Program; and  
 
WHEREAS, the cycle of the 2020 Local Partnership Competitive Program covers 

Fiscal Years 2020-21, 2021-22, and 2022-23;  
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the NVTA Board hereby authorizes 
the Executive Director to nominate Soscol Junction as NVTA’s priority project to receive 
Local Partnership Program Competitive Funding and make any administrative changes 
to the application as needed.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that NVTA will secure any matching funds and 

understands that the Local Partnership Program funding for the project is fixed at the CTC 
approved programmed amount, and that any cost increases must be funded by NVTA 
from other funds, and that NVTA does not expect any cost increases to be funded with 
additional Local Partnership Program Competitive funding.   

 
 
Passed and Adopted the 17th day of June 2020.  
 
 
______________________ 
Chris Canning, NVTA Chair      Ayes: 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

June 17, 2020 

52



Resolution No. 20-12 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
                Nays: 
 
 
 
 
                Absent: 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

53



 
 
 

RESOLUTION No. 20-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

 NOMINATION OF SOSCOL JUCNTION FOR THE 
SOULTIONS FOR CONGESTED CORRIDOR (SCC) FUNDING  

 
 

WHEREAS, the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Senate Bill 1) 
created the Solutions for Congested Corridor Program, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Solutions for Congested Corridor Program provides $250 million 

annually to support local transportation investments; and 
 

WHEREAS, Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) in its capacity as a Local 
Transportation Agency is eligible to nominate projects in cooperation with its Regional 
Transportation Planning Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission is NVTA’s Regional 

Transportation Planning Agency and has prioritized Soscol Junction as its rural priority 
project; and 

 
WHEREAS, cycle 2020 Solutions for Congested Corridor Program covers Fiscal 

Years 2021-22, and 2022-23; and  
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the NVTA Board hereby authorizes 
the Executive Director to nominate Soscol Junction as NVTA’s priority project to receive 
Solutions for Congested Corridor Program Funding and make any administrative changes 
to the application as needed.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that NVTA will secure any matching funds and 

understands that the Solutions for Congested Corridor Funding for the project is fixed at 
the CTC approved programmed amount, and that any cost increases must be funded by 
NVTA from other funds, and that NVTA does not expect any cost increases to be funded 
with additional Solutions for Congested Corridor Funding.  
 
Passed and Adopted the 17th of June 2020.  
 
 
______________________ 
Chris Canning, NVTA Chair      Ayes: 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

June 17, 2020 

54



Resolution No. 20-13 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
                Nays: 
 
 
 
 
                Absent: 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

55



 
 

RESOLUTION No. 20-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

NOMINATION OF VINE TRANSIT MAINTENANCE FACILITY FOR THE  
LOCAL PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM (LLP) FORMULAIC FUNDS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) passed Measure T 
in 2012, a half-cent sales tax dedicated solely to transportation improvements, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Senate Bill 1) 

created the Local Partnership Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Local Partnership Program provides $200 million annually in 

matching funds to support local transportation investments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2020 Local Partnership Program distributes matching funds via a 

60% formula and 40% competitive program to cities and counties with voter approved tax 
measures; and 

 
WHEREAS, NVTA in its capacity as a taxing authority and eligible applicant can 

nominate projects for funding in the Local Partnership Program; and  
 
WHEREAS, NVTA can program Local Partnership Program Formulaic Funds from 

Fiscal Years 2018-19 through Fiscal Years 2022-23;  
 
WHEREAS, NVTA has identified $1,100,000 in Local Partnership Program 

Formula Funds in the Vine Transit Maintenance Facility Funding Plan; and  
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the NVTA Board hereby authorizes 
the Executive Director to nominate the Vine Transit Maintenance Facility as NVTA’s 
project to receive Local Partnership Program Formulaic Funding and make any 
administrative changes to the application as needed.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that NVTA will secure any matching funds and 

understands that the Local Partnership Program funding for the project is fixed at the CTC 
approved programmed amount, and that any cost increases must be funded by NVTA 
from other funds, and that NVTA does not expect any cost increases to be funded with 
additional Local Partnership Program Formulaic funding.   

 
 
Passed and Adopted the 17th day of June 2020.  
 
 
______________________ 

ATTACHMENT 3 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

June 17, 2020 

56



Resolution No. 20-14 
Page 2 of 2 

Chris Canning, NVTA Chair      Ayes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                Nays: 
 
 
 
 
                Absent: 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

57



 Staff Recommendations for the 2018 LPP Formulaic Program
($1,000s)

Page 1 of 1 Revised 01/10/2018

Implementing Total LPP Unprgrmd

Applicant Agency    Project Title Agency 2017-18 2018-19 Proposed Shares Balance

Bay Area Toll Authority    Dumbarton Bridge Operational Improvements BATA $8,200

Bay Area Toll Authority    SFOBB/West Oakland Regional Bicycle/Pedestrian Link Connection MTC/BATA/CT $2,000 $10,200 $10,236 $36

Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District    Customer Service Center Rehab AC Transit $50 $765

Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District    Purchase 59 Hybrid Buses AC Transit $253 $1,068 $1,068 $0

Bay Area Rapid Transit District    BART Escalator Replacement (Downtown SF Stations) BART $1,880 $1,880 $1,880 $0

Orinda    Miner Road Rehab Orinda $200 $200 $200 $0

Alameda County Transportation Commission    7th Street Grade Separation East Segment (7SGSE) ACTC $907 $7,073 $7,980 $7,980 $0

Contra Costa Transportation Authority    Route 680 NB Express Lane CCTA $4,799

Contra Costa Transportation Authority    El Cerrito Pavement Project El Cerrito $200

Contra Costa Transportation Authority    Martinez Pavement Project Martinez $200 $5,199 $5,199 $0

Fresno County Transportation Authority    Willow Avenue Street Improvements Clovis $4,544 $4,544 $4,544 $0

Clearlake    Burns Valley School/Civic Center - Bicycle/Pedestrian Enhancements Clearlake $200 $200 $200 $0

Madera County Transportation Authority    Orange Avenue and 6th Street Pavement Rehabilitation Chowchilla $142

Madera County Transportation Authority    2017-18 3R and ADA Improvements Madera 217

Madera County Transportation Authority    2018-19 3R and ADA Improvements Madera $180

Madera County Transportation Authority    Road 30 Curb & Gutter, Sidewalk, Shoulder Paving & Rehabilitation Madera County $175 $714 $714 $0

Transportation Authority Marin County    Marin-Sonoma Narrows (Design Contracts B1-Ph2 and A4) Caltrans $250 $250

Transportation Authority Marin County    Francisco Blvd West Multi-Use Pathway (2nd St to Andersen Dr) San Rafael $502 $1,002 $1,002 $0

Fort Bragg    2019 Street Rehabilitation Project Fort Bragg $200 $200 $200 $0

Point Arena    Port Road Rehabilitation & Overlay Project Point Arena $200 $200 $200 $0

Willits    Asphalt Maintenance Program Willits $100 $100 $200 $100

Transportation Agency for Monterey County    Fort Ord Regional Trail and Greenway TAMC $500 $600

Transportation Agency for Monterey County    Route 156 Safety Improvements-Blackie Road Extension TAMC $250

Transportation Agency for Monterey County    Regional Wayfinding Program TAMC $163 $1,513 $1,513 $0

Monterey-Salinas Transit District    Monterey Bus Rapid Transit Phase II MST $505 $505 $505 $0

Truckee    Annual Slurry Seal Project Truckee $200 $200 $200 $0

Sacramento Transportation Authority    21 Buses for Circulator Service Expansion RT $1,287

Sacramento Transportation Authority    Roadway Rehabilitation, Street Light & Street Sign Replacement Citrus Heights $299

Sacramento Transportation Authority    Upgraded Curb Ramps Pavement Sealing Elk Grove $323

Sacramento Transportation Authority    Pavement Sealing Elk Grove $30 $261

Sacramento Transportation Authority    Road Widening w/ Bike Lanes Folsom $300

Sacramento Transportation Authority    Sunrise Blvd Roadway Rehabilitation Rancho Cordova $289

Sacramento Transportation Authority    Roadway Rehabilitation Sacramento $1,748

Sacramento Transportation Authority    Complete Streets Rehabilitation Sacramento Co. $268 $2,106 $6,911 $6,911 $0

San Francisco County Transportation Authority    Parkmerced/Twin Peaks/Glen Park Residential Pavement Renovation SFPW $2,106

San Francisco County Transportation Authority    Alemany Boulevard Pavement Renovation SFPW $2,083 $4,189 $4,189 $0

Santa Clara County Valley Transportation Authority    Capitol Expressway LRT Extension (Eastridge-Alum Rock) SCCVTA $9,442 $0 $9,442 $9,442 $0

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission    2018 Full Depth Recycle & Overlay Santa Cruz Co. $476 $476 $631 $155

Sonoma County Transportation Authority    Santa Rosa OBAG2 Bike and Pedestrian Project Santa Rosa $100 $473 $573 $1,152 $579

Sonoma Marin Area Rail Transit District    SMART Rail Maintenance Equipment Expansion SMART $1,553 $1,553 $1,553 $0

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority    West Santa Ana Branch Transit Corridor (WSAB) LACMTA $23,941

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority    Green Line Extension (Redondo Beach-Torrance) LACMTA $19,745

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority    Willowbrook/Rosa Parks Station Mezzanine Improvements LACMTA $14,808 $58,494 $58,494 $0

Orange County Transportation Authority I-5 Improvements, Rt 73-Oso Parkway (Segment 1) Caltrans $18,242 $18,242 $18,242 $0

Riverside County Transportation Commission    Replace Route 71/91 Interchange (NB Rt 71 to EB Rt 91) RCTC $2,000

Riverside County Transportation Commission    Pachappa Underpass (Rt 91 HOV Remnant Work, Raise UPRR) RCTC $4,272

Riverside County Transportation Commission    Temescal Canyon Road Gap Closure (widen to 4 lanes) Riverside Co. $7,300 $13,572 $13,620 $48

San Bernardino County Transportation Authority I-10 Corridor Contract 1 (Express Lanes - D/B 2b) SBCTA $6,169

San Bernardino County Transportation Authority    Redlands Passenger Rail (SBdo Transit Center - Redlands University) SBCTA $6,169 $12,338 $12,338 $0

San Diego County Regional Transportation Commission    LOSSAN SD Subdivision Doubletrack (CP Eastbrook - CP Shell) SANDAG $2,000

San Diego County Regional Transportation Commission    LOSSAN Batiquitos Lagoon Doubletrack/Bridge (MP234.5-MP235.5) SANDAG $1,250 $9,470

San Diego County Regional Transportation Commission    LOSSAN San Dieguito Lagoon Doubletrack/Bridge/Platform (242.2-243.9) SANDAG $3,500

San Diego County Regional Transportation Commission    LOSSAN SD Subdivision Sorrento to Miramar Ph2 (MP251.2-MP253) SANDAG $1,720

San Diego County Regional Transportation Commission    LOSSAN SD Subdivision Signal Respacing/Optimization SANDAG $1,000 $18,940 $18,940 $0

Santa Barbara County Local Transportation Authority    Rt 101, Santa Monica Rd/Via Real Intersection Improvements Caltrans $754 $450

Santa Barbara County Local Transportation Authority    Santa Claus Lane Class I Bikeway, California Coastal Trail Gap Closure Carpinteria $410

Santa Barbara County Local Transportation Authority    North Padaro Lane Coastal Access Improvements SB County $30 $180

Santa Barbara County Local Transportation Authority    Summerland Area Coastal Access Improvements SB County $150 $600 $2,574 $2,574 $0

Tulare County Transportation Authority    Rt 198/Akers St I/C (Improve Akers/Noble+Akers/Mineral King intersect) Visalia $259 $2,435 $2,694 $2,694 $0

Total Recommended for Formulaic Program $185,703 $186,621 $918

Implementing Total

Applicant Agency    Pulled Projects Agency 2017-18 2018-19 Proposed

San Joaquin County Transportation Authority    Route 99/120 Connector Caltrans $3,408 $3,408

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission    Vehicle Replacement SC Metro $155 $155

Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District    Vehicle Replacement SC Metro $631 $631

Sonoma County Transportation Authority   Route 101 Marin/Sonoma Narrows C-2 project Caltrans $579 $579

Stanislaus County Transportation Authority    Route 99/Fulkerth Road Interchange Improvements Turlock $1,258 $1,243 $2,501

Implementing

Applicant Agency    No Project Proposed Agency 2017-18 2018-19 Total

Imperial County Local Transportation Authority $538 $538 $1,076

Merced County Transportation Authority $630 $623 $1,253

Napa Valley Transportation Authority - Effective 7/18 - $323 $323

Nevada City $100 $100 $200

San Mateo County Transportation Authority $884 $873 $1,757

San Mateo County Transit District $884 $873 $1,757

C/CAG of San Mateo County $135 $135 $270

Yuba County $100 $100 $200

Year Proposed

2018 LPP Formulaic Shares

Year Proposed

ATTACHMENT 4
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

June 17, 2020

58

aesqueda
Highlight

dschmitz
Cross-Out



1 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

California Transportation Commission 
 

Adoption of the Amendment to the 2019 Local Partnership Formulaic Program  
Funding Share Distribution 

 
RESOLUTION G-19-07 

Amending Resolution G-18-31 
 

1.1 WHEREAS, on April 28, 2017, the Governor signed Senate Bill 1 (Beall, Chapter 5, Statutes 
of 2017), enacted as the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017, creating the Local 
Partnership Program to provide funding to jurisdictions that have sought and received voter 
approved taxes and enacted fees for road maintenance and rehabilitation and other 
transportation improvement projects; and 

 
1.2 WHEREAS, On June 27, 2017, the Governor signed Assembly Bill 115 (Ting, Chapter 20, 

Statutes of 2017) which clarified language in Senate Bill 1 regarding local and regional 
transportation agency eligibility and expanded the types of projects eligible for program 
funding; and 

 
1.3 WHEREAS, the California Transportation Commission (Commission) adopted the  

2019 Local Partnership Formulaic Program Funding Share Distribution for Fiscal Year  
2019-20 on June 27, 2018, which included shares for 40 agencies; and 

        

 
1.4 WHEREAS, the Commission adopted the 2019 Local Partnership Formulaic Program on

October 17, 2018; and 
 

 
1.5 WHEREAS, the Local Partnership Formulaic Program recognizes new or renewed  

voter-approved self-help efforts and incentivizes jurisdictions to pursue future sales tax 
measures, tolls, or fees; and 

       

 
1.6 WHEREAS, one-time incentive funding is provided to jurisdictions that seek and receive 

voter approval of new or renewed sales tax measures, tolls, and fees; and 
 

1.7 WHEREAS, three agencies informed Commission staff of their successful new and renewed 
voter-approved self-help efforts. Staff reviewed the documents submitted by the agencies to 
verify eligibility and establish the incentive funding amounts; and 

 
1.8 WHEREAS, the Transportation Authority of Marin County will receive incentive funding 

of $5,000,000, for their renewed voter-approved 30-year half-cent sales tax measure 
(Measure AA) effective April 1, 2019; and 

 
1.9 WHEREAS, the San Mateo County Transit District will receive incentive funding of 

$5,000,000, for their new voter-approved 30-year half-cent sales tax measure (Measure W) 
effective April 1, 2019; and 

 
 

59



California Transportation Commission  
Adoption of the Amendment to the 2019 Local Partnership Formulaic Program
Funding Share Distribution 
RESOLUTION G-19-07, Amending Resolution G-18-31 

March 13-14, 2019 
  

 

 

Page 2 
 
 

1.10 WHEREAS, the Council of San Benito County Governments will receive incentive funding 
of $5,000,000, for their new voter-approved 30-year one cent sales tax measure (Measure G) 
effective April 1, 2019; and 

 
1.11 WHEREAS, the aforementioned incentive funding amounts are consistent with the Local

Partnership Program Guidelines. 
 

 
2.1 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission approves the amended 

2019 Local Partnership Formulaic Program Eligible Submittals and Proposed Formulaic 
Shares, as reflected in the Attachment; and 
 

2.2 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that, with this amendment, the 2019 Local Partnership 
Formulaic Program Funding Share Distribution includes 41 agencies with incentive funding 
totaling $20,000,000 for Fiscal Year 2019-20; and 

 
2.3 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that with this amendment, the total incentive funding for

Fiscal Year 2019-20 is the maximum amount granted annually; and 
 

 
2.4 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the subsequent Local Partnership Competitive 

Program cycle capacity will be reduced by $20,000,000 to accommodate the incentive 
funding; and 

 
2.5 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Commission staff is authorized to make minor 

technical changes as needed to the 2019 Local Partnership Formulaic Program Eligible 
Submittals and Proposed Formulaic Shares; and 

 
2.6 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Commission directs staff to post the amended 

2019 Local Partnership Formulaic Program Eligible Submittals and Proposed Formulaic 
Shares on the Commission’s website. 

60



UPDATED 03/01/19  Resolution G-19-07, Amending Resolution G-18-31
Amended 2019 Local Partnership Formulaic Program
Eligible Submittals and Proposed Formulaic Shares

(Shares in $1,000s )

Local Partnership Formulaic Program 2019-20

Formulaic Program Cycle 2 $100,000

Incentive Program (funded by Competitive Program Cycle 2) $20,000

Proposed Annual Share Distribution 2019-20

   Tolls + VRF + parcel/property tax 7.0% $6,978

   North sales tax 27.3% $27,288

   South sales tax 65.7% $65,733

2019-20
Applicant Agency (Measure) Revenue Funding Share
Bay Area Transportation Authority (RM1, RM2) 285,496 $4,649
Alameda County Transportation Commission (Measure F-VRF) 13,075 $213
Transportation Authority Marin County (Measure B-VRF) 2,376 $100
San Francisco County Transportation Authority (Prop AA-VRF) 5,362 $100
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (Measure M-VRF) 7,471 $122
Santa Clara County Valley Transportation Authority (Measure B-VRF) 16,545 $269
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District (Parcel Tax) 29,509 $480
Bay Area Rapid Transit District (Parcel Tax) 51,899 $845
City of Orinda (Measures J & L-Parcel Tax) 1,686 $100
Yuba County Depletion Surcharge (Measure D-Parcel Tax) 483 $100

   Totals 413,902 $6,978

2019-20
County (Agency) Population Funding Share
Alameda (Alameda County Transportation Commission) 1,660,202 $3,589
Contra Costa (Contra Costa Transportation Authority) 1,149,363 $2,486
Fresno (Fresno County Transportation Authority) 1,007,229 $2,173
Lake (City of Clearlake) 15,917 $100
Madera (Madera County Transportation Authority) 158,894 $341
Marin (Transportation Authority Marin County) 263,886 $383
Marin (Sonoma Marin Area Rail Transit District) - $192
Mendocino (City of Fort Bragg) 7,512 $100
Mendocino (City of Point Arena) 448 $100
Mendocino (City of Willits) 5,128 $100
Merced (Merced County Transportation Authority) 279,977 $599
Monterey (Transportation Agency for Monterey County) 443,281 $724
Monterey (Monterey-Salinas Transit District) - $241
Napa (Napa Valley Transportation Authority) 141,294 $311
Nevada (Nevada City) 3,226 $100
Nevada (Town of Truckee) 16,681 $100
Sacramento (Sacramento Transportation Authority) 1,529,501 $3,304
San Francisco (San Francisco County Transportation Authority) 883,963 $1,907
San Joaquin (San Joaquin County Transportation Authority) 758,744 $1,629
San Mateo (San Mateo County Transportation Authority) 774,155 $840
San Mateo (San Mateo County Transit District) - $840
Santa Clara (Santa Clara County Valley Transportation Authority) 1,956,598 $4,228
Santa Cruz (Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission) 276,864 $302
Santa Cruz (Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District) - $302
Sonoma (Sonoma County Transportation Authority) 503,332 $551
Sonoma (Sonoma Marin Area Rail Transit District) - $551
Stanislaus (Stanislaus County Transportation Authority) 555,624 $1,196

   Totals 12,391,819 $27,288

2019-20
County (Agency) Population Funding Share
Imperial (Imperial County Local Transportation Authority) 190,624 $556
Los Angeles (Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority) 10,283,729 $29,973
Orange (Orange County Transportation Authority) 3,221,103 $9,388
Riverside (Riverside County Transportation Commission) 2,415,955 $7,042
San Bernardino (San Bernardino County Transportation Authority) 2,174,938 $6,339
San Diego (San Diego County Regional Transportation Commission) 3,337,456 $9,727
Santa Barbara (Santa Barbara County Local Transportation Authority) 453,457 $1,322
Tulare (Tulare County Transportation Authority) 475,834 $1,387

   Totals 22,553,096 $65,733

2019-20
Applicant Agency (Measure) Funding Share
San Mateo (San Mateo County Transit District) (Measure W) $5,000
Marin (Transportation Authority Marin County) (Measure AA) $5,000
Council of San Benito County of Governments (Measure G) $5,000
Bay Area Transportation Authority (RM3) $5,000

Funding Shares Based on Voter-Approved Sales Taxes - South

Shares for Voter-Approved Tolls, VRF, Parcel/Property Taxes

Shares for Agencies through Local Partnership Program Incentive Grant

Shares Based on Voter-Approved Sales Taxes - North

CALIFORNIA TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION Amended LPP Formulaic Shares 

Attachment B

61

ksanderl
Highlight

ksanderl
Highlight

ksanderl
Highlight



CALIFORNIA TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
ADOPTION OF THE 2020 LOCAL PARTNERSHIP FORMUALIC PROGRAM 

FUNDING DISTRIBUTION 

RESOLUTION G-20-34 

1.1 WHEREAS, on April 28, 2017, the Governor signed Senate Bill (SB) 1 (Beall, 

Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017), enacted as the Road Repair and Accountability Act 

of 2017, creating the Local Partnership Program to provide funding to 

jurisdictions that have sought and received voter approval of taxes or that have 

· imposed fees, including uniform developer fees, which taxes or fees are

dedicated solely to transportation improvements; and

1.2 WHEREAS, on June 27, 2017, the Governor signed Assembly Bill 115 (Ting,

Chapter 20, Statutes 2017) which clarified language in SB 1 regarding local and

regional transportation agency eligibility and expanded the types of projects

eligible for the program; and

1.3 WHEREAS, on January 24, 2020, staff published the draft 2020 Local

Partnership Formulaic Program Proposed Funding Distribution for current and

potentially eligible jurisdictions to review and comment; and

1.4 WHEREAS, staff received feedback and revised the funding distributions for the

2020 Local Partnership Formulaic Program based on the most current data

available; and

1.5 WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, staff posted the revised funding share

distribution on the Commission's website for review.

2.1 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission adopts the 2020

Local Partnership Formulaic Program Proposed Funding Distribution as reflected

in the Attachment; and

2.2 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that staff is authorized to make minor technical

changes as needed to the 2020 Local Partnership Formulaic Program Proposed

Funding Distribution; and

2.3 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Commission directs staff to post the 2020

Local Partnership Formulaic Program Proposed Funding Distribution to the

Commission's website.

62



  

- -

453 

944 944 944 

754 
754 

470 

California Transportation Commission 2020 Local Partnership Formulaic Program Adopted: March 25, 2020 

Funding Distribution 

Locat Partnership Program 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 
Local Partnership Program Annual Appropriation $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000 

Set-Aside Incentive Fundina $ 20 000 
Competitive Program (40%) $ 72,000 

2018 Competitive Overprogramming ($8.83 Million) $ (2,944) 
2019 Formulaic Program Incentives ($20 Million) $ (6,667' 

Subtotal Available for Competitive Program $ 62 389 
Formulaic Program (60%) $ 108,000 

Proposed Annual Formulaic Funding Distribution 

$ 20,000 $ 20 000 
$ 72,000 $ 72,000 
$ (2,944) $ /2,9441 
$ (6,667) $ (6,667 
$ 62,389 $ 62,389 
$108,000 $ 108,000 

Tolls + VRF + parcel/property tax 8.62% $ 9,307 $ 9,307 $ 9,307 
North sales tax 25.83% $ 27,900 $ 27,900 $ 27,900 
South sales tax 65.55% $ 70,793 $ 70,793 $ 70,793 

Revenue Funding Based on Voter-Approved Tolls, VRF, Parcel/Property Tax Revenue 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 
(100%) 

Fundim:I Funding Fundina 
Bay Area Toll Authority (RM1.RM2) {RM3 eff. 1/1/19) $ 428,243 $ 6,059 $ 6,059 $ 6,059 
Alameda County Transportation Commission (Measure F-VRF) $ 13,034 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
Transportation Authority Marin County (Measure B-VRF) $ 2,386 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
Citv and County of San Francisco (Proo. D) $ 32,000 $ $ 453 $ 45-3 

San Francisco County Transportation Authority (Prop AA-VRF) $ 4,956 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (Measure M-VRF) $ 7,471 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority (Measure B-VRF) $ 16,545 $ 234 234 234 $ $ 
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District (Parcel Tax) $ 29,509 $ 417 $ 417 $ 417 
Bay Area Rapid Transit District (Parcel Tax) $ 66,710 $ $ $ 
City of Orinda (Parcel Tax-Measures J & L) $ 1,303 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
Yuba County Depletion Surcharge-Measure D (Parcel Tax) $ 483 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 

Totals $ 602,640 $ 9,307 $ 9,307 $ 9,307 

Fundina Based on Voter-Approved Sales Tax Revenue and Population - North 2020-21 2821-22 2022-23 
Revenue Population County (Agency) Funding Funding Funding 

(25%) (75%) 
Alameda (Alameda Countv Transportation Commission) $ 326,329 1,669,301 $ 3,803 $ 3,803 $ 3,803 
Contra Costa {Contra Costa Transportation Authority) $ 95,310 1,155,879 $ 2,182 $ 2,182 $ 2,182 

City of El Cerrito $ 1,581 N/A $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
Citv of Martinez $ 3,668 N/A $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 

Fresno {Fresno County Transportation Authority) $ 78,812 1,018,241 $ 1,904 $ 1,904 $ 1,904 
Lake {City of Clearlake) $ 2,002 14,828 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
Madera {Madera County Transportation Authoritvl $ 10,564 159,536 $ 306 $ 306 $ 306 
Marin /Transportation Authority Marin County) $ 28,334 262,879 $ 379 $ 379 $ 379 

-Marin {Sonoma Marin Area Rail Transit District) $ 19,941 $ 209 $ 209 $ 209 
Mendocino (Citv of Fort Braag) 
Mendocino {City of Point Arena) 
Mendocino (City of Willits) 
Merced (Merced County Transportation Authoritvl 
Monterev /Transoortation Aaencv for Monterey Countvl 
Monterey (Monterey-Salinas Transit District) $ 9,703 
Naoa (Naoa Vallev Transportation Authoritvl 
Nevada (Nevada City) 
Nevada (Town of Truckee) 
Sacramento (Sacramento Transportation Authoritvl 
San Benito {Council of San Benito County Governments) (eff. 4/1/19) 
San Francisco (San Francisco County Transportation Authority) 
San Joaauin (San Joaauin County Transportation Authoritv) 

$ 890 
$ 49 
$ 839 
$ 19,360 
$ 29,982 

7,478 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
463 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 

4,996 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
282,928 $ 520 $ 520 $ 520 
445,414 $ 639 $ 639 $ 639 

-

$ 20,340 140,779 $ 296 $ 296 $ 296 
$ 683 3,122 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
$ 2,627 16,434 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
$ 130,647 1,546,174 $ 2,930 $ 2,930 $ 2,930 

-$ 62,296 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
$ 112,465 883,869 $ 1,805 $ 1,805 $ 1,805 
$ 64,984 770,385 $ 1,459 $ 1,459 $ 1,459 

228 $ 228 $ 228 $ 

San Mateo (San Mateo County Transportation Authority) $ 98,386 774,485 $ 754 $ $ 754 
San Mateo (San Mateo County Transit District) $ 98,386 - $ $ 754 $ 

$ 
754 
414 San Mateo /San Mateo County Transit District) (add'I measure eff. 7/1/19) $ $ 414 $ 414 

Santa Clara (Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority) $ 515,156 1,954,286 $ 4,911 $ 4,911 $ 4,911 
Santa Cruz (Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission) $ 21,783 274,871 $ 296 $ 296 $ 296 
Santa Cruz /Santa Cruz Metrooolitan Transit District) $ 21,949 - $ 296 $ 296 $ 296 
Sonoma (Sonoma County Transportation Authority) $ 25,854 500,675 $ 491 $ 491 $ 491 
Sonoma (Sonoma Marin Area Rail Transit District) $ 19,941 - $ 470 $ 470 $ 
Stanislaus (Stanislaus County Transportation Authority) $ 45 959 558,972 $ 1,055 $ 1,055 $ 1,055 

Totals $1,806,524 12,508,291 $ 27,900 $ 27,900 $ 27,900 

Funding Based on Voter-Approved Sales Tax Revenue and Population - South 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 
Revenue County (Agency) 

(25%) 
Population 

Funding Funding 
(75%) 
190,266 $ 507 $ 507 $ 

10,253,716 $ 37,506 $ 37,506 $ 
3,222,498 $ 8,851 $ 8,851 $ 
2,440,124 $ 6,495 $ 6 495 $ 

Imperial (Imperial County Local Transportation Authority) $ 15,356 
Los Angeles (Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority) $ 3,470,554 
Orange (Oranae County Transportation Authority) $ 330,347 
Riverside (Riverside County Transportation Commission) $ 196,393 
San Bernardino (San Bernardino County Transportation Authority) 
San Diego (San Diego Reoional Transportation Commission) 
Santa Barbara ( Santa Barbara County Local Transportation Authority) 
Tulare /Tulare Countv Transportation Authoritvl 

Totals 

$ 181,837 
$ 314,260 
$ 40,917 
$ 34,208 
$ 4,583 872 

2,192,203 $ 5,856 $ 5,856 $ 
3,351,786 $ 9,093 $ 9,093 $ 

454,593 $ 1,227 $ 1,227 $ 
479,112 $ 1,258 $ 1,258 $ 

22,584,298 $ 70,793 $ 70,793 $ 

Funding 

507 
37,506 

8,851 
6,495 
5,856 
9,093 
1,227 
1,258 

70 793 

63

ksanderl
Highlight

ksanderl
Highlight



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Draft Napa Valley Community Based Transportation Plan 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve releasing the Draft 
Napa Valley Community Based Transportation Plan for public review and comment.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In 2018 Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) staff began the Community Based 
Transportation Plan (CBTP) update.  The purpose of the CBTP is to identify Communities 
of Concern, based on census data and criteria, and conduct specific outreach to those 
communities to identify transportation gaps and needs.  

Eight COCs were identified in Napa County and NVTA staff conducted over 15 public 
outreach events to gain knowledge about what transportation improvements are 
important to them. In addition, NVTA formed a CBTP Steering Committee made up of 
social service and community-based organizations to vet projects and programs and to 
gain further input on local needs.  NVTA collected specific projects and overall 
programmatic themes that were identified by the community.  The Draft CBTP is now 
complete and ready for public review.  After review and comment by the public, NVTA will 
bring the final CBTP back to the Board in July for adoption. Comments on the Plan should 
be submitted to dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov by Friday, July 3rd.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

64

mailto:dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov


June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Danielle Schmitz, Director - Capital Development and Planning  

(707) 259-5968 / Email: dshcmitz@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Draft Napa Valley Community Based Transportation Plan (CBTP) 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve releasing the Draft 
Napa Valley Community Based Transportation Plan for public review and comment.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The purpose of the CBTP is to improve mobility options and close transportation gaps for 
low-income and disadvantaged communities in Napa County.  To establish the foundation 
for the plan, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) evaluates census data 
to identify communities of concerns (COCs).  NVTA staff expanded that effort and 
identified four additional communities of concern (COC), beyond the four COCs identified 
by MTC.  The primary focus of the Community-Based Transportation planning process is 
to directly engage with disadvantaged Napa County residents to identify missing 
transportation needs not currently being met.  
 
COCs are defined as geographic areas that have concentrated populations in four of the 
following eight categories: 
 

1. Minority Population 
2. Low income ( <200% of Poverty) Population 
3. Limited English Proficiency Population 
4. Zero-Vehicle Households 
5. Seniors 75 or Over 
6. Population with a Disability 
7. Single-Parent Families 
8. Cost-burdened Renter  

65

mailto:dshcmitz@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.4 
June 17, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Table 1. Napa Communities of Concern  
Census Tract Neighborhood Name  
2002.02 South Downtown Napa  
2006.02 Northeast Napa (Vintage)  
2007.07 Northwest Napa (Linda Vista)  
2008.04 Westwood Neighborhood  
2009 East Imola  
2012  Unincorporated Yountville  
2016.01 South St. Helena  
2020  Calistoga  

 
Outreach 
NVTA staff has conducted outreach to eight COCs in Napa County to gain knowledge 
about what transportation improvements are important to them.  In addition, NVTA formed 
a CBTP Steering Committee made up of social service and community-based 
organizations to vet projects and programs and to gain further input on local needs. The 
intent of the outreach is to identify projects that meet the following criteria:  
 

1) Are developed through a collaborative and inclusive planning process 
2) Improve transportation choices 
3) Address and identify transportation gaps  
4) Focus on transportation needs specific to elderly, disabled, and low-income 

communities  
 
Based on input from the Steering Committee, staff identified outreach events to ensure 
equitable and appropriate outreach in all communities. Prior to all events, staff issued 
press releases and coordinated with the local jurisdictions to inform and invite them to 
take part.  The scheduled outreach events began in September of 2018 and concluded 
in December of 2018.  
 
During outreach events, many residents expressed their appreciation for the mobility 
programs NVTA offers. The CBTP outreach has helped to educate the public about the 
transportation options in the Napa Valley.  Based on the comments and feedback from 
the outreach events and the online survey, staff prepared a draft list of CBTP 
recommended transportation projects.   
 
Evaluation of Transportation Proposals 
NVTA staff, in coordination with the Steering Committee, created criteria to evaluate 
proposals to ensure that they adequately addressed community needs identified through 
the outreach process. The Steering Committee reviewed and validated the evaluation 
criteria at its February 27, 2019 meeting. The five criterions used to evaluate projects 
included:  
1. Project Lead: 

Existence of a “program champion,” an agency (or agencies) that takes a leadership 
role in securing funding, staffing and other resources devoted to the proposed service 
or project.    

66



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.4 
June 17, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
2. Community Identified: 

Does the proposal address transportation needs identified through public outreach? 
Ultimately, all proposed projects addressed transportation needs identified by the 
community.  
 

3. Implementation: 
Based on anticipated barriers to implementation (such as funding, resource allocation, 
and project development), the group placed proposals in implementation timeframes:  
• Near-Term (to be implemented in 1-2 years) 
• Mid-Term (to be implemented in 3-5 years) 
• Long-Term (to be implemented in 6 years or more) 

 
4. Cost/Funding 

When funding might be available to plan, construct, and maintain the proposed 
projects and services. Availability of on-going funding/sources, especially for transit 
service operations, must also be considered when evaluating the sustainability of a 
proposal. Although the group did consider the possible costs to develop and 
implement each proposal, proposals were not ranked based on their costs.  

 
5. Benefit:  

Lastly, whether each proposal is easy for potential customers to use in addressing 
Lifeline Transportation barriers:  
• Safety 
• System Performance (in addition to helping the community, does the project 

improve system performance) 
• Emissions reduction 
• Improved mobility 
• Improved Health Outcomes 

 
Identified Projects 
Based on the feedback from residents in the COCs, NVTA worked with the Steering 
Committee on ranking specific projects in the CBTP.  Specific projects are identified 
below:  

1. Hunt Avenue Sidewalks/Pedestrian Improvements  
2. Pope Avenue Sidewalks Pedestrian and Lighting Improvements  
3. Bike Facility on Trancas from Jefferson Street to Soscol Avenue  
4. Expanded TaxiScript and Commute Options  
5. Bus shelter/benches at high usage stops 
6. Enhanced Pedestrian Crossing at Jefferson St. and Rubicon Street   
7. Enhanced Pedestrian Crossing at Jefferson St. and El Capitan  
8. Enhanced Pedestrian Crossing on Trancas St. at Valle Verde  
9. Transit service from St. Helena to Angwin and St. Helena Hospital 
10. Transit service from Calistoga to Santa Rosa Kaiser 
11. Expanded evening Hours on Local Transit  

 

67



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.4 
June 17, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
In addition to the above listed projects, many programmatic themes were identified in the 
outreach to COCs and NVTA cataloged those in the Plan.    
 
Programmatic Themes:  

• Improve Pedestrian Safety  
• Improve Pedestrian Access to Schools and Transit  
• Improve Transportation Options to Healthcare  
• Expand Mobility Options for Low-Income, Senior, and Disabled Residents  
• Increase Local Transit Evening Frequencies 
• Increase Transit Amenities  
• Decrease Transit Fares for Low-Income Individuals  
• Increase Transit ADA Access   

 
Moving Forward 
In creating a robust set of baseline data for each COC, NVTA staff will be able to 
periodically evaluate data trends.  Staff will also be able to review individual COC's 
progress in meeting identified needs. The CBTP will also guide transportation 
investments for funding programs like the Lifeline Program that funds a wide range of 
transportation improvements that primarily benefit Communities of Concern. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could not release the Draft CBTP for public review which would delay the 
CBTP process. The CBTP is a requirement of the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission to be eligible for certain funding programs such as the Lifeline Transportation 
Funding Program.   
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 

1. Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, income 
or ability.  

• Endeavour to serve the special transportation needs of seniors, children and 
the disabled.  

• Coordinate transportation services for disabled persons, seniors, children 
and other groups so each serves as many people as possible.  

2. Support Napa County’s economic vitality. 
• Improving mobility for disadvantaged communities eliminates additional 

barriers to access work and educational centers. 
 

ATTACHMENT 
 
(1) Draft Napa Valley Community Based Transportation Plan  

68



NAPA VALLEY

COMMUNITY-BASED 
TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN

ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4

June 17, 2020

69



Table of contents

Executive Summary        02

Introduction         04

Community of Concern Analysis      13

Communities of Concern       16 
 COC Profile 1: South Downtown Napa    17 
 COC Profile 2: Westwood Neighborhood   22 
 COC Profile 3: East Imola      26 
 COC Profile 4: South St. Helena     31 
 COC Profile 5: Northeast Napa     36 
 COC Profile 6: Northwest Napa     41 
 COC Profile 7: Unincorporated area near Yountville 46 
 COC Profile 8: City of Calistoga     50

Community Engagement       54

Needs Assessment        62

Appendix 1 - Definitions       83 

Appendix 2 - Community Engagement      88

Appendix 3 - CBTP Survey       91

70



Students use the vine trail to bisect high-traffic city streetsw

of non-profit agencies, community-based 
organizations (CBOs), neighborhood  
associations, and employer organizations 
representing local disadvantaged  
neighborhoods. Community participation 
was geared to those representing low-
income, disabled, and senior populations. 
Transit riders and neighborhood 
associations  serving disadvantaged 
communities were determined to be 
ideal contributors to  the CBTP process.

NVTA staff held fifteen public outreach 
events to ensure members of the public  
had the opportunity to share their  
transportation challenges and 
suggestions for inclusion and 
consideration in the  community-based 
planning process.  NVTA specifically 
targeted location- based solutions where 
resources could  improve transportation 
access in  identified communities. 

The Napa Valley Community-Based  
Transportation Plan (CBTP) is the result of  
a community-based planning effort in Napa 
County. The Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority (NVTA) staff developed this third 
generation CBTP through a collaborative 
planning process, which included steering 
committee guidance and substantial  
outreach with a county network of  
community partners. This current CBTP  
supersedes the prior plan, which was  

prepared in 2015.

The CBTP relies on an open-community  
discussion between Napa County residents 
and transportation planners to identify 
transportation gaps  of low-income  and 
underserved residents in communities of 
concern.

The goal of the CBTP effort is to identify COC 
resident-perceived transportation gaps or 
needs in Napa County, provide example 
projects identified by those residents, and 
provide a list of improvements such as  
infrastructure projects or social service  
programs that can provide a solution to  the 
identified need.

NVTA engaged a steering committee and 
network of community partners comprised 

2 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN

Executive Summary

71



3 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

People living in Communities of Concern (COC) –  
neighborhoods that have been defined as having  
concentrated populations of low income, minority, 
elderly or persons with disabilities – are more likely  
to have a higher demand for public transit, therefore  
the NVTA’s Vine Transit System plays a central role  
in the CBTP. NVTA’s Vine Transit operates in Napa County 
offering fixed route bus service in the city of Napa and 
express bus service to the entire county from Calistoga 
to American Canyon with connections to Vallejo Ferry,  
Capital Corridor and El Cerrito Del Notre BART station. 

In addition to the fixed route bus services, Vine Transit 
provides on-demand shuttle service in Calistoga, St.  
Helena, American Canyon and the Town of Yountville. 
Vine Transit provides paratransit for persons with  
disabilities and taxi scrip for seniors and disabled as  
a supplement to the Vine fixed-route. NVTA provides 
commuter information, including rideshare matching, 
vanpools, and transit information. 

Improving equitable access to all aspects of the  
transportation network for Napa County COC residents 
requires (1) providing safe pedestrian access to  
transit stops including lifeline connections to 
educational opportunities and healthcare resources,  
and (2) expanding mobility options for transit-
dependent COC residents. Therefore, improving the 
safety of roadway crossings for pedestrians, and 
improving the transit-dependent users experience are 
of upmost importance when developing the CBTP and 
prioritizing future projects.

NVTA’s outreach resulted in the 
following four major themes to improve 
transportation for Napa’s Communities  
of Concern:

1. Pedestrian Safety

Improve Pedestrian Safety

Improve pedestrian access to schools 
and transit

2. Mobility Options

Improve transportation options 
to healthcare

Expand mobility options for low-income, 
senior, and disabled residents

3. Transit-related

Increase local transit evening frequencies

Increase transit amenities

Decrease transit fares for low-income  
individuals

4. American with Disabilities

Increase transit ADA access

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) requires 
County Transportation Agencies (CTAs), such as NVTA, to  
prepare a CBTP addressing two goals: 

Improve access and mobility for low-income communities, 
for commute and non-commute trips; and 

Engage residents and community organizations in conducting 
the analysis and shaping the recommendations

72



4 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Introduction

Minority Population

Low income ( <200% of Poverty) Population

Limited English Proficiency Population

Zero-Vehicle Households

Seniors 75 or Over

Population with a Disability  

Single-Parent Families

Cost-burdened Renter

The primary focus of 
the  Community-Based 
Transportation Planning 
process is to directly engage 
with disadvantaged Napa 
County residents to identify 
missing transportation 
needs not currently being 
meet. COCs are defined 
as geographies that have 
concentrated populations  
in four of the following  
eight categories:

The Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) - activated 
by pushing a button to alert on-coming 
vehicles. RRFB use provides higher visibility  
for pedestrians crossing a street

The CBTP process is intended to 
empower residents in  COCs by 
providing a platform to propose 
potential solutions that will 
address missing transportation 
needs, essentially identifying 
projects and programs that have 
the potential for  bridging gaps in 
the transportation network as 
perceived by  disadvantaged Napa 
County  residents. 

The CBTP program was initiated 
because of the findings of the 
Lifeline Transportation Network 
Report completed in 2001. The 
report identified transit needs  
in economically disadvantaged  
communities throughout the  
San Francisco Bay Area, and  
recommended creating a  
community based planning  
program as a first step to  
addressthese needs. County 
Transportation Agencies (CTAs) 

completed the CBTP to ensure  
participation of local transit  
operators as well as residents  
and community based 
organizations providing services 
within the COCs. For Napa  
County, NVTA serves as the CTA. 
NVTA also oversees the operation 
of the Vine, which offers lifeline 
transportation services to the 
communities of Napa County. 

BAY AREA 
COMMUNITIES OF 
CONCERN

The Lifeline Transportation 
Network Report and the 2001 
Regional Transportation Plan 
Environmental Justice Report 
identified forty-three low-
income communities of concern, 
one of which was in the City 
of Napa. MTC periodically 

73



NAPA COUNTY BACKGROUND

Napa County is the least populous county in the 
San Francisco Bay Area.  

Table 1. Napa County Population

County Name Population (2016)*

Alameda 1,627,900

Contra Costa 1,123,400

Marin 262,300

Napa 142,000

San Francisco 866,600

San Mateo 766,000

Santa Clara 1,927,900

Solano 431,500

Sonoma 502,000

Bay Area 7,649,600

Source: MTC Vital Signs rounded from CA Department of Finance_E5

Considering land area alone, Napa is physically 
the fourth largest county in the Bay Area, with  
754 square miles. 

Five incorporated areas make up the urban centers 
within Napa County: American Canyon, Calistoga,  
the City of Napa, St. Helena and Town of Yountville.  
The City of Napa is the largest in both area and 
population of the five urban centers, followed in 
population size by American Canyon, St. Helena, 
Calistoga and Yountville. Combined, the five urban 
centers make up 32 square miles of the 788 square 
miles in the county. The remaining 754 square miles 
lies within the unincorporated county. It is largely  
rural in nature and is home to the second largest 
population base. The geographic landscape of Napa 
County being largely rural and dispersed make it 
challenging to deploy transit. 

Table 2: Napa County Jurisdictional Facts

Jurisdiction Area  
(square Miles)

Population 
(2016)

Population 
(2017)

American Canyon 5 20,374 20,341

Calistoga 3 5,180 5,281

Napa 18 80,576 79,722

St. Helena 5 6,004 6,056

Yountville 2 2,987 2,978

Unincorporated 
Napa County

756 26,907 26,627

Total 788 142,028 141,005

Source: MTC GIS Open Data, 2012-2016 ACS 5-year, 2013-2017 ACS 5-year

updates its approach for identifying COCs and in the 
most recent analysis; MTC identified four Census 
tracts in Napa County exhibiting communities of 
concern characteristics: (1) South Downtown Napa, 
(2) Westwood neighborhood, (3) East Imola, and (4)
South St. Helena neighborhood. MTC used 2010-
2014 American Community Survey (ACS) data. NVTA
identified the four additional COCs by identifying census
tracts that had concentrations of seniors, disabled
and low-income residents above the county average.
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)
guidelines require locally identified COCs have at least
one of these criterion over the county average. These
COCs include: (1) Northeast Napa: a neighborhood
corresponding loosely with the Vintage neighborhood,
north of Trancas St. and east of Jefferson St. (2)
Northwest Napa: a neighborhood directly corresponding
with the Linda Vista neighborhood boundaries, north of
Redwood Ave., east of Dry Creek Rd., south of Trower
Ave., and west of SR-29 (3) the unincorporated area
surrounding Yountville, covering roughly 23 square miles
of gross land area, and (4) the entire City of Calistoga.

NVTA’S ROLE IN THE CBTP

NVTA serves as the CTA for Napa County. In that 
capacity, NVTA is tasked with programming  
(distributing) State, Federal, and Local transportation 
funds in partnership with MTC and its jurisdictions. 
Furthermore, NVTA leads a number of transportation 
planning projects and coordination activities in Napa 
County, within a multi-modal context. This 
approach is intended to more fully respond to MTC's 
guidelines  which is; 
to consider non-traditional solutions to meet travel 
needs of low-income communities. Non-traditional  may 
include car share, bike share, ride share, van-,  
and/or car-pooling, and on-demand, and flex-route 
transit. Over the course of the CBTP planning horizon, 
NVTA will identify funding for projects that emerge  from 
this CBTP, including regional funding sources available for 
improvements.

5 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN

74



6 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

DEMOGRAPHICS

Population by Ethnicity

Of the Bay Area’s 7.6 million residents, only 142,000 
(1.8% of the Bay Area total) live in Napa County. Roughly 
54% of Napa’s population is white (non-Hispanic) in 
ethnicity. Hispanics and Latinos make up 34% of the 
population - the largest ethnic group in the county, 
followed by Asians at nearly 7%,  individuals identifying 
as two or more races at 2%, and African-Americans 
which account for less than 2% of the Napa county 
residents. Table 3 provides a breakdown of the County’s 
population by ethnicity as well as how each group is 
forecasted to grow through 2040. 

Table 3: Napa County Population by Ethnicity

2010 2015 2020 2030 2040 2050

Total Population*

County  
Pop-
ulation

136,484 140,900 144,640 152,319 159,600 168,073

Population by Ethnicity**

White, 
not 
Hispanic 
or Latino

56.5% 54.0% 52.9% 50.7% 48.2% 46.3%

Black 1.8% 1.8% 1.8% 1.9% 1.9% 1.9%

Hispanic  
or Latino

32.3% 34.4% 35.3% 37.0% 38.8% 40.3%

Asian 6.7% 6.9% 7.1% 7.4% 7.7% 7.9%

American 
Indian

0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4%

Native 
Hawaiian 
or other 
Pacific 
Islander

0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3%

Two or  
more 
races

2.1% 2.2% 2.2% 2.4% 2.7% 2.9%

Sources: *PBA 2040 ABAG County-Level Estimates for Population, Households, 
Jobs, and Employed Residents, **Ca Dept of Finance Race table Total 
Estimated and Projected Population for California Counties: July 1, 2010  
to July 1, 2060 in 1-year Increments 

Figure 2 highlights the minority population distribution 
by each urban area and unincorporated Napa County. 
American Canyon (ACS 2016 Total Population: 20,334) 
has the largest minority population with 75% minority 
(black: 1,597; Asian: 7,017; and Hispanic: 5,527). 
Calistoga also has a large minority population at 53%. 
According to a study conducted by the UC Berkeley Haas 
Institute for a Fair and Inclusive Society, the City of Napa 
is the county’s most integrated city.

Figure 1: Napa County Jurisdictions

San Pablo Bay

Lake
Berryessa

29

37

12

121

121

128

128

80

§

Napa

Yountville

St. Helena

Calistoga

American
Canyon

Napa County

Lake County Yolo County

Solano County
Sonoma County

Marin County
2mi2mi

Figure 2: Napa County Minority Population

San Pablo Bay

Lake
Berryessa

80

29

37

12

121

121

128

128

Napa

Yountville

St. Helena

Calistoga

American
Canyon

Napa County

Lake County Yolo County

Solano County

Sonoma County

Marin County
2mi2mi

75.4%

24.6%

18.4%

81.6%

32.8%
67.2%

52.5%  47.5% 

54.2 %45.8 %

Minorities Ethnicity (1% of total)White (Non-Hispanic)

 30.5% 
 69.5% 

Unincorporated
Napa County

75



Table 4: Napa County Population by Age

2010 2016 2020 2030 2040 2050

Total Population*

County 
Pop-
ulation

136,484 140,900 144,640 152,319 159,600 168,073

Population by Age**

< 5 years 6.0% 5.2% 4.6% 4.8% 4.7% 4.1%

5 – 17 
years

17.1% 15.9% 15.1% 12.3% 12.5% 12.3%

18 – 24 
years

8.8% 9.5% 9.3% 8.4% 6.8% 7.3%

25 – 64 
years

53.0% 51.5% 51.0% 49.7% 49.7% 49.1%

65 – 74 
years

7.8% 10.3% 11.4% 11.8% 10.5% 10.6%

75 – 84 
years

4.8% 5.3% 6.4% 9.4% 10.3% 9.6%

> 85 years 2.6% 2.2% 2.2% 3.6% 5.6% 6.8%

Source: *PBA 2040 ABAG County-Level Estimates for Population, Households, 
Jobs, and Employed Residents, CA Dept of Finance Total Estimated and  
Projected Population for California Counties: July 1, 2010 to July 1, 2060  
in 1-year Increments 

Figure 3: Rate of Change of Age Distribution in 
Napa County Over Time

Rate of Change of Age Distribution in 
Napa County Over Time

Rate of Change of Age Distribution in Napa County over time

rate of change
2010-2016 2016-2020 2020-2030 2030-2040 2040-2050 2050-2060

0 – 24 years -0.02% -5.10% -7.62% -0.94% 2.30% -100.00%
25 – 74 years 5.60% 0.92% 4.02% 2.93% 2.14% -100.00%
75+ 5.95% 14.90% 58.65% 28.85% 6.26% -100.00%
total 3.84% 0.13% 5.35% 5.31% 2.84% -100.00%

5.95% 14.90% 

58.65% 

28.85% 

6.26% 5.45% 

-10%

0% 

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

 2010-16  2016-20  2020-30  2030-40  2040-50  2050-60 

0 – 24 years 25 – 74 years 75+ years Total 

Population by Income

Areas, known as block groups, with household earners 
over $100,000 are largely in portions of unincorporated 
Napa County and in St. Helena. Households with 
earnings of between $50,000 and $75,000 are 
concentrated in American Canyon, portions of Napa, 
Yountville and the City of Calistoga. There are six 
block groups with income less than $50,000 located in 
portions of the City of Napa, St. Helena and Calistoga.

With 400 wineries, Napa County is most famous 
for its wine growing region along with its 
neighbor, Sonoma County. Both counties have 
similar demographics and have majority white 
populations. Despite the large white 
population, just 40 percent of its tracts have a 
similar proportion of white people to the 
county’s total population - for Latino, Asian, and 
African American populations, those 
percentages in Napa County are 23 percent, 10 
percent, and 5 percent, respectively.

There are also communities in Napa County that 
are predominantly non-white:   the City of 
American Canyon  is predominantly Asian, and 
the City of  Calistoga  is predominantly Latino.

Population by Age

Approximately 53% of the county’s population is 
25-64 years old. The next largest age group is youth
aged 5 to 17 years that makes up over 17% of the
county’s population. Table 4 highlights forecasted
changes through 2060. The 25-64 year group is
expected to decrease by three percent over the
next 15 years, while all age groups over 64 are
expected to increase.

Table 4 shows the age distribution by each urban area 
and unincorporated Napa County. Overall, each  
urban area and unincorporated Napa County had a 
relatively even distribution among the age groups under 
25, 25 -50 years, and 51 -74 years. Those aged 75 and 
above comprised of the smallest percentage within the 
total population, with the exception of Yountville.

Figure 3 shows the expected growth in overall 
population, with separate line charts for each age 
bracket. The under 25 years old and 25-74 age  
brackets have the flattest forecasted growth while  
the 75+ age bracket is expected to grow the fastest  
over the next 45 years. Napa County will experience 
a 60 percent increase in seniors from 2020 to 2030. 

7 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN 76



8 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

EXISTING TRANSPORTATION 
NETWORKS

Major Corridors

Napa is a geographically linear county with State 
Route 29 (SR 29) and Silverado Trail providing the 
main county highway/road arterial. Napa’s urban 
centers generally align north to south, corresponding 
with SR-29, which is the most heavily traveled corridor 
in the county connecting all five incorporated areas 
together. According to the 2019 Napa Valley Travel 
Behavior Study, 29,000 trips move from Solano into 
Napa County on a daily basis – 16 percent of Napa 
County employees commute from Solano. There are 
22,000 daily trips made to/from  Napa and Sonoma 
counties by way of SR-12. Table 6 shows the other 
major highways within the county. 

COUNTY TRAVEL PATTERNS

Work trips in Napa County are primarily single 
occupancy auto trips, followed by shared rides such as 
car- and vanpools. Table 5 shows the breakdown by 
mode comparing Napa County with the Bay Area  
(which includes Napa County). 

Table 5: Share of Daily Work Trips by Mode of Travel

Mode Percent of Total Work Trips

Napa County Bay Area

Drive Alone 75.80% 67.22%

Carpooled 11.60% 10.46%

Work from Home 5.80% 6.07%

Walk 4.00% 3.59%

Transit 1.50% 9.79%

Bicycle 0.70% 1.52%

Other 0.60% 1.32%

Generally, the higher the household income level,  
the greater the number of cars.  Most residents 
that reside in the unincorporated County are high 
earning, and this translates to higher auto 
ownership.  The correlation between auto 
ownership by income in Napa Count is shown in 
Figure 5.

Figure 5: Number of Vehicles per Household  

Number of Vehicles per Household 
correlates with Median Household Income

Napa County number of vehicles per household correlates with 
median household income

Id2

weighted 
aver 
vehicle 
per 
houshold

Estimate; 
Median 
income in 
the past 
12 
months -- 
- Total:

6055200201 1.65673 32069
6055200202 1.31778 26975
6055200203 1.83431 27768
6055200301 1.65202 26017
6055200302 1.96902 37206
6055200400 1.96843 37074
6055200501 1.77953 28219
6055200503 1.77139 31467
6055200504 1.81726 31064
6055200505 1.61531 31356
6055200601 2.06203 27950
6055200602 1.72666 35594
6055200703 2.1438 50972
6055200704 1.83932 24014
6055200705 1.94075 30155
6055200706 2.24186 45573
6055200707 1.64646 35525
6055200802 1.71942 40622
6055200803 1.95878 41813
6055200804 1.81327 23958
6055201003 2.15417 35563
6055201004 2.09342 30167
6055201005 2.31132 36301
6055201006 2.24013 30908
6055201007 2.46789 28046
6055201101 2.18262 54886
6055201102 2.12831 36522
6055201200 1.86636 35097
6055201300 1.38848 34014
6055201401 2.12251 44090
6055201402 2.18739 51528
6055201403 2.02652 41250
6055201500 2.06516 40592
6055201601 1.81398 30574
6055201602 1.775 41979
6055201700 2.01708 26041
6055201800 1.99055 35074
6055201900 1.96654 43942
6055202000 1.72745 23557

$0 

$10,000 

$20,000 

$30,000 

$40,000 

$50,000 

$60,000 

0 0.5 1 1.5 2 2.5 3 

H
O

U
SE

H
O

LD
 IN

CO
M

E 

NUMBER OF VEHICLES 

Source: 2016 ACS Number of Vehicles per HH in Napa County

Source: 2016 ACS S0801 Commuting Characteristics by Sex all 9  
Bay Area counties 

Automobile ownership is an indicator for how many 
people use transit. A higher level of auto ownership 
typically indicates that single occupancy vehicles make 
most trips and that the market for transit may not be 
very strong. Low auto ownership may indicate that a 
higher demand for transit travel.

Figure 5: Number of Vehicles per Household  
correlates with Median Household Income

77



Table 6: Napa County Major Highways

Highway Description

State Route 12 State Route 12 is an east-west highway that connects 
Solano and Sonoma Counties to Napa County. SR 12 
also connects to Interstate 80.

State Route 29 State Route 29 is a north-south highway that is the 
“gateway” to Napa County from the south. It also 
connects all five urban centers and is the most heavily 
traveled corridor in the county.

State Route 121 State Route 121 is an east-west highway that connects 
from SR 37 at Sears Point in Sonoma County to SR 128 
near Lake Berryessa in Napa County

State Route 128 State Route 128 is an east-west highway that begins 
from Highway 1 in Mendocino County, travels through 
Calistoga and St. Helena in Napa County and ends at 
Interstate 605 in Winters in Yolo County.

State Route 221 State Route 221 is a short, 2.1-mile  highway that  
connects SR 29 and SR 121 between Vallejo and Napa.

Source: Ridethevine.com

Public Transit

NVTA operates The Vine for the County of Napa, 
including local and regional bus routes.  Ridership 
on The Vine increased 25% between 2014 and 2018.  
Between 2018 and 2019, ridership on local routes fell 
by 7% while regional ridership increased by 16%, in 
response to increased regional bus options.  Recent 
average monthly ridership for local service and  
regional routes can be found in Table 8.

Local Transit

Vine operates eight local routes (A-H) within the City of 
Napa, as shown in Table 7.  The newly implemented Napa 
local routes (Figure 6) serve many neighborhoods in the 
City of Napa with most routes originating or ending at 
the Soscol Gateway Transit Center. Onward connections 
to regional routes and convenient local transfers are 
provided at the Transit Center, two additional Park and 
Ride facilities, and many shared stops throughout the 
city.  Local routes operate Monday through Saturday and 
run every 30 to 60 minutes with headways as low as 15 
minutes on certain corridors served by multiple routes. 
Vine local routes, while not exclusively school service, are 
coordinated with high school and middle school bell 
times. The local routes serve all five COCs in the City of 
Napa.

9 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Table 7: Vine Local Routes

Route Route Description

A Brown's Valley, North Napa: Operates between Trancas St. and 
Soscol Ave. connecting Browns Valley in a modified inbound/
outbound service from 7:10 AM to 6:10 PM Monday through 
Friday. Saturday service runs from 7:10 AM to 6:10 PM. There is 
no Sunday service. 

B Westwood, South Napa: Operates between Soscol Transit Center, 
Premium Outlets, West Imola Ave. and South Napa Marketplace in 
a modified inbound/outbound service from 6:20 AM to 6:20 PM 
Monday through Friday. Saturday service runs from 7:00 AM to 
5:00 PM. There is no Sunday service.

C Jefferson St., Central Napa: Operates between Soscol Transit 
Center, Kaiser, Clinic Ole via Jefferson St. in an inbound/outbound 
service from 6:30 AM to 6:30 PM Monday through Friday. 
Saturday service runs from 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM. There is no 
Sunday service.

D Southeast Napa: Operates between Soscol Transit Center and 
Chamberlain High School in a modified inbound/outbound loop 
with service from 6:50 AM to 6:20 PM Monday through Friday. 
Saturday service runs from 7:05 AM to 5:05 PM. There is no 
Sunday service.

E Northwest Napa: Operates between Soscol Transit Center, Clinic 
Ole, Kaiser, and Pueblo at Linda Vista on a modified inbound/
outbound service from 6:50 AM to 6:50 PM Monday through 
Friday. Saturday service runs from 6:50 AM to 6:50 PM. There is 
no Sunday service.

F Southwest Napa: Operates between Soscol Transit Center, Old 
Sonoma Rd at Foster, and South Napa Marketplace on a inbound/
outbound service from 6:50 AM to 6:20 PM Monday through 
Friday. Saturday service runs from 7:30 AM to 6:30 PM. There is 
no Sunday service.

G Coombs: Operates between Soscol Transit Center and South Napa 
Marketplace via Coombs St. on a modified inbound/outbound 
service from 6:50 AM to 6:20 PM Monday through Friday. 
Saturday service runs from 7:30 AM to 6:30 PM. There is no 
Sunday service.

H North Napa: Operates between Soscol Transit Center and Salvador 
Ave via Napa and Vintage High Schools with service from 7:10 AM 
to 5:10 PM Monday through Friday. Saturday service runs from 
7:10 AM to 5:10 PM. There is no Sunday service.

Source: Ridethevine.com

Table 8: Transit Summary

Route Type Average Monthly 
Ridership*

Route A-H** Local 31,475

Route 10 Regional 17,050

Route 11 Regional 19,900

Route 10X Regional 475

Route 11X Regional 650

Route 21 Regional 3,075

Route 29 Regional 6,025

*based on July 2019- February 2020 ridership

** Local ridership is not broken out because January service restructuring 
changed several route patterns

78



10 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Figure 6: Vine Transit Network Map

121

121

121

121

29

29

29

29

121

29

121

Kaiser
Permanente

Queen of
the Valley
Hospital

Clinic Olé

Clinic Olé

Trancas St

Redwood Rd

3rd St

Trower Ave

Foster Rd

Linda Vista Ave

Jefferson St

Jefferson St

Jefferson St
Jefferson St

Lincoln Ave

Lincoln Ave

Salvador Ave

Villa Ln

Laurel St

East Ave

1st St

Byw
ay E

Te
rr

ac
e 

D
r

S 
Co

om
bs

 S
t

Imola Ave

Imola Ave

Pueblo Ave

Old Sonoma Rd

Soscol Ave

Soscol Ave
Soscol Ave

Browns Valley Rd 

N
apa River

Na
pa

 R
iv

er

Napa State
Hospital

South Napa
Marketplace

Napa
Valley

College

Silverado
M.S.

Harvest
M.S.

Vintage
H.S.

Vichy
E.S.

Browns
Valley

E.S.

Redwood
M.S.

New Tech
H.S.

Bel Aire
Plaza

City
Hall

Chamberlain
High

Premium
Outlets

Napa
High

School

Soscol
Gateway
Transit
Center

H

H

H

H

G

F

F

E

E

E

E

D

D

D

D

C

C

B

B

B

A
A

A

Route A
Browns Valley | North Napa
Route B
Westwood | South Napa
Route C
Jefferson | Central Napa
Route D
Shetler | Shurtleff | Imola
Route E
Northwest Napa
Route F
Southwest Napa
Route G
Coombs | South Napa
Route H
North Napa

See Inset
Mira el

Recuardo

2

3

4

5

1

1
2
3

4
5

Asignación de la Bahías
Bay Assignments

11N

B

C D

E F

G

21 29N11XN

H

10S10X 29S11S10N 11XS

Vine Local System Map | Mapa del sistema local de Vine

Source: Ridethevine.com 

Table 9: Vine Regional Routes

Route Operator Route Description

10 Vine Up Valley Connector: Operates between Calistoga, 
Napa Valley College connecting the Napa Valley with 
Northbound/Southbound service from 5:25 AM to 
9:10 PM Monday through Friday. Saturday service 
runs from 6:00 AM to 7:00 PM. Sunday service runs 
from 6:00 AM to 6:00 PM.

10x Vine Up Valley Express: Operates between Calistoga, 
Napa Valley College connecting the Napa Valley with 
limited stop service from 6:45 AM to 6:35 PM Monday 
through Friday. There is no Saturday, Sunday service.

11 Vine Napa Vallejo Connector: Operates between the 
Redwood Park and Ride, Vallejo Transit Center and 
Ferry Terminal on a Northbound/Southbound service 
from 5:30 AM to 9:40 PM Monday through Friday. 
Saturday service runs from 7:00 AM to 8:45 PM. 
Sunday service runs from 7:00 AM to 7:45 PM.

11x Vine Napa Vallejo Express: Operates between the Redwood 
Park and Ride, Vallejo Ferry Terminal on a limited stop 
service from 4:30 AM to 7:10 PM Monday through 
Friday. There is no Saturday, Sunday service.

21 Vine Napa Solano Connector: Operates from Soscol Transit 
Center to the Suisun Train Depot. Service runs from 
6:00 AM to 6:20 PM on Monday through Friday with 
no service on Saturday or Sunday.  

29 Vine Napa BART Connector: Operates from Redwood Park 
and Ride via Soscol Transit Center to El Cerrito del 
Norte BART station. Service runs from 4:30 AM to 6:35 
PM with no service on Saturday or Sunday.  

7 Amtrak Capitol Corridor: Operates between Martinez and 
McKinleyville, with three daily stops at the Soscol 
Transit Center.

Source: Ridethevine.com

Figure 7: Regional Routes Network Map

29

80

80

80

580

680

680

780

101

101

101

121

121

12

12

12

12

29

29

37

4 4

11

21

29

10

11X

10X

SONOM
A COUN

TY

  NAPA COUNTY

NAPA COUNTY
SOLANO COUNTY

Santa
Rosa

Cordelia

Vacaville

Richmond Concord

Benicia

Petaluma

Novato

San Rafael

Oakville

Rutherford

Sonoma

YOUNTVILLE

NAPA

EL CERRITO

FAIRFIELD

SUISUN
CITY

ST. HELENA

CALISTOGA

AMERICAN
CANYON

VALLEJO

Soscol Gateway
Transit Center

Redwood
Park & Ride

El Cerrito del Norte BART

Route 10
Up Valley Connector

Route 10X
Up Valley Express

Route 11
Napa Vallejo Connector

Route 11X
Napa Vallejo Express

Route 21
Napa Solano Express

Route 29
Napa BART Express

2

3

4

5

1

1
2
3

4
5

Asignación de la Bahías
Bay Assignments

11N

B

C D

E F

G

21 29N11XN

H

10S10X 29S11S10N 11XS

Vine Regional Routes | Vine Rutas Regionales

Source: Ridethevine.com

Regional Connections

Vine  regional routes connect local jurisdiction within 
Napa to each other and to neighboring Solano and 
Contra Costa counties, as described in Table 9 and 
shown in Figure 7. All regional routes travel through the 
Soscol Gateway Transit Center (SGTC),  although plans to 
reroute Route 29 and 11X are currently being considered 
that would bypass the SCTC and instead serve the Imola 
Park and Ride on Imola at SR 29.   Route 29 provides a 
direct, express connection to the El Cerrito del Norte 
BART station. Route 21 serves the Fairfield 
Transportation Center and the Suisun City Amtrak 
station, with connections to the Capital Corridor. Routes 
11 and 11X provide a connection to ferries leaving the 
Vallejo Ferry Terminal. The Amtrak Thruway bus route 
running between Martinez and McKinleyville makes 
daily stops at the SGTC. Routes 10 and 10X serve the 
Calistoga, South St. Helena, and Yountville COCs.

Vine Redesign

The Vine has distinguished between local and regional 
routes to meet a growing demand for express bus 
service and to focus local service on neighborhoods that 
have shown a high propensity for transit, in order to 
both increase ridership and improve overall 
performance. NVTA completed a Comprehensive 
Operations Analysis (COA) in 2018, which led to a 
redesign of the Vine fixed route system. The first phase 
took place in April 2019, with the introduction of two 
express routes, 10X and 11X, and an updated regional 
schedule. New local, fixed route service began on 
January 5, 2020 with shorter loops and more 
bidirectional service to allow for trips that are more 
direct. 

79



Table 11: Community Shuttle Routes

Shuttle Operator Route Description

American 
Canyon 
Transit 

Vine American Canyon Transit is a fixed route and 
on-demand, door-to-door, transit service within 
specific areas of the city. Fixed Route service 
operates from 6:00 AM – 8:30 AM and 3:35 PM 
– 4:20 PM Monday through Friday. Door-to-
Door service operates from 8:30 AM – 5:30 PM 
Monday through Friday. There is no Saturday or 
Sunday service.

Calistoga Vine An on-demand transit service within city limits 
for the general public. No advanced reservations 
required. Service operates Monday through 
Saturday, with Sunday service May - November.

St. Helena Vine An on-demand transit service within city limits 
for the general public. No advanced reservations 
required. Service operates Monday through 
Sunday

Yountville 
Trolley

Vine Door to door service between Yountville Park 
and the California Veterans Home. Service runs 
Monday through Saturday 10AM to 11PM and 
Sunday 10AM to 7PM.

Source: Ridethevine.com 

Paratransit

VineGo is an origin to destination, shared ride service 
that provides demand response, door-to-door, 
transportation to qualifying persons with disabilities in 
Napa County. 

VineGo is the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
complementary paratransit service to the fixed route 
operations and runs at times corresponding to the 
fixed routes, as shown in Table 9. Riders must make 
reservations; these can generally be made on the same 
day, but not all same-day requests can be honored. 

Table 10: Vine Go Service Information

Service Hours of Operation

Monday - Friday 5:20 AM - 9:25 PM

Saturday 6:30 AM - 8:41 PM

Sunday 8:00 AM - 7:00 PM

VineGo fares range from $3.20 to $6.40 and are based on 
distance traveled. Rides are charged based on the actual 
fare. ADA fares are no more than twice the adult fixed 
route fare charged by the Vine.

VineGo paratransit service is supplemented by Molly’s 
Angels.  Molly's Angels is a volunteer-based organization 
not affiliated with NVTA. The organization provides rides 
to senior and disabled residents of Napa  County. This  
community program offers free transportation to and 
from medical, dental and eye appointments for seniors 
and ambulatory individuals to destinations throughout 
the Bay Area.

Taxi Scrip Program 
Available to residents of the City of Napa. This service is 
for seniors and/or persons with disabilities to take a taxi 
ride anywhere in the City of Napa and NVTA will pay up 
to 50% of the cost of the cab ride up to $12 dollars. 
Under the program, participants may take a taxi/cab ride 
anywhere within Napa.  The average out of pocket cost 
for senior riders is approximately $4 per ride. 

Community Shuttles

In addition to its fixed route service, NVTA provides 
community shuttles that connect to the Vine’s regional 
routes. These shuttles include American Canyon Transit, 
Calistoga Shuttle, St. Helena Shuttle and the Yountville 
Trolley. These community shuttles act as local circulators 
and feeder services to the regional routes operating 
along Highway 29 and they are described in Table 11 and 
shown in Figure 7. The St. Helena Shuttle serves the 
South St. Helena COC. 

11 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN

80



NVTA’s travel demand management (TDM) program 
called V-Commute offers transportation information 
to individuals and organizations regarding ridesharing, 
bicycling, vanpools and transit use. The V-commute 
program uses the RideAmigos platform to provide 
ride sharing  services in Napa Valley and throughout 
the Bay Area and to create incentives to use 
alternative transportation services. Some valuable 
resources available to V-Commute participants 
include alternative transportation commuting 
coordination and incentives, vanpool/ride-sharing 
subsidies, and the Guaranteed Ride Home program. 
Coordination services are free. V-Commute is also a 
part of the Bay Area 511 Regional Rideshare Program. 

Vine Fares

Local fares are $1.60, with discounts for youth, seniors, 
and disabled passengers. Children 5 and younger (limit 
two per paying adult) ride free. Adults with more than 
two children pay $0.50 per child. Seniors over ninety 
years old ride free with a Lifetime Pass. Longer-haul 
routes have adult fares up to $5.50. 

Bicycle and Pedestrian

NVTA has adopted a long-range strategic goal of having 
10 percent of all trips in Napa County made by bicycle. To 
achieve this goal, NVTA developed the Countywide Bicycle 
Plan, which provides supportive policies 
and programs designed to increase the safety and 
connectivity of the bicycle network. The Countywide 
Bicycle Plan provides individual chapter subsets that serve 
as Bicycle Plans for each jurisdiction. NVTA also 
developed a Countywide Pedestrian Master Plan, 
completed in 2016. Both the Countywide Bicycle Plan and 
Countywide Pedestrian Master Plan reflect local planning 
efforts to improve the active transportation network. The 
active transportation network provides local and 
countywide bicycle transportation connections, including 
routes in the MTC designated COCs located in the City of 
Napa and St. Helena, as well as, in the locally designated 
COCs. 

Other Transportation Services

Other transportation services offered in Napa County 
include for-profit taxis, shared vehicles, private cars, 
private shuttles, and tour services. The taxi companies are 
headquartered in the City of Napa and in St. Helena, and 
there are a number of private transportation and tour 
companies offering tours to local destinations such as 
high-frequented wineries. NVTA’s Vine Transit offers 
a taxi script program, which provides a door-to-door 
transport service for vouchers for seniors and persons 
with disabilities living within Napa. Napa has two taxi 
services that operate in the Valley.  In addition to 
traditional taxi services, “shared economy”-based ride 
sharing companies such as Uber and Lyft operate in Napa 
County.

12 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN

81



13 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Active modes of travel are proven to improve physical wellness 
and support upward social mobility

COMMUNITIES OF CONCERN

Eight Census Tract-level factors embody key 
characteristics of disadvantaged communities. 
Geographies with higher concentrations of 
disadvantaged factors are what the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) has dubbed a 
“Community of Concern” (COC). Technically, COCs 
are Bay Area (9-county region) Census Tracts above 
disadvantaged factor concentration thresholds for 
both minority and low-income households, or above 
concentration thresholds of three or more of the 
remaining six factors (#3 to #8) but are relevant in this 
context only when there is also a concentration of  
low-income households within the same community. 

Table 12: Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) Communities of Concern (COC) Framework

Disadvantaged 
Factor

Percent Regional 
Population

Concentration 
Threshold

1.  Minorities 58% 70%

2.  Low-Income 25% 30%

3.  Limited English Proficient 9% 20%

4.  Zero-Vehicle Household 10% 10%

5.  Seniors 75 Years and Over 6% 10%

6.  People with Disability 9% 25%

7.  Single-Parent Family 14% 20%

8.  Severely-Rent Burdened 11% 15%

Source: MTC’s Communities of Concern Framework from GitHub  
(https://github.com/BayAreaMetro/Spatial-Analysis-Mapping-Projects/tree/
master/Project-Documentation/Communities-of-Concern) 

The Community of Concern (COC) analysis is a synthesis of the MTC Equity Analysis used in Plan Bay Area  
2040 Plan. It is an immediately useful analysis that records the practices (base line data) that were acceptable 
and available at the time of its preparation. The data sources used for this COC analysis included: 2012-2016 
American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates. All data comparison between various level of geographies 
whether that be national, state, counties, cities, towns, and/or census designated places, etc. use the 2016  
ACS data source.

Community of Concern Analysis

82



14 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Figure 10: Regionally-significant COCs in 
Napa County

San Pablo Bay

Lake
Berryessa

80

29

37

12

121

121

128

128

South Downtown NapaWestwood

South St. Helena

East Imola

Napa County

Lake County Yolo County

Solano County

Sonoma County

Marin County
2mi2mi

Source: MTC’s Communities of Concern Tracts Plan Bay Area 2017  
(https://mtc.maps.arcgis.com/home/item.html?id=3a7ea0bbadfe 
4f2382a6c3fce9b1dab2) 

REGIONALLY SIGNIFICANT COCS

Regionally significant COCs are determined based on the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) criteria. 
According to the MTC COC framework, the methodology 
available at the time of this analysis, four census 
tracts in Napa County exhibit greater concentrations 
of disadvantaged factors than regional averages. One 
in two Napa County residents living in a community 
of concern are living in poverty and are either single 
parent head of households, severely-rent burdened or 
disabled. More than 80 percent of the residents living in 
a Napa County COC are severely burdened by the price 
of rent for housing costs, and two out of three Napa 
County COC residents are disabled.

Some limitations of this third generation CBTP is the 
census data continuity between datasets. At the time, 
NVTA identified additional local COC census tracts with 
a concentration of all three demographics – senior, 
disabled and low-income, over the county average. 
The requirement from MTC is that any local identified 
COC must have at least one of these demographics 
concentrated over the county average.  

Table 13: Bay Area comparison to Napa County 
Metric Averages

Median HH 
Income

Disabled  
residents  
percentage

Seniors  
(75+ yrs)  
percentage

Bay Area $82,881 9.0% 6.0%

Napa County $74,609 11.1% 7.0%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year tables B19013, C18108, S0101 

Table 14: Regionally-significant COCs in Napa County

Census Tract Neighborhood Name Minorities Low- 
Income

Limited 
English  
Proficient

Zero- 
Vehicle 
Household

Seniors 75 
Years and 
Over

People with 
Disability

Single-  
Parent 
Family

Severely- 
Rent  
Burdened

1. 06055200202 South Downtown Napa 50.0% 36.0% 10.0% 18.0% 3.0% 17.0% 28.0% 16.7%

2. 06055200804 Westwood  
Neighborhood

76.0% 42.0% 23.0% 5.0% 3.0% 7.0% 24.0% 11.7%

3. 06055200900 East Imola 47.0% 66.0% 1.0% 73.0% 5.0% 31.0% 0.0% 13.3%

4. 06055201601 South St Helena 45.0% 40.0% 15.0% 3.0% 12.0% 10.0% 16.0% 14.3%

Source: MTC’s Communities of Concern Tracts Plan Bay Area 2017 (https://mtc.maps.arcgis.com/home/item.html?id=3a7ea0bbadfe4f2382a6c3fce9b1dab2)

83



15 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Figure 11: Locally-significant COCs in Napa County

San Pablo Bay

Lake
Berryessa

80

29

37

12

121

121

128

128

Unincorporated area
near Yountville

City of Calistoga

Northwest Napa Northeast Napa

Napa County

Lake County Yolo County

Solano County

Sonoma County

Marin County
2mi2mi

Source: NVTA’s CBTP Communities of Concern Metrics 2018  
(http://napacounty.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html? 
webmap=611d45b57c084b36ae861986878722da)

Table 16. Locally-significant COCs in Napa County

Census Tract Neighborhood 
Name

COC Senior  
resident  
percentage

COC  
Median  
HH Income

COC 
Disabled 
residents  
percentage

5. 06055200602 Northeast 
Napa: Vintage  
neighborhood

9.8% 67,664 13.9%

6. 06055200707 Northwest 
Napa:  
Linda Vista  
neighborhood

11.5% 73,293 12.7%

7. 06055201200 Unincor- 
porated area 
near Yountville

13.8% 59,024 13.8%

8. 06055202000 City of  
Calistoga

9.3% 60,534 16.5%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates

LOCALLY SIGNIFICANT COCS

Unlike the MTC COC framework, locally significant COCs 
in Napa County are determined by a different, more 
streamlined set of criteria. Identifying additional COCs 
in Napa County focuses on low-income, disabled, and 
senior populations. County averages act as thresholds, 
county thresholds do not have to be higher than the 
regional (MTC) thresholds, and county Census Tracts 
can meet one or more of the criteria to be included as 
a NVTA-determined COC. NVTA found four census tracts 
exhibiting above average rates for all three Napa County 
COC criteria: low-income, disabled, and seniors. 

For the purposes of this 2018 CBTP effort, we will 
only be focusing on the (1) MTC-determined and the 
(2) NVTA-determined geographies as COCs which is
supported by the original data available at the time
of this report.

Table 15. Napa County comparison to COCs 
Metric Averages

Median HH 
Income

Disabled  
residents

Seniors  
(75+ yrs) 

Napa County $74,609 11.1% 7.0%

South Downtown 
Napa

$52,620 16.5% 3.1%

Westwood $64,161 7.4% 3.0%

East Imola $30,956 31.2% 4.7%

South St. Helena $60,500 9.9% 11.5%

Vintage $67,664 13.9% 9.8%

Linda Vista $73,293 12.7% 11.5%

Unincorporated 
Yountville

$59,024 13.8% 13.8%

Calistoga $60,534 16.5% 9.3%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year tables B19013, C18108, S0101

Subsequent to the original data analysis, 
NVTA identified additional tracts as having a 
concentration of all three criteria above the 
county average. NVTA will use this data to 
update the COC analysis with the latest data 
for the Countywide Transportation Plan – 
Advancing Mobility 2045, which kicked off in 
September 2019.

84



16 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Communities of Concern

1. Minority Population

2. Low income (<200% of Poverty) Population

3. Limited English Proficiency Population

4. Zero-Vehicle Households

5. Seniors 75 or Over

6. Population with a Disability

7. Single-Parent Families

8. Cost-burdened Renter

Regionally significant COCs 
are defined by census tracts 
that have a concentration of 
both minority and low-income 
households, or that have a 
concentration of three or more 
of the remaining 6 factors (#3 
to #8) but only if they also have 
a concentration of low-income 
households.

Napa County is in the midst of 
a housing affordability crisis. 
Although Napa County only 
represents 1.8% of nearly 8 million 
Bay Area residents, Napa County 
is experiencing the worst severely 
rent burdened rates in the Bay 
Area. Of the COC Disadvantaged 
Factors, Severely Rent Burdened 
Households in Napa County has 
the greatest concentration, at a 
rate of 21.5%. The purpose of this 
chapter is to orient the reader to 
regional COCs and local COCs,  
in other words, comparing the 
MTC/ABAG analysis and findings 
with that of the NVTA analysis and 
findings. This 2018 Community of 
Concern analysis is an immediately 
useful document that records the 
practices that were acceptable 
within the limitations of the 
knowledge available at the time  
of its preparation.

The last condition defining 
regionally significant COCs: 
“only census tracts that have a 
concentration of low-income 
households” set the primary 
benchmark for the locally 
significant COC analysis. In 
Napa County household income 
disparities are more apparent 
than in other counties in the Bay 
Area. Median household income 
for Napa County was found to be 
a local Area Median Income (AMI) 
-like measure. Census tracts above
and below the median household
income can be flagged accordingly.

Locally- significant COCs are 
defined by a census tract that have  
a concentration of three 
disadvantaged factors that best 
represent the Napa County 
residents.  

(1) Concentrations of below
the median household income,
(2) concentrations of disabled-
residents, and (3) concentrations
of seniors.

Regionally identified COCs are 
significant because they are  
determined using data based on 
the COC definition established by 
the regional MPO (MTC/ABAG).  
Locally identified COCs are specific 
to Napa and while they are most 
likely disadvantaged based on local 
economic criteria, they may not be 
classified as such in other counties 
in the Bay Area because of housing 
affordability and better access to 
the regional transit network. 

85



17 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

COC PROFILE 1

South Downtown Napa
US CENSUS TRACT: 06055200202 

500ft

B
urnell St

Fr
an

kl
in

 S
t

3rd St

2nd St

Co
om

bs
 S

t

Pine St

Soscol Ave

Je
ffe

rs
on

 S
t

1st St

Calistoga Ave

Severely-
Rent
Burdened  

Low-
Income

Minorities Single-
Parent
Family

Zero-
Vehicle
House-
hold

50% 

36% 
28% 

18% 17% 

DISADVANTAGE FACTORS  
MEASURED WHEN DETERMINING 

A COMMUNITY OF CONCERN

3,038 
Residents 

1,243
Households 

COC 1

Drive Alone
65%Carpool

11%  

Walk
14%  

Public 
Transit 

3%

Bike 1% Work from Home 6%

AVERAGE TRAVEL 
TIME TO WORK

South Downtown Napa is a diverse and centrally located community west of the Napa River and south of 
the Napa Creek, with Jefferson Street to the west and Pine Street to the south. Twenty-two percent of South 
Downtown Napa residents are severely burdened by the cost of their housing, with 35% of residents earning 
less than $30,000 per year. The median household income for South Downtown Napa is $52,620, which is  
35% less than the City of Napa median income of $71,087.

COMMUTING TO WORK

19
MINUTES

24
SECONDS

86



SOUTH DOWNTOWN NAPA 
COMMUNITY OF CONCERN

The South Downtown Napa  COC encompasses portions 
of Downtown Napa and Napa Abajo – two of Napa’s 
most well established neighborhoods. South Downtown 
Napa is a regionally significant Community of Concern 
(COC) because of high percentages of low-income single 
parent households, many of whom spend more than 
half of their income on housing expenses. This 
community exhibits greater than average (compared to 
Bay Area averages) instances of low-income, zero-
vehicle households, and twice the average number of 
single parent and severely rent-burdened households. 
Twenty-two percent of South Downtown Napa 
residents are severely burdened by the cost of their 
housing, with 35% of residents earning less than 
$30,000 per year. The median household income for 
South Downtown Napa is $52,620, which is 35% less 
than the City of Napa median income of $71,087.

The South Downtown Napa COC includes the vibrant 
and growing commercial core of Downtown Napa, with 
residential homes located south of Third Street, and 
another smaller pocket of homes north of First Street. 

The COC is home to a young and diverse community, 
with one out of every two residents being minorities, 
and 42% being Hispanic. Twenty-three percent of  
the population is foreign-born, and 71% of those  
foreign-born immigrants are from Latin America.  

Women crossing a street in South Downtown COC

The mean travel time to work for residents is estimated 
to be 19 minutes and 24 seconds, 2 minutes and 12 
seconds faster than the City of Napa’s average travel time 
of 21 minutes and 36 seconds, and the Napa County 
average travel time of 23 minutes and 54 seconds. 
Sixty-five percent of residents in the area commute to 

18 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

work by driving alone in a car, truck, or van, while nearly 
30% of the neighborhood journeyed to work using 
alternative means of travel. Of those utilizing alternative 
modes, 14.5% walked, 11% carpooled, 3% used public 
transit, and 0.8% used a bicycle. The remaining 5.5% 
percent worked from home.

The median monthly rent cost for South Downtown 
Napa COC residents is $1,078 per month, which is  
$350 less than the City of Napa median. 

Table 17: South Downtown Napa COC 
Disadvantaged Factors  

Disadvantaged 
Factor

Percent 
Regional 
Population

Concentration 
Threshold

COC 
percentages

Why  
COC

Minorities 58% 70% 50%

Low-Income 25% 30% 36% X

Limited English  
Proficient

9% 20% 10%

Zero-Vehicle  
Household

10% 10% 18% X

Seniors 75  
Years and Over

6% 10% 3%

People with 
Disability

9% 25% 17%

Single-Parent 
Family

14% 20% 28% X

Severely-Rent  
Burdened

11% 15% 17% X

Source: NVTA’s CBTP Communities of Concern Metrics 2018  
(http://napacounty.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html? 
webmap=611d45b57c084b36ae861986878722da) 

DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS

In South Downtown Napa, the total population of the 
COC includes 3,038 residents and 1,243 households.  
The neighborhood is slightly younger than average, 
with the median age at 34.5 years, compared to 38.1 
years for the City of Napa, and 40.7 years for Napa 
County. Despite the population being generally younger 
than other neighborhoods, 17% of residents in the 
COC reported being disabled; an increase from the 
Napa County average of 11.1%. The median income 
for South Downtown Napa is $52,620, which is 
almost $20,000 less than the Napa County average of 
$74,609. Four hundred and fifty (450) households, or 
36% of all households in South Downtown Napa, earn 
less than $50,000 per year and are considered “low-
income” by the Census Bureau. As an example, for a 
four-person household the 2017 poverty guideline is 
$24,860, and 200% of the guideline equates to $49,720. 
Thus, a 4-person household earning $49,720 or less 

87



19 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

EXISTING TRANSPORTATION 
SYSTEM AND ROADWAYS

The South Downtown Napa COC is bounded by Jefferson 
Street, the principle arterial road, to the west, the  
Napa Creek and the Napa River to the north and east, 
and Pine Street to the south.

Roads

Approximately 11.93 miles of roadway exist in the South 
Downtown Napa COC. According to FHWA, 7 of those 
12 miles are classified as local roads, while 2.8 miles are 
arterial roadways, and 2.2 miles are collector streets.

Figure 12: South Downtown Napa Roadway 
Functional Classification 

Local
Roadways 

7mi Major
Collector
2.2mi

Minor
Arterials
1.7mi

Total Roadway 11.9mi

Principal 
Arterials 
1.1
mi

Transit

South Downtown Napa contains ten transit stops 
that are served by four transit routes. All NVTA routes 
provide lifeline access to grocery stores and medical 
services. The South Downtown Napa neighborhood 
currently has access to four local bus routes, the B, C, 
F, and G. These routes provide access throughout the 
City of Napa and to transfer points for regional access to 
destinations in the East Bay, Fairfield, and Suisun City.

is considered a low-income household. Of those 450 
households living 200% below the poverty line, nearly 
26% contain workers over the age of 16 and under the 
age of 75.

Table 18 provides a detailed breakdown of the 
neighborhood by income.

Table 18: South Downtown Napa Household Income 
in the Past 12 months 

South 
Downtown

City of Napa Napa County

Less than $10,000 8.1% 2.9% 3.5%

$10,000 to $14,999 10.5% 4.5% 4.0%

$15,000 to $19,999 3.9% 2.9% 2.9%

$20,000 to $24,999 7.1% 4.4% 4.3%

$25,000 to $29,999 5.3% 3.7% 3.5%

$30,000 to $34,999 4.4% 3.4% 3.5%

$35,000 to $39,999 2.0% 3.8% 3.5%

$40,000 to $44,999 1.4% 4.1% 4.0%

$45,000 to $49,999 2.9% 4.6% 4.1%

$50,000 to $59,999 11.3% 7.9% 6.9%

$60,000 to $74,999 17.4% 10.8% 10.0%

$75,000 to $99,999 5.6% 13.4% 13.0%

$100,000 to 
$124,999

3.4% 11.4% 10.4%

$125,000 to 
$149,999

4.4% 6.8% 7.3%

$150,000 to 
$199,999

9.6% 8.2% 8.6%

$200,000 or more 2.7% 7.3% 10.5%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates B19001

Transportation Mode

Table 19 shows that 14.5% of residents in South  
Downtown Napa walk to work, which is significantly 
higher than the City of Napa average of 3%, and the 
Napa County average of 5%. Residents in the COC also 
used public transportation more frequently with 3% of 
residents using transit, compared to the City of Napa 
average of 1.5%, and the Napa County average of 2%. 

Table 19: South Downtown Napa Commute to Work

Travel Mode South 
Downtown

City of Napa Napa County

Auto-drove alone 66.0% 77.0% 76.0%

Auto-carpooled 11.0% 12.0% 12.0%

Public Transportation 3.0% 2.0% 1.0%

Walked 14.0% 3.0% 4.0%

Biked 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%

Worked from home 6.0% 5.0% 6.0%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimate 

88



20 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Bicyclists and pedestrians enjoying Napa

Sidewalks are the backbone of a pedestrian network and a lifeline 
for disabled residents to access basic human services

POTENTIAL TRANSPORTATION 
SOLUTION

The 2016 Napa Countywide Pedestrian Plan  
identified two improvements within the South 
Downtown Napa COC, including one titled Main 
Street Sidewalk Widening. 

The 2019 Napa Countywide Bicycle Plan also identified 
three projects for the COC, including a 0.7 mile urban 
bike route facility along Laurel Street, a 0.4 mile bike 
lane on Coombs Street from Pearl to Division, and  
a nearly one-mile long urban bike route on Coombs  
Street from Division to Imola. In addition to these 
recommended facilities, Jefferson Street and Coombs 
Street are designated as corridor study projects, which 
eludes to a roadway needing further analysis and  
facility type consideration. 

Biking

1.7 miles of bicycle facilities currently exist in the South 
Downtown Napa COC. Of those 1.7 miles, 0.87 miles are 
bike routes, 0.5 miles are bike lanes on 3rd Street, and 
0.25 miles are a multi-use path along the Napa River on 
the Promenade. 1.8 miles of future bicycle facilities are 
planned to be added to the COC. Of those 1.8 miles, 0.7 
miles will be multi-use, 0.38 miles will be a bike lane on 
Coombs Street, and 0.68 miles will be a bike boulevard. 

Walkability

The South Downtown Napa COC has existing sidewalks 
throughout, though many sections are in need of repair. 
As one of the older sections of Napa, the downtown 
area has aging infrastructure and the city has limited 
resources to make all the necessary repairs. The COC 
currently has 16.5 miles of sidewalk, and 1.5 miles of 
sidewalks are missing. The largest section of missing 
sidewalks is along Riverside Drive in the southeastern 
part of the COC.  

COLLISIONS

Thirty-seven collisions occurred (31% of all collisions 
within a Community of Concern) between the period 
of January 2015 to December 2018. The most frequent 
collisions occurred on these roadways:

• Main St. with 12 collisions:
75% involved a pedestrian

• Jefferson St. with 9 collisions:
56% involved a pedestrian

• 3rd St. with 7 collisions:
71% involved a pedestrian

• 1st St. with 6 collisions:
67% involved a pedestrian

• Coombs St. with 5 collisions:
60% involved a pedestrian

89



21 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

KEY DESTINATIONS AND AMENITIES

Residents in the South Downtown Napa COC have 
access to many restaurant options; however, it is often 
referred to as a food desert because of the limited 
grocery stores. The downtown lost its major grocery 
store, Safeway, after the 2014 Napa Earthquake. There is 
one small market, La Tapatia Market, located on Brown 
Street. The closest grocery store for residents in the COC 
is Grocery Outlet, approximately two miles to the south 
along Imola Avenue. The South Downtown COC is also 
home to many government offices, including offices for 
the City of Napa and Napa County. Other destinations 
include the County of Napa Library and Fuller Park.  
No medical facilities are located in the South Downtown 
Napa neighborhood.

Families crossing roadways without pedestrian infrastructure

90



22 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

500ft

Fo
ot

hi
ll 

B
lv

d

Elm St

Old Sonoma Rd

Kilburn Ave

Laurel St

Laurel St

1st St

Pine St

29

29

Severely-
Rent
Burdened  

Low-
Income

Minorities Single-
Parent
Family

Zero-
Vehicle
House-
hold

76% 

42% 

24% 
5% 12% 

DISADVANTAGE FACTORS  
MEASURED WHEN DETERMINING 

A COMMUNITY OF CONCERN

6,004
Residents 

1,703
Households 

COC 2

Carpool
18%  

Drive Alone
75%

Public Transit 4%

Walk 0%    Bike 0%

Work from Home 3%

AVERAGE TRAVEL 
TIME TO WORK

COMMUTING TO WORK

MINUTES

12

23
SECONDS

COC PROFILE 2

Westwood Neighborhood
US CENSUS TRACT: 06055200804

The Westwood neighborhood is located in a west central area of the City of Napa. The northern boundary is 
south of First Street and west of State Highway 29. Laurel Street southward to Foothill Blvd represents the 
western boundary of the study area, and Old Sonoma Road represents the southern boundary. The Westwood 
neighborhood is very diverse, with a 43.1% foreign-born population. Ninety-seven percent of immigrants in  
the study area are from Latin America. 

91



23 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Only 3% of Westwood residents work from home. 
Seventy-five percent of Westwood residents commute 
to work by driving alone in a car, truck, or van. Eighteen 
percent of residents carpool and 4% use public transit, 
but virtually nobody in Westwood walks or bikes to 
work. The mean travel time to work for residents is  
23 minutes and 12 seconds.

The median monthly rent cost for Westwood 
neighborhood COC residents is $1,333 per month, which 
is only $95 less than the City of Napa median of $1,428. 

DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS

The total population of the Westwood Neighborhood 
COC includes 6,004 residents and 1,703 households. 
As previously stated, the median income is $64,161, 
which is $10,000 less than the Napa County average  
of $74,609. Forty-two percent of Westwood, roughly 
2,500 households, earn less than $49,200 per year.  
Of those living 200% below the poverty line, nearly 
26.5% are workers over the age of 16 years old and 
under 75. Residents of the Westwood neighborhood 
have a median age of 30.8 years, which is considerably 
lower than the City of Napa median age of 38 years,  
and the Napa County median age of 40 years. Seven 
percent of Westwood residents report some form of 
disability, which is slightly lower than the Napa County 
average of 11%. Table 20 provides a detailed breakdown 
of the neighborhood by income. 

Table 20: Westwood Neighborhood COC 
Disadvantaged Factors  

Disadvantaged 
Factor

Percent 
Regional 
Population

Concentration  
Threshold

COC 
percentages

Why  
COC

Minorities 58% 70% 76% X

Low-Income 25% 30% 42% X

Limited English  
Proficient

9% 20% 23% X

Zero-Vehicle  
Household

10% 10% 5%

Seniors 75  
Years and Over

6% 10% 3%

People with 
Disability

9% 25% 7%

Single-Parent 
Family

14% 20% 24% X

Severely-Rent  
Burdened

11% 15% 12%

Source: NVTA’s CBTP Communities of Concern Metrics 2018  
(http://napacounty.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html? 
webmap=611d45b57c084b36ae861986878722da)

WESTWOOD NEIGHBORHOOD 
COMMUNITY OF CONCERN 

The Westwood neighborhood is a regionally significant 
COC because of high percentages of low-income 
minorities with limited English proficiency that may also 
be single parent households and spend more than half 
of their incomes on housing expenses. Three out  
of every four residents identify as a minority, and 71%  
are Hispanic. This neighborhood has greater than 
average numbers of minorities, low-income and  
severely rent-burdened households, and 2.5 times  
the regional average percentage of residents with 
limited English proficiency.

The Westwood neighborhood is a young, predominately 
Spanish-speaking community of color. The COC is 
primarily residential, though it is home to the Napa 
Premium Outlets, which is a popular county destination. 
The Outlets are in the northeastern section of the  
neighborhood adjacent to the First Street Highway  
29 interchange. 

The area is comprised of a 46% foreign-born population, 
which is 22 percentage points greater than the Napa 
County average of 24%. Ninety-six percent of foreign-
born residents are Spanish-speakers. Twenty-four 
percent of residents are severely burdened by the cost 
of housing, and 15% of households in the COC earn less 
than $30,000 per year. The median household income 
for Westwood is $64,161, which is 10% less than the 
City of Napa median income of $71,087. 

Westwood is home to many families, and a large working 
immigrant population

92



24 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Table 21: Westwood Neighborhood Household 
Income in the Past 12 months 

Westwood City of Napa Napa County

Less than $10,000 4.1% 2.9% 3.5%

$10,000 to $14,999 3.9% 4.5% 4.0%

$15,000 to $19,999 1.4% 2.9% 2.9%

$20,000 to $24,999 4.1% 4.4% 4.3%

$25,000 to $29,999 1.5% 3.7% 3.5%

$30,000 to $34,999 7.3% 3.4% 3.5%

$35,000 to $39,999 4.1% 3.8% 3.5%

$40,000 to $44,999 6.8% 4.1% 4.0%

$45,000 to $49,999 4.7% 4.6% 4.1%

$50,000 to $59,999 8.2% 7.9% 6.9%

$60,000 to $74,999 21.6% 10.8% 10.0%

$75,000 to $99,999 13.9% 13.4% 13.0%

$100,000 to 
$124,999

11.2% 11.4% 10.4%

$125,000 to 
$149,999

1.9% 6.8% 7.3%

$150,000 to 
$199,999

4.3% 8.2% 8.6%

$200,000 or more 1.1% 7.3% 10.5%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates B19001

Transportation Mode

Table 22 shows a breakdown of all Westwood COC 
commute modes. Eighteen percent of residents in the 
Westwood COC carpool to work, which is higher than 
the City of Napa average of 12.3% and the Napa County 
average of 11.6%. Similarly, 4% of Westwood residents 
use public transit to get to work, which is also higher 
than the City of Napa average of 1.8% and the Napa 
County average of 1.5%.

Table 22: Westwood Neighborhood 
Commute to Work

Commute to Work Westwood City of Napa  Napa County

Auto-drove alone 74.0% 77.0% 76.0%

Auto-carpooled 18.0% 12.0% 12.0%

Public Transportation 4.0% 2.0% 1.0%

Walked 0.0% 3.0% 4.0%

Biked 0.0% 1.0% 1.0%

Worked from home 3.0% 5.0% 6.0%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates 

EXISTING TRANSPORTATION 
SYSTEM AND ROADWAYS
The Westwood COC is adjacent to State Highway 29,  
and is bounded by arterial roadways including First 
Street (west of Highway 29), Laurel Street, Foothill 
Blvd, and Old Sonoma Road. Of these arterials, First 
Street between Laurel and California Boulevard has an 
ADT of 15,890 per the City of Napa annual traffic count 
summary for 2017.

Roads

There are approximately 12.42 miles of roadways  
in the Westwood COC. 8.9 miles are local roadways, 
2.5 miles are arterial roadways, and 1.97 miles are  
collector streets. 

Figure 14: Westwood Neighborhood Roadway 
Functional Classification 

Local
Roadways 

8.7mi

Major
Collector
1.7mi

Minor Arterials 
1.1mi

Principal Arterials 0.8mi

Total Roadway 12.4mi

Transit

The Westwood COC contains nineteen transit stops  
that are served by three routes. Westwood residents 
currently have access to three local bus routes, the  
A, B, and F. These routes provide access in the City of 
Napa and to transfer points for regional access to  
destinations in the East Bay, Fairfield, and Suisun City.  
All Vine routes provide lifeline access to grocery stores 
and medical services. 

93



25 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

POTENTIAL TRANSPORTATION 
SOLUTION

The 2016 Napa Countywide Pedestrian plan identified 
five improvements with close proximity to the  
Westwood neighborhood. Four improvements aim to 
alleviate congestion, support alternative transportation, 
and improve trail connections to help residents 
navigate to (and around) the Napa Premium Outlets 
as well as providing access to downtown Napa where 
there are more jobs and services. These pedestrian-
related projects include the SR-29 Bike & Pedestrian 
Undercrossing, First Street Roundabouts (West Side), 
Solano Bridge and Extension, and the California 
Boulevard  Roundabouts. One project completely 
contained by the neighborhood boundaries is the  
Laurel Street Sidewalk project from Laurel Manor  
to Laurel Park.

The 2019 Napa Countywide Bicycle Plan identified 
six projects resulting in an additional 1-mile of bike 
lane and 1.65 miles of bike boulevards to be added 
to the Westwood neighborhood. In addition to these 
recommended facilities, First Street is designated as 
a corridor study project, which eludes to a roadway 
needing further analysis and facility type consideration. 

Active transportation in Westwood

KEY DESTINATIONS AND AMENITIES 

Residents in the Westwood COC have limited access 
to grocery and dining options, with the closest grocery 
options being Mi Familia and Lola’s Market. The closest 
full-sized grocery store is the Lucky’s along California 
Boulevard, which is approximately 1.5 miles from 
the center of the neighborhood. The COC is primarily 
residential, but does include major destinations of the 
Napa Premium Outlet Shopping Center and the Napa 
Valley Language Academy. 

Biking

There are 1.69 miles of bike lanes in the Westwood 
COC along Freeway Drive from Old Sonoma Road to 
First Street and on First Street from Freeway Drive to 
Laurel Street. 2.65 miles of bicycle facilities are planned 
to be added to the neighborhood in coming years. Of 
the 2.65 miles, 1.0 mile will be split between three 
disjointed segments; 0.17 miles on First Street, 0.15 
miles on Old Sonoma Road, and 0.68 miles on Laurel 
Street from First Street to Foothill Blvd. The remaining 
1.65 miles are planned to be bike boulevards. Of the 
1.65 miles of bike boulevards, 0.42 miles will be on 
Foothill Boulevard from Old Sonoma Road to Laurel 
Street, 0.42 miles will be on Laurel Street from Foothill 
Boulevard to State Highway 29, and 0.8 miles will be 
along Kilburn Avenue from Freeway Drive to Laurel 
Street.  

Walkability

The Westwood COC has 5.33 miles of existing sidewalk 
infrastructure, which covers the majority of the 
neighborhood. There are 3.9 miles of missing sections 
on Chelsea Avenue, Homewood Avenue, Laurel Street,  
Roosevelt Street, Old Sonoma Road, Almond Avenue, 
and Freeway Drive. The largest missing section of  
sidewalk is a 0.5-mile segment along the eastern side  
of Freeway Drive from Old Sonoma Road to the Napa 
Premium Outlets, located at the intersection of Kilburn 
Ave. Laurel Street from Laurel Park to First Street 
also contains a missing 0.45-mile section of sidewalk. 
Recently, the City of Napa completed new sidewalks on 
both sides of Bryan Avenue and Kilburn Avenue in the 
Westwood COC. 

COLLISIONS

Eleven collisions occurred over the four-year period1. 
The most frequent collisions occurred on:

• 1st St. with 5 collisions:
4 collisions involved a bicyclist

• Freeway Dr. with 3 collisions:
2 collisions involved a pedestrian

• Laurel St. with 2 collisions:
both collisions involved bicycles

• Old Sonoma Rd. with 2 collisions:
1 collision involved a pedestrian, and
1 collision involved a bicyclist

1 Transportation Injury Mapping System Data January 2015 
- December 2018

94



26 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

1000ft1000ft

Imola Ave

C
ed

ar
 D

r

Streblow Dr

Basalt Rd

221

121

Severely-
Rent
Burdened  

Low-
Income

Minorities Single-
Parent
Family

Zero-
Vehicle
House-
hold

47% 

66% 

0% 13% 

73% 

DISADVANTAGE FACTORS  
MEASURED WHEN DETERMINING 

A COMMUNITY OF CONCERN

45 Households 

765
Residents 

COC 3

Drive Alone
21%

Carpool
33%

Bike
25%

Work from
Home
21%

Walk 0%    Public Transit 0%

The East Imola COC is located in the southeastern area of the City of Napa. It is bounded by the Napa River  
to the west, Imola Avenue to the north, and is bisected by State Highway 221 (Napa-Vallejo Highway). There is 
a limited number of residential units in this neighborhood, with the vast majority of the population consisting  
of residents of the Napa State Hospital. However, the Imola corridor is an important asset as it gives  
residents in and around the COC improved access to jobs, retail, entertainment, and the Napa Valley College.  
The neighborhood boundaries are defined as north and west of Skyline Park, east of the Napa River, and  
south of Imola Avenue

COMMUTING TO WORK

COC PROFILE 3

East Imola
US CENSUS TRACT: 06055200900

95



27 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS

The total population of the East Imola COC includes 
765 residents and only 45 households. The Census 
Bureau suppressed the median income data because it 
failed to meet federal statistical significance standards 
set forth for privacy purposes. Mean travel times 
were also suppressed. Despite these limitations, the 
percentage of the population below the poverty line 
is 50.6%, far greater than the City of Napa average of 
8.7%, and the Napa County average of 8.8%. Table 24 
provides a detailed breakdown of the neighborhood by 
income. Of those living 200% below the poverty line, 
nearly 61% are workers over the age of 16 years old 
and under 75 and 5.5% are seniors over the age of 75. 
The percentage of disabled residents is 31.2%, which is 
twenty percentage points greater than the Napa County 
average of 11.1%. The East Imola neighborhood has a 
much older population than the Napa County average, 
with the median age of 53.3 years to Napa County’s 
median age of 40.7.

Table 23: East Imola COC Disadvantaged Factors 

Disadvantaged 
Factor

Percent 
Regional 
Population

Concentration  
Threshold

COC  
percentages

Why  
COC

Minorities 58% 70% 47%

Low-Income 25% 30% 66% X

Limited English  
Proficient

9% 20% 1%

Zero-Vehicle  
Household

10% 10% 73% X

Seniors 75  
Years and Over

6% 10% 5%

People with 
Disability

9% 25% 31% X

Single-Parent 
Family

14% 20% 0%

Severely-Rent  
Burdened

11% 15% 13%

Source: NVTA’s CBTP Communities of Concern Metrics 2018 
(http://napacounty.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.
html?webmap=611d45b57c084b36ae861986878722da)

EAST IMOLA COMMUNITY 
OF CONCERN

The East Imola COC contains the Napa State Hospital 
and the Soscol Gateway South neighborhood, which  
is home to Napa Valley College, Kennedy Park, and  
the public Napa golf course. The East Imola area is a 
regional COC because of the high percentages of  
disabled residents, low-income residents, and zero- 
vehicle households. Forty-six percent (46%) of East 
Imola residents are a minority, with 14% being Hispanic. 
Fifty-seven percent of East Imola residents identify as 
white, 20% identify as African American, 7% identify 
as Asian, and 3% identify as Pacific Islanders. This East 
Imola neighborhood exhibits a greater than average 
percentage of residents living below the poverty line, 
residents who are mentally and/or physically disabled, 
residents with limited English proficiency, and single 
parent households. 

The East Imola area is a relatively smaller and older 
community in terms of population and resident  
demographics. The majority of the small population 
living in the East Imola COC is comprised of State 
Hospital residents, which explains in part the extremely 
low income and extremely high number of disabled 
residents. Sixty-six percent of the residents in the East 
Imola COC are living 200% below the poverty level, with 
65% of households earning less than $35,000 per year. 
The area is comprised of only 7% foreign-born 
residents, and 45% of those foreign-born individuals are 
native Spanish speakers. Seventy-three percent of East 
Imola households do not have a private transportation 
vehicle available to get them to work. Only 21% of 
residents commute by driving alone in a car, truck or 
van, while 33% carpool to work, 25% travel using a 
bicycle, and 21% work from home.

The median gross rent cost for East Imola COC residents 
was suppressed in the 2016 American Community (ACS) 
Survey but the 2017 ACS amount is only $613 per 
month, which is drastically less than the City of Napa 
and Napa County medians. 

It should be noted that the East Imola census tract  
splits next census cycle, essentially removing the 
State Hospital grounds from the census geography. 
Because of this split, the East Imola census tract 
no longer remains a community of concern per 
the 2018 MTC Equity Analysis.

96



28 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

EXISTING TRANSPORTATION 
SYSTEM AND ROADWAYS

The East Imola COC is bounded by the Napa River to 
the west, Imola Avenue to the north, Kaiser Road in the 
Shipyard Acres area in south Napa and Syar Industries  
to the south, and Skyline Wilderness Park to the east.  
State Highway-221 cuts right through the East Imola 
COC carrying roughly 36,000 vehicle trips every day. 
Imola Avenue ranks second in terms of AADT volumes  
in the COC, with more than 24,000 daily vehicle trips. 

A portion of Imola Ave west of Soscol is State 
Route 121.

Roads

The East Imola COC contains approximately 19.05 miles 
of roadways. 10.37 miles are local roads and over 3.5 
miles are arterials. 

Figure 16: East Imola Roadway 
Functional Classification 

Minor
Arterials
2.5mi

Principal
Arterials
3.5mi

Local
Roadways 
11.6mi

Major
Collector
1.2mi

Total Roadway 19mi

Transit

The East Imola COC is currently served by six bus routes, 
the D, G, 10, 11, 21 and 29, which provide access  
within the City of Napa, as well as to transfer points for 
regional access to destinations in the East Bay, Fairfield, 
and Suisun City. All NVTA routes provide lifeline access 
to grocery stores and medical services.

Table 24: East Imola Household Income in the 
Past 12 months 

East Imola City of Napa Napa County

Less than $10,000 13.3% 2.9% 3.5%

$10,000 to $14,999 0.0% 4.5% 4.0%

$15,000 to $19,999 0.0% 2.9% 2.9%

$20,000 to $24,999 0.0% 4.4% 4.3%

$25,000 to $29,999 0.0% 3.7% 3.5%

$30,000 to $34,999 44.4% 3.4% 3.5%

$35,000 to $39,999 0.0% 3.8% 3.5%

$40,000 to $44,999 0.0% 4.1% 4.0%

$45,000 to $49,999 0.0% 4.6% 4.1%

$50,000 to $59,999 0.0% 7.9% 6.9%

$60,000 to $74,999 0.0% 10.8% 10.0%

$75,000 to $99,999 15.6% 13.4% 13.0%

$100,000 to 
$124,999

0.0% 11.4% 10.4%

$125,000 to 
$149,999

0.0% 6.8% 7.3%

$150,000 to 
$199,999

0.0% 8.2% 8.6%

$200,000 or more 26.7% 7.3% 10.5%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates B19001

Transportation Mode

Table 25 shows a breakdown of all East Imola COC  
commute modes. The East Imola COC has a higher 
percentage of residents who carpooled, worked from 
home, and biked to work relative to the City of Napa 
and Napa County numbers.

Table 25: East Imola Commute to Work

Commute to Work East Imola City of Napa  Napa County

Auto-drove alone 21% 77% 76%

Auto-carpooled 33% 12% 12%

Public Transportation 0% 2% 1%

Walked 0% 3% 4%

Biked 25% 1% 1%

Worked from home 21% 5% 6%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates S0801 

97



29 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Able-bodied and disabled residents are forced to make difficult 
decisions when infrastructure is missing

COLLISIONS

Twelve collisions occurred over the four year period 
January 2015- December 2018. The most frequent 
collisions occurred on the following roads:

• Imola Ave. with 9 collisions:
66% of those involved a pedestrian

• State Route 221 (Napa Vallejo Hwy.):
2 collisions involved a bicyclist

POTENTIAL TRANSPORTATION 
SOLUTION

The 2016 Countywide Pedestrian plan identified the 
entire Imola Avenue segment of the COC as a subsection 
of a larger 2.5-mile corridor study area stretching 
from Foster Road to the eastern Napa city limits. As 
mentioned, the corridor is being further studied  
under the Imola Corridor Complete Streets Project. 
These improvements were also included on the 
constrained project list in the 2016 Countywide 
Transportation Plan (CTP).

The 2019 Napa Countywide Bicycle Plan identifies 
existing bicycle facilities within the COC as the Vine Trail 
along the Napa River, a bike path along Magnolia Drive 
and Streblow Drive, bike lanes along Imola Avenue to 
the west of SR 221, and a bike route running through 
Napa Valley College. There is also a proposed bike path 
along Imola Avenue east of SR 221 and proposed bike 
lanes on SR 221. The construction of these additional 
bike facilities would increase overall bike connectivity 
within the COC.

Biking

9.3 miles of bike facilities exist in the East Imola COC. 
Of those 9.3 miles, 4.84 miles are a multi-use path 
such as the Napa River Trail, the Vine Trail, the River to 
Ridge connector Trail, and various Napa Valley College 
bike friendly paths. 3.86 miles are a bike lane facility, 
and 0.61 miles are a bike route along Roy Patrick Drive 
which cuts through the Napa Valley College Campus in 
the southern part of the City of Napa. 13.13 miles of 
additional bicycle facilities are planned, including 6.39 
miles of multi-use path facilities, 2.93 miles of class II on 
SR-221, and 0.69 miles of Bike Boulevard. As previously 
mentioned, Imola Avenue is the subject of the Imola 
Corridor Complete Streets Plan which aims to improve 
the corridor for all users. 

Walkability

The East Imola COC is bounded by Imola Avenue to the 
north and SR 221 running north-south through the COC. 
It is surrounded by open space to the east and west. 
Sidewalk infrastructure is intermittent on this 1.6 mile 
stretch of Imola Avenue. Of the 2.8 miles of potential 
sidewalk infrastructure in the East Imola COC, only 1 
mile currently exists. Pedestrian infrastructure in the 
form of either sidewalks or a Class I multi-use path is 
proposed for both sides of Imola Avenue where gaps in 
the pedestrian infrastructure currently exist as part of 
the Imola Corridor Complete Streets plan. There is also 
proposed sidewalk connections from SR-221 to Napa 
Valley College.

Missing sidewalks can create transportation gaps for  
individuals who rely on a fully connected pedestrian network 
to access lifeline services

98



30 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

KEY DESTINATIONS AND AMENITIES

The sparsely populated East Imola COC is home to 
the Napa State Hospital, Napa Valley College and 
Kennedy Park. These are the three most frequented 
destinations in the COC, both in terms of trips and jobs. 
There is one grocery store and a convenient store but 
there is otherwise no retail or dining options within the 
COC. However, the residents who live in the northeast 
of the COC have direct access to the South Napa 
Market Place, which has a large commercial center 
including Target and Raley’s as grocery options, as well 
as casual dining options and a Home Depot. There is 
also a health care facility, Clinic Olé, a movie theater 
and a gym.

All transit riders are pedestrians when they walk to/from 
bus stops

99



31 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

500ft

128

128
Silverado Trail S

Howell Mtn Rd

Grayson Ave

Vallejo St

Mills
 Ln

Chaix Ln

Severely-
Rent
Burdened  

Low-
Income

Minorities Single-
Parent
Family

Zero-
Vehicle
House-
hold

45% 
40% 

14% 3% 16% 

DISADVANTAGE FACTORS  
MEASURED WHEN DETERMINING 

A COMMUNITY OF CONCERN

1,015
Households 

2,515
Residents 

COC 4

AVERAGE TRAVEL 
TIME TO WORK

The South St. Helena COC is located in the southernmost section of the City of St. Helena, on the northwest 
side of Napa County. The COC is bisected by a 0.1-mile segment of SR-128. The northernmost boundaries are 
Spring Street and Pope Street to Sulpher Creek and the Napa River on the east. The southernmost edge of  
the South St. Helena COC is Lewelling Lane and Chaix Lane. The South St. Helena COC also includes a smaller 
hillside section north of Silverado Trail that is home to multiple vineyards.  

COMMUTING TO WORK

COC PROFILE #4

South St. Helena
US CENSUS TRACT: 06055201601

Drive Alone
79%

Carpool
5%

Public Transit
1%

Walk 4%
Bike 1%

Work from home 10%

20
MINUTES

42
SECONDS

100



32 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

SOUTH ST. HELENA COMMUNITY 
OF CONCERN 

The South St. Helena area was designated as a regional 
COC because of high percentages of severely rent- 
burdened households living below the poverty line, 
many with residents over 75 years old. Nearly 40% of 
all households in the South St. Helena COC, live 200% 
below the poverty line. The median household income 
is $60,500, which is 23% less than the Napa County 
average. In the COC, 31% of households earn less 
than $35,000 per year, and one in four residents are 
considered “severely burdened” by the cost of their 
housing expenses, indicating they are using 50% or 
more of their monthly income on housing. 

Eighty percent of the residents in the South St. Helena 
COC drive alone in a car, truck, or van when traveling 
to work. 10% of South St. Helena residents work from 
home, while 5% carpool when commuting, 3.5% walk  
to work, roughly 1% bike to work, and half of a percent 
use public transit. South St. Helena has the longest 
travel time of all the regional COCs, with a mean travel 
time of 20 minutes and 42 seconds.

The South St. Helena COC is 44% minority, and 39% 
of those minorities are Hispanic. One-third of the 
South St. Helena COC’s residents are immigrants from 
another country, and one out of every four are native 
Spanish speakers. South St. Helena COC households 
struggle financially because of the cost of  housing and 
the fact that many are single-parent households with 
limited English proficiency.

The median monthly rent cost for South St. Helena 
COC residents is $1,565 per month, which is $125 
greater than the Napa County median gross rent. 

Safe pedestrian movements in St Helena

DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS

The total population of the South St. Helena COC is 
2,515 residents and 1,015 households. Nearly ten 
percent of South St. Helena residents are disabled, 
compared to 11.1% for Napa County. The median age in 
South St. Helena is 44.5, which is just slightly higher 
than the Napa County median age of 40. The median 
household income is $60,500 per year. The percentage 
of South St. Helena COC residents living 200% below the 
poverty line is 40%, of which nearly 22% are workers 
over 16 years old and under 75 years old. For 
comparison, the City of St. Helena has 30% of residents 
living 200% below the poverty line, and Napa County 
has 26% of the population living 200% below the 
poverty line. Table 26 provides a detailed breakdown of 
the South St. Helena COC by income. 

Table 26: South St. Helena COC Disadvantaged 
Factors  

Disadvantaged 
Factor

Percent 
Regional 
Population

Concentration  
Threshold

COC 
Percentages

Why  
COC

Minorities 58% 70% 45%

Low-Income 25% 30% 40% X

Limited English  
Proficient

9% 20% 15%

Zero-Vehicle  
Household

10% 10% 3%

Seniors 75  
Years and Over

6% 10% 12% X

People with 
Disability

9% 25% 10%

Single-Parent 
Family

14% 20% 16%

Severely-Rent  
Burdened

11% 15% 14%

Source: NVTA’s CBTP Communities of Concern Metrics 2018 
(http://napacounty.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.
html?webmap=611d45b57c084b36ae861986878722da) 

101



33 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

EXISTING TRANSPORTATION 
SYSTEM AND ROADWAYS 

The South St. Helena COC is bounded by Pope Street 
and Spring Street to the north, and Lewelling Lane to 
Chaix Lane to the south. The COC is surrounded by  
preserved open space and agriculture preserve to the 
east and west.  SR-29 runs through the center of the 
COC. The busiest roadway segment in the COC is SR-29, 
with an average annual daily traffic count of almost 
23,000 trips in 2017. 

Roads

Approximately 23 miles of roadway exists in the South 
St. Helena COC. Of those 23 miles, 14.3 miles are local 
roads, 6.6 miles are collector roads, and 1.1 miles are 
minor arterial roadway.

Figure 18: South St. Helena Roadway 
Functional Classification 

Total Roadway 22.9mi

Minor Arterials 1.3mi

Local
Roadways 
14.7mi

Major
Collector
6.8mi

Principal Arterials 0.2mi

Table 27: South St. Helena Household Income in 
the Past 12 months

South SH City of Napa Napa County

Less than $10,000 3.0% 2.9% 3.5%

$10,000 to $14,999 5.1% 4.5% 4.0%

$15,000 to $19,999 4.5% 2.9% 2.9%

$20,000 to $24,999 5.6% 4.4% 4.3%

$25,000 to $29,999 9.7% 3.7% 3.5%

$30,000 to $34,999 2.6% 3.4% 3.5%

$35,000 to $39,999 9.3% 3.8% 3.5%

$40,000 to $44,999 1.6% 4.1% 4.0%

$45,000 to $49,999 3.7% 4.6% 4.1%

$50,000 to $59,999 4.7% 7.9% 6.9%

$60,000 to $74,999 8.2% 10.8% 10.0%

$75,000 to $99,999 11.7% 13.4% 13.0%

$100,000 to 
$124,999

6.3% 11.4% 10.4%

$125,000 to 
$149,999

7.4% 6.8% 7.3%

$150,000 to 
$199,999

6.4% 8.2% 8.6%

$200,000 or more 10.2% 7.3% 10.5%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates B19001 

Transportation Mode

Table 28 shows a breakdown of all South St. Helena 
commute modes. The COC has a higher percentage of 
residents who worked from home relative to the City  
of St. Helena and Napa County numbers. 

Table 28: South St. Helena Commute to Work

Commute to Work South SH City of Napa  Napa County

Auto-drove alone 80% 77% 76%

Auto-carpooled 5% 12% 12%

Public Transportation 1% 2% 1%

Walked 4% 3% 4%

Biked 1% 1% 1%

Worked from home 10% 5% 6%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates S0801 

102



34 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Transit

South St. Helena is currently served by an on-demand 
shuttle which provides door to door service as well 
as regional routes 10, and 10X which offer access to 
destinations in the East Bay, Fairfield, and Suisun City. 
For residents living in south St. Helena, access to the  
regional routes is not ideal on the highway because 
there are few safe pedestrian crossings on SR 29.  
In addition, fixed route bus stops are few and far apart 
and the highway lacks pedestrian facilities. The Napa 
Valley Vine Trail, a class 1 path, is being planned  
adjacent to the highway. All NVTA routes provide  
lifeline access to grocery stores and medical services. 

Biking

There are currently 1.62 miles of bicycle facilities in the 
South St. Helena COC. Of those 1.6 miles, 1.2 miles are 
bike lanes on Pope Street, Silverado Trail, and Valley 
View Street. There are 0.16 miles of multi-use path in 
Stonebridge Park adjacent to Napa Valley College –  
St. Helena campus, and a disjointed quarter mile of bike 
route on Pope Street between the bike lanes. There are 
14.75 miles of additional bike facilities planned for the 
South St. Helena COC. There are 5.8 miles of planned 
multi-use paths, including 1 mile of Vine Trail running 
through the center of the neighborhood, 1 mile of  
Napa River Trail, 0.5 miles of new path following  
Sulphur Creek, and a new cycle track on Starr Avenue 
from Hunt Avenue to Mills Lane. There are also 2.2  
miles of planned bike lanes on Spring Street, Sulphur 
Springs Road, and Crane Avenue. Additionally, a 0.2-
mile section of Main Street at SR-29 is planned to be 
converted to a bike lane. These new routes should 
improve bicycle access through the South St. Helena 
COC and will connect residents to the proposed Vine 
Trail alignment that is to run through the City of  
St. Helena. 

Walkability

The South St. Helena COC has existing sidewalk 
infrastructure in the northernmost part of the COC, 
however there are many gaps in the southern  
section of the neighborhood. On Mills Lane there  
is a 1.75 miles sidewalk gap. There is also sidewalk  
missing on the following streets: Dowdell Lane,  
McCorckle Avenue, Madrona Avenue, Vallejo Street, 
and Springs Street.  

COLLISIONS

Five collisions occurred over the four-year period, 
January 2015 - December 2018.  

The most frequent collisions occurred: 

• Main St. with 4 collisions:
3 collisions involving a pedestrian

• Pope St. with 1 collision involving a bicyclist

POTENTIAL TRANSPORTATION 
SOLUTION

The 2016 Countywide Pedestrian plan identified eleven 
pedestrian improvements projects within the City of St. 
Helena. Seven of the eleven projects are to occur in the 
South St. Helena COC, including two multi-use pathway 
facilities that are to be located along Sulphur Creek and 
the Napa River. There is also a St. Helena Unified School 
District Sidewalk project, and various transit ADA access 
improvement recommendations.

The 2019 Napa Countywide Bicycle Plan identified  
future facilities such as multi-use paths, including the 
Vine Trail, bike lanes, bike boulevards, and bike routes. 
These alternative transportation amenities will help 
close network gaps by connecting residents to key  
community destinations and neighborhoods.

Pedestrian uses midblock crosswalk in St. Helena

103



35 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

KEY DESTINATIONS AND AMENITIES

Top destinations in the South St. Helena COC include  
the Montessori School, St. Helena High School, St. 
Helena Primary school, Stonebridge Park, and Crane 
Park. The City of St. Helena offers a multitude of dining 
and retail options for residents and tourists. The closest 
grocery stores are Sunshine Foods and Safeway, which 
are easily accessed by the on-demand shuttle provided 
by the City of St. Helena. There are medical offices  
available in St. Helena, but there is no hospital within 
the city limits. The nearest hospital is St. Helena  
Hospital, approximately four miles to the northeast.

Pedestrians enjoying Main St. in St. Helena

104



36 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

1000ft

El Centro Ave

Big Ranch Rd

Jefferson St

Trancas St

Tower Ave

Salvador Ave

29

Severely-
Rent
Burdened  

Low-
Income

Minorities Single-
Parent
Family

Zero-
Vehicle
House-
hold

34% 
27% 

9% 10% 8% 

DISADVANTAGE FACTORS  
MEASURED WHEN DETERMINING 

A COMMUNITY OF CONCERN

4,215
Residents 

1,767
Households 

COC 5

AVERAGE TRAVEL 
TIME TO WORK

The Northeast Napa COC area corresponds with the Vintage neighborhood boundaries, but the whole COC 
is slightly larger. This community is located in a northern portion of Napa, to the east of SR-29. Jefferson 
Street, Salvador Avenue, Big Ranch Road, and Trancas Street define the Northeast Napa COC neighborhood 
boundaries. Major destinations include Queen of the Valley Medical Center, Vintage High School, and  
Garfield Park. The area is composed of a 19% foreign-born population, with many immigrants from  
Latin America and an increasing number from Asia. 

COMMUTING TO WORK

COC PROFILE 5

Northeast Napa
US CENSUS TRACT: 06055200602

Carpool
7%

Public
Transit

1%

Walk 2%
Bike 1%

Drive Alone
81%

Work from home 8%

23
MINUTES

105



NORTHEAST NAPA COMMUNITY 
OF CONCERN

The Northeast Napa neighborhood is a local COC  because 
this tract it has a higher percentage of low income and  
disabled-seniors than county averages.  The Northeast 
Napa COC is home to lower-income  older residents, many 
of whom are disabled and do  not have access to a private 
transportation vehicle or are unable to operate one. As 
such, there is a higher likelihood of their reliance on 
transit as a daily form  of travel to access lifeline-related 
services such as employment centers, grocery and drug 
stores,  medical facilities, schools and libraries, and 
cultural resources like churches and community centers.  
A significant percentage of residents in the Northeast 
Napa COC area are living in poverty, and the median 
income is lower compared to the rest of the City  
Napa and Napa County. 

Twenty-nine percent of Northeast Napa households earn 
less than $35,000 per year, while 26% earn 
greater than $125,000 per year. Twenty-seven percent of 
households live more than 200% below the federal 
poverty level, and nearly 22% of households spend 
more than 50% their incomes on housing expenses. 

In the Northeast Napa COC, 81% of the residents travel to 
work by driving alone in a car, truck or van. Of the  
remaining 19%, 8% of the population work from home, 
7% carpool, 2% walk to work, 1% ride transit, and  another 
1% use a bicycle to travel to work. The average travel time 
for the COC is 23 minutes.

The median gross rent cost for Northeast Napa  
COC residents is $1,385 per month, which is the COC that 
most closely resembles the median gross rents  
for the City of Napa ($1,428) and Napa County ($1,442) 
respectively. 

37 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN

DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS

The total population of the Northeast Napa COC is 
4,215, with 1,767 households. The median Income is 
$67,664, compared to the County average of $74,609. 
In the Northeast COC, 39% of households earn less 
than 200% of the federal poverty level. Of those, 5.5% 
are children under 17 years old, and 3.7% are seniors 
that are 75 years or older. The percentage of disabled 
residents is 13.9%, which is 20% higher than the Napa 
County average of 11. The residents in the Northeast 
Napa COC are generally older than the county average, 
with a median age of 47.6. Table 29 provides a detailed 
breakdown of the neighborhood by income. 

Table 29: Northeast Napa COC 
Disadvantaged Factors  

Disadvantaged  
Factor

Percent 
Napa 
County 
Population

COC 
percentages

Why COC

Median Household Income $74,609 $67,664 X

Minorities 46% 34%

Low-Income 26% 27%

Limited English Proficient 9% 5%

Zero-Vehicle Household 5% 8%

Seniors 75 Years and Over 8% 10% X

People with Disability 11% 14% X

Single-Parent Family 13% 10%

Severely-Rent Burdened 8% 8%

Source: NVTA’s CBTP Communities of Concern Metrics 2018 
(http://napacounty.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.
html?webmap=611d45b57c084b36ae861986878722da) 

Student hurriedly crosses at busy intersection

106



38 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

EXISTING TRANSPORTATION 
SYSTEM AND ROADWAYS

As Table 31 shows, 81% of residents in the Northeast 
Napa COC drive alone to work, compared to the City 
of Napa average of 77% and the Napa County average 
of 76%. Residents use public transportation at a rate 
consistent with that of the Napa County average, while 
rates of working from home are greater than that of the 
city and county averages. 

Roads

There are approximately 17.23 miles of roads in the 
Northeast Napa COC. 11.9 miles are local roadways,  
2.9 miles are minor arterials (Big Ranch Road south  
of Rosewood Lane, Salvador Avenue, Trower Avenue, 
and Jefferson north of Trower Avenue), 2.44 miles are 
major collectors (Big Ranch Road north of Rosewood 
Lane), and 1.57 miles are principal arterials (Trancas 
Avenue and Jefferson Street south of Trower Avenue). 
Trancas Street carries the most annual average daily 
traffic (AADT) with over 20,000 daily trips.

Figure 20: Northeast Napa Roadway 
Functional Classification

Minor
Arterials
2.5mi

Local
Roadways 
11.6mi

Major
Collector

2mi

Total Roadway 17.2mi

Principal Arterials 1.2mi

Table 30: Northeast Napa Household Income in 
the Past 12 months

Vintage City of Napa Napa County

Less than $10,000 3.6% 2.9% 3.5%

$10,000 to $14,999 11.0% 4.5% 4.0%

$15,000 to $19,999 3.5% 2.9% 2.9%

$20,000 to $24,999 1.0% 4.4% 4.3%

$25,000 to $29,999 4.7% 3.7% 3.5%

$30,000 to $34,999 5.0% 3.4% 3.5%

$35,000 to $39,999 2.5% 3.8% 3.5%

$40,000 to $44,999 3.3% 4.1% 4.0%

$45,000 to $49,999 4.6% 4.6% 4.1%

$50,000 to $59,999 5.3% 7.9% 6.9%

$60,000 to $74,999 8.7% 10.8% 10.0%

$75,000 to $99,999 7.0% 13.4% 13.0%

$100,000 to 
$124,999

13.2% 11.4% 10.4%

$125,000 to 
$149,999

8.7% 6.8% 7.3%

$150,000 to 
$199,999

8.8% 8.2% 8.6%

$200,000 or more 9.3% 7.3% 10.5%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates B19001 

Transportation Mode

Table 31 shows a breakdown of all Northeast Napa COC 
commute modes. The drive-alone percentage is higher 
than the City of Napa and Napa County averages, and 
walking and carpooling percentages are half that of City 
of Napa averages. On the other hand, data shows that 
Northeast Napa COC has a higher percentage of bikers 
compared to many of the other COCs. 

Table 31: Northeast Napa Commute to Work

Commute to Work Vintage City of Napa  Napa County

Auto-drove alone 81% 77% 76%

Auto-carpooled 7% 12% 12%

Public Transportation 1% 2% 1%

Walked 2% 3% 4%

Biked 1% 1% 1%

Worked from home 8% 5% 6%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates S0801 

107



39 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

COLLISIONS

Twelve collisions occurred during the four year period 
January 2015-December 2018. 

• Trancas St. with 6 collisions:
83% included pedestrians

• Jefferson St. with 6 collisions:
all 6 included pedestrians

• Villa Ln. with 4 collisions (32%),
71% being pedestrian collisions

• El Capitan Way with 2 collisions:
both included pedestrians

• Rubicon St. with 2 collisions:
both included pedestrians

POTENTIAL TRANSPORTATION 
SOLUTION

The 2016 Napa Countywide Pedestrian Plan and the 
2019 Countywide Bicycle Plan identified the Salvador 
Creek Class I Trail project. This project will be a  
Class I multi-use path located adjacent to Salvador 
Creek, from Los Flores Park to Big Ranch Road. 
Approximately 1 mile of the Salvador Creek Trail is  
an existing trail located within the COC.

Pedestrian travels to class in the Vintage neighborhood

Transit

The Northeast Napa COC currently has access to six  
local bus routes, the A, C, E, H, 10, and 11, which  
provide access throughout the City of Napa, as well  
as to transfer points for regional access to destinations 
in the East Bay, Fairfield, and Suisun City. All Vine  
routes provide access to grocery stores and  
medical services. 

Bikes

There are currently 3 miles of bicycle facilities in the 
Northeast Napa neighborhood. Of the 3 miles, 0.78 
miles is a multi-use path called the Salvador Creek Trail. 
The other 2.25 miles are bike lanes on Jefferson  
Street, Villa Lane, Garfield Lane and Trower Avenue. 

There are 7.75 miles of additional bike facilities planned 
for the Northeast Napa neighborhood. Big Ranch Road, 
Trancas Street, El Centro Avenue and Salvador Avenue 
all have proposed bike lanes totaling 4.4 miles. The 
remaining 1.7 miles are proposed to be bike routes  
with the longest facility being a loop around the  
Queen of the Valley Hospital on Valle Verde Drive, 
Firefly Lane and Rubicon Street. In addition to these 
recommended facilities, Jefferson Street has been 
designated as a corridor study project, which indicates 
that it requires further analysis.  

Walkability

While the majority of the neighborhood has existing 
sidewalks, the Napa County Pedestrian Plan (NCPP) 
identified El Centro Avenue and Sierra Avenue as  
missing sidewalk facilities. The construction of these 
sidewalks would provide increased pedestrian access  
to nearby schools such as Bel Aire Park Magnet School, 
Willow Elementary, Vintage High School and St. 
Apollinaris Catholic School in the surrounding area. 

108



40 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

KEY DESTINATIONS AND AMENITIES

The Northeast Napa COC has access to many retail and 
dining options along Trancas Street. The surrounding 
neighborhood to the COC  has four schools: Bel Aire, 
St. Apollinaris, and Willow, as well as Vintage High 
School. A major destination is the Bel Aire Plaza, which 
has a Trader Joe’s, Target, and Whole Foods as grocery 
options. A top destination within the Northeast Napa 
neighborhood is the Queen of the Valley Hospital that 
provides medical access and jobs.

Students walking to school on the Vintage pedestrian network

109



41 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

1000ft

Tower Ave

Dry Creek Rd

Linda Vista Ave

Redwood Rd

29

Severely-
Rent
Burdened  

Low-
Income

Minorities Single-
Parent
Family

Zero-
Vehicle
House-
hold

31% 
23% 20% 

1% 
11% 

Severely-
Rent
Burdened  

Low-
Income

Minorities Single-
Parent
Family

Zero-
Vehicle
House-
hold

DISADVANTAGE FACTORS  
MEASURED WHEN DETERMINING 

A COMMUNITY OF CONCERN

3,071
Residents 

1,280
Households 

COC 6

Drive Alone
81%

Carpool
5%

Walk
6%

Bike
2%

Work from home 6%

Public Transit 0%

AVERAGE TRAVEL 
TIME TO WORK

The Northwest Napa COC corresponds with the Linda Vista Neighborhood community located in a northern 
portion of the City of Napa, to the west of State Highway-29. The neighborhood is north of Trancas Street, east 
of Dry Creek Road, and south of Trower Avenue. There are four schools, Redwood middle school, Northwood 
Elementary, Hopewell Academy, and St. John’s Lutheran, as well as multiple parks such as Dry Creek Park, and 
a few retirement homes for senior and aging residents.

COMMUTING TO WORK

19
MINUTES

48
SECONDS

COC PROFILE 6

Northwest Napa
US CENSUS TRACT: 06055200707

110



42 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Table 32: Northeast Napa COC 
Disadvantaged Factors  

Disadvantaged  
Factor

Percent 
Napa 
County 
Population

COC 
percentages

Why COC

Median Household Income $74,609 $73,293 X

Minorities 46% 31%

Low-Income 26% 23%

Limited English Proficient 9% 3%

Zero-Vehicle Household 5% 11%

Seniors 75 Years and Over 8% 11% X

People with Disability 11% 13% X

Single-Parent Family 13% 12%

Severely-Rent Burdened 8% 20%

Source: NVTA’s CBTP Communities of Concern Metrics 2018  
(http://napacounty.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html? 
webmap=611d45b57c084b36ae861986878722da) 

A family on a stroll in the Linda Vista neighborhood

NORTHWEST NAPA COMMUNITY 
OF CONCERN

The Northwest Napa neighborhood is a local  
COC because of high rates of disabled-seniors.  
These residents are severely burdened by the cost  
of their rent, and many do not have access to a  
vehicle. The residents in the Northwest Napa COC are 
relatively older compared to the City of Napa and Napa 
County, and have a median age of 46 years. These 
numbers likely reflect the fact that multiple retirement 
homes such as Vintage At Napa and Redwood 
Retirement Residence operate in the community. The 
population is 69% white, and 31% minority with 25% 
being Hispanic. 

The median household income is $73,293 per year, 
which is the highest of all the regional and local Napa 
County communities of concern. In the Northwest  
Napa COC, 23% of households earn less than $35,000 
per year, whereas nearly 38% of households earn 
$100,000 or more per year. Forty-two percent of 
households spend more than half of their monthly 
income on housing expenses. This disparity of 
household income may be skewing the census tract 
median household income. The median monthly  
rent cost for the Northwest Napa COC resident is $1,663 
per month, which is $220 greater than the  
Napa County median. 

DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS

The total population of the Northwest Napa COC  
includes 3,071 residents and over 1,280 households. 
The percentage of seniors is nearly 4 percentage  
points greater the Napa County average, and disabled 
residents are one and a half percentage points greater 
than the Napa County average. While the median 
household income in the Northwest Napa COC is 
$73,293 per year, there are still 6% of children under  
17 years, 14% of workers between the ages of 16  
and 75 years, and almost 4% of seniors age 75 years  
or older that are living 200% below the poverty line.  
As an example, a household living 200% below the  
federal poverty level equates to earning less than 
$49,720 per family of four. Table 32 provides a detailed 
breakdown of the neighborhood by income.  

111



43 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Existing Transportation System and Roadways

The Northeast Napa COC is bounded by major 
roadways. These include the arterial roadways of 
Redwood Road to the south, Dry Creek Road to the 
west, and Trower Avenue to the north, as well as,  
State Route 29 to the east. Redwood Road is a busy 
four lane principal arterial carrying high volumes of 
traffic every day, nearing 16,000 AADT.  

Roads

There are  12.73 miles of total roadway  in the 
Northwest Napa neighborhood. Of those roadways, 
7.04 miles are local roadways, 2.28 miles are major 
collector roadways like Linda Vista Road and Solano 
Avenue. SR 29 also touches the Northwest Napa COC 
which carries roughly 42,000 AADT according to 2017 
FHWA data sources, and 1.51 miles of minor arterial 
roads such as Dry Creek Road and Trower Avenue, and 
1.08 miles of principal arterial roads  such as Redwood 
Road.

Figure 22: Northwest Napa Roadway 
Functional Classification 

Local
Roadways 
10.9mi

Major
Collector
1.3mi

Total Roadway 12.7mi

Principal Arterials 0.1mi Minor Arterials 0.5mi

Table 33: Northwest Napa Household Income in 
the Past 12 months

Linda Vista City of Napa Napa County

Less than $10,000 4.0% 2.9% 3.5%

$10,000 to $14,999 3.1% 4.5% 4.0%

$15,000 to $19,999 2.3% 2.9% 2.9%

$20,000 to $24,999 5.1% 4.4% 4.3%

$25,000 to $29,999 2.3% 3.7% 3.5%

$30,000 to $34,999 5.9% 3.4% 3.5%

$35,000 to $39,999 3.4% 3.8% 3.5%

$40,000 to $44,999 4.7% 4.1% 4.0%

$45,000 to $49,999 2.6% 4.6% 4.1%

$50,000 to $59,999 5.7% 7.9% 6.9%

$60,000 to $74,999 13.5% 10.8% 10.0%

$75,000 to $99,999 9.4% 13.4% 13.0%

$100,000 to 
$124,999

11.7% 11.4% 10.4%

$125,000 to 
$149,999

5.8% 6.8% 7.3%

$150,000 to 
$199,999

7.5% 8.2% 8.6%

$200,000 or more 12.8% 7.3% 10.5%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates B19001 

Transportation Mode

Table 34 shows all of the Northwest Napa COC commute 
modes. In the Northwest COC, 78% of residents drive 
alone to work. Less than 1% of residents use public 
transportation, which is less frequent than City of Napa 
and Napa County averages. Northwest Napa residents 
are twice as likely to walk to work compared to City of 
Napa residents. Only 5% of COC residents carpool to 
work, which is less than half of the rate of City of Napa 
and Napa County residents overall which is 12%.

Table 34: Northwest Napa Commute to Work

Commute to Work Linda Vista City of Napa  Napa County

Auto-drove alone 78% 77% 76%

Auto-carpooled 5% 12% 12%

Public Transportation 0% 2% 1%

Walked 6% 3% 4%

Biked 2% 1% 1%

Worked from home 6% 5% 6%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates S0801

112



44 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

COLLISIONS

Seventeen collisions occurred over the four-year period 
of January 2015 - December 2018.

• Redwood Rd. with 9 collisions:
56% involved a pedestrian

• Solano Ave. with 9 collisions:
55% involved a pedestrian

• Linda Vista Ave. with 3 collisions:
2% involved bicyclist 

• Trower Ave. with 3 collisions:
2 involved pedestrians

• Oxford St. with 2 collisions:
both involved pedestrians

POTENTIAL TRANSPORTATION 
SOLUTION

The 2016 Napa Countywide Pedestrian Plan identified 
one adjacent project that would provide safety and 
traffic calming benefits to the Northwest Napa COC.  
The overpass grade separation at Trower Avenue and 
SR-29 is an intersection improvement project that  
would remove the traffic signal, provide multimodal 
access and mobility and reduce congestion. 

The 2019 Napa Countywide Bicycle Plan recommended 
two bikeways traversing north-south in the Northwest 
Napa COC, connecting Redwood Road with Wine  
Country Avenue to travel over the proposed multi-use 
path on Salvador Creek Trail and the bike lane on  
Trower Avenue. The construction of these facilities 
would increase overall bicycle network connectivity 
within the COC, including access to the Vine Trail,  
which is approximately 0.3 miles from the center of  
the neighborhood.

Transit

The Northwest Napa neighborhood currently has  
access to four local bus routes, the E, 10, 11, and 29, 
which provide access throughout the City of Napa, 
as well as to transfer points for regional access to 
destinations in the East Bay, Fairfield, and Suisun City.  
All Vine routes provide lifeline access to grocery stores 
and medical services. 

Bikes

There are currently 2.8 miles of bicycle infrastructure  
in Northwest Napa COC, including a 0.6-mile section  
of the Vine Trail. The remaining 2.2 miles are bike lanes 
on Trower Avenue, Solano Avenue, and Dry Creek Road. 
There are 3.5 miles of additional bike facilities planned 
for Northwest Napa neighborhood, including a 0.2-mile 
section of multi-use path on the Vine Trail connecting 
the existing sections to the Redwood Road between  
the Park and Ride and SR-29. There is also 1.62 miles 
of bike lane planned for Redwood Road. Linda Vista 
Avenue and Oxford Street are proposed as Bike Routes. 
Redwood Road study corridor, which indicates that 
further analysis is needed. 

Walkability

The Linda Vista community has existing sidewalk  
infrastructure throughout most of the neighborhood 
with a few corridor exceptions. Approximately 66 
percent of Dry Creek Road is missing sidewalks, the 
majority being on the west side on the roadway. There 
is a 0.5-mile sidewalk segment missing on the eastside 
of Linda Vista Ave, which would provide access to  
St. John’s Lutheran and Northwood Elementary  
Schools. The entire eastern side of the COC along  
Solano Avenue has the Napa Valley Vine Trail, a  
class I facility that provides pedestrian access. 

113



45 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

KEY DESTINATIONS AND AMENITIES

The Northwest Napa COC is primarily residential,  
with few commercial areas serving the population. 
The neighborhood is home to Northwood Elementary 
School and Redwood Middle School. Residents have 
easy access to the dining and shopping offered to the 
east of the SR-29, as well as easy transit access to these 
destinations from the Redwood Park and Ride. The  
COC does have proximate access to the Bel Aire plaza, 
which is just east of SR-29 and the new Grocery Outlet 
in Redwood Plaza. 

A cyclist rides on Linda Vista Avenue with no designated bike lane

114



46 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

1mi

29

Silverado Trail

Dry Creek Rd
Big Ranch Rd

Oak Knoll A
ve

Yountville
 Cross Rd

Severely-
Rent
Burdened  

Low-
Income

Minorities Single-
Parent
Family

Zero-
Vehicle
House-
hold

41% 

27% 
7% 

Severely-
Rent
Burdened  

Low-
Income

Minorities Single-
Parent
Family

Zero-
Vehicle
House-
hold

5% 4% 

DISADVANTAGE FACTORS  
MEASURED WHEN DETERMINING 

A COMMUNITY OF CONCERN

4,835
Residents 

1,970
Households 

COC 7

Drive Alone
69%

Carpool
19 %

Walk 2%
Work from Home 9%

Public 
Transit

1%

Bike 0%

AVERAGE TRAVEL 
TIME TO WORK

The Unincorporated Yountville COC contains the unincorporated area surrounding the town of Yountville.  
The area extends southward to the City of Napa and North to Dry Creek Road. The Unincorporated Yountville 
area is a local community of concern due to greater than average numbers of disabled seniors,  age 75 years  
or older,  who speak English as a second language. Unincorporated Yountville residents are much older than 
other Napa city and county averages, with a median age of 52 years. 

COMMUTING TO WORK

19
MINUTES

54
SECONDS

COC PROFILE 7

US CENSUS TRACT: 06055201200

Unincorporated area near Yountville

115



47 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Table 35 provides a detailed breakdown of the 
neighborhood by income.

Table 35: Unincorporated area near Yountville 
COC Disadvantaged Factors  

Disadvantaged  
Factor

Percent 
Napa 
County 
Population

COC 
percentages

Why COC

Median Household Income $74,609 $59,024 X

Minorities 46% 41%

Low-Income 26% 27%

Limited English Proficient 9% 11%

Zero-Vehicle Household 5% 5%

Seniors 75 Years and Over 8% 14% X

People with Disability 11% 14% X

Single-Parent Family 13% 7%

Severely-Rent Burdened 8% 4%

Source: NVTA’s CBTP Communities of Concern Metrics 2018  
(http://napacounty.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html? 
webmap=611d45b57c084b36ae861986878722da) 

Pedestrian on county road just outside Yountville

UNINCORPORATED YOUNTVILLE 
COMMUNITY OF CONCERN 

The Unincorporated Yountville area is a local community 
of concern due to greater than average numbers of 
disabled seniors, age 75 years or older, who speak 
English as a second language. Unincorporated Yountville 
residents are much older than other Napa city and 
county averages, with a median age of 52 years.  
Forty-one percent of the population are minorities,  
with 33% identifying as Hispanic and 6% identifying as 
Asian. Twenty-four percent of residents in the area  
are immigrants, and 15% are Spanish speaking and  
4% are native-speakers from Asia. 

In the Unincorporated Yountville 21% of households  
are severely burdened by the cost of their housing 
expenses, which is consistent with the Napa County 
average. In the COC, 23% of households earn less  
than $35,000 per year, while 30% of households  
earn over $100,000 per year. The median household 
income is $59,024, which is 26% less than the Napa 
County average.

In the Unincorporated Yountville COC, 70% of residents 
commute to work by driving alone, while 19% carpool, 
and 9% work from home. Only 2% walk to work, which 
is half the frequency of the Napa County average, and 
only 1% use public transit. The mean travel time for 
Unincorporated Yountville residents is 19 minutes and 
54 seconds. 

DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS

The total population of the Unincorporated Yountville 
COC includes 4,835 individuals and 1,970 households. 
Twenty-seven percent of the population lives 200%  
below the poverty line. This is 7 percentage points 
greater than the Town of Yountville at 20%, but 
consistent with the Napa County average of 26%. Of 
those households living below the poverty line, 17% 
are workers between the ages of 16 years and 75 years 
old, nearly 8% are children under 17, and only 2% are 
seniors age 75 years or more. Conversely, 12% of seniors 
living in this community earn more than 200% the  
federal poverty line, but 1.5% earn less than $13,000 
per year. 

Over 11% of residents in Unincorporated Yountville 
experience English proficiency challenges, which is  
over 3.5% more frequent than the Napa County 
average of 8.8%. The percentage of disabled residents 
in the area is 13.8% and is estimated to include about 
650 residents, lower than the Town average, 16.25 
percent (est. 485 residents) but greater than the county 
frequency of 11.1%. 

116



48 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

EXISTING TRANSPORTATION 
SYSTEM AND ROADWAYS

Dry Creek Road bounds the Unincorporated  
Yountville COC to the west and Oakville Grade to  
the north. The eastern boundary is SR-29 to the Napa 
River headed south to Salvador Avenue, then  
westward to Wine County Avenue and Linda Vista 
Avenue. SR-29 runs through the middle of the area 
surrounded by open space and agricultural areas to 
the east and west. The heaviest traveled roadway 
segment in the Unincorporated Yountville COC is the 
northbound segment of SR-29 from Salvador Avenue to 
Oak Knoll Road, which has an average of 42,000 daily 
trips. Principal arterial roadways in the area include the 
northbound section of SR-29 from Oak Knoll Road to  
the Yountville town limits, and the small section of 
Trancas Avenue that falls in the Unincorporated 
Yountville COC.  

Roads

There are approximately 89.45 miles of total roadway 
in the Unincorporated Yountville COC. Of those 
roadways, 54.64 miles are local roadways, 1.15 miles 
are other freeway/expressway such as SR-29 from 
Salvador Avenue to Oak Knoll, 3.37 miles are principal 
arterial roadways, 5.12 miles of minor arterial 
roadways, and the final 11.26 miles are major collector 
roads.

Figure 24: Unincorporated area near Yountville 
Roadway Functional Classification 

Minor
Arterials

8.6mi

Freeway 1.1mi

Local
Roadways 
58.1mi

Major
Collector
14.7mi

Total Roadway 89.5mi

Principal Arterials 6.8mi

Table 36: Unincorporated area near Yountville 
Household Income in the Past 12 months

Unincorporated 
Yountville

City of Napa Napa County

Less than $10,000 2.3% 2.9% 3.5%

$10,000 to $14,999 3.4% 4.5% 4.0%

$15,000 to $19,999 3.9% 2.9% 2.9%

$20,000 to $24,999 4.7% 4.4% 4.3%

$25,000 to $29,999 3.6% 3.7% 3.5%

$30,000 to $34,999 4.8% 3.4% 3.5%

$35,000 to $39,999 5.6% 3.8% 3.5%

$40,000 to $44,999 6.8% 4.1% 4.0%

$45,000 to $49,999 8.6% 4.6% 4.1%

$50,000 to $59,999 7.2% 7.9% 6.9%

$60,000 to $74,999 7.8% 10.8% 10.0%

$75,000 to $99,999 11.4% 13.4% 13.0%

$100,000 to 
$124,999

8.8% 11.4% 10.4%

$125,000 to 
$149,999

5.1% 6.8% 7.3%

$150,000 to 
$199,999

6.1% 8.2% 8.6%

$200,000 or more 9.9% 7.3% 10.5%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates B19001

Transportation Mode

Table 37 shows all of the Unincorporated Yountville  
COC commute modes. The majority of residents (70%) 
drive alone to work in a car, truck, or van, and 31% use 
alternative means of travel to work. 

Table 37: Unincorporated area near Yountville 
Commute to Work 

Commute to Work Unincorporated 
Younvtille

City of Napa  Napa County

Auto-drove alone 70% 77% 76%

Auto-carpooled 19% 12% 12%

Public Transportation 1% 2% 1%

Walked 2% 3% 4%

Biked 0% 1% 1%

Worked from home 9% 5% 6%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates S0801 

117



COLLISIONS

Ten collisions occurred over the four-year period; 
100% of these collisions involved bicyclists. 

• Oak Knoll Ave. with 3 collisions
• Solano Ave. with 3 collisions
• Wine Country Ave. with 2 collisions
• Big Ranch Rd. with 2 collisions
• Dry Creek Rd. with 2 collisions

Pedestrians walk along Yount Mill Road just outside the 
Town of Yountville limits

Key Destinations and Amenities

The Unincorporated Yountville COC area is primarily  
a rural and agricultural area with the main attractions  
being wineries located along SR-29. The largest  
destination is the Yountville Veterans Home, which  
has over 1,000 residents and is a large source of  
employment. The on-demand transit service does 
include the Yountville Veterans home, which provides 
quick and easy access to the Town of Yountville and  
the dining and retail options they provide. The closest  
grocery store is Ranch Market within the Town of  
Yountville. The other nearby grocery store is Oakville 
Grocery, which is an upscale market. Full-sized grocery 
store options are further south, approximately 14  
miles in the City of Napa, including Safeway, Lucky, 
Trader Joe’s, Target, and Whole Foods.

Transit

Unincorporated Yountville is currently served by the 
regional routes 10, and 10X which offer access to Town 
of Yountville, the City of Napa and regional access to 
destinations in the East Bay, Fairfield, and Suisun City.  
All Vine routes provide lifeline access to grocery stores 
and medical services. 

Biking

There are 13.37 miles of bike facilities in the 
Unincorporated Yountville COC. Of these current bike 
facilities, 5.2 miles include a multi-use path consisting  
of the Vine Trail and the Napa River Trail, specifically  
the loop around Trancas Crossing Park. Over 7.5 miles 
are dedicated bike lanes, with the longest facility 
following a similar alignment to the transit stops along the 
Solano Avenue corridor. Lastly, there is a  bike route on 
Finnell Road to Yountville Cross Road that is less than .5 
miles.

There are 26 miles of additional bicycle facilities planned 
for the Unincorporated Yountville COC, with the longest 
being a continuous bike route on Dry Creek Road, and 
a connecting bicycle route on Oakville Grade Road. 
An additional 2.75 mile section of multi-use path has been 
recommended to augment the Vine Trail through the 
Unincorporated Yountville area, continuing from 
the northern boundaries of the Town of Yountville and 
extending northbound to the southern boundary of the 
Oakville and Oakville Grade Road. Lastly, 6.87 miles of 
bicycle lanes are planned, including an almost two-mile 
lane on a cross valley path along Oak Knoll Avenue, and 
two recommendations running the span of Big Ranch 
Road from Trancas Street to Oak Knoll Avenue. 

Walkability

Due to the rural nature of the Unincorporated  
Yountville COC, there are limited sidewalks with nearly all 
pedestrian and bike infrastructure contained by  
the Town of Yountville jurisdictional limits, the  
Yountville Veterans Home campus, and along the Vine 
Trail, which cuts directly through the COC. There are  
8 miles of sidewalk currently in the COC area. There  
are over 12.5 miles of future planned sidewalks. Some 
of the roadways with missing sidewalks include Big Ranch 
Road, Solano Avenue, Salvador Avenue, and Orchard 
Avenue.

49 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN

118



50 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

1000ft

29

128

Silverado Trail N

Myrtledale Rd

Tu
bb

s L
n

Petr
ifie

d Fores
t R

d

Severely-
Rent
Burdened  

Low-
Income

Minorities Single-
Parent
Family

Zero-
Vehicle
House-
hold

53% 

7% 

Severely-
Rent
Burdened  

Low-
Income

Minorities Single-
Parent
Family

Zero-
Vehicle
House-
hold

8% 6% 4% 

DISADVANTAGE FACTORS  
MEASURED WHEN DETERMINING 

A COMMUNITY OF CONCERN

5,281
Residents 

2,007
Households 

COC 8

Drive Alone
69%

Carpool
19 %

Walk 9%
Bike 2% Work from Home 1%

Public Transit 0%

AVERAGE TRAVEL 
TIME TO WORK

The City of Calistoga COC is located 25 miles north of the City of Napa in Napa County. The COC study area 
follows the boundaries of the City of Calistoga, and is subdivided into four census block groups for further  
demographic analysis. Downtown Calistoga begins where State Highways SR-29 and SR-128 split along  
the Lincoln Avenue corridor. The remaining frame of the City of Calistoga COC includes the roadways of  
Silverado Trial, and Greenwood Avenue.

COMMUTING TO WORK

17
MINUTES

30
SECONDS

COC PROFILE 8

CITY OF CALISTOGA
US CENSUS TRACT: 06055202000

119



16.5% of residents are disabled, which is 5.5 percentage 
points greater than the Napa County average of 11.1%. 
The median age of residents in the City of Calistoga is 
44.5 years and is 3.8 years older than the Napa County 
median age, and 6.4 years older than the City of Napa 
median age. Table 38 provides a detailed breakdown  
of the neighborhood by income. 

Table 38: City of Calistoga COC 

Disadvantaged Factors 

Disadvantaged  
Factor

Percent 
Napa 
County 
Population

COC 
percentages

Why COC

Median Household Income $74,609 $60,534 X

Minorities 46% 53%

Low-Income 26% 38%

Limited English Proficient 9% 24%

Zero-Vehicle Household 5% 8%

Seniors 75 Years and Over 8% 9% X

People with Disability 11% 16% X

Single-Parent Family 13% 13%

Severely-Rent Burdened 8% 6%

Source: NVTA’s CBTP Communities of Concern Metrics 2018  
(http://napacounty.maps.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html? 
webmap=611d45b57c084b36ae861986878722da) 

Pedestrians in Downtown Calistoga 

CITY OF CALISTOGA COMMUNITY 
OF CONCERN 

The City of Calistoga is a locally significant community  
of concern (COC) because of higher than average  
rates of minorities, disabled- seniors, households living 
in poverty, households with limited English proficiency, 
and many households without access to private vehicle.   
The median household income is $60,534 per year, which 
is 23% less or roughly $14,000 a year less than the Napa 
County median annual income of $74,609. That said, the 
City of Calistoga COC does not exceed severely rent 
burdened household percentages for  
the Napa County threshold, but it does exceed thresholds 
according to Bay Area regional averages.  
This suggests that housing costs are more affordable  
in Calistoga than in other parts of Napa County. In  
the City of Calistoga, 36% of households earn less  
than $35,000 per year, which is 16 percentage points 
greater than the Napa County average of 20%. 
Conversely, 25% of City of Calistoga COC households earn 
greater than $100,000 per year, which is lower than the 
Napa County average of 40%. This suggests there is less of 
a household income disparity than  
in other Napa County COCs.

In the City of Calistoga COC, 67% of residents drive alone 
to work. This is 9% less than the Napa County average, 
and is more similar to the South Downtown Napa COC 
where 66% of residents drive alone to work. In the COC, 
18% of residents carpool to work, which 
is 6 percentage points greater than the Napa County 
average, while 9% walk to work (more than double the 
county average), 2% bike to work, 1% work from home, 
and less than 1% of residents use transit to commute  
to work. The mean travel time for the City of Calistoga  
COC is 17 minutes and 30 seconds. This is 6 minutes  
and 24 seconds faster than the Napa County average, and 
4 minutes and 6 seconds faster than the City of Napa 
average. 

DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS

The entire City of Calistoga is a Community of Concern. 
The total population of the Calistoga COC is 5,281 
residents and 2,007 households. The median income  
is $60,534, compared to the County average of $74,609.  
In the Calistoga COC, 38% of households live 200% below 
the federal poverty level. Of those 38% living below the 
poverty level, 25% are workers 16 to 75 years old, nearly 
10% are youth younger than 17 years old, and 2.5% are 
seniors over the age of 75. In the COC, 

51 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN 120



52 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

EXISTING TRANSPORTATION 
SYSTEM AND ROADWAYS

The City of Calistoga COC is bounded by arterial roadway 
SR-128 to the south, and Silverado Trail to the north. 
State Highway 128 carries the largest traffic volumes, 
and SR-29 experiences the second largest vehicular 
volumes based on an average annual daily traffic (AADT) 
count. Other large corridors include Grant Street, Lake 
Street, and Washington Street. 

Roads

There are approximately 35.35 miles of total roadway in 
the City of Calistoga COC. Of those, 22.23 miles are local 
roads, 4 miles are minor arterial roads, and 4.4 miles are 
major collector roads. 

Figure 26: City of Calistoga Roadway 
Functional Classification 

Minor
Arterials

4.9mi

Local
Roadways 

24.1mi

Major
Collector
5.3mi

Total Roadway 35.3mi

Principal Arterials 0.9mi

Table 39: City of Calistoga Household Income in 
the Past 12 months

Calistoga City of Napa Napa County

Less than $10,000 6.1% 2.9% 3.5%

$10,000 to $14,999 3.2% 4.5% 4.0%

$15,000 to $19,999 4.5% 2.9% 2.9%

$20,000 to $24,999 11.4% 4.4% 4.3%

$25,000 to $29,999 4.4% 3.7% 3.5%

$30,000 to $34,999 6.8% 3.4% 3.5%

$35,000 to $39,999 3.0% 3.8% 3.5%

$40,000 to $44,999 3.7% 4.1% 4.0%

$45,000 to $49,999 2.3% 4.6% 4.1%

$50,000 to $59,999 3.7% 7.9% 6.9%

$60,000 to $74,999 9.8% 10.8% 10.0%

$75,000 to $99,999 15.7% 13.4% 13.0%

$100,000 to $124,999 7.2% 11.4% 10.4%

$125,000 to $149,999 4.5% 6.8% 7.3%

$150,000 to $199,999 4.1% 8.2% 8.6%

$200,000 or more 9.5% 7.3% 10.5%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates B19001 

Transportation Mode

Table 40 shows all of the City of Calistoga COC commute 
modes. The area has a higher percentage  
of residents who carpool and walk to work relative to 
the Napa County averages. 

Table 40: City of Calistoga Commute to Work

Commute to Work Calistoga City of Napa  Napa County

Auto-drove alone 67% 77% 76%

Auto-carpooled 18% 12% 12%

Public Transportation 0% 2% 1%

Walked 9% 3% 4%

Biked 2% 1% 1%

Worked from home 1% 5% 6%

Source: 2012-2016 ACS 5-year estimates S0801 

121



53 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

COLLISIONS

Forty nine collisions occurred over the four year period 
January 2015 - December 2018:

• Lincoln Rd. has the most collisions with 6
• 11 collisions involved bicyclist
• 4 collisions involved pedestrians
• 7 collisions were categorized as severe

A senior uses crosswalk in downtown Calistoga

KEY DESTINATIONS AND AMENITIES

The City of Calistoga offers many retail, entertainment, 
and dining options for residents living in the COC.  
There is one grocery store called Cal-Mart, and two 
small markets, Puerto Vallarta and Mitchell’s Market. 
Calistoga is also home to the Napa County  
Fairgrounds, Pioneer Park, Logvy Community Park,  
Calistoga Elementary School, and Calistoga Junior- 
Senior High School. There are no hospitals within  
the city limits, though there is an Ole Health Clinic.  
The nearest hospital is St. Helena Hospital, approxim- 
ately eight miles to the southeast. The Santa Rosa  
Kaiser Permanente is approximately 17 miles to the 
west, in the neighboring county of Sonoma.

A Lack of sidewalks forces pedestrians into the roadway network 
in Calistoga

Biking

There are currently 5.95 miles of bicycle facilities in the 
City of Calistoga COC. There are 1.3 miles of multi-use 
path, 1 mile of bike lane on Silverado Trail from the city 
limits to SR-29, and 3.6 miles of bike routes, with the 
longest of these facilities being the 0.6 mile section 
of Cedar Street from Willow Street to Lincoln Avenue. 
According to the 2019 Napa Countywide Bicycle plan, 
14.05 miles of additional bicycle facilities are planned 
for the City of Calistoga COC. Of these recommended 
facilities, 4.66 miles are to be multi-use paths, with the 
longest facilities recommended to be along the Napa 
River from Greenwood Avenue to the northwestern 
Calistoga city limit line. Additionally, 4.72 miles are to  
be bike lanes on SR-128 and SR-29, 2.86 miles will be  
a bike boulevard, and 1.8 miles will be a bike route. 

Walkability

The 2016 Countywide Pedestrian Plan shows that the 
Calistoga has 16.5 miles worth of intermittent sidewalk 
infrastructure, however there are gaps along Foothill 
Boulevard, Silverado Trail, Lincoln Avenue, Oak Street, 
and Grant Street. Priorities for new sidewalks should  
be placed on major trip generators where vehicle/ 
pedestrian conflicts may likely occur, such as schools 
and shopping areas. In addition, pedestrian facilities 
such as sidewalks, crosswalks, and ADA curb-cut or 
wheelchair accessible ramps would greatly benefit  
City of Calistoga COC residents where vehicular  
speed enforcement is cited to be a problem. 

Transit 

Calistoga is currently served by the regional routes 10, 
and 10X which offer access to City of St. Helena, Town 
of Yountville, the City of Napa and regional access to 
destinations in the East Bay, Fairfield, and Suisun City. 
All Vine routes provide lifeline access to grocery stores 
and medical services.  Calistoga also has the Calistoga 
Shuttle which provides on-demand service within a 
designated service area from Tubbs Lane to the north, 
to Dunaweal lane to the south, Monday through 
Saturday and Sunday service during the months of  
May-November.  

122



54 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

The focus of the Community-Based Transportation 
Planning process is to engage the direct participation 
of Napa County’s COC residents in identifying their 
transportation needs, as well as potential solutions to 
address those needs. NVTA’s outreach for the CBTP  
took several forms to ensure Napa County communities 
had a variety of ways to participate. The participants 
provided comments particularly with respect to  
gaps in the transportation system and reviewed  
preliminary strategies and solutions to address those 
gaps. The targeted groups include senior housing,  
low-income housing sites, social service agencies  
and nonprofit organizations with significant membership 
from low income, senior and disabled communities.  
The groups also included transit riders and participants 
from neighborhood associations serving such  
disadvantaged communities.

NVTA staff conducting CBTP outreach at Silverado Creek 
Apartments in City of Napa Northeast Vintage COC

TAKE THE 
SURVEY

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
is updating the Community Based 
Transportation Plan (CBTP). The CBTP’s 
purpose is to improve mobility options 
for senior, low-income and disabled 
communities in Napa County.

NVTA | 625 Burnell Street | Napa, CA | 707 259 8631 

www.nvta.ca.gov/CBTP2018

ARE YOU IN NEED OF BETTER 
TRANSPORTATION OPTIONS IN 

THE NAPA VALLEY?

WE 
WANT 

TO 
HEAR 
FROM 
YOU!

¿NECESITAS MEJORES OPCIONES 
DE TRANSPORTE EN EL VALLE 

DEL NAPA?

TOMA LA
ENCUESTA

La Autoridad de Transporte del Valle 
de Napa está actualizando el plan 
de transporte comunitario (CBTP). El 
objetivo de este plan es mejorar opciones 
de movilidad para personas mayores 
y de bajos ingresos y comunidades 
discapacitadas en el condado de Napa.

NVTA | 625 Burnell Street | Napa, CA | 707 259 8631 

www.nvta.ca.gov/CBTP2018

¡Queremos 
escuchar 

de ti!

 he Napa Valley Transportation Authority is holding   
 two upcoming meetings to find out the mobility needs 
of disadvantaged communities for its Community Based 
Transportation Plan. 

It is focusing on low-income residents, non-English speakers, 
the elderly and those with disabilities. The purpose is to find out 
if mobility needs of these residents are being met as they do such 
things as go to the store and medical appointments. 

One meeting will be from 11a.m. to 2 p.m. Wednesday, Oct. 24, 
at Napa Valley Community College’s McCarthy Library, 2277 
Napa Vallejo Highway. The other will be from 12:30 to 1:45 p.m. 
Nov. 2 at Napa Valley Support Services, 1700 Second St., suite 212, 
in Napa. 

People need not attend the entire meeting. 
Go to www.nvta.ca.gov/CBTP-2018 to find more information 
on the Community Based Transportation Plan.

T

Community Engagement

123



55 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

NVTA worked with its communities of concern local 
housing, senior service agencies, health organizations, 
and other community based organizations to develop 
the CBTP. NVTA public outreach events were held at  
the following locations: 

• City of American Canyon, Senior Center
• City of Napa, Senior Center: Provides a wide

range of programs and activities including
daily meal program, Sunday Pot Lucks, and
Pancake breakfasts

• City of Napa, Free Market at Health and
Human Services

• City of Napa, Storehouse/Food Bank
• City of Napa, Queen of the Valley
• Town of Yountville, Veteran’s Home
• City of Calistoga, Springs Mobile Home Park
• City of Napa, Napa Valley College
• City of St. Helena, Rianda House: Offers a one-

stop shop connecting the local senior population
to the programs, services and resources needed
to support independence and successful aging

• City of Napa, Napa Valley Support Services
• City of Napa, St. Thomas Church
• City of St. Helena, Stonebridge Apartments
• City of Napa, Silverado Creek Apartments
• City of Napa, Redwood Park and Ride

NVTA also collaborated with management at many 
low-income housing sites. This section describes  
the public outreach strategy developed to solicit  
community input on transportation issues.

STEERING COMMITTEE 

NVTA formed a Steering Committee to guide the overall 
plan and, in particular, to provide input on outreach 
efforts. The Steering Committee was comprised of four 
representatives from agencies and community-based 
organizations that serve the Napa County community, 
and one at large citizen member. Participation in 
the Steering Committee afforded members with the 
opportunity to provide input on public outreach efforts, 
and direct input on transportation challenges faced 
by Napa County residents. To better understand COC 
resident transportation needs, the Steering Committee 
members also helped distribute the survey. The Steering 
Committee members are as follows:  

1. Tammy Manning - Napa Valley
Community Housing

2. Julie Spencer - Rianda House
3. Josefina Hurtado - Puertas Abiertas
4. Larry Kromann - Calistoga Affordable Housing
5. Robin Schabes - Citizen

These organizations volunteered to help with public 
outreach, and many of the organizations helped  
distribute information about the plan (e.g., events/
survey) and encouraged participation in the events  
and presentations.

The Steering Committee met three times over the 
planning process and were essential in approving 
the outreach approach, creating the final project 
prioritization criteria and approving the final list of 
priority CBTP projects and programmatic categories. 

OUTREACH STRATEGY

The development of this plan included a collaborative 
planning process that engaged residents, community-
based organizations (CBOs) that provide services within 
these neighborhoods, elected officials representing the 
study area, and staff representing local Napa County 
jurisdictions and Napa Valley Transportation Authority. 

NVTA worked with communities to identify key 
stakeholders to allow for a focused and effective 
community outreach program. Community participation 
is crucial for the ultimate success of the Community-
Based Transportation Plan.

124



56 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Table 41: Direct COC Resident Feedback 

Location Date

“Napa- Silverado Creek Apartments

• Bus stop is too far

• Crossing larger intersections is difficult, would like 
more lighting, more crosswalks

• Speeding around school, traffic calming/
enforcement needed

• Sidewalk improvements for Vintage and 
Bel Aire schools

• Project for bike zone from Redwood to 
Villa Lane (class 4)

• Traffic light or stop sign at Trancas and Valle Verde

• RRFB at Jefferson/ Rubicon

• Traffic light at Jefferson/Rubicon/ El Capitan

• Traffic light at Jefferson/ Rubicon

• Bus (public transportation) to Villa Lane

• Rehab sidewalk on Villa Lane

• RRFB at Trancas/ Valle Verde”

11/29/18;  
5-7 PM

Napa- Redwood Park and Ride

• Riders had very positive comments about the 
service and drivers

• Cyclists love the Vine Trail 

• Rider pointed out that real time signs were incorrect 
and sometimes non functional

• A senior rider would like to see bathroom facilities at 
the park and ride, as there is nowhere nearby to use 
the restroom and sometimes there are long wait and 
transfer times for our buses

11/30/18;  
2-4 PM

St. Helena-Stonebridge Apartments

• Transit services for residents of Silverado Orchard

• RRFBs for all School crossings (they mentioned a 
school where they were already installed and said 
they worked well)

• Complete sidewalk on Hunt Avenue to Montevista

• Transit services to Angwin.

• Improved street lighting on Pope, Hunt (and the 
street where the apartments are located)

11/27/18;  
5-7 PM

Napa-St. Thomas Church

• Lack of sidewalks connecting to Pueblo Vista 
elementary school

• From a truck driver: Educate cyclists on riding on 
the inside of the bike lane

• Add a stop sign at the intersection of Hemlock 
and Hoover

• Put up signs requesting people not to walk down 
middle of the street on Homewood Ave. 

• Drainage issues at Kilburn and Bryant from rainwater 
from Westwood Hills. 

• Add a bus line that goes directly from Laurel Street 
on the west side of SR-29 to Napa High School

11/18/18;  
1-3 PM

NVTA sought to create many options for community 
members to participate in the planning process  
and provide input on their transportation needs.  

These included: 

• Creation of a Steering Committee
• Attending regularly scheduled community

events where NVTA staff presented the plan
• Attending a community event where the plan

was presented and feedback sought
• Hosting presentations in partnership with

local stakeholders
• Responding to the CBTP Survey

OUTREACH RESULTS

COC Resident Direct Feedback

NVTA staff hosted fifteen events throughout Napa 
County to solicit feedback for the plan, with a minimum 
of one meeting in each Community of Concern (COCs). 
NVTA also created on online survey for residents to 
complete, resulting in nearly two-hundred responses. 

NVTA staff received comments on a variety of 
mobility topics. 

Key issues included:

• Community lack of information/knowledge on
transit services and mobility programs

• Need for physical and operational improvements
to bus stops and routes

• Safer routes for pedestrians, particularly seniors
• Additional, affordable resources for seniors and

disabled persons

Table 41 is a summary of comments, sorted by event 
and community. 

125



57 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Location Date

St. Helena - Rianda House

• Most residents rely on Kaiser Napa and felt the 
existing transit options were adequate for their 
medical and grocery trips

• Appreciative of the service on St. Helena shuttle, 
spoke highly of the drivers

• Discussion about St. Helena/Lyft pilot shuttle program. 
All rides are coordinated through Molly’s Angels. 
One issue is lack of wheelchair access on Lyft vehicles

• Issue with Molly’s Angels only taking 
ambulatory passengers

• Driver reimbursement under MRP for Molly’s 
Angels drivers-Drivers are prohibited from receiving 
reimbursement-Consider updating MRP form for 
volunteer drivers to indicate they are with Molly’s 
Angels.

• Request from Angwin resident to have a 
“one-day-a-week” shuttle down to St. Helena

• Many were supportive of pedestrian 
infrastructure improvements

• When asked how they receive information-many 
still rely on the St. Helena Star newspaper. 

• Several of the senior housing developments have 
their own monthly newsletters for residents and 
requested information on transportation be included. 
Also requested information be made available at the 
offices of senior housing complexes, Library, Safeway, 
coffee shop etc.

10/26/18; 
11-12 PM

Napa Valley College

• Students who rode the bus to NVC were generally 
appreciative and spoke well of the service, one rider 
who used the local routes stated later run times would 
be better, as to allow for greater flexibility

• Most students drove and would only consider transit 
for emergency purposes

• One group of students sometimes walk from the Imola 
/Shurtleff area neighborhood to campus and remarked 
on how “scary” it is to walk along that corridor

• Would like to see later hours of local routes, so that 
students can use transit for other errands on the 
way home

10/24/18;  
11 AM-1 PM

American Canyon - Senior Center

• Residents we spoke to did not use/need our fixed 
route or Vine Go services

• There was some complaints about wait times for the 
community shuttle

• Some projects listed in the 2014 Countywide 
Transportation Plan are obsolete, such as the 
Eucalyptus extension, and the Roundabout 

• The Napa Junction Rd. intersection has 
been completed

• S. Napa Junction Rd. should be replaced with Rio Del 
Mar connector to Newell-Modified to Rio Del Mar as 
E/W connector

• The City is considering locations for P&R lots along 
the corridor

10/10/18;  
2-4 PM

Location Date

Napa Valley Support Services

• Issue with clipper card reader functionality

• Difficult to board smaller buses with mobility devices

• Jefferson/Bel Aire stop and Lincoln/Jordan Lane stops 
should be prioritized for shelter and seating

• Shelters and benches are a necessity for 
disabled customers

• Would like see Routes 10 and 11 stop at Napa Valley 
College on weekends

• Bi-directional service availability on transit routes 
is needed, resident informed that COA addresses 
this concern

• Longer service hours into the evening

• A stop at the Napa Bowl is needed, currently 
inaccessible due to construction on Soscol, but not 
removed

• Most people can’t walk or move more than a couple 
of blocks, so they need stops closer together

• People want to be able to use TaxiScrip with Uber 
and Lyft, current taxi companies are unreliable

• Imperial Way and Jordan needs a stop and bus 
shelter/seating

• Drivers have not provided service to some riders in 
wheelchairs or driven past riders in wheelchairs 

• The stop along Lincoln/Jordan Lane has a slope 
making wheelchair access difficult.

• The limit on three books per month are not enough 
for Taxi Scrip

• Real-time signage need to be more reliable and 
work consistently

• Fares are too costly

• Transdev drivers place ramps down on streets less 
than a foot away from curb, so there is no way for 
a wheelchair to board like that

• Would like more curb space painted red, so there 
is better access for ADA riders to board the bus

11/2/18; 
12:30-1:45 
PM

126



58 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Location Date

Napa - Queen of the Valley

• Received feedback that local routes don’t run 
frequently enough for clients

• Local routes also do not run late enough 

• Our fares are too high for some clients

10/1/18; 
1:30-3:30 PM

Napa - Senior Center

• Found the younger riders on fixed route to be rowdy, 
made using transit less desirable

• People expressed appreciation for the 
TaxiScrip program

• Most attendees drive themselves, it’s possible 
that those without easy access are not utilizing the 
Senior Center as much

9/27/18;  
12-2 PM

Yountville - Veteran’s Home

• Residents of the Vet’s Home have their transportation 
needs met almost exclusively by the transportation 
provided by the Home, including medical transport to 
San Francisco

• Some residents do use the Vine Trail and Routes 10 
and 29 and appreciate that those services are available

• They love the Community Trolley and really 
appreciate having access to the town for dining 
and entertainment

9/26/18;  
1-3 PM

Napa - Storehouse/Food Bank

• Many of these clients drove to the pickup, as transit 
would not allow them to transport that many bags 
of groceries

• Attendees were glad to know that Vine offered 
connections to the BART, the Ferry, and Solano County

9/20/18;  
11-2 PM

Napa - Free Market at Health and Human Services

• Most attendees drove themselves that may be 
a reflection of limited access, as only Route 11 
serves the location. Also may be difficult to transport 
groceries to/from the bus stop

Calistoga – Springs Mobile Home Park

• Residents discussed issues they have with accessing 
medical care, specifically St. Helena Hospital and 
Kaiser in Santa Rosa

• They asked that we evaluate the potential to revive 
the previous Route that connected to Santa Rosa

• Some residents have to travel long distances for 
medical care out of the County, staff let them know 
about the Mileage Reimbursement program and 
how to apply

• Residents expressed their view that the Calistoga 
shuttle seemed geared towards tourists and the long 
wait times made it less than ideal for residents

• Residents had complaints about lack of handicap 
parking at Cal-Mart, we connected them with city 
staff personnel to address the issue

• Residents would also appreciate if drivers could let 
them off closer to their destination, rather than only 
at designated stops, staff explained that for safety 
reasons, we don’t let drivers stop just anywhere

9/13/18;  
5-7 PM

127



59 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Figure 29: Survey results of Napa Countywide 
Commute Modes

Tab: graph3
Survey results of Napa Countywide Commute Modes

Public Transit = 15
Carpool = 8Bike  = 1

N/A = 13

Walk = 1

Drive Alone
103

Other
94

Based on the results, almost eighty percent of survey  
respondents travel prmarily in single occupancy  
vehicles (SOV). Nearly 20% of the survey respondents 
use a communal form of travel either by transit or car/
vanpool (ride share). Finally, only 2% of respondents 
used an active form of transportation such as walking 
or riding a bicycle. Immediately, when residents are not 
commuting to work, they used cars (SOV) more  
frequently but there was also an increase in walking as  
a non-commute form mode of travel. 

The high percentage of SOV travel to work increases by 
5% when measuring non-work trips. Eighty-five percent 
of survey respondents reported they are using a single 
occupancy vehicle when they are traveling for non-
work trips. Although the SOV travel percentage 
increased during leisure travel, so did walking, 
suggesting that when survey respondents make non-
work trips they are 2 percentage points more likely to 
walk. This information is of particular interest because 
of the inferences made by the 2019 Travel Behavior 
Study indicating trips  under 5 miles have a high 
opportunity to mode shift. Thus, strategic investments 
in pedestrian-supportive infrastructure projects and 
programs are likely to facilitate a mode shift from 
driving to walking.

SURVEY RESULTS

A survey was used to elicit Napa County residents’ 
feedback on transportation issues and needs. The 
Survey was posted online through SurveyMonkey.com 
and was made available in both English and Spanish 
at outreach events. The survey focused on topics of 
particular interest to disadvantaged communities and 
while most individuals responded to the on-line version, 
the survey was also distributed widely to workers in the 
hospitality industry in partnership with Visit Napa Valley 
as well as being handed out at other meetings. 

The survey received 207 online responses (169 from 
English version, 38 from Spanish version). Nearly 70 
percent of survey respondents are over the age of 65 
years old. Thus, these respondent’s answers may skew 
the survey results towards Calistoga seniors and may 
not reflect the concerns and opinions of residents in all 
Napa County COCs. Thus, while the number of surveys 
returned is not statistically significant in relation to 
the entire population of Napa Valley COCs, the data 
provides very specific comments on transportation 
needs of targeted communities, particularly for  
seniors living up valley.

36 percent of respondents cited that their household 
income was less than $25,000/year and 51% were 
either retired or  not currently working. The most 
common modes of travel are solo driving, 34% of the 
respondents said the bus does not go where they need 
it to go, and 23%  said it did not fit their schedule. The 
survey was successful in reaching low-income senior 
residents. 
See Appendix A for a full summary of results and a 
list of survey questions.

From the survey responses, some important 
indings are:

• 235 survey responses
• 52% of the surveys were completed by

residents in Calistoga
• Most of the survey respondents are seniors

aged sixty-five or older (69 percent)
• One out of every three respondents make

less than $25,000
• Two out of every three respondents do not

use any of the existing Vine routes
• 34% of those said the Vine bus does not go

where they need it to go
• 23% said the Vine bus service does not fit

their schedule
• 50% of the respondents are either retired

or not currently working

128



60 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Figure 31: Comment Cluster Frequency Chart 

Tab: graph5

no transit access
long wait times transit

limited transit access

increase transit stops

increase transit operations

increase transit frequency

increase traffic calming
increase pedestrian safety

increase ADA access
improve transit operations

improve transit facilities
improve active transportation

environmental drainage issues
enforcement

decrease transit cost
concern on transportation projects

concern on transit programs

concern on transit operations

broaden transit program
appreciate

add traffic control

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 

High Level Comment Themes 

FREQUENCY OF RESPONDENTS 

The next most important issue cited, nearly 20% of 
comments, voiced pedestrian-related concerns such as 
increasing pedestrian safety and improving pedestrian 
access to schools and transit stops. Next, 17% of the 
comments cite transit gaps. Transit gaps include one 
of the three categories: decrease the cost of transit, 
increase evening service, or improve/increase transit 
amenities like shelters and benches. Figure 33 shows a 
pie chart capturing broad category comment frequency 
received during outreach.

Figure 30: Survey results of Napa Countywide 
Noncommute Modes 

Tab: graph4
Survey results of Napa Countywide Noncommute Modes

N/A = 4

Ridehail = 2      
(Uber/Lyft)

Bicycle = 1
Walk = 7

Drive Alone
167

Public Transit
23

Other
31

The online survey results show that Routes 10, 11, and 
29 have the highest frequencies. 

Survey Respondent Demographics

The majority of survey respondents are from Calistoga 
and are over the age of 65 years old, self-identified as 
low-income and white (not-Hispanic). 

Comment Cluster Analysis Results

Of the eighty-four comments, 22 percent indicated 
that they would benefit from increased transportation 
options to healthcare/increased mobility options for 
low-income, disabled seniors. 

129



61 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Figure 33: Frequency of Outreach 
Comment Clusters 

Tab: graph7
Frequency of Outreach Comment Clusters

Decrease Transit 
Cost = 2

Trans Options to
Health = 4

           Ped Access to
Schools and

Transit = 5 Mobile Options 
for COCs

15

Pedestrian
Safety
12

Increase
ADA
9

Transit
Extras

7

Transit
Evening Freq

6

Public Feedback Summary

Comments from community members regarding 
transportation issues that particularly affected  
communities of concern in Napa County fell  
generally into the following four categories:

1. Pedestrians

2. Mobility Options

3. Transit

4. ADA

Many of the comments received by NVTA staff were 
through outreach meetings, events or open houses  
or captured online through a Survey Monkey tool.  
The majority of comments centered on increasing  
mobility options for seniors with disabilities. Many of 
the most vulnerable residents living in US Census  
tracts determined to be Communities of Concern in 
Napa County are low-income minorities and low-income 
disabled seniors. A main transportation gap faced  
by many COC residents are the (1) pedestrian system 
and (2) mobility improvements for seniors with 
disabilities using transit.

Figure 32: Comment Cluster 

Major Themes

Tab: graph6

Transit 
ADA
7

Transit 
Operations

35
Traffic Calm

23

Transit
Capital

10

Comment Cluster Major Themes

The three most common themes found from an 
outreach comment cluster analysis included:

1. Increasing mobility options for COC residents
a. Residents expressed their view that the

Calistoga shuttle seemed geared towards
tourists and the long wait times made it
less than ideal for residents

b. Request from Angwin resident to have a
“one- day-a-week” shuttle down to St. Helena

c. Add a bus line that goes directly from
Laurel Street on the west side of SR-29
to Napa High School

2. Pedestrian safety
a. Complete sidewalk on Hunt Avenue

to Monte Vista
b. Rehab sidewalk on Villa Lane
c. Crossing larger intersections is difficult,

would like more lighting, more crosswalks
d. Enforcement of speeding needed
e. High visibility crosswalk and/or RRFB at

Jefferson St. at Eggleston St. and B St.
3. Increase Americans with Disabilities

Act compliance
a. More curb space painted red, so there is

better access for ADA riders to board the bus
b. Shelters and benches are a necessity for

disabled customers
c. The stop along Lincoln/Jordan Lane wheelchair

access difficult

130



62 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Before addressing the transportation gaps in these 
COCs, NVTA staff needed to:

• Account for the socio-demographics of
residents and households

• Inventory the existing transportation
networks

• Include collisions, etc.
• Host, collect and classify outreach comments
• Collect jurisdictional-provided project lists

(which attempt to match major transportation
improvement themes with CBTP COC outreach
(hosted, collected, and classified)

• Inventory existing alternative transportation
plans, programs, and recommendations

• Match each COCs’ major theme needs with either
a (1) potential projects based on transportations
solution criteria or (2) related recommendations
in COCs in existing/adopted plans, programs

Over a four-year period, there were 316 bicycle or 
pedestrian related collisions that occurred in Napa 
County from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2018.  
Of those 316, 119 collisions (38% of collisions) occurred 
in a Community of Concern, but the population of those 
COCs only make-up 21% of the Napa county population. 
COCs are being disproportionality affected by pedestrian 
and bicycle collisions.

Method note: The total number of collisions in a COC 
was intersected by individual roadways, thus if collisions 
occurred at intersections, the collision is associated  
with both roadways for the sake of roadway 
prioritization. Thus it may seem as though some  
collisions are counted twice when associating them 
with roadways but by accounting for the total number 
of collisions in the COC and acknowledging the higher 
collision frequency intersection will make it a priority  
for improvements.

Needs Assessment

131



63 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

COC 1: SOUTH DOWNTOWN NAPA

Outreach included: (1) 44 surveys where participants 
whose zip codes correspond to living in the City of Napa, 
more specifically within the downtown central section 
of Napa, and the Napa County participants who didn’t 
provide a zip code and (2) two outreach events held 
at Napa Senior Center on Jefferson and at Napa Valley 
Supportive Services.

The outreach comments received:

1. Expand mobility options for low-income,
senior, and disabled residents by:
• Evaluate additional stops closer to senior

and healthcare facilities
• Re-evaluate TaxiScrip program current

effectiveness serving residents with a focus
on funds flexibility and no cap on books per
month based on ability or means

2. Increase local transit evening frequencies by:
• Evaluate adding stops at Napa Valley College

to routes 10, 11 on weekends
• Re-evaluate how longer service hours could

be implemented
3. Increase transit amenities by:

• Consider adding shelters at high frequency
destinations in Napa such as at the Jefferson/
Bel Aire stop serving the Bel Aire Plaza
(the largest trip generator in Napa County),
and the Lincoln/Jordan Lane stop serving
the local Wal-Mart

• Consider adding a stop at Imperial Way/Jordan
• Increase; maintain functionality of technology

in Vine transit system specifically to clipper
card reader and real-time signage accuracy

4. Decrease transit fares for low-income individuals
by evaluating feasibility of transit fares based on
financial means, disabilities and/or age (possibly
below AMI low-income seniors and youths)

5. Increase transit ADA access by:
• Adding red painted curbs, and shelters high

frequency transit boards to/from group homes,
senior housing and/or any other communal
housing for disadvantaged individuals and
healthcare and related facilities

• Increasing driver awareness of disabled
residents’ challenges boarding transit vehicles
including identifying disabled patrons at stops,
allowing ample space to board/alight, and
improve stops where disadvantaged riders
struggle to board/disembark

• Consider collecting count data of stop locations
that are challenging for boarding/alighting of
elderly and disabled riders

• Research best practices on effectively serving
disabled residents on smaller transit vehicles
with mobility devices

The City of Napa cites nine projects that meet one or 
more of the eight CBTP identified needs. All projects  
focus on pedestrian or bicycle safety while four of the 
nine projects also improve pedestrian access to schools 
and expand mobility options to low-income, senior, and 
disabled residents. The only project within the South 
Downtown Napa COC is project #16: Franklin St./2nd  
St. Enhanced Pedestrian Crossing.

An outreach event occurred at Napa Valley Supportive 
Services on November 2, 2018. Staff collected  
eighteen comments and the majority of those  
comments were transit operational improvements  
or ADA accessibility suggestions. 

The resulting major themes of the CBTP Survey are 
as follows: increasing pedestrian safety, increasing  
ADA accessibility, and increasing transit frequency. 

In South Downtown Napa COC, riders put more  
emphasis on expanding transit mobility. The majority 
of these residents ride the routes 10 and 11.

Based on the CBTP Project List, Project #16 will enable 
COC residents to safely cross Franklin and 2nd St.  
The project team may consider high visibility crosswalks 
as a part of their RRFP pedestrian installations.

The two intersections with the highest number of 
collisions are both located along Main St. at 1st St. and 
at 3rd St. Both intersections experienced 3 collisions, 
83% being pedestrian-related. 

Priority Need/Opportunity

High visibility crosswalks and transit driver 
awareness of disabled boarding/alighting  
struggles by location.

132



64 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Priority Need/Opportunity

Expanded mobility needs - potential for 
V-Commute outreach given the high number of
residents currently carpooling.

COC 2: WESTWOOD 
NEIGHBORHOOD

Outreach included: (1) 53 survey results where 
participants live in the City of Napa and more 
specifically zip codes within the southwestern of  
the City of Napa, and the Napa County participants  
“who did not provide a zip code, and (2) an outreach 
event held at the St. Thomas Aquinas Church. 

The outreach comments showed:

1. Improve pedestrian safety by promoting the
use of sidewalks, crosswalks, and signage

2. Improve pedestrian access to schools and transit
by connecting sidewalk gaps around Pueblo
Vista elementary school

3. Expand mobility options for low-income,
senior, and disabled residents by adding a bus
route that goes directly from Laurel Street on the
west side of SR-29 to Napa High School

The City of Napa cites nine projects that meet one or 
more of the eight CBTP identified needs. All projects 
focus on pedestrian or bicycle safety while four of  
the nine projects also improve pedestrian access to 
schools and expand mobility options to low-income, 
senior, and disabled residents. The only project  
within the Westwood Neighborhood COC is project  
#15: Laurel St Rehabilitation. The project constructs 
sidewalk extensions along Laurel St from First St.  
to Freeway Drive.

An outreach event occurred at St. Thomas Aquinas 
Church on November 18, 2018. Staff collected six  
comments and the majority of comments (80%) 
were related to traffic calming and sidewalks around 
neighborhood schools. 

The resulting major themes of the CBTP survey are 
as follows: increasing pedestrian safety, increasing  
ADA accessibility, and increasing transit frequency.

Based on the CBTP Project List, Project #15 will 
increase pedestrian connectivity and safety on Laurel 
Street within the COC.  This project would construct 
approximately 1 mile of missing sidewalk, which is  
25% of the total missing sidewalk length (4 miles) in  
the COC study area.

The intersection with the highest number of  
collisions is located on 1st St. at Freeway Dr. Three 
collisions occurred there between 2015 and 2018,  
two involved bicyclists.

133



65 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

COC 3: EAST IMOLA

Outreach included: (1) 20 survey participants who live 
in the City of Napa, more specifically zip codes within 
the southwestern part of the City of Napa, and the Napa 
County participants who did not provide a  
zip code and (2) an outreach event held at Napa  
Valley College.  

The outreach comments showed:

1. Improve pedestrian access to schools and transit
stops by calming traffic along the Imola corridor
and connecting gaps in the sidewalks

2. Increase local transit evening frequencies by
re-evaluating how to implement longer service
hours or explore non-traditional mobility options
for NVC students to get to/from classes

The City of Napa cites nine projects that meet one or 
more of the eight CBTP identified needs. All projects  
focus on pedestrian or bicycle safety while four of  
the nine projects also improve pedestrian access to 
schools and expand mobility options to low-income, 
senior, and disabled residents. Currently, there are no 
jurisdiction-submitted CBTP applicable projects within 
the East Imola COC.

An outreach event occurred at Napa Valley College  
on October 24, 2018. Staff collected five comments 
and the 75% of the comments are transit operational 
improvement suggestions. Increase access to NVC in  
the evening on weekends via route 10 and 11.

The resulting major themes of the CBTP survey are  
as follows: increasing pedestrian safety, increasing ADA 
accessibility, and increasing transit frequency. In terms 
of the East Imola COC, the majority commute to work by 
driving alone in a car but 80% of those same individuals 
when ‘not traveling to work’/non-commute modes are 
on transit. 

The intersection with the most collisions is at Imola Ave.  
and Gasser Dr. with four collisions, 75% of which  
involved bicyclists. In addition, the roadway segment 
with the most collisions is on Imola Ave, from Parrish Rd  
to Coronado Ave; three collisions occurred and all  
three involved pedestrians. 

Priority Need/Opportunity

Traffic calming and connecting sidewalk gaps.

The Imola Corridor Complete Streets Plan will 
identify priority improvements.

134



66 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Two outreach events occurred in St. Helena, one at  
the Rianda House on October 26, 2018 and one at the 
Stonebridge Apartments on November 27, 2018.  Staff 
collected sixteen unique comments and 75% of 
Stonebridge residents spoke to traffic calming and 
pedestrian safety. Rianda House residents are more 
concerned about transit operations in St. Helena and 
connecting St. Helena to surrounding communities 
like Angwin. 

The resulting major themes of the CBTP survey are as 
follows: increasing pedestrian safety, increasing  ADA 

accessibility, and increasing transit frequency. 

In terms of the South St. Helena COC, 70% of the  
ten survey respondents living in St Helena use the  St. 
Helena Shuttle and 70% of the same respondents are 
seniors (this is 65 years and older).

Based on the CBTP project list, Project #5 and #6  
will enable COC residents to traverse major corridors  
safely as a pedestrian. In addition to aforementioned  
projects, potentially including Starr Ave. because of  
the multi-family residences located along the 
roadway.

The intersection with the most collisions is at Main St. 
(SR-128/SR-29) and Pope Ave in St. Helena. 

Priority Need/Opportunity 

Transit access for seniors and pedestrian access 
and mobility.

COC 4: SOUTH ST. HELENA

Outreach included: (1) 25 survey participants who live in 
zip codes within the St Helena city limits,  
and the Napa County participants who did not provide  
a zip code and (2) two outreach events held at the 
Stonebridge Apartments and St. Helena Rianda House. 

The outreach comments showed:

1. Improve pedestrian safety by completing the
sidewalk on Hunt Avenue to Monte Vista Ave
and by improving the street lighting on Pope St.,
Hunt Ave., and Starr Ave.

2. Improve pedestrian access to schools and transit
by considering the implementation of bright
yellow, high visibility crosswalks and Rectangular
Rapid Flash Beacons (RRFBs) at
all School roadway intersections/crosswalks

3. Expand mobility options for low-income, senior,
and disabled residents by:
• Evaluate a potential pilot shuttle partnership

between St. Helena and TNC operator: Lyft.
Alternatively, St. Helena/Lyft pilot shuttle
program coordinated through Molly’s Angels

• Research best practices on enabling increased
ADA access on Lyft vehicles

• Evaluating expansion of Molly’s Angels
program beyond only ambulatory passengers

• Re-evaluating Mileage Reimbursement
Program (MRP) benefits for Molly’s
Angels drivers

• Evaluating transit services for residents of
Silverado Orchard

• Evaluating transit services to Angwin to
St. Helena

The City of St. Helena cites two projects that meet  
one or more of the eight CBTP identified needs.  
Both projects focus on pedestrian safety and expansion 
of mobility options for low-income, senior, and  
disabled residents. There is one project within the 
boundaries of the South St. Helena COC: Project #7: 
Pope Ave Sidewalks/Pedestrian Lighting Improvements. 

The Mileage Reimbursement Program is no longer  
funded by the State of California and NVTA does not 
have resources to fund it, therefore, the program  
will end until additional funding is identified.

135



67 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

The City of Napa cites nine projects that meet one or 
more of the eight CBTP identified needs. All projects 
focus on pedestrian or bicycle safety while four of the 
nine projects also improve pedestrian access to schools 
and expand mobility options to low-income, senior, and 
disabled residents. Currently, there are four jurisdiction-
submitted CBTP applicable projects within the Northeast 
Napa COC. Three of the four projects are pedestrian 
safety and the fourth is a bike facility along Trancas Ave.

Two outreach events were held at the Napa Silverado 
Creek Apartments on November 29, 2018 and at the 
Queen of the Valley Medical Center on October 1, 2018. 
Staff collected sixteen unique comments and 85% of 
the Silverado Creek Apartment residents cited traffic 
calming via pedestrian safety and speed enforcement 
while Queen of the Valley patrons only spoke to transit 
operational issues like cost and frequency. 

The resulting major themes of the CBTP survey are 
as follows: increasing pedestrian safety, increasing  
ADA accessibility, and increasing transit frequency. 

Based on the CBTP project list, Projects #1, #2, #3,  
and #4 will increase pedestrian and bicycle connectivity 
and safety throughout the COC on multiple corridors. 

The intersection with the highest collisions is Trancas 
St. and Villa Ln. with four collisions, 75% involving a 
pedestrian.  

Priority Need/Opportunity 

Traffic calming and pedestrian accessibility and 
mobility especially to school sites.

COC 5: NORTHEAST NAPA

Outreach included: (1) 46 survey participants (a) who 
live in the City of Napa, (b) more specifically zip codes 
within the northeastern section of the City of Napa, and 
(c) the Napa County participants who did
not provide a zip code, and (2) two outreach events held
at the Napa Silverado Creek Apartments and the Napa
Queen of the Valley Hospital.

The outreach comments showed:

1. Improve pedestrian safety by:

• Evaluating additional lighting, crosswalks at
larger/busy roadway intersections

• Enforcing speed limits; signage, speed bumps

• Considering the implementation of high
visibility crosswalks and Rectangular Rapid
Flash Beacons (RRFBs) at Jefferson/Rubicon
roadway intersection

• Evaluating potential rehabilitation of sidewalk
on Villa Lane

• Considering the implementation of high
visibility crosswalks and Rectangular Rapid
Flash Beacons (RRFBs) at Trancas/Valle Verde
roadway intersection

2. Improve pedestrian access to schools and
transit by calming traffic and connecting gaps
in the sidewalks. In addition, consider the
implementation of high visibility crosswalks and
Rectangular Rapid Flash Beacons (RRFBs) near
and/or surrounding Vintage and Bel Aire schools

3. Expand mobility options for low-income, senior,
and disabled residents by evaluating the potential
for a 0.85 mile Class IV bike facility along Trancas
from Redwood to Villa Lane

4. Increase local transit evening frequencies
by re-evaluating how to implement longer
service hours

5. Decrease transit fares for low-income individuals
by evaluating feasibility of transit fares based on
financial means, disabilities and/or age (possibly
below AMI low-income seniors and youths)

6. Increase transit ADA access by evaluating
adding a bus stop closer to the Silverado
Creek Apartments

136



68 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Priority Need/Opportunity

Increase pedestrian accessibility and safety 
especially to school sites.

COC 6: NORTHWEST NAPA 

Outreach included: (1) 61 survey participants (a) who 
live in the City of Napa, (b) more specifically zip codes 
within the northwestern part of the City of Napa, and 
(c) the Napa County participants who did not provide a
zip code, and (2) an one outreach event was held at the
Redwood Park and Ride.

The outreach comments showed:

1. Increase transit amenities by increasing/
maintaining functionality of technology in
Vine transit system specifically to real-time
signage accuracy

2. The City of Napa cites nine projects that meet
one or more of the eight CBTP identified needs.
All projects focus on pedestrian or bicycle safety
while four of the nine projects also improve
pedestrian access to schools and expand mobility
options to low-income, senior, and disabled
residents. Currently, there are three jurisdiction-
submitted CBTP applicable projects within the
Northwest Napa COC (Linda Vista neighborhood).
Two of the three projects are along Trower Ave
and the third is on Linda Vista Ave.

3. An outreach event occurred at the Redwood Park
and Ride on November 30, 2018. Staff collected
four unique comments; two comments were
appreciative of transit and active transportation
network connectivity but a resident commented
on inaccurate real-time signage

4. The resulting major themes of the CBTP survey
are as follows: increasing pedestrian safety,
increasing ADA accessibility, and increasing
transit frequency. Eighty-eight percentage
of the survey respondents earn less $45k/
year, Vine route 10 and 11 experience the
highest frequency, and five of the nine survey
respondents cite driving alone as their main work
commute mode

5. Based on the CBTP project list, Projects #14:
Trower Ave. Rehabilitation project will increase
pedestrian connectivity and safety at the
intersection of Trower Avenue and Young
Avenue within the COC

6. The intersection with the highest number of
collisions is Redwood Rd. and Solano Ave.
with seven collisions, the majority (57%) being
pedestrian-related

137



69 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Priority Need/Opportunity

Alternative transportation options for seniors.

COC 7: 
UNINCORPORATED YOUNTVILLE 

Outreach included: (1) 25 survey participants whose (a) 
zip code is in Napa County, (b) zip code is in the Town of 
Yountville, and (c) the Napa County participants who did 
not provide a zip code, and (2) an outreach event held 
at the Yountville Veterans Home as well as outreach at 
the Redwood Park and Ride was conducted to reach 
residents of this COC. 

Expand mobility options for low-income, senior,  
and disabled residents by promoting alternative 
transportations like bicycling and walking. 

One outreach event occurred at the Yountville Veteran’s 
home on September 26, 2018. Staff collected only 
three unique comments, where residents expressed 
appreciation for Vine and Trolley transit services. In 
addition, residents of this COC were also engaged during 
outreach at the Redwood Park & Ride since this COCs 
geographic area spans all the way to the Napa city limit 
close to this location. 

As mentioned in previous COC profiles, the resulting  
major themes for the CBTP survey are as follows:  
increasing pedestrian safety, increasing ADA  
accessibility, and increasing transit frequency.  
This information is helpful in supplementing the low 
rates of outreach touches in the unincorporated area 
around Yountville. Although, there are not currently 
projects submitted to alleviate the transportation  
gaps experienced in this particular COC, similar steps 
should be taken like in peer Napa County COCs when 
developing a connected alternative transportation 
network focused on serving disadvantaged 
communities.

The two intersections with the highest number of 
collisions are (1) Oak Knoll Ave. and Solano, and (2) 
Wine Country Ave. and Solano Ave., both with two 
pedestrian collisions, respectively.

138



70 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

The roadway segment with the most collisions in the 
COC is Lincoln Ave. from Foothill Blvd. to Grant St.  
Five collisions occurred over the four-year period and 
60% involved a bicyclist. 

Priority Need/Opportunity

Improved mobility for seniors and disabled.

COC 8: CITY OF CALISTOGA 

Outreach included: (1) 146 survey participants whose 
(a) zip code is in Napa County, (b) zip code is in the City
of Calistoga, and (b) the Napa County participants who
did not t provide a zip code, and (2) an outreach event
held at the Calistoga Spring Mobile Home Park.

1. Improve transportation options to access
healthcare by re-evaluating the Vine route
connecting Calistoga to Santa Rosa or consider
implementing non-traditional mobility solutions

2. Expand mobility options for low-income, senior,
and disabled residents by evaluating a needs-
based pilot program prioritizing residents need to
medical facilities before tourists/non-residents
travel patterns

3. Increase transit ADA access by:
• Consider adding red painted curbs, and

shelters,  high frequency transit  to/from group
homes, senior housing and/or any other
communal housing for disadvantaged
individuals and healthcare and related facilities

• Increase driver awareness of disabled
residents’ challenges boarding transit vehicles
including seeing disabled patrons at stops,
allowing able space to board/alight, and
address stops where disadvantaged riders
struggle to board/alight

• Consider collecting count data of where
disadvantaged residents cite transportation
struggles

• Research best practices on effectively serving
disabled residents on smaller transit vehicles
with mobility devices

Currently, there are zero jurisdiction-submitted CBTP 
applicable projects within the Calistoga COC although 
many projects citied in the previous Countywide  
Transportation Plan include road rehabilitations  
essentially building-out missing sections/gaps in the 
pedestrian network.

One outreach event occurred at the Calistoga Springs 
Mobile Home Park on September 13, 2018. NVTA staff 
collected six individual resident comments ranging  
in topics from medical transportation to/from Kaiser 
Permanente Medical Center in Santa Rosa and/or 
Adventist Health in St. Helena. Eighty-three percent 
of comments centered on transportation to a medical 
appointment for persons with disabilities.

139



71 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

TRANSPORTATION 
SOLUTIONS 

Based on the community engagement effort, a set of 
programmatic themes emerged highlighting the types 
of transportation needs desired by the community. 
These themes help to define the types of priorities 
the community views as important. The creation 
of the themes is helpful given the CBTP outreach 
reached communities across the county. Table 41 
shows the program themes that emerged from the 
engagement process, along with a brief description of 
the program and examples that would fit with program 
themes. While many CBTP comments were focused 
on access to transit, participants raised other issues 
of importance around the safety and effectiveness of 
the transportation network as a whole. Improving the 
transportation network in context of members residing 
in the COC will also improve access to transit, and 
access to lifeline destinations. Because there are specific 
barriers to providing transit in a rural county like Napa, 
it is not practical or efficient to deploy bus service to  
all destinations and therefore projects that supplement 
transit, such as bicycle and pedestrian improvements, 
private and/or publicly funded shuttles, paratransit 
services, taxis, and shared passenger vehicles should  
be explored. 

PROPOSAL EVALUATION BASED 
ON NEEDS ASSESSMENT

The Transportation Project Solutions criteria was  
created to evaluate proposals to verify they addressed 
the identified community need discovered during the 
outreach process, and if they should be included in  
the final CBTP plan. The evaluation of transportation 
proposals compared projects using five criterions.  
More details about each criterion are below.

1. Project Lead: Existence of a “program
champion,” an agency (or agencies) that take
a leadership role in securing funding, staffing
and other resources devoted to the proposed
service or project

2. Community Identified: Confirmation that
the proposal addresses transportation needs
identified through public outreach. Ultimately,
all proposed projects address transportation
needs identified by a community

3. Implementation: Based on anticipated barriers
to implementation (such as funding, resource
allocation, and project development), project
proposals were categorized by implementation
timeframes and prioritized as follows:
• Near-Term

(to be implemented within 1-2 years)
• Mid-Term

(to be implemented in 3-5 years)
• Long-Term

(to be implemented beyond 5 years)
4. Cost/Funding: When funding might be available

to plan, construct, and maintain the proposed
projects and services. Availability of on-going
funding/sources, especially for transit service
operations, must also be considered when
evaluating the sustainability of a proposal.
Although the group did consider the possible
costs to develop and implement each proposal,
proposals were not ranked based on their costs

5. Benefit: Assess each project proposal for
potentially addressing Lifeline Transportation
barriers:
• Safety
• System Performance (in addition to helping the

community, does the project improve system
performance?)

• Emission reduction
• Improved mobility
• Improved Health

140



72 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Table 42: CBTP Recommended Programmatic Themes

Program Theme Program Description Project Examples

Improve pedestrian safety Improve pedestrian conditions to reduce 
traffic collisions and increase safety

1. High visibility Pedestrian crosswalks

2. Pedestrian crossing warning signage

3. RRFB - Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons 

Improve pedestrian access to schools 
and transit

Improve, maintain, and repair pedestrian 
facilities around schools and transit stops to 
enable and encourage pedestrian mobility/
walkability/active forms of transportation

1. Repair sidewalks around schools/transit stops

2. Complete sidewalk paths and missing links bridging network gaps 
around schools/transit stops

3. High visibility Pedestrian crosswalks around schools/transit stops

4. Pedestrian crossing warning signage around schools/transit stops

5. RRFB - Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons around schools/transit stops

6. New sidewalks around schools/transit stops

Improve transportation options to  
healthcare

Increase and promote transportation 
options to and around healthcare facilities 

1. New bus routes, connections, extended service hours

2. Bus stop amenities

3. Educational/outreach activities

Expand mobility options for low-
income-, senior-, and disabled- 
residents

Introduce enhancements that improve 
service for residents of Communities of 
Concern (COCs)

1. New bus routes, connections, extended service hours

2. Bus stop amenities

3. Educational/outreach activities

Increase local transit evening  
frequencies

Increase local transit frequencies into  
the evening hours serving higher frequency 
job centers

Extend transit service hours

Increase transit amenities Increase while maintaining transit-related 
amenities like benches, shelters, restrooms, 
pedestrian and bicycle facilities to enable 
and encourage a significant Napa County 
transit mode shift

New bus stop benches, shelters

Decrease transit fares for low-income 
individuals

Adapt policies and programs to lessen  
the financial burden of transit costs on low-
income persons

1. Expand free transit program from 85+ persons to 65+

2. Expand mobility programs like TaxiScrip

Increase transit ADA access Increase transit service enhancements that 
improve service for persons with disabilities

1. New ADA curb ramps

2. New ADA transit amenities

3. High visibility Pedestrian crosswalks

4. RRFB - Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon 

141



73 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

While NVTA received location specific comments about 
improvements needed from community members, 
many comments were generally characterized as 
mobility challenges that need to be addressed on a 
broader scale. NVTA categorized these comments 
into programs in order to facilitate longer-term action 
plans. The community engagement process for this 
CBTP yielded a number of transportation solutions for 
further consideration as the CBTP and the Countywide 
Transportation Plan (CTP) are developed. Table 43 
highlights some of the transportation solutions that 
emerged during the community engagement and how 
they relate to identified programs and projects within 
the CTP.

NVTA community outreach resulted in 11 specific 
projects that were vetted by staff and the CBTP steering 
committee plus 5 additional applicable projects.  
The projects were evaluated and ranked based on the 
following criteria: 

1. Project Lead
Existence of a “program champion,” an agency  
(or agencies) that takes a leadership role in securing 
funding, staffing and other resources devoted to  
the proposed service or project  

2. Community Identified
Does the proposal address transportation needs 
identified through public outreach? Ultimately,  
all proposed projects addressed transportation 
needs identified by the community 

3. Implementation
Based on anticipated barriers to implementation  
(such as funding, resource allocation, and project 
development), the group placed proposals in  
implementation timeframes: 

• Near-Term
(to be implemented within 2 years)

• Mid-Term
(to be implemented in 3 to 5 years)

• Long-Term
(to be implemented in 6 years or more)

4. Cost/Funding

When funding might be available to plan, construct,  
and maintain the proposed projects and services.  
Availability of on-going funding/sources, especially  
for transit service operations, must also be considered 
when evaluating the sustainability of a proposal.  
Although the group did consider the possible costs  
to develop and implement each proposal, proposals 
were not ranked based on their costs. 

5. Benefit:

Lastly, whether each proposal is easy for  
potential customers to use in addressing 
Lifeline Transportation barriers:

• Safety

• System Performance (in addition to helping
the community, does the project improve
system performance?)

• Emission reduction

• Improved mobility

• Improved Health Outcomes

142



74 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Table 43: Applicable CTP Projects 

Program Theme Potential CBTP Projects (from Community Engagement) Project Examples

Improve pedestrian 
safety

• High visibility crosswalks

• RRFB at mid-block crosswalks

• Add/repair sidewalks

• Project #61: Widening the sidewalk on Main Street from 
First Street to Third Street in Napa

• Program #1: Sidewalk improvement, expand the pedestrian 
network in American Canyon

• Program #10: Sidewalk improvement, expand the pedestrian 
network in Calistoga

Improve pedestrian 
access to schools 
and transit

• Prioritizing sidewalk infrastructure around schools and 
transit, as identified in the countywide transportation 
plan and pedestrian plan

• Program #8: Highway 29 Pedestrian Safety Overcrossings in 
American Canyon

• Project #23: Construct foot bridge over the Napa River at 
Pioneer Park in Calistoga

• Program #23: Sidewalk improvement, expand the pedestrian 
network in Napa County

Improve  
transportation  
options to  
healthcare

• Evaluating cost/benefit of either transit options, 
including a shuttle/vanpool

• TNC subsidies for Calistoga residents to access 
Kaiser Santa Rosa

Expand mobility 
options for low- 
income-, senior-, 
and disabled- 
residents

• Evaluate and expand transportation accessibility options 
for seniors and disabled such as mileage reimbursement 
program, shared vehicle, etc. 

• Conduct annual education programs for seniors and 
disabled

Increase local 
transit evening 
frequencies

• Evaluation of increased service hours in City of Napa 
(Healthcare, Education, Supportive Services)

• Project #89: Expand service hours from 4am-12am, 
add Sunday service in NVTA service area

• Project #92: Acquisition of new paratransit vehicles, 
community shuttle buses and VINE buses for service expansion

• Program #24: Acquisition of new paratransit vehicles, 
community shuttle buses and VINE buses for state of good repair. 
Shop truck w/ hoist & push bar for road calls, Support Vehicle 
for Supervisors.

Increase transit 
amenities

• Create a ridership-based priority list of high-use transit 
stops to then allocate funds adding amenities such as 
benches, shelters

Decrease transit 
fares for low- 
income individuals

• Evaluating implementation of means based fares for 
low-income individuals who are not seniors/youth riders

Increase transit  
ADA access

Evaluate transit ADA access effectiveness: 

• On smaller buses

• At high ADA boarding stops, 

• Typical driver routines/accommodations

Note: CTP projects identified in Vision 2040 - Moving Napa Forward

143



75 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Table 44: CBTP Projects & Rankings 

Project 
Number

Proposal Sponsor Estimated 
costs

Benefit Implementation  
Timeline

Status Project  
Rank

1 Bike facility on Trancas from 
Jefferson St. to Soscol Ave.

City of Napa $350,000 Safety; Reduced Emissions; Improved 
Mobility; Improved Health Outcomes

Long-term Identified 3

2 Enhanced pedestrian  
Crossing/RRFB on Trancas 
Street at Valle Verde Drive

City of Napa 75,000 Safety; Improved Mobility Medium-term Identified 8

3 Enhanced pedestrian  
crossing/RRFB at Jefferson 
Street and Rubicon Street

City of Napa 125,000 Safety; Improved Mobility Medium-term Identified 6

4 Enhanced pedestrian crossing 
at Jefferson Street and  
El Capitan Way

City of Napa 100,000 Safety; Improved Mobility;  
Improved school access

Medium-term Identified 7

5 Bus shelter/benches at  
high usage stops

NVTA 250,000 Safety; Reduced Emissions;  
Improved Mobility

Medium-term Identified 5

6 Hunt Ave Sidewalks/ 
Pedestrian improvements

City of St. 
Helena

TBD Safety; Improved Mobility short-term Underway 1

7 Pope Avenue Sidewalks/
Pedestrian and Lighting 
improvements

City of St. 
Helena

TBD Safety; Improved Mobility Medium-term Identified 2

8 Expanded evening hours  
on local transit

NVTA $200,000/
year

 Reduced Emissions; Improved Mobility Medium-term Identified 11

9 Expanded TaxiScrip and  
Commute Options

NVTA $25,000/year  Reduced Emissions; Improved Mobility Medium-term Identified 4

10 Transit service from  
St. Helena to Angwin and  
St. Helena Hospital

NVTA; P3 $80,000/year Safety; Reduced Emissions; Improved 
Mobility; Improved Health Outcomes

Long-term Identified 9

11 Transit service from  
Calistoga to Santa Rosa Kaiser

NVTA; P3 $195,000/
year

Safety; Reduced Emissions; Improved 
Mobility; Improved Health Outcomes

Long-term Identified 10

Short-term: 1-2 years 
Mid-term: 3-5 years 
Long-term: 6 or more years

Table 45: Project Ranking Criteria Breakdown Table

Project 
Number

Project 
Lead

Community 
Identified

Implementation 
Timeline

Cost/ 
Funding

Benefit Composite 
Score

Safety Reduced 
Emissions

Improved 
mobility

Improved 
Health 
Outcomes

Improved 
School 
Access

1 4

2 2

3 2

4 3

5 3

6 2

7 2

8 2

9 2

10 4

11 4

Yes  |  Short-term  |  $  |  4  
Maybe  |  Mid-term  |  $$  |  3 
No  | Long-term  |  $$$  |  0-2

144



76 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Table 46: Additional Jurisdictional-submitted CBTP Projects

Project 
Number

Proposal Sponsor Estimated 
costs

Benefit Implementation 
Timeline

Status

12 Trower Ave Widening City of Napa $850,000 Improve pedestrian safety; Improve 
pedestrian access to schools; Expand 
mobility options

short-term Underway

13 Linda Vista Ave Widening City of Napa $850,000 Improve pedestrian safety; Improve 
pedestrian access to schools; Expand 
mobility options

short-term Identified

14 Trower Ave Rehabilitation City of Napa $2,300,000 Improve pedestrian safety short-term Identified

15 Laurel St Rehabilitation City of Napa $3,150,000 Improve pedestrian safety; Improve 
pedestrian access to schools; Expand 
mobility options

short-term Identified

16 Franklin St/2nd St Enhanced 
Pedestrian Crossing

City of Napa $30,000 Improve pedestrian safety short-term Underway

      

In the future, NVTA will monitor the progress of 
addressing many of the CBTP program categories in  
the countywide plan by identifying when a project in  
the countywide transportation plan is also consistent  
with the CBTP. Funding programs such as the Lifeline 
Transportation Programs are conditioned to consider 
projects that have been identified in a local CBTP  
as a lifeline project or service. There are also other 
programs, such as the Active Transportation Program 
(ATP), that provide additional points for projects 
identified in a CBTP. NVTA will use the data from the 
CBTP community profiles to inform the equity section  
of the update to the countywide transportation  
plan – Advancing Mobility 2045. 

FUNDING OPTIONS

Lifeline Transportation Program

The Lifeline program is one of the major umbrella  
funding sources for projects included in a CBTP.  
The program consists of funds from the Job Access and 
Reverse Commute (JARC) and State Transit Assistance 
(STA) and supports a wide range of transportation 
improvements that primarily benefit Communities of 
Concern. The program is on its fifth funding cycle, the 
program of projects for the next cycle is scheduled to 
be adopted in 2020. Depending on the funds, project 
sponsors need to demonstrate eligibility for use of  
the fund source, as well as the applicability to the CBTP. 
Cycle 6 will cover a three-year programming cycle, 
FY2019-20 to FY2021-22. Typically, the funding program 
is administered by the county transportation agency 
(CTA). Besides the Lifeline Transportation Program, 
other grant opportunities are available. Potential CBTP 
federal funding sources include:

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA): The FHWA 
provides assistance for improvements to sidewalks,  
bicycle facilities, and transit infrastructure, primarily 
through the Surface Transportation Program. 

FTA Section 5303: FTA Section 5303 funds are set aside 
for Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MTC in the 
Bay Area) to support planning activities that meet a 
wide range of goals, including increasing transportation 
safety for motorized and non-motorized users, as well 
as improving accessibility and connectivity within the 
transportation network.

FTA Section 5307: NVTA receives FTA Section 5307 funds 
for operating the Vine and ancillary services and based 
on funding availability, may be used to help fund transit 
related needs outlined in the CBTP.

145



77 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Transportation Development Act Funds (TDA): 
There are two components – TDA 3 is specifically for 
pedestrian and bicycle enhancements.   NVTA prepares 
a competitive triennial call for projects and programs 
the funds for eligible City/County/Town projects. TDA 
4 and 8 are for transit operations and capital projects.  
NVTA commits these funds primarily for transit 
purposes, and depending on availability may be used to 
fund transit and pedestrian needs outlined in the CBTP.

State Transit Assistance (STA) : NVTA receives STA for 
transit operating and capital purposes.  Depending on 
availability, these funds may be used to fund transit and 
pedestrian related projects included in the CBTP. 

MONITORING & EVALUATION

NVTA will monitor progress in meeting the CBTP 
priorities as part of the Countywide Transportation  
Plan Goals and Objectives. Specific performance metrics 
will be established that will help NVTA staff evaluate 
progress and to inform future CBTPs and countywide 
transportation planning efforts.  Part of the monitoring 
effort will be to establish baseline data that will be 
measured over the plan horizon period and to mine 
future data more easily to compare to the baseline data. 

NVTA is constantly striving to build repeatable planning 
and programming workflows. This goal of repeatability 
also lends itself to monitoring and evaluation through 
the lens of data analysis, which is a key component of 
the CBTP effort.

In creating a robust set of baseline data for each COC, 
NVTA staff will be able to periodically evaluate data 
trends with every update of the CBTP.  Staff will also 
be able to review individual COC’s progress in meeting 
identified needs.

FTA Section 5310: FTA Section 5310 funds are targeted 
to discretionary capital assistance to serve the 
transportation needs of elderly persons and persons 
with disabilities. Projects funded through this fund  
must be consistent with a plan that relates human 
service and public transit needs, similar to the content 
of this CBTP.

FTA Section 5311: FTA Section 5311 funds are 
distributed to regional transportation planning agencies 
based on a non-urbanized area formula. Napa received 
funds based on it the unincorporated areas of the 
County. These funds are used for transit capital and 
operating purposes in non-urbanized areas. 

State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP):  
The State of California administers a five-year plan 
identifying specific projects for receipt of State 
transportation funds for State highway improvements, 
intercity rail, and regional highway and transit 
improvements. NVTA administers a local call for  
projects for these funds every odd year. 

Active Transportation Program (ATP): The Active  
Transportation Program (ATP) was created by Senate 
Bill 99 (Chapter 359, Statutes of 2013) and Assembly 
Bill 101 (Chapter 354, Statutes of 2013) to encourage 
increased use of active modes of transportation.  
Senate Bill 1 (SB 1) (Chapter 2031, statutes of 2017)  
stipulates that $100,000,000 of revenues from the  
Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account will  
be available annually to the ATP. The ATP consolidates 
existing federal and state transportation programs  
into a single program with a focus to make California a 
national leader in active transportation. The purpose  
of the program is to encourage an increased use of 
active modes of transportation and increase safety and 
mobility of non-motorized users. 

One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) Cycle 3: OBAG is a funding 
program that aligns the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission’s investments with support for focused 
growth throughout the Bay Area. NVTA administers  
a local call for projects for the OBAG program, which is 
a combination of Surface Transportation Program (STP) 
and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 
improvement funds. Projects funded with OBAG funds 
are transportation operational improvements, active 
transportation, transit improvements, and local streets 
and roads projects. Expansion projects are not eligible. 
The OBAG cycle three call for projects will take place  
in spring 2021. 

146



Table 47: COCs in Napa County Needs Assessment
Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract CDP CDP CDP CDP County

Census Tract, Town, City, 
County, Region (Counties) 
Geoid

06055200202 06055200804 06055200900 06055201601 06055200602 06055200707 06055201200 06055202000 686930 601640 664140 650258 6055 Alameda, Contra 
Costa, Marin, Napa, 
San Francisco, San 
Mateo, Santa Clara, 
Solano, Sonoma

ACS table 
name and 
number

Data Measure South  
Downtown 

Napa

Westwood 
Neighborhood

East Imola South St. Helena Northeast 
Napa (Vintage 

neighborhood )

Northwest Napa 
(Linda Vista 

neighborhood)

Unincorporated 
area near 
Yountville

City of Calistoga Town of 
Yountville

City of 
American 
Canyon

City 
of St. 

Helena

City of 
Napa

Napa 
County

Bay Area Region

COC Disadvantaged Factors  (source: US Census Bureau 5-Year American Community Survey Estimates)

S0101 total number residents 3,038 6,004 765 2,515 4,215 3,071 4,835 5,281 2,991

S1101 total number households 1,243 1,703 45 1,015 1,767 1,280 1,970 2,007 1,372

S0101 seniors resident 
percentage

3.13% 2.96% 4.69% 11.53% 9.77% 11.46% 13.80% 9.26% 31.33% 7.00%

B03002 minorites resident 
percentage (not white 
alone)

50.16% 75.63% 46.81% 44.53% 34.31% 30.58% 40.77% 52.55% 18.39% 46.00%

B03002 hispanic resident 
percentage

42.36% 71.05% 14.21% 39.28% 28.47% 24.98% 33.02% 48.87% 11.27%

C17002 low-income/living in 
poverty households

36.32% 41.85% 65.88% 40.48% 27.19% 22.64% 26.99% 37.66% 20.73%

B11004 single-parent households 27.84% 24.25% 0.00% 15.87% 10.27% 12.25% 6.79% 12.70% 4.73% 13.00%

B25070 rent-burdened 
households

22.21% 23.81% 13.33% 26.08% 21.55% 41.59% 21.56% 15.15% 29.13% 21.00%

B16005 limited English residents 10.17% 23.21% 0.78% 14.63% 4.83% 3.37% 11.21% 24.09% 3.08% 9.00%

B08201 zero vehicle households 17.86% 5.46% 73.33% 2.76% 7.64% 11.11% 4.78% 7.57% 12.10% 5.00%

B019013 median household 
income/below median 
household income 
deemed 'low-income' in 
locally-significant COC 
analysis

52,620 64,161 30,956* 60,500 67,664 73,293 59,024 60,534 72,194 74,609 82881

B019013 percent under $35k/yr 
households

35%** 15%** 65%* 31.00% 29.00% 23.00% 23.00% 36.00%

C18108 disabled residents 
percentage

16.52% 7.41% 31.18% 9.86% 13.90% 12.66% 13.80% 16.49% 16.23% 11.00%

B16005 foreign-born residents 23.09% 45.85% 7.43% 29.04% 19.12% 11.99% 23.66% 39.00% 13.41%

CTPP Commuter Flows  (source: CTPP Transportation Planning Table 3 -> http://data5.ctpp.transportation.org/ctpp1216/Browse/browsetables.aspx)

147



Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract CDP CDP CDP CDP County

Census Tract, Town, City, 
County, Region (Counties) 
Geoid

06055200202 06055200804 06055200900 06055201601 06055200602 06055200707 06055201200 06055202000 686930 601640 664140 650258 6055 Alameda, Contra 
Costa, Marin, Napa, 
San Francisco, San 
Mateo, Santa Clara, 
Solano, Sonoma

ACS table 
name and 
number

Data Measure South  
Downtown 

Napa

Westwood 
Neighborhood

East Imola South St. Helena Northeast 
Napa (Vintage 

neighborhood )

Northwest Napa 
(Linda Vista 

neighborhood)

Unincorporated 
area near 
Yountville

City of Calistoga Town of 
Yountville

City of 
American 
Canyon

City 
of St. 

Helena

City of 
Napa

Napa 
County

Bay Area Region

Ratio of alternative  
modes to SOV

0.56 0.36 3.70 0.25 0.24 0.28 0.44 0.49 0.43 0 0 0.30 0.32

nvta-based_
calculation

ratio_alternative_
modes_to_SOV_with_
significance_test

0.56 0.36 not enough 
information

0.25 0.24 0.28 0.44 0.49 0.43

S0801 drive alone to work 64.30% 73.60% 21.30% 80.20% 80.60% 78.20% 69.60% 67.20% 69.90% 76.60% 75.80%

S0801 carpool to work 11.20% 17.60% 32.50% 4.90% 6.60% 5.20% 18.90% 18.10% 4.70% 12.30% 11.60%

S0801 public transportation 
to work

3.00% 4.30% 0.00% 0.50% 1.00% 0.00% 0.70% 0.10% 0.60% 1.80% 1.50%

S0801 biked to work 14.50% 0.10% 0.00% 3.50% 2.30% 6.20% 1.80% 9.30% 5.40% 2.90% 4.00%

S0801 walk to work 0.80% 0.00% 25.00% 1.20% 1.40% 2.20% 0.00% 2.40% 0.40% 0.80% 0.70%

S0801 taxi, motorcycle, other 
means

0.50% 1.50% 0.00% 0.00% 0.40% 2.40% 0.30% 1.40% 2.20% 0.70% 0.60%

S0801 work from home 5.70% 2.90% 21.30% 9.70% 7.60% 5.80% 8.60% 1.50% 16.70% 4.80% 5.80%

S0801 percentage alternative 
travel modes (not SOV)

35.70% 26.40% 78.80% 19.80% 19.30% 21.80% 30.30% 32.80% 30.00% 23.30% 24.20%

S0801 mean travel time (min 
percent sec)

19.4 23.2 N 20.7 23 19.8 19.9 17.5 27 21.6 23.9

B01002 median age 34.5 years 30.8 years 53.3 years 44.5 years 47.6 years 46 years 52 years 44.4 years

Household poverty  (source: US Census Bureau 5-Year American Community Survey Estimates)

B17024 children under 17 years 
in poverty

9.00% 14.00% 0.00% 15.00% 5.53% 5.96% 7.76% 9.80%

B17024 workers in poverty 26.00% 26.50% 60.59% 22.00% 17.95% 14.00% 17.16% 25.18%

B17024 seniors over 75 years in 
poverty

1.00% 1.40% 5.29% 3.20% 3.71% 2.67% 2.07% 2.68%

B26064 median gross rent $1,078 $1,333 $613 $1,566 $1,385 $1,663 $1,253 $1,153 $2,100 $1,616 $1,483 $1,428 $1,442

Roadway functional class  (source: FHWA https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/policyinformation/hpms/shapefiles.cfm)

Table 47: COCs in Napa County Needs Assessment (continued)

148



Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract CDP CDP CDP CDP County

Census Tract, Town, City, 
County, Region (Counties) 
Geoid

06055200202 06055200804 06055200900 06055201601 06055200602 06055200707 06055201200 06055202000 686930 601640 664140 650258 6055 Alameda, Contra 
Costa, Marin, Napa, 
San Francisco, San 
Mateo, Santa Clara, 
Solano, Sonoma

ACS table 
name and 
number

Data Measure South  
Downtown 

Napa

Westwood 
Neighborhood

East Imola South St. Helena Northeast 
Napa (Vintage 

neighborhood )

Northwest Napa 
(Linda Vista 

neighborhood)

Unincorporated 
area near 
Yountville

City of Calistoga Town of 
Yountville

City of 
American 
Canyon

City 
of St. 

Helena

City of 
Napa

Napa 
County

Bay Area Region

FHWA, 
Caltrans

total roadway miles in 
COC (miles)

11.93 12.42 19.05 23 17.23 12.73 89.45 35.35

FHWA, 
Caltrans

interstate, expressway of 
roadway (miles)

0 0 0 0 0 0 1.15 0

FHWA, 
Caltrans

principal arterial roadway 
(miles)

1.1 1.09 2.31 0 1.57 1.08 3.37 4.4

FHWA, 
Caltrans

minor arterial roadway 
(miles)

1.7 1.4 1.26 1.1 2.9 1.5 5.12 4

FHWA, 
Caltrans

major collector roadway 
(miles)

2.2 1.97 0 6.6 2.44 2.28 11.26 0

FHWA, 
Caltrans

local roadway (miles) 7 8.9 10.37 14.5 11.9 11.9 54.64 22.23

Transit  (Source: Napa County GIS SQL Planning DB |  NCTPA H Drive/Planning/Old_CMA_Folder/Public_Tranist)

Vine, VineGo, Shuttles, etc.

NVTA-
maintained 
data

total transit stops 10 12 8 2 9 10 9 4

NVTA-
maintained 
data

total transit routes 4 3 6 1 3 5 1 2

Active Transportation  (Source: Napa County GIS SQL Planning DB)

Bicycle Infrastructure  (Source: NVTA, Napa County via 2019 Napa Countywide Bicycle Plan)

NVTA-
maintained 
data

total bike facilities 
mileage

- - - - - - - -

NVTA-
maintained 
data

existing bike facilities 
(miles)

1.7 1.69 9.3 1.62 3 2.8 13.37 5.95

NVTA-
maintained 
data

planned bike facilities 
(miles)

1.8 2.65 13.13 14.75 7.75 3.5 26 14.05

Table 47: COCs in Napa County Needs Assessment (continued)

149



Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract Tract CDP CDP CDP CDP County

Census Tract, Town, City, 
County, Region (Counties) 
Geoid

06055200202 06055200804 06055200900 06055201601 06055200602 06055200707 06055201200 06055202000 686930 601640 664140 650258 6055 Alameda, Contra 
Costa, Marin, Napa, 
San Francisco, San 
Mateo, Santa Clara, 
Solano, Sonoma

ACS table 
name and 
number

Data Measure South  
Downtown 

Napa

Westwood 
Neighborhood

East Imola South St. Helena Northeast 
Napa (Vintage 

neighborhood )

Northwest Napa 
(Linda Vista 

neighborhood)

Unincorporated 
area near 
Yountville

City of Calistoga Town of 
Yountville

City of 
American 
Canyon

City 
of St. 

Helena

City of 
Napa

Napa 
County

Bay Area Region

Pedestrian Infrastructure  (Source: NVTA, Napa County via 2016 Napa Countywide Pedestrian Plan)

NVTA-
maintained 
data

total sidewalk mileage 16.5 5.32 1 8 16.5

NVTA-
maintained 
data

missing sidewalk mileage 12.5

Physical characteristics  (Source: unprojected WGS Shapefiles from MTC/ABAG Open Data: http://opendata.mtc.ca.gov/)

total land+water area - - - - - - - - - - - - 839.86 7,460

total water area in county 
(excluding the Bay)

- - - - - - - - - - - - 92.08 559

gross land area (sqmi) 0.382958 0.473806 1.848224 2.398624 1.292611 0.574938 22.945548 2.567094 1.48 6.07 4.95 17.95 747.78 6,901

urban (yes =1, no =0) 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 0

gross land area in urban 
area  (sqmi)

0.382958 0.473806 1.848224 2.398624 1.292611 0.574938 0 0 0 6.07 4.95 17.95 28.97

gross land area in PDAs 
(sqmi)

0.159873 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.58 0 0.88 1.46

gross land area in COCs  
(sqmi)

0.382958 0.473806 1.848224 2.398624 1.292611 0.574938 22.94 2.57 0.018 0 2.4 3.82 23.7

Source: NVTA H: Drive/CBTP/Methods

Table 47: COCs in Napa County Needs Assessment (continued)

150



82 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

NEXT STEPS

The CBTP is an ever-evolving process that will be 
monitored and periodically updated. NVTA is in the 
midst of updating the Countywide Transportation 
Plan performance metrics for equity analysis. Once 
performance metrics are identified staff can review 
the CBTP’s identified transportation needs and 
determine how CBTP are performing.

This new monitoring process and internal data 
repositories will accomplish goals set forth in the 
guidance of the MTC CBTP.

First, NVTA will have the ability to track project/
program effectiveness alleviating COC –determined 
transportation needs. Second, NVTA could empirically 
evaluate potential transportation solutions based on 
community need, and/or residents’ means within the 
context of local jurisdictions, Napa County, or as a 
member of the Bay Area metropolitan region.

The 2020 NVTA CBTP recommendations include prior 
NVTA planning efforts to accurately capture existing  
conditions, community assessed needs, and applicable 
jurisdiction-submitted projects/programs. Applicable 
CBTP projects and program themes include: pedestrian 
safety, pedestrian access to schools and transit, transit 
options to healthcare and other lifeline destinations, 
mobility options for COC residents, transit frequency 
and amenities, transit cost, and ADA implementations. 

The outreach themes, baseline conditions, 
needs assessments, solution recommendations, 
implementations, and monitoring guide this CBTP 
purpose. NVTA will continually address these 
overarching equity goals revisiting the COC Equity 
Analysis framework to better serve Napa County 
Communities of Concerns and the greater Napa Valley.

151



83 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

APPENDIX 1: DEFINITIONS

This document refers to several US Census Bureau- based terms. NVTA has provided the definition of these terms at  
the beginning of the document to help build readers’ baseline knowledge of socio-demographic terms to improve the 
plan’s readability. 

particular road or street should play in serving the flow 
of trips through a highway network.

For the purposes of this CBTP, NHS Functional Roadway 
classification is used but moving forward careful 
consideration will given to implement CRS functional 
classification into the methods, monitoring and  
evaluation processes. The County’s General Plan 
Circulation Element and Zoning Code include roadway 
classifications for roads within the County. Refer to 
County classifications for specific information on roads 
throughout the County, as terminology may differ from 
that used by the US Census Bureau. 

ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL  
CLASSIFICATION DEFINITIONS

Urban Interstate: Are Urbanized Area routes recognized 
by the Dwight D. Eisenhower National System of 
Interstate and Defense Highways. Urban Interstates 
provided a superior network of limited access, divided 
highways offering high levels of mobility while linking 
major urban areas.

Rural Interstate: Routes recognized by the Dwight D. 
Eisenhower National System of Interstate and Defense 
Highways. Rural Interstates provided a superior network 
of limited access, divided highways offering high levels 
of mobility while linking major urban areas.

Urban Other Freeway and Expressway: Urbanized Area 
routes offering directional travel lanes usually separated 
by some type of physical barrier. Urban Other Freeways 
and Expressways can access and egress points limited 
to on- and off-ramp locations or very limited number of 
at-grade intersections.

Urban Other Principal Arterial: Urbanized Area routes 
that serve major centers of metropolitan areas, provide 
a high degree of mobility, and also provide mobility 
through rural areas. Urban Other Principal Arterials, 
unlike Freeways, Expressways and Interstates, serve 
abutting land uses can be directly and serve demand for 
intra-area travel between the central business district 
and outlying residential areas.

Rural Other Principal Arterial: Routes designated to 
connect all or nearly all Urbanized Areas and a large 
majority of Urban Clusters. Rural Other Principal 

Residents: Defined as a person resident in the 50 
States and the District of Columbia. An area’s resident 
population consists of those persons “usually resident” 
in that particular area (where they live and sleep most 
of the time). The resident population excludes people 
whose usual residence is outside of the United States, 
such as the U.S. military and federal civilian personnel 
living overseas (and their dependents living with 
them), as well as private U.S. citizens living overseas. 
The resident population also excludes residents of 
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and residents of 
the island areas under United States sovereignty or 
jurisdiction (principally American Samoa, Guam, Virgin 
Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth  
of the Northern Mariana Islands).

Households: Defined as including all the people who 
occupy a housing unit as their usual place of residence.

National Highway System (NHS): Consists of a network 
of roads important to the economy, defense and 
mobility. It is made up of the Interstates, Intermodal 
Connectors, the Strategic Highway Supply Network 
(STRAHNET) and its connectors, the Moving Ahead 
for Progress in the 21st Century (Transportation 
Authorization Legislation or MAP 21) principal arterials 
and other routes designated by the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA). Starting October 1, 2012 the 
existing NHS was expanded to include all existing 
principal arterials (i.e. Functional Classifications 1, 2  
and 3) to the NHS. Under MAP-21, the NHS is  
composed of rural and urban roads nationwide 
serving major population centers, international border 
crossings, intermodal transportation facilities, and  
major travel destinations.

California Road System (CRS): Functional Classification 
is the process by which streets and highways are 
grouped into classes, or systems, according to the 
character of service they are intended to provide. Basic 
to this process is the recognition that individual roads 
and streets do not serve travel independently in any 
major way. Rather, most travel involves movement 
through a network of roads. It becomes necessary then 
to determine how this travel can be channelized within 
the network in a logical and efficient manner.  
Functional classification defines the nature of this 
channelization process by defining the part that any 

152



84 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Class II Bike Lanes: Provide dedicated space for  
bicyclists in the roadway, delineated with lines and  
symbols on the roadway surface. Bicycle lanes are  
usually provided in both directions on two-way  
streets and on one side of one-way streets.

Class III Bike Routes: Accommodate  
both bicycles and motor vehicles in a shared roadway.  
They may be marked with shared lane markings 
“sharrows” or signage. Bike routes may also include 
additional elements to increase comfort for people 
bicycling, such as traffic calming and crossing 
treatments. Theses enhanced facilities may be called  
bicycle boulevards.

High-Visibility crosswalks: Markings on a roadway more 
visible to approaching cars than crosswalks that consist 
of just two white stripes on either side of the crosswalk.

Advance Yield Lines: Placed in advance of crosswalks 
to help increase pedestrian visibility and discourage 
encroachment. They remind drivers to yield to  
crossing pedestrians. 

Rapid Rectangular Flashing Beacon (RRFB):  
A pedestrian traffic control device, which combines  
a pedestrian sign with a bright flashing beacon that  
is activated only when a pedestrian is present.  
RRFBs help to alert drivers to pedestrians waiting  
to cross at uncontrolled intersections and mid- 
block crossing locations.

Raised Crosswalks: Located at sidewalk level, requiring 
cars to ramp up before the crossing and back down 
after it. This helps to slow cars and improve visibility of 
pedestrians. Bicycle crossing can be raised too.

Complete Streets: A policy that plans, designs,  
operates, and maintains to enable safe, convenient  
and comfortable travel and access for users of all ages 
and abilities regardless of their mode of transportation. 
Complete Street policies offer improvements in safety, 
health, economic, and environmental outcomes  
emphasizing the importance of safe access for all users, 
not just single occupant vehicles like automobiles.

8 80 Cities: Great for an 8 year old and an 80 year old, 
making them great and accessible for all people.

TRANSIT/PUBLIC TRANSIT/  
MASS TRANSIT DEFINITIONS

Paratransit: Types of passenger transportation which 
are more flexible than conventional fixed-route 
transit but more structured than the use of private 

Arterials provide an integrated network of continuous 
routes without dead ends.

Urban Minor Arterial: Urbanized Area routes that  
offer connectivity to the Principal Arterial system.  
Urban Minor Arterials provide more land access than 
Principal Arterials without penetrating identifiable 
neighborhoods.

Rural Minor Arterial: Routes that link cities and  
larger towns and form an integrated network providing 
interstate and intercounty service. Rural Minor Arterials 
provide service to corridors with trip lengths and travel 
density greater than those served by Rural Collectors 
and Local Roads and with relatively high travel speeds 
and minimum interference to through movement.
Urban Collector: Urbanized Area routes that serve a 
critical role in the roadway network by gathering traffic 
from Local Roads and funneling them to the Arterial 
network. Urban Collectors serve both land access  
and traffic circulation in residential, and commercial/
industrial areas.  
Rural Collector: Routes that serve primarily intra-county 
travel, not statewide, and constitute shorter travel 
distances than on Arterial routes. Consequently, more 
moderate speeds may be posted; Rural Collectors can 
be subdivided into two subcategories: Major and Minor.

Rural Major Collector: Routes longer in length, lower 
connecting driveway densities, higher speed limits, and 
higher annual average traffic volumes, than their Rural 
Minor Collectors counterparts. Rural Major Collectors 
link any county seat not on an Arterial route with nearby 
larger towns and cities or with Arterial routes.

Rural Minor Collector: Routes consistent with 
population density, to collect traffic from Local Roads 
and bring all developed areas within reasonable 
distance of a Collector. Rural Minor Collectors provide 
service to smaller communities not served by a higher 
class facility and link locally important traffic generators 
with their rural hinterlands.

BICYCLE FACILITY DEFINITIONS

Class I Multi Use/Shared Use Paths: Two-way facilities 
that are physically separated from motor vehicle traffic 
and used by non-motorized users like people bicycling 
and walking. These paths may cross roadways at grade 
or at under- or over-crossing. Multi-use paths are often 
located along creeks, along former rail corridors, or 
along roadways

153



85 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME

The median annual household income for Napa County 
is $74,609. Calculating a similar measure for the Bay 
Area results in $89,099/year. Only Solano and Sonoma 
Counties have lower county level median household 
incomes - roughly $73,000/year and $70,000/year 
respectively. Whereas Marin, San Francisco, San 
Mateo, and Santa Clara Counties have median annual 
household incomes of more than $100,000/year.

Median household income plays an important role 
in the locally significant Community of Concern 
determination. Although two measures of household 
income and poverty are taken into account on a 
regionally significant determination, this was not 
applied to the COCs identified by NVTA. The equity 
analysis in Napa County performed by NVTA casts a 
wider net to ensure inclusion of communities with 
economic challenges.

For the purposes of the CBTP, the term  
“median household income” will be used. 

DISABLED RESIDENTS

Eleven percent of Napa County residents have a 
disability, which includes both mental and physical 
disabilities. This is 2 percentage points greater than  
the Bay Area average of 9% disabled-residents. The  
COC threshold was determined to be 25% and only  
one COC exceeded this and it was East Imola with  
31%. This figure is skewed because the census tract 
includes the State Hospital.

According to the MTC, a disabled-residents is defined as: 

The U.S. Census Bureau defines disability as: 
Hearing difficulty- deaf or having serious difficulty 
hearing (DEAR); Vision difficulty- blind or having 
serious difficulty remembering, concentrating, or 
making decisions (DREM); Ambulatory difficulty- 
having serious difficulty walking or climbing stars 
(DPHY; Self-care difficulty- having difficulty bathing 
or dressing (DDRS); Independent living difficulty- 
because of a physical, mental, or emotional 
problem, having difficulty doing errands alone such 
as visiting a doctor’s office or shopping (DOUT).

 
For the purposes of the CBTP, the term  
“disabled-residents” will be used. 

automobiles. Paratransit includes demand response 
(DR) transportation services, shared-ride taxis, car-
pooling and vanpooling (VP), and jitney (JT) services. 
Most often refers to wheelchair-accessible, demand 
response (DR) service.

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) : The 
legislation requires transportation providers to make 
transportation accessible to individuals with disabilities, 
and specifies agencies’ responsibilities in this effort.

Fixed Route: A specific timed transit route that follows a 
fixed schedule.

On-Demand: A transit mode comprised of passenger 
cars, vans or small buses operating in response to calls 
from passengers or their agents to the transit operator, 
who then dispatches a vehicle to pick up the passengers 
and transport them to their destinations.

MINORITY RESIDENTS

Napa County’s population is 48% minority. Only one 
COC exceeds the 70% threshold determined in the 2018  
MTC Equity Analysis; the Westwood Neighborhood.

According to the MTC, a minority is defined as: 

Minority populations include persons who identify 
as any of the following groups as defined by the 
Census Bureau in accordance with guidelines 
provided by the U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget: American Indian or Alaska Native Alone 
(non-Hispanic/non-Latino); Asian Alone (non-
Hispanic/non-Latino); Pacific Islander Alone (non-
Hispanic/non-Latino); Black or African-American 
Alone (non-Hispanic/non-Latino); and Other (Some 
Other Race, Two or More Races, non-Hispanic/
non-Latino); and all Hispanic/Latino persons.

 
For purposes of the CBTP, the term “minorities” will  
be used. 

SENIORS RESIDENTS

7.5% of Napa County residents are 75 years or older. 
The Bay Area average is 6%. Three COCs exceed the  
10% threshold determined in the 2018 MTC Equity 
Analysis. These COCs include Northwest Napa, South 
St Helena, the unincorporated county surrounding the 
town of Yountville. 

154



86 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

residents” will be used. 

SEVERELY RENT  
BURDENED HOUSEHOLDS

Napa County is in the midst of a housing affordability 
crisis. Although Napa County only rep resents 1.8%  
of nearly 8 million Bay Area residents, Napa County is 
experiencing the worst severely rent burdened rates 
in the Bay Area. Of the COC Disadvantaged Factors, 
Severely Rent Burdened Households in Napa County  
has the greatest concentration, at a rate of 21.5%. 

Taking into account the disadvantaged factor of  
‘severely rent burdened households’, the Bay Area  
regional average is at a rate of 11% while the Napa 
County average is significantly greater at 21.5%.

This suggests housing costs are more impactful to Napa 
County residents than the average Bay Area resident. 
The 2018 MTC/ABAG Horizons/PBA 2040 Equity analysis 
threshold percentage for severely rent-burdened 
households in a census tract is 15 percent and three  
COCs exceed this minimum threshold: Westwood,  
South St. Helena, and the City of Calistoga.

According to the MTC, a rent-burdened household  
is defined as: 

Renters paying > 50% of income in rent. To 
determine whether or not severely rent-burdened 
households exceed tract concentration thresholds, 
the share of severely rent-burdened households is 
calculated as a share of all households regardless 
of occupancy status (renter or owner).

 
For the purposes of the CBTP, the document will use 
“rent-burdened households”. 

SINGLE-PARENT HOUSEHOLDS

13% of Napa County households are living without  
both parents present in the home. The Bay Area average 
is 14% and the COC disadvantaged threshold is 20%.  
South Downtown and Westwood met this threshold, 
which translates to roughly 200 residents living in  
single-parent households in each neighborhood.

According to the MTC, a single-parent household  
is defined as: 

200% BELOW FPL (FEDERAL 
POVERTY LEVEL/LINE) 
HOUSEHOLDS

The federal Poverty level is defined each year based  
on household income and the number of residents in  
a household including parents, children, and live-in  
relatives. For example, consider a 3-person household, 
 which includes two parents and one child. The federal 
poverty line for a 3-person household in 2017 is 
$19,730. If the two parents earn $24,000 total as a 
household then the Ratio of Income to Poverty Level 
is calculated as: 24000/19,730 = 1.216. This household 
would classify as living 200% below the federal poverty 
level. Household income must be above $39,460 or the 
residents would be considered living 200% below the 
federal poverty line/level.

According to the MTC, a living in poverty household is 
defined as: 

Person living in a household with incomes less 
than 200% of the federal poverty level established 
by the Census Bureau.

 
For the purposes of CBTP, the terms “living in poverty 
households” or “households living in poverty” will  
be used. 

LIMITED ENGLISH  
PROFICIENCY RESIDENTS 

8.8% of Napa County residents do not speak English 
well, this compares to a 9% Bay Area regional average. 
The COC threshold for limited English proficiency 
defined by MTC is 20% of the population. Two Napa 
census tracts exceed this limited English proficiency 
disadvantaged factor designation; the City of Calistoga 
COC and the Westwood neighborhood COC in the  
City of Napa.

According to the MTC, a limited English proficiency 
resident is defined as: 

Person above the age of 5 years, that does not 
speak English at least as “well” as their primary 
language or have a limited ability to read, speak, 
write, or understand English at least as “well’, as 
defined by the U.S. Census.

 
For the purposes of the CBTP, the term “limited English 

155



87 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Families with at least one child. To determine 
whether or not single-parent families exceed  
tract concentration thresholds, the share of  
single parent families is calculated as a share of  
all families regardless of whether or not they  
have any children.

 
For the purposes of the CBTP, the term “single-parent 
household(s)” will be used. 

ZERO VEHICLE HOUSEHOLDS

5% of Napa County households do not have direct 
access to a car, truck, or van for private transportation. 
These households are essentially living without a 
car. The Bay Area average is double this rate at 10%, 
but this not surprising given the more robust public 
transportation options in Bay Area’s more densely 
populated areas. Nevertheless, the threshold is 10% 
and three COCs exceed this rate for ‘zero-vehicle 
households’: South Downtown Napa, Northwest 
Napa, and East Imola. Again, the East Imola data may 
be skewed by the State Hospital grounds, which is to 
be removed from the geography in the following U.S. 
Census ACS.

According to the MTC, a zero-vehicle household is 
defined as: 

Households that do not own a personal vehicle.

 
For the purposes of the CBTP, the term “zero-vehicle 
households” will be used.

NOTES ON DEFINITIONS 
The data sources used for this COC analysis 
includes 2012-2016 American Community Survey 
5-Year Estimates. All data comparison between 
various level of geographies whether national, 
state, counties, cities, towns, and/or census 
designated places, etc. use aforementioned 2016 
ACS data sources.

 

156



88 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Napa Valley College
• One group of students sometimes walk from the 

Imola/Shurtleff area neighborhood to campus 
and remarked on how “scary” it is to walk along 
that corridor

Napa-St. Thomas Church
• Lack of sidewalks connecting to Pueblo Vista 

elementary school

St. Helena-Stonebridge Apartments
• RRFBs for all School crossings (they 

mentioned a school where they were already 
installed and said they worked well)

Napa- Silverado Creek Apartments
• Traffic calming around school

• Sidewalk improvements for Vintage and  
Bel Aire schools

 
2. Mobility Options

Participants noted mobility challenges associated with 
accessing medical facilities like Kaiser in Vallejo, Kaiser in 
Santa Rosa and other facilities outside of Napa County. 
Specific suggestions included:

2.1: Improve transportation options to healthcare

Evaluating cost/benefit of either transit options,  
including a shuttle/vanpool, or TNC subsidies for  
Calistoga residents to access Kaiser Santa Rosa.

Calistoga Springs Mobile Home Park
• Residents discussed issues they have with 

accessing medical care, specifically St. Helena 
Hospital and Kaiser in Santa Rosa

• They asked that we evaluate the potential to  
revive the previous Route that connected to 
Santa Rosa

• Some residents have to travel long distances  
for medical care out of the County, staff let  
them know about the Mileage Reimbursement 
program and how to apply

St. Helena - Rianda House
• Most residents rely on Kaiser Napa and felt 

the existing transit options were adequate 
for their medical and grocery trips

APPENDIX 2

1. Pedestrians

Community members were interested in pedestrian 
improvements for safety, including access to schools and 
transit. They mentioned specific locations listed below, 
but also a general sentiment for safety enhancements 
for pedestrians. 

1.1: Improve pedestrian safety

High visibility crosswalks, RRFB at mid-block crosswalks, 
and add/repair sidewalks.

St. Helena - Rianda House
• Many were supportive of pedestrian 

infrastructure improvements

Napa-St. Thomas Church
• Put up signs requesting people not  

to walk down the middle of street on  
Homewood Ave.

St. Helena-Stonebridge Apartments
• Complete sidewalk on Hunt Avenue  

to Montevista
• Improved street lighting on Pope, Hunt (and the 

street where the apartments are located)

Napa- Silverado Creek Apartments
• Crossing larger intersections is difficult, would  

like more lighting, more crosswalks
• Enforcement of spweeding needed
• Traffic light or stop sign at Trancas and  

Valle Verde
• RRFB at Jefferson/ Rubicon
• Traffic light at Jefferson/Rubicon/ El Capitan
• Traffic light at Jefferson/ Rubicon
• Rehab sidewalk on Villa Lane
• RRFB at Trancas/ Valle Verde

1.2: Improve pedestrian access to schools and transit

Prioritizing sidewalk infrastructure around schools and 
transit, as identified in the countywide transportation 
plan and pedestrian plan.

157



89 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Napa-St. Thomas Church
• Add a bus line that goes directly from  

Laurel Street on the west side of SR-29 to  
Napa High School

St. Helena-Stonebridge Apartments
• Transit services for residents of Silverado Orchard
• Transit services to Angwin

Napa- Silverado Creek Apartments
• Bike Lane from Redwood to Villa Lane (class 4)
• Bus (public transportation) to Villa Lane

 
3. Transit-Related

Comments focused on the limitations of the bus evening 
frequencies, including wait times, longer service 
hours, transit stop amenities, and transit fares. Specific 
suggestions included:

3.1: Increase local transit evening frequencies

Evaluation of increased service hours in City of Napa 
(Healthcare, Education, Supportive Services).

Napa - Queen of the Valley
• Received feedback that local routes don’t run 

frequently enough for clients
• Local routes also do not run late enough

Napa Valley College
• One rider who used the local routes stated  

later run times would be better, as to allow for 
greater flexibility

• Would like to see later hours of local routes, so 
that students can use transit for other errands on 
the way home

Napa Valley Support Services
• Would like see Routes 10 and 11 stop at 

Napa Valley College on weekends

• Longer service hours into the evening

2.2: Expand mobility options for low-income, senior-, 
and disabled residents

Evaluate and expand transportation accessibility options 
for seniors and disabled such as mileage reimbursement 
program, shared vehicle, etc. Conduct annual education 
programs for seniors and disabled.

Yountville - Veteran’s Home
• Residents of the Vet’s Home have their  

transportation needs met almost exclusively  
by the transportation provided by the Home, 
including medical transport to San Francisco

Calistoga – Springs Mobile Home Park
• Residents expressed their view that the  

Calistoga shuttle seemed geared towards  
tourists and the long wait times made it  
less than ideal for residents

St. Helena - Rianda House
• Discussion about St. Helena/Lyft pilot  

shuttle program
• St. Helena/Lyft pilot shuttle program coordinated 

through Molly’s Angels. One issue is lack of 
wheelchair access on Lyft vehicles

• Issue with Molly’s Angels only taking  
ambulatory passengers

• Driver reimbursement under MRP for Molly’s  
Angels drivers; drivers are prohibited from  
receiving reimbursement – consider updating 
MRP form for volunteer drivers to indicate  
they are with Molly’s Angels

• Request from Angwin resident to have a  
“one-day-a-week” shuttle down to St. Helena

Napa Valley Support Services
• Most people can’t walk or move more  

than a couple of blocks, so they need  
stops closer together

• People want to be able to use TaxiScrip with Uber 
and Lyft, current taxi companies are unreliable

• The limit on three books per month are not 
enough for Taxi Scrip

158



90 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

4. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)

Comments centered on wheelchair access and  
bus driver awareness. 

4.1: Increase transit ADA access

Evaluate transit ADA access effectiveness: on smaller 
buses, at high ADA boarding stops, typical driver 
routines/accommodations.

Calistoga – Springs Mobile Home Park
• Residents had complaints about lack of handicap 

parking at Cal-Mart, we connected them with city 
staff personnel to address the issue

• Residents would also appreciate if drivers could 
let them off closer to their destination, rather 
than only at designated stops, staff explained  
that for safety reasons, we don’t let drivers stop 
just anywhere

Napa Valley Support Services
• Difficult to board smaller buses with  

mobility devices
• Shelters and benches are a necessity for  

disabled customers
• Drivers have not provided service to some  

riders in wheelchairs or driven past riders  
in wheelchairs

• The stop along Lincoln/Jordan Lane has a slope 
making wheelchair access difficult

• Transdev drivers place ramps down on streets 
less than a foot away from curb, so there is no 
way for a wheelchair to board like that

• Would like more curb space painted red, so there 
is better access for ADA riders to board the bus

Napa- Silverado Creek Apartments
• Bus stop is too far away

Source: From CBTP Identified Needs table Oct 3rd TAC staff report,  
Updated_new_comment_cluster_analaysis.xlsx, ‘comment_themes’ tab

3.2: Increase transit amenities

Create a ridership-based priority list of high-use transit 
stops to add amenities such as benches, shelters.

American Canyon Senior Center
• The City is considering locations for P&R lots 

along the corridor

Napa Valley Support Services
• Issue with clipper card reader functionality

• Jefferson/Bel Aire stop and Lincoln/Jordan 
Lane stops should be prioritized for shelter 
and seating

• Imperial Way and Jordan needs a stop and bus 
shelter/seating

• Real-time signage need to be more reliable and 
work consistently

Napa- Redwood Park and Ride
• Rider pointed out that real-time signs were  

incorrect and sometimes non functional
• A senior rider would like to see bathroom  

facilities at the park and ride, as there is  
nowhere nearby to use the restroom and  
sometimes there are long wait and transfer  
times for Vine buses

3.3: Decrease transit fares for low-income individuals

Evaluating implementation of means based fares  
for low-income individuals who are not seniors/ 
youth riders.

Napa - Queen of the Valley
• Our fares are too high for some clients  

Napa Valley Support Services
• Fares are too costly

 

159



83 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

APPENDIX 1: DEFINITIONS

This document refers to several US Census Bureau- based terms. NVTA has provided the definition of these terms at  
the beginning of the document to help build readers’ baseline knowledge of socio-demographic terms to improve the 
plan’s readability. 

particular road or street should play in serving the flow 
of trips through a highway network.

For the purposes of this CBTP, NHS Functional Roadway 
classification is used but moving forward careful 
consideration will given to implement CRS functional 
classification into the methods, monitoring and  
evaluation processes. The County’s General Plan 
Circulation Element and Zoning Code include roadway 
classifications for roads within the County. Refer to 
County classifications for specific information on roads 
throughout the County, as terminology may differ from 
that used by the US Census Bureau. 

ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL 
CLASSIFICATION DEFINITIONS

Urban Interstate: Are Urbanized Area routes recognized 
by the Dwight D. Eisenhower National System of 
Interstate and Defense Highways. Urban Interstates 
provided a superior network of limited access, divided 
highways offering high levels of mobility while linking 
major urban areas.

Rural Interstate: Routes recognized by the Dwight D. 
Eisenhower National System of Interstate and Defense 
Highways. Rural Interstates provided a superior network 
of limited access, divided highways offering high levels 
of mobility while linking major urban areas.

Urban Other Freeway and Expressway: Urbanized Area 
routes offering directional travel lanes usually separated 
by some type of physical barrier. Urban Other Freeways 
and Expressways can access and egress points limited 
to on- and off-ramp locations or very limited number of 
at-grade intersections.

Urban Other Principal Arterial: Urbanized Area routes 
that serve major centers of metropolitan areas, provide 
a high degree of mobility, and also provide mobility 
through rural areas. Urban Other Principal Arterials, 
unlike Freeways, Expressways and Interstates, serve 
abutting land uses can be directly and serve demand for 
intra-area travel between the central business district 
and outlying residential areas.

Rural Other Principal Arterial: Routes designated to 
connect all or nearly all Urbanized Areas and a large 
majority of Urban Clusters. Rural Other Principal 

Residents: Defined as a person resident in the 50 
States and the District of Columbia. An area’s resident 
population consists of those persons “usually resident” 
in that particular area (where they live and sleep most 
of the time). The resident population excludes people 
whose usual residence is outside of the United States, 
such as the U.S. military and federal civilian personnel 
living overseas (and their dependents living with 
them), as well as private U.S. citizens living overseas. 
The resident population also excludes residents of 
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and residents of 
the island areas under United States sovereignty or 
jurisdiction (principally American Samoa, Guam, Virgin 
Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth  
of the Northern Mariana Islands).

Households: Defined as including all the people who 
occupy a housing unit as their usual place of residence.

National Highway System (NHS): Consists of a network 
of roads important to the economy, defense and 
mobility. It is made up of the Interstates, Intermodal 
Connectors, the Strategic Highway Supply Network 
(STRAHNET) and its connectors, the Moving Ahead 
for Progress in the 21st Century (Transportation 
Authorization Legislation or MAP 21) principal arterials 
and other routes designated by the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA). Starting October 1, 2012 the 
existing NHS was expanded to include all existing 
principal arterials (i.e. Functional Classifications 1, 2  
and 3) to the NHS. Under MAP-21, the NHS is  
composed of rural and urban roads nationwide 
serving major population centers, international border 
crossings, intermodal transportation facilities, and  
major travel destinations.

California Road System (CRS): Functional Classification 
is the process by which streets and highways are 
grouped into classes, or systems, according to the 
character of service they are intended to provide. Basic 
to this process is the recognition that individual roads 
and streets do not serve travel independently in any 
major way. Rather, most travel involves movement 
through a network of roads. It becomes necessary then 
to determine how this travel can be channelized within 
the network in a logical and efficient manner.  
Functional classification defines the nature of this 
channelization process by defining the part that any 

160



84 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Class II Bike Lanes: Provide dedicated space for  
bicyclists in the roadway, delineated with lines and 
symbols on the roadway surface. Bicycle lanes are  
usually provided in both directions on two-way  
streets and on one side of one-way streets.

Class III Bike Routes: Accommodate  
both bicycles and motor vehicles in a shared roadway. 
They may be marked with shared lane markings 
“sharrows” or signage. Bike routes may also include 
additional elements to increase comfort for people 
bicycling, such as traffic calming and crossing 
treatments. Theses enhanced facilities may be called  
bicycle boulevards.

High-Visibility crosswalks: Markings on a roadway more 
visible to approaching cars than crosswalks that consist 
of just two white stripes on either side of the crosswalk.

Advance Yield Lines: Placed in advance of crosswalks 
to help increase pedestrian visibility and discourage 
encroachment. They remind drivers to yield to  
crossing pedestrians. 

Rapid Rectangular Flashing Beacon (RRFB):  
A pedestrian traffic control device, which combines 
a pedestrian sign with a bright flashing beacon that 
is activated only when a pedestrian is present.  
RRFBs help to alert drivers to pedestrians waiting  
to cross at uncontrolled intersections and mid- 
block crossing locations.

Raised Crosswalks: Located at sidewalk level, requiring 
cars to ramp up before the crossing and back down 
after it. This helps to slow cars and improve visibility of 
pedestrians. Bicycle crossing can be raised too.

Complete Streets: A policy that plans, designs,  
operates, and maintains to enable safe, convenient  
and comfortable travel and access for users of all ages 
and abilities regardless of their mode of transportation. 
Complete Street policies offer improvements in safety, 
health, economic, and environmental outcomes  
emphasizing the importance of safe access for all users, 
not just single occupant vehicles like automobiles.

8 80 Cities: Great for an 8 year old and an 80 year old, 
making them great and accessible for all people.

Arterials provide an integrated network of continuous 
routes without dead ends.

Urban Minor Arterial: Urbanized Area routes that  
offer connectivity to the Principal Arterial system.  
Urban Minor Arterials provide more land access than 
Principal Arterials without penetrating identifiable 
neighborhoods.

Rural Minor Arterial: Routes that link cities and  
larger towns and form an integrated network providing 
interstate and intercounty service. Rural Minor Arterials 
provide service to corridors with trip lengths and travel 
density greater than those served by Rural Collectors 
and Local Roads and with relatively high travel speeds 
and minimum interference to through movement.
Urban Collector: Urbanized Area routes that serve a 
critical role in the roadway network by gathering traffic 
from Local Roads and funneling them to the Arterial 
network. Urban Collectors serve both land access  
and traffic circulation in residential, and commercial/
industrial areas.  
Rural Collector: Routes that serve primarily intra-county 
travel, not statewide, and constitute shorter travel 
distances than on Arterial routes. Consequently, more 
moderate speeds may be posted; Rural Collectors can 
be subdivided into two subcategories: Major and Minor.

Rural Major Collector: Routes longer in length, lower 
connecting driveway densities, higher speed limits, and 
higher annual average traffic volumes, than their Rural 
Minor Collectors counterparts. Rural Major Collectors 
link any county seat not on an Arterial route with nearby 
larger towns and cities or with Arterial routes.

Rural Minor Collector: Routes consistent with 
population density, to collect traffic from Local Roads 
and bring all developed areas within reasonable 
distance of a Collector. Rural Minor Collectors provide 
service to smaller communities not served by a higher 
class facility and link locally important traffic generators 
with their rural hinterlands.

BICYCLE FACILITY DEFINITIONS

Class I Multi Use/Shared Use Paths: Two-way facilities 
that are physically separated from motor vehicle traffic 
and used by non-motorized users like people bicycling 
and walking. These paths may cross roadways at grade 
or at under- or over-crossing. Multi-use paths are often 
located along creeks, along former rail corridors, or 
along roadways

161



85 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

“median household income” will be used. 

DISABLED RESIDENTS

Eleven percent of Napa County residents have a 
disability, which includes both mental and physical 
disabilities. This is 2 percentage points greater than 
the Bay Area average of 9% disabled-residents. The  
COC threshold was determined to be 25% and only  
one COC exceeded this and it was East Imola with  
31%. This figure is skewed because the census tract 
includes the State Hospital.

According to the MTC, a disabled-residents is defined as: 

The U.S. Census Bureau defines disability as: 
Hearing difficulty- deaf or having serious difficulty 
hearing (DEAR); Vision difficulty- blind or having 
serious difficulty remembering, concentrating, or 
making decisions (DREM); Ambulatory difficulty- 
having serious difficulty walking or climbing stars 
(DPHY; Self-care difficulty- having difficulty bathing 
or dressing (DDRS); Independent living difficulty- 
because of a physical, mental, or emotional 
problem, having difficulty doing errands alone such 
as visiting a doctor’s office or shopping (DOUT).

For the purposes of the CBTP, the term 
“disabled-residents” will be used. 

200% BELOW FPL (FEDERAL 
POVERTY LEVEL/LINE) 
HOUSEHOLDS

The federal Poverty level is defined each year based  
on household income and the number of residents in  
a household including parents, children, and live-in  
relatives. For example, consider a 3-person household, 
 which includes two parents and one child. The federal 
poverty line for a 3-person household in 2017 is 
$19,730. If the two parents earn $24,000 total as a 
household then the Ratio of Income to Poverty Level 
is calculated as: 24000/19,730 = 1.216. This household 
would classify as living 200% below the federal poverty 
level. Household income must be above $39,460 or the 
residents would be considered living 200% below the 
federal poverty line/level.

According to the MTC, a living in poverty household is 

MINORITY RESIDENTS

Napa County’s population is 48% minority. Only one 
COC exceeds the 70% threshold determined in the 2018  
MTC Equity Analysis; the Westwood Neighborhood.

According to the MTC, a minority is defined as: 

Minority populations include persons who identify 
as any of the following groups as defined by the 
Census Bureau in accordance with guidelines 
provided by the U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget: American Indian or Alaska Native Alone 
(non-Hispanic/non-Latino); Asian Alone (non-
Hispanic/non-Latino); Pacific Islander Alone (non-
Hispanic/non-Latino); Black or African-American 
Alone (non-Hispanic/non-Latino); and Other (Some 
Other Race, Two or More Races, non-Hispanic/
non-Latino); and all Hispanic/Latino persons.

For purposes of the CBTP, the term “minorities” will 
be used. 

SENIORS RESIDENTS

7.5% of Napa County residents are 75 years or older. 
The Bay Area average is 6%. Three COCs exceed the  
10% threshold determined in the 2018 MTC Equity 
Analysis. These COCs include Northwest Napa, South 
St Helena, the unincorporated county surrounding the 
town of Yountville. 

MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME

The median annual household income for Napa County 
is $74,609. Calculating a similar measure for the Bay 
Area results in $89,099/year. Only Solano and Sonoma 
Counties have lower county level median household 
incomes - roughly $73,000/year and $70,000/year 
respectively. Whereas Marin, San Francisco, San 
Mateo, and Santa Clara Counties have median annual 
household incomes of more than $100,000/year.

Median household income plays an important role 
in the locally significant Community of Concern 
determination. Although two measures of household 
income and poverty are taken into account on a 
regionally significant determination, this was not 
applied to the COCs identified by NVTA. The equity 
analysis in Napa County performed by NVTA casts a 
wider net to ensure inclusion of communities with 
economic challenges.

For the purposes of the CBTP, the term 

162



86 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

County residents than the average Bay Area resident. 
The 2018 MTC/ABAG Horizons/PBA 2040 Equity analysis 
threshold percentage for severely rent-burdened 
households in a census tract is 15 percent and three  
COCs exceed this minimum threshold: Westwood,  
South St. Helena, and the City of Calistoga.

According to the MTC, a rent-burdened household 
is defined as: 

Renters paying > 50% of income in rent. To 
determine whether or not severely rent-burdened 
households exceed tract concentration thresholds, 
the share of severely rent-burdened households is 
calculated as a share of all households regardless 
of occupancy status (renter or owner).

For the purposes of the CBTP, the document will use 
“rent-burdened households”. 

SINGLE-PARENT HOUSEHOLDS

13% of Napa County households are living without  
both parents present in the home. The Bay Area average 
is 14% and the COC disadvantaged threshold is 20%.  
South Downtown and Westwood met this threshold, 
which translates to roughly 200 residents living in  
single-parent households in each neighborhood.

According to the MTC, a single-parent household 
is defined as: 

Families with at least one child. To determine 
whether or not single-parent families exceed  
tract concentration thresholds, the share of  
single parent families is calculated as a share of 
all families regardless of whether or not they  
have any children.

For the purposes of the CBTP, the term “single-parent 
household(s)” will be used. 

ZERO VEHICLE HOUSEHOLDS

5% of Napa County households do not have direct 
access to a car, truck, or van for private transportation. 
These households are essentially living without a 
car. The Bay Area average is double this rate at 10%, 
but this not surprising given the more robust public 
transportation options in Bay Area’s more densely 
populated areas. Nevertheless, the threshold is 10% 

defined as: 

Person living in a household with incomes less 
than 200% of the federal poverty level established 
by the Census Bureau.

For the purposes of CBTP, the terms “living in poverty 
households” or “households living in poverty” will  
be used. 

LIMITED ENGLISH 
PROFICIENCY RESIDENTS 

8.8% of Napa County residents do not speak English 
well, this compares to a 9% Bay Area regional average. 
The COC threshold for limited English proficiency 
defined by MTC is 20% of the population. Two Napa 
census tracts exceed this limited English proficiency 
disadvantaged factor designation; the City of Calistoga 
COC and the Westwood neighborhood COC in the  
City of Napa.

According to the MTC, a limited English proficiency 
resident is defined as: 

Person above the age of 5 years, that does not 
speak English at least as “well” as their primary 
language or have a limited ability to read, speak, 
write, or understand English at least as “well’, as 
defined by the U.S. Census.

For the purposes of the CBTP, the term “limited English 
residents” will be used. 

SEVERELY RENT 
BURDENED HOUSEHOLDS

Napa County is in the midst of a housing affordability 
crisis. Although Napa County only rep resents 1.8%  
of nearly 8 million Bay Area residents, Napa County is 
experiencing the worst severely rent burdened rates 
in the Bay Area. Of the COC Disadvantaged Factors, 
Severely Rent Burdened Households in Napa County  
has the greatest concentration, at a rate of 21.5%. 

Taking into account the disadvantaged factor of  
‘severely rent burdened households’, the Bay Area  
regional average is at a rate of 11% while the Napa 
County average is significantly greater at 21.5%.

This suggests housing costs are more impactful to Napa 

163



87 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

and three COCs exceed this rate for ‘zero-vehicle 
households’: South Downtown Napa, Northwest 
Napa, and East Imola. Again, the East Imola data may 
be skewed by the State Hospital grounds, which is to 
be removed from the geography in the following U.S. 
Census ACS.

According to the MTC, a zero-vehicle household is 
defined as: 

Households that do not own a personal vehicle.

For the purposes of the CBTP, the term “zero-vehicle 
households” will be used.

NOTES ON DEFINITIONS
The data sources used for this COC analysis 
includes 2012-2016 American Community Survey 
5-Year Estimates. All data comparison between 
various level of geographies whether national, 
state, counties, cities, towns, and/or census 
designated places, etc. use aforementioned 2016 
ACS data sources.

164



88 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Napa Valley College
• One group of students sometimes walk from the

Imola/Shurtleff area neighborhood to campus
and remarked on how “scary” it is to walk along
that corridor

Napa-St. Thomas Church
• Lack of sidewalks connecting to Pueblo Vista

elementary school

St. Helena-Stonebridge Apartments
• RRFBs for all School crossings (they

mentioned a school where they were already
installed and said they worked well)

Napa- Silverado Creek Apartments
• Traffic calming around school

• Sidewalk improvements for Vintage and
Bel Aire schools

2. Mobility Options

Participants noted mobility challenges associated with 
accessing medical facilities like Kaiser in Vallejo, Kaiser in 
Santa Rosa and other facilities outside of Napa County. 
Specific suggestions included:

2.1: Improve transportation options to healthcare

Evaluating cost/benefit of either transit options,  
including a shuttle/vanpool, or TNC subsidies for 
Calistoga residents to access Kaiser Santa Rosa.

Calistoga Springs Mobile Home Park
• Residents discussed issues they have with

accessing medical care, specifically St. Helena
Hospital and Kaiser in Santa Rosa

• They asked that we evaluate the potential to
revive the previous Route that connected to
Santa Rosa

• Some residents have to travel long distances
for medical care out of the County, staff let
them know about the Mileage Reimbursement
program and how to apply

St. Helena - Rianda House
• Most residents rely on Kaiser Napa and felt

the existing transit options were adequate
for their medical and grocery trips

APPENDIX 2

1. Pedestrians

Community members were interested in pedestrian 
improvements for safety, including access to schools and 
transit. They mentioned specific locations listed below, 
but also a general sentiment for safety enhancements 
for pedestrians. 

1.1: Improve pedestrian safety

High visibility crosswalks, RRFB at mid-block crosswalks, 
and add/repair sidewalks.

St. Helena - Rianda House
• Many were supportive of pedestrian

infrastructure improvements

Napa-St. Thomas Church
• Put up signs requesting people not

to walk down the middle of street on
Homewood Ave.

St. Helena-Stonebridge Apartments
• Complete sidewalk on Hunt Avenue

to Montevista
• Improved street lighting on Pope, Hunt (and the

street where the apartments are located)

Napa- Silverado Creek Apartments
• Crossing larger intersections is difficult, would

like more lighting, more crosswalks
• Enforcement of spweeding needed
• Traffic light or stop sign at Trancas and

Valle Verde
• RRFB at Jefferson/ Rubicon
• Traffic light at Jefferson/Rubicon/ El Capitan
• Traffic light at Jefferson/ Rubicon
• Rehab sidewalk on Villa Lane
• RRFB at Trancas/ Valle Verde

1.2: Improve pedestrian access to schools and transit

Prioritizing sidewalk infrastructure around schools and 
transit, as identified in the countywide transportation 
plan and pedestrian plan.

165



89 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Napa-St. Thomas Church
• Add a bus line that goes directly from

Laurel Street on the west side of SR-29 to
Napa High School

St. Helena-Stonebridge Apartments
• Transit services for residents of Silverado Orchard
• Transit services to Angwin

Napa- Silverado Creek Apartments
• Bike Lane from Redwood to Villa Lane (class 4)
• Bus (public transportation) to Villa Lane

3. Transit-Related

Comments focused on the limitations of the bus evening 
frequencies, including wait times, longer service 
hours, transit stop amenities, and transit fares. Specific 
suggestions included:

3.1: Increase local transit evening frequencies

Evaluation of increased service hours in City of Napa 
(Healthcare, Education, Supportive Services).

Napa - Queen of the Valley
• Received feedback that local routes don’t run

frequently enough for clients
• Local routes also do not run late enough

Napa Valley College
• One rider who used the local routes stated

later run times would be better, as to allow for
greater flexibility

• Would like to see later hours of local routes, so
that students can use transit for other errands on
the way home

Napa Valley Support Services
• Would like see Routes 10 and 11 stop at

Napa Valley College on weekends

• Longer service hours into the evening

2.2: Expand mobility options for low-income, senior-, 
and disabled residents

Evaluate and expand transportation accessibility options 
for seniors and disabled such as mileage reimbursement 
program, shared vehicle, etc. Conduct annual education 
programs for seniors and disabled.

Yountville - Veteran’s Home
• Residents of the Vet’s Home have their

transportation needs met almost exclusively
by the transportation provided by the Home,
including medical transport to San Francisco

Calistoga – Springs Mobile Home Park
• Residents expressed their view that the

Calistoga shuttle seemed geared towards
tourists and the long wait times made it
less than ideal for residents

St. Helena - Rianda House
• Discussion about St. Helena/Lyft pilot

shuttle program
• St. Helena/Lyft pilot shuttle program coordinated

through Molly’s Angels. One issue is lack of
wheelchair access on Lyft vehicles

• Issue with Molly’s Angels only taking
ambulatory passengers

• Driver reimbursement under MRP for Molly’s
Angels drivers; drivers are prohibited from
receiving reimbursement – consider updating
MRP form for volunteer drivers to indicate
they are with Molly’s Angels

• Request from Angwin resident to have a
“one-day-a-week” shuttle down to St. Helena

Napa Valley Support Services
• Most people can’t walk or move more

than a couple of blocks, so they need
stops closer together

• People want to be able to use TaxiScrip with Uber
and Lyft, current taxi companies are unreliable

• The limit on three books per month are not
enough for Taxi Scrip

166



90 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

4. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)

Comments centered on wheelchair access and 
bus driver awareness. 

4.1: Increase transit ADA access

Evaluate transit ADA access effectiveness: on smaller 
buses, at high ADA boarding stops, typical driver 
routines/accommodations.

Calistoga – Springs Mobile Home Park
• Residents had complaints about lack of handicap

parking at Cal-Mart, we connected them with city
staff personnel to address the issue

• Residents would also appreciate if drivers could
let them off closer to their destination, rather
than only at designated stops, staff explained
that for safety reasons, we don’t let drivers stop
just anywhere

Napa Valley Support Services
• Difficult to board smaller buses with

mobility devices
• Shelters and benches are a necessity for

disabled customers
• Drivers have not provided service to some

riders in wheelchairs or driven past riders
in wheelchairs

• The stop along Lincoln/Jordan Lane has a slope
making wheelchair access difficult

• Transdev drivers place ramps down on streets
less than a foot away from curb, so there is no
way for a wheelchair to board like that

• Would like more curb space painted red, so there
is better access for ADA riders to board the bus

Napa- Silverado Creek Apartments
• Bus stop is too far away

Source: From CBTP Identified Needs table Oct 3rd TAC staff report,  
Updated_new_comment_cluster_analaysis.xlsx, ‘comment_themes’ tab

3.2: Increase transit amenities

Create a ridership-based priority list of high-use transit 
stops to add amenities such as benches, shelters.

American Canyon Senior Center
• The City is considering locations for P&R lots

along the corridor

Napa Valley Support Services
• Issue with clipper card reader functionality

• Jefferson/Bel Aire stop and Lincoln/Jordan
Lane stops should be prioritized for shelter
and seating

• Imperial Way and Jordan needs a stop and bus
shelter/seating

• Real-time signage need to be more reliable and
work consistently

Napa- Redwood Park and Ride
• Rider pointed out that real-time signs were

incorrect and sometimes non functional
• A senior rider would like to see bathroom

facilities at the park and ride, as there is
nowhere nearby to use the restroom and
sometimes there are long wait and transfer
times for Vine buses

3.3: Decrease transit fares for low-income individuals

Evaluating implementation of means based fares 
for low-income individuals who are not seniors/ 
youth riders.

Napa - Queen of the Valley
• Our fares are too high for some clients

Napa Valley Support Services
• Fares are too costly

167



91 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

APPENDIX 3 

CBTP Survey 

 

 
 
 

This survey is designed to engage Napa Valley residents in recommending improvements to 
transportation options within Napa County to improve access and mobility for senior, low-income, 
and disabled populations. 

1. 1. Where do you live? 
 

   American Canyon 

   Yountville 

   St. Helena 

   Calistoga 

Unincorporated Napa County 

   Southwest City of Napa 

   Northwest City of Napa 

   Southeast City of Napa 

   Northeast City of Napa 

Central City of Napa 
 

Other (please specify) 

 
2. 1. What is your age range? 

 

   18 and under 

   19-25 

26-50 

   51-64 

65+ 

 
 

3. Please describe your race/ethnicity. 

 
4. Is English your primary language? If not, please list your primary language. 

 
   Yes

    No 

   Other (please specify) 
 

 
5. What is your household income? 

 

   less than $25k 

   $26-$45k 

$47-$65k 

   $66-$85k

   $86-$110k 

$110k+ 

2018 Community Based Transportation Plan 

168



92 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

6. Which Vine Route(s) do you currently use? 
 

Route 1 
 

Route 2 
 

Route 3 
 

Route 4 
 

Route 5 
 

Route 6 
 

Route 7 
 

Route 8 
 

Route 10 
 

Route 11 
 

Route 21 
 

Route 29 
 

American Canyon Transit 

Yountville Trolley 

St. Helene Shuttle 

Calistoga Shuttle 

None 

 

7. If you answered “none” to Question 5… 
 

   Doesn’t go where I need it to 

   Service is too slow 

   Service is too infrequent 

Doesn’t fit my schedule 

   Fares are too expensive 

   Transit is too confusing/complicated 

Bus stop is too far 

Other (please specify) 

APPENDIX 3 

CBTP Survey (continued)

169



93 | NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSPORTATION PLAN

8. How do you commonly commute for work?

 Car

   Carpool/Vanpool

  Bike 

Other (please specify) 

   Walk 

Bus 

9. How do you typically commute for non-work related trips?

   Car

  Walk

  Bike 

Other (please specify) 

   Bus 

Uber/Lyft 

10. Are you enrolled in any of NVTA's mobility programs?

 VineGO

 Mileage Reimbursement

TaxiScrip

   No, but I am aware of them 

No, I did not know these services were available 

11. Do you experience difficulty in accessing grocery stores, schools, and healthcare?

 Yes

No

 Other (please specify)

* 12. Please provide any additional comments, concerns, or constraints you might experience getting around
in Napa. Would you like to be contacted?

   Yes 

No 

Other (please specify) 

APPENDIX 3 

CBTP Survey (continued)

170



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.5 

Continued From: January 15, 2020 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER ERRATA MEMO  
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Performance metrics for the Countywide Transportation Plan – Advancing Mobility 2045 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the baseline data 
for the Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) Advancing Mobility 2045 performance 
Metrics.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
At the January 15, 2020 Board meeting the NVTA Board adopted the performance 
metrics, goals and objectives for the Countywide Transportation Plan—Advancing 
Mobility 2045.  Working with DKS and the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), staff has 
compiled and analyzed data to set a baseline for the performance metrics.   
 
ERRATA 
 
The following corrections are being made to the staff report: 
 
The Performance Metrics summary on page number 178 (Attachment 1) and 198 
(Attachment 2) of the agenda packet is being revised to reflect the correct number of fatal 
and serious injury collisions for 2015-2018. 
 
The SAFETY Performance Metric baseline number is 339, not 4,275 as shown on 
page 178 and 198.   
 
The 4,275 number appeared in error from a previous draft presentation version.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None 

171



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.5 

Continued From: January 15, 2020 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Alberto Esqueda, Senior Planner/Program Administrator 

(707) 259-5976 / Email: aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Countywide Transportation Plan – Advancing Mobility 2045: 
Performance Measures 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the baseline data 
for the Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) Advancing Mobility 2045 performance 
Metrics.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
At its June 4th meeting, the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) recommended that the 
NVTA Board of Directors approve the baseline data for the performance metrics.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) has adopted new guidelines for 
CTPs. The guidelines require Countywide Transportation Agencies (CTAs) include 
performance goals and measures in their CTPs. NVTA is also responding to comments 
made by the Napa County Civil Grand Jury which recommended that NVTA include 
performance metrics and targets in its long-term planning process using those 
established by the Sonoma County Transportation Authority to underscore its 
recommendation.     
 
Staff initially evaluated performance metrics used by its partners in other counties, as well 
as the identified needs in the current CTP and outreach to date, and developed a short 
list of proposed performance metrics to assess the progress in meeting the measurable 
goals and objectives in the CTP. This is the first time NVTA is including performance 
metrics in a CTP. Staff will create a baseline for each performance metric, which will be 
the existing condition. The baseline will establish a starting point for each metric, which 

172

mailto:aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.5 
June 17, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
will help evaluate both negative and positive shifts in a particular metric. After establishing 
a baseline, staff will set a target for each metric, with the goal to reach the target by the 
end of the 25-year period of the CTP. As an exercise, incremental targets may be 
established to assess progress over the four-year period between Vision 2045 and Vision 
2050, the next CTP. In some cases, the target will be higher than the baseline, for 
example, in “bus ridership” the goal is to increase ridership. In other cases the target will 
be lower than the baseline e.g. in vehicle miles traveled (VMT) the goal is to lower the 
amount of VMT in Napa County.  
 
Input collected at NVTA’s September 2019 Transportation Summit indicates the public’s 
interest in congestion and sustainability metrics. There was less interest in equity metrics, 
nevertheless, equity has become a focus area by MTC and it is now a required section in 
the CTP. Given the changing demographics in Napa – a community that is aging and 
growing in diversity – and that many of the jobs created in Napa Valley provide lower 
wages, equity will be one of the central themes in NVTA’s CTP. 
 
The goals and objectives will serve as the framework for the CTP and they will help 
evaluate the projects submitted by jurisdictions. The NVTA Activity-Based Model will be 
utilized to evaluate project performance. NVTA will create a base scenario, a future 2045 
scenario without transportation investments, and a future 2045 condition that will include 
selected projects from the CTP project list for evaluation in the Plan.   
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board may choose to not adopt baseline data and request additional data and 
analysis, which could affect the CTP contract and schedule ultimately resulting in a fiscal 
impact to the Agency.  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1 – Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) CTP 2045 Goals and Objectives 
(2) Baseline Performance Measurements 

173



CTP 2045 Goals and Objectives

Preamble to goals:

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is responsible for developing long-range
countywide transportation priorities through an integrated planning process.  The 2019 Countywide
Transportation Plan – Advancing Mobility 2045, is an update to the 2015 Transportation Plan –
Vision 2040 Moving Napa Forward.  During the 2015 Countywide Transportation Plan, NVTA
conducted a needs assessment through various public engagement methods. Overarching themes
from the outreach in 2015 remain true today.  The community cited the following as the most
pressing needs of the transportation system:

 Congestion relief

 Improved traffic safety

 More active transportation infrastructure

 More reliable and frequent bus service

 Maintenance and repair of the existing transportation system

NVTA kicked off the update to Advancing Mobility 2045 in September. Outreach conducted to date
supports the priorities identified by the community in 2015. In addition, outreach conducted so far
has highlighted additional priorities as being a sustainable and equitable transportation system.
NVTA will continue to engage the public on the countywide plan’s priorities and projects of interest.  
NVTA will also monitor progress towards the goals and objectives of the plan through performance
metrics.  In this update to the countywide transportation plan, NVTA will set baseline metrics, which
summarize the existing conditions.  The goals of the Plan articulate the optimum outcome for where
Napa Valley’s transportation system should be in 2045.  Objectives are how NVTA gets from the
baseline to the goal.  NVTA will then establish specific measurable performance metrics and
targets to gauge how effective the plan is at reaching the established objectives.

In reviewing the goals and objectives it is important to understand the issues and challenges are
many and that some objectives may conflict with other objects.  Nevertheless, the solutions must
be balanced, therefore the proposed goals are considered of equal importance.

ATTACHMENT 1
NVAT Agenda Item 10.5

June 17, 2020
ERATTA

174



 

Goal 1: Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, income 
or ability. 

 
Objectives: 

1. Provide safe access to jobs, schools, recreation and other daily needs for Napa’s residents and visitors. 

 
2. Serve the special transportation needs of seniors, children and the disabled. 

 
3. Coordinate transportation services for disabled persons, seniors, children and other groups so each serves as 

many people as possible. 

 
4. Provide affordable transportation solutions to ensure access to jobs, education, goods, and services for all 

members of the community. 

 

Goal 2: Improve system safety in order to support all modes and serve all users. 
 

Objectives: 

1. Design roadways and other transportation facilities to enhance coexistence  of all modes. 

 
2. Educate all roadway users so they may safely coexist. 

 

3. Work with Napa jurisdictions to adopt safety strategies such as Vision Zero that address their needs and 

requirements.  

 
4. Ensure Measure T roadway funds are maximized to improve infrastructure, as allowed under the 

Ordinance, to benefit all transportation modes. 

 
5. Promote projects that expand travel options for cyclists and pedestrians as well as those projects that 

reduce congestion and  improve safety for vehicles, pedestrians, and cyclists 

 

Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently  

 
Objectives: 

1. Continue to prioritize local streets and road maintenance, consistent with Measure T. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
2. Invest in timely and reliable bus service and infrastructure, so public transit is an attractive alternative 

to driving alone. 

 
3. Identify innovative alternative solutions that minimize costs, maximize system performance and reduce 

congestion. 

 
4. Explore new transportation funding sources, including fees associated with new development. 

 
5. Foster partnerships with Caltrans, California Transportation Commission (CTC), Metropolitan 

Transportation Commission (MTC) and Napa’s state legislators to support expanded transportation 

funding for local mobility needs and to accommodate demand from regional traffic that travels through 

Napa County. 

 
  

 175



 

Goal 4: Promote Napa County’s economic sustainability.  

 
Objectives: 

1. Identify and improve key goods movement routes. 

 
2. Work with employers to improve access to employment centers, as well as dispersed agricultural 

employment sites. 

 
3. Improve transportation services aimed at visitors, including alternatives to driving. 

 
4. Support policies that shift travel from peak to non-peak hours. 

 

Goal 5: Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and 

goods. 

Objectives: 

1. Prioritize projects that reduce greenhouse gases. 

 
2. Increase mode share for transit, walking, and bicycling. 

 
3. Reduce vehicle miles traveled (VMT). 

 
4. Encourage the provision of alternative fuel infrastructure. 

 
5. Invest in improvements to the transportation network that serve land use, consistent 

with SB 375. 

 
6. Identify revenues that support investments in Priority Development Areas (PDAs) and Priority Production 

Areas (PPAs). 

 

Goal 6: Prioritize the maintenance and rehabilitation of the existing system 

 
Objectives: 

 
1. Deliver Measure T projects effectively. 

 
2. Focus funding on maintenance priorities. 

 

 

176



 Performance Measures 
 

EQUITY • Households by income category within .25 miles from transit stop 

SAFETY • Fatal and serious injury collisions 

EFFICIENCY 

(CONGESTION RELIEF) 

• Person hours of delay 

• Delay index (ratio of congested travel time to free flow travel time for a corridor) 

• On time bus performance (captures impact to transit users) 

• Number of users in NVTA’s Travel Demand Management (TDM) Program i.e VCommute 

ECONOMIC SUSTAINABILITY • Goods movement 

•  Jobs accessible by transit within a travel time shed 

SUSTAINABILITY  • Greenhouse gas emissions 

• Vehicle miles traveled (VMT) per capita 

• Active transportation mode shares 

• Transit ridership 

• On-time performance 

MAINTENANCE & 
PRESERVATION 

• Miles between bus road calls 

• Pavement Condition Index 

 

177



Goal Category Metric Baseline Target 

EQUITY  
Households below median income within .25 

miles from transit stop 
85% 100% 

SAFETY Fatal and serious injury collisions 4,275 339 0 

CONGESTION 

RELIEF 

Person Hours of Delay 3,108 Reduce  

On time bus performance (weighted by 

ridership) 
69% 90% 

Delay Index 1 – 3.71 Max of 2.0 

Number of users in NVTA’s TDM Programs 

(V-Commute & Napa Valley Forward) 
282 Increase 

ECONOMIC 

SUSTAINABILITY 

Truck Travel Time Reliability Index 2.09 Maintain/Reduce 

Jobs accessible by transit within a travel time 

shed 
124,793 countywide Maintain/Improve 

SUSTAINABILITY  

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
4.1 metric ton per 

capita 

Reduce by 19% per 

capita from 2015 

levels40% below 

1990 levels by 2030 

VMT (Vehicle Miles Traveled) per capita 
20 miles per capita 

per day  
15% decrease 

Active Transportation mode shares (i.e. walk, 

bike, transit)  
5% 10% increase 

Transit Ridership (Number of boarding and 

alightings) 

Regional: 87,737 

Commuter: 570,066 

Local: 382,023 

Maintain/Improve 

MAINTENANCE & 

PRESERVATION 

Miles between bus road calls (breakdowns) 42,750 miles Maintain/Improve 

Pavement Condition (Pavement Condition 

Index) 
58 80 

 

Summary 

178



Baseline Performance 
Measurements

PRESENTATION to NVTA Board

June 17, 2020

1

ATTACHMENT 2
NVTA Agenda Item 10.5

June 17, 2020
ERATTA

179



Goals for Advancing Mobility 2045 Plan

1. Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, income or 

ability (EQUITY)

2. Improve system safety in order to support all modes and serve all users (SAFETY)

3. Use taxpayer dollars efficiently (CONGESTION RELIEF)

4. Promote Napa County’s economic sustainability (ECONOMIC SUSTAINABILITY)

5. Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods 

(SUSTAINABILITY)

6. Prioritize the maintenance and rehabilitation of the existing system (MAINTENANCE 

& PRESERVATION)

2180



Performance Measures

EQUITY • Households by income category within .25 miles from transit stop

SAFETY • Fatal and serious injury collisions

CONGESTION 

RELIEF

• Delay index (ratio of congested travel time to free flow travel time 

for a corridor)

• Average weekday person hours of delay

• On time bus performance (captures impact to transit users)

• Number of users in NVTA’s TDM Programs (V-Commute & Napa 

Forward)

ECONOMIC 

SUSTAINABILITY

• Truck travel time reliability index (goods movement)

• Jobs accessible by transit within a travel time shed

SUSTAINABILITY

• Greenhouse gas emissions

• Vehicle miles traveled (VMT) per capita

• Active transportation mode shares

• Transit ridership (number of boardings and alightings)

MAINTENANCE & 

PRESERVATION

• Miles between bus road calls

• Pavement Condition Index
3181



Equity

4

MEASURE: Households below County median income within ¼ mile of Vine 

transit stop

Data Sources:

• Number of households in Napa County: 2014-2018* American Community Survey (ACS) Five 

Year Estimates; Table B19001 

• Census block groups shapefile: TIGER

• Vine transit stops shapefile: NVTA website

Baseline Measurement: Target:  100%

Number of households 

in Napa County

Number of households 

in Napa County below 

median income*

($75,000)

% of households in 

Napa County below 

median income* 

($75,000)

Number of households 

under median income 

within ¼ mile from 

transit stop

% of households under 

median income* that 

are within ¼ mile from 

transit stop

42,747 19,951 47% 16,869 85%

*Napa County median income is $84,753, however ACS provides data in income brackets like [$75,000 to $99,999]. Therefore 

households with an income less than $75,000 have been counted.

182



Safety

5

MEASURE: Number of severe injury and fatal 

collisions

Data Source: Transportation Injury Mapping System 

(TIMS)* 2015-2018 – injury and fatality collisions only

Baseline Measurement: Target: 0

*Geocoded data and mapping application of CHP’s Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System – University of California, 
Berkeley SafeTREC

City Total Fatal
Severe 
Injury

AMERICAN CANYON 1 12

CALISTOGA 1 13

NAPA 5 59

SAINT HELENA 2 3

UNINCORPORATED 39 202

YOUNTVILLE
-

2

Total in Napa County 48 291

183



Congestion Relief

6

MEASURE 1

Delay Index (ratio of corridor congested travel time to free-flow travel time)

Data Sources:

Free flow travel times and congested travel times for each roadway link from Napa Activity Based 

Model peak period traffic assignments.

• AM peak period (6-10 am)

• PM peak period (3-7 pm)

Delay Index = 1 
Free-flow

Delay Index > 1.5
Congestion

184



Congestion Relief

7

MEASURE 1

Baseline Measurement:

Direction Route Extents

Peak Period 
Delay 

Indices

AM PM

Eastbound

Trancas St SR 29 (St Helena Hwy)-Silverado Trail 1.00 1.00

Imola Ave SR 29-SR 221 (Napa Vallejo Hwy) 1.00 1.00

SR 12 (Sonoma 
Hwy) Old Sonoma Rd - SR 12/29/121 Jnct. 1.04 1.04

Westbound

Trancas St Silverado Trail - SR 29 (St Helena Hwy) 1.00 1.00

Imola Ave NapaValley-Jefferson 1.00 1.00

SR 12 (Sonoma 
Hwy) SR 12/29/121 Jnct-Old Sonoma Rd 1.04 1.04

Delay Index – East and Westbound Direction

Target: Peak period delay index less than or equal 2.0 

Corridors for Delay Index

185



Congestion Relief

8

MEASURE 1

Baseline Measurement:

Route Extents

Peak 
Period 
Delay 

Indices

AM PM

Silverado Trail

Deer Park Rd-Trancas St. 1.00 1.00

Trancas St - Lincoln Ave 1.01 1.01

Lincoln Ave -Imola Ave 1.01 1.01
SR-221 (Napa-
Vallejo Hwy) Imola Ave - SR 12 1.01 1.05

SR-29

Soscol Jnct-SR 12 (Lincoln Hwy) 1.88 3.14

SR 12-Donaldson Way 1.14 1.16

Donaldson Way - American Canyon Rd 1.01 1.04

SR 128/29 (St 
Helena Hwy)

Pope St -Trancas St 1.00 1.02

Trancas St -Lincoln Ave 1.20 1.22

Lincoln Ave -Imola Ave 1.09 1.13

Imola Ave-SR 12 (Sonoma Hwy) 1.01 1.01

Sonoma Hwy-Soscol Jnct. 1.02 1.03
Soscol Ave Trancas St -Imola Ave 1.00 1.01

Route Extents
Peak Period 

Delay Indices

AM PM

SR-29
American Canyon Rd -Donaldson Wy 1.03 1.02

Donaldson Way-SR 12 1.09 1.07

SR 12 (Lincoln Hwy) -Soscol Jnct. 3.71 2.40
SR-221 (Napa-
Vallejo Hwy) Soscol Jnct.-Imola Ave 1.01 1.01

Silverado 
Trail

Imola Ave-Lincoln Ave 1.00 1.01

Lincoln Ave -Trancas St 1.01 1.01

Trancas St -Deer Park Rd 1.00 1.00

SR 128/29 (St 
Helena Hwy)

Soscol Jnct-SR 12 (Sonoma Hwy) 1.00 1.00

SR 12 (Sonoma Hwy) - Imola Ave 1.00 1.00

Imola Ave-Lincoln Ave 1.11 1.10

Lincoln Ave -Trancas St 1.08 1.08

Trancas St -Pope St 1.03 1.01

Soscol Ave Imola Ave -Trancas St 1.03 1.02

Delay Index – Northbound DirectionDelay Index – Southbound Direction

Target: Peak period delay index less than or equal 2.0 

186



Congestion Relief

9

MEASURE 2

Average weekday person hours of delay (number of hours spent in congestion 

per person)

Data  Sources: 

Daily trip tables, free flow travel times and congested travel times from Napa Activity Based Model

Baseline Measurement:

Measure AM (6-10 am) PM (3-7 pm) EA (3-6 am)
MD (10am -

3pm)

EV (7pm -

3am)
Daily

Person Hours of Delay occurring 

on Napa County Roadways
1,399 1,288 24 324 73 3,108

Source: Napa Activity Based Model – 2015 Scenario

Target: Reduce person hours of delay from existing levels

187



Congestion Relief

10

MEASURE 3

On-time bus performance weighted by 

ridership

Data Sources:

• Vine Transit on-time performance data by route for 

year 2018 (routes changed December 2019)

• Vine Transit ridership data by route for year 2018

• Routes categorized by 

• City (Routes 1 to 8)

• Intercity (Routes 10 and 11)

• Regional routes (Routes 21 and 29)

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

70.00%

75.00%

80.00%

85.00%

90.00%

R
id

er
sh

ip

O
n

-t
im

e 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

City Routes, 2018

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

50.00%

55.00%

60.00%

65.00%

70.00%

Route 10 Route 11 Route 21 Route 29

R
id

er
sh

ip

O
n

-t
im

e 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

Intercity & Regional Routes, 2018

Performance 2018 Ridership
Route Type Weighted OTP

City Routes 79%

Intercity Routes 63%

Regional Routes 65%

Baseline Measurement:

Target:

Increase weighted on-time performance to 90% for all 

route types

188



Congestion Relief

11

MEASURE 4

Number of users in NVTA’s TDM Programs (V-Commute & Napa Valley Forward)

Data Source: V-Commute Program and Napa Valley Forward registered user data (2019-2020)

Baseline Measure:

Total TDM 
Users

(282)

V-Commute

(132 users)

Napa Valley 
Forward

(150 users)

Target: 

Increase the number TDM users by targeting large employers.

189



Economic Sustainability

12

MEASURE 1

Truck Travel Time Reliability (TTTR) Index

Target:

Maintain or reduce by planned highway improvements 

the current overall TTTR Index of 2.09.

Data Source: National Performance Management 

Research Data Set (NPMRDS 2017-2019) obtained 

from RITIS at https://npmrds.ritis.org/analytics/.

Baseline Measurement: Overall TTTR Index of 2.09

Highway/Road Direction
TTTR Index 

(2019)

CA-12
Eastbound 2.74

Westbound 2.88

CA-121
Northbound 1.74

Southbound 2.15

CA-29
Northbound 1.96

Southbound 2.06

Napa-Vallejo Hwy
Northbound 2.46

Southbound 3.10

2.17
2.16

2.09

2.09

2.04

2.06

2.08

2.10

2.12

2.14

2.16

2.18

2017 2018 2019

O
ve

ra
ll 

TT
TR

Year
Overall TTTR Target

190

https://npmrds.ritis.org/analytics/


Economic Sustainability

13

MEASURE 2

Number of jobs accessible by transit within one hour

Data Sources:

• Isochrones of transit coverage centered at jurisdictions from 

www.remix.com for 6:40 AM, 7:00 AM and 7:40 AM

• Number of jobs shapefile from 2012-2016 Census 

Transportation Planning Products (CTPP); Table A202100 at 

TAZ level

Source: www.remix.com

Number of jobs accessible by transit from city centers 
between 6:30 AM and 8:00 AM

Jurisdiction Number of Jobs

American Canyon 37,725

Calistoga 8,831

Napa 40,241

St. Helena 8,475

Yountville 29,521

Baseline Measurement:

Target: Maintain or improve the current level of job accessibility by 

Vine Transit 191

http://www.remix.com/
http://www.remix.com/


Sustainability

14

MEASURE 1

Greenhouse gas emissions

Data Source: GHG emissions data for surface 

transportation from MTC Vital Signs (2015)

Baseline Measurement: 4.1 metric tons of GHG emissions per capita in Napa County in 2015

3.2
2.9

3.9 4 4 4.1

0

1

2

3

4

5

0

100000

200000

300000

400000

500000

600000

700000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

m
et

ri
c 

to
n

 p
er

 c
ap

it
a

m
et

ri
c 

to
n

Axis Title

Transportation GHG Emissions

Target: 
Reduce by 19% per capita from 2015 levels. 
(Consistent with Plan Bay Area 2040)

192



Sustainability

15

MEASURE 2

Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT)

Data Source:

VMT per day and person data from Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). Latest 
available for year 2015.

VMT per capita by Jurisdiction

Lives Works Calistoga St. Helena Yountville Napa American Canyon Average

Live in area Works in area 8.22 11.95 8.94 9.18 8.74 9.41

Live in area
Works out of 

area 35.75 39.43 40.48 42.24 31.11 37.80

Live in area Non-worker 9.91 10.85 12.35 6.51 8.64 9.65

Live out of area Works in area 37.31 36.64 30.80 39.42 26.96 34.23

Live out of area
Works out of 

area 21.68 21.67 21.68 21.56 21.66 21.65

Live out of area Non-worker 7.97 7.97 7.97 7.99 7.97 7.98

Average 20.14 21.42 20.37 21.15 17.51 20.12

Baseline Measurement: Vehicle Miles Traveled: 20 miles per capita

Target: 15% reduction in VMT from existing level, in accordance with SB 743

193



Sustainability

16

MEASURE 3

Active Modes of Transportation: Share of walking and biking in Napa County

Data Source: 2014-2018 American Community Survey (ACS) Five Year Estimates: Commuting 

Characteristics by Sex; Table S0801

Mode Mode Share

Walked 4%

Bicycle 1%

Baseline Measurement:

Walking and biking mode share: 5%

Target:

Increase walking and biking mode share to 10% by 2045

Source: Vinetrail.org

194



Sustainability

17

MEASURE 4

Transit Ridership – number of boardings and 

alightings

Data Source:

Vine Transit ridership data from NVTA (2018-2019)

Baseline Measurement:

Target:

Maintain or increase from baseline service ridership

SERVICE TYPE RIDERSHIP

REGIONAL SERVICE 87,737

COMMUTER SERVICE 570,066

LOCAL ROUTES 382,023

195



Maintenance & Preservation

18

MEASURE 1

Miles between bus road calls (breakdowns)

Data Source:

Miles between road calls data from National Transit Database (NTD) (2015-2018)

Year

Major 
Mechanical 

Failures

Other 
Mechanical 

Failures
Total Mechanical 

Failures

Vehicle/ 
Passenger Car 

Miles
Miles between 

breakdowns

2015 47 7 54 1,868,460 34,601

2016 10 27 37 1,896,297 51,251

2017 4 53 37 1,900,821 51,374

2018 15 40 55 1,857,627 33,775

Baseline Measurement:

Average miles between road calls (2015-2018): 42,750 miles

Target: Maintain or improve the average number of miles between road calls.

196



Maintenance & Preservation

19

MEASURE 2

Pavement Condition Index
A numerical index between 0 to 100, used to indicate the 

general condition of a pavement section.

Data Sources:

Pavement Condition Index at street level and at county level 

from MTC Vital Signs (2018)

Baseline Measurement:

MTC Vital Signs reports the 2018 PCI Score for Napa County 

as 58. Currently 64% of the streets have Good/Fair or 

Excellent/Very Good pavement condition.

Pavement Condition % of streets by pavement condition

Excellent/Very Good 42%

Good/Fair 22%

At Risk 7%

Poor/Failed 29%

Pavement Condition Index by MTC (2018)

Jurisdiction PCI

American Canyon 64

Calistoga 56

Napa 70

St. Helena 56

Yountville 74

Unincorporated 50

Target:

Achieve a countywide PCI score of 80.
197



Summary

20

Goal Category Metric Baseline Target

EQUITY
Households below median income within .25 miles from transit 
stop

85% 100%

SAFETY Fatal and serious injury collisions 4,275 339 0

CONGESTION 

RELIEF

Person Hours of Delay 3,108 Reduce 

On time bus performance (weighted by ridership) 69% 90%

Delay Index 1 – 3.71 Max of 2.0

Number of users in NVTA’s TDM Programs (V-Commute & Napa 
Valley Forward)

282 Increase

ECONOMIC 

SUSTAINABILITY

Truck Travel Time Reliability Index 2.09 Maintain/Reduce

Jobs accessible by transit within a travel time shed 124,793 countywide Maintain/Improve

SUSTAINABILITY

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 4.1 metric ton per capita

Reduce by 19% per 
capita from 2015 levels
40% below 1990 levels 

by 2030

VMT (Vehicle Miles Traveled) per capita
20 miles per capita per 

day 
15% decrease

Active Transportation mode shares (i.e. walk, bike, transit) 5% 10% increase

Transit Ridership (Number of boarding and alightings)
Regional: 87,737

Commuter: 570,066
Local: 382,023

Maintain/Improve

MAINTENANCE & 

PRESERVATION

Miles between bus road calls (breakdowns) 42,750 miles Maintain/Improve

Pavement Condition (Pavement Condition Index) 58 80198



Thank You

21199



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

State Legislative and Federal Update and State Bill Matrix 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the State Legislative 
update prepared by Platinum Advisors and the State Bill Matrix. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The memos attached will provide the board with federal and state legislative update.  The 
memo includes updates on the Investing in a New Vision for the Environment and Surface 
Transportation (INVEST) in America Act which is the surface transportation authorization 
legislation unveiled by the House Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure.  

There are no changes in the state bill matrix.  As noted in previous legislative updates, 
state legislative activities will be focused on the state budget, housing, economic recovery 
associated with COVID-19 impacts, and fire recovery and protection. Bills that are listed 
on the matrix will be continued and or reintroduced in future sessions. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

200



June 17, 2020 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY:  Kate Miller, Executive Director 

(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Legislative Update and State Bill Matrix 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the State Legislative 
update prepared by Platinum Advisors (Attachment 1) and the State Bill Matrix 
(Attachment 2). 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
State Update 
 
Attached are the State legislative update (Attachment 1) and the State Bill Matrix 
(Attachment 2).  There are no changes to the bill matrix.   
 
Federal Update 
The House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee unveiled the Investing in a New 
Vision for the Environment and Surface Transportation (INVEST) in America Act on June 
2nd.  The act would invest nearly $500 billion over five years to address infrastructure 
needs. The bill emphasizes the need to address deferred maintenance and resiliency. 
While the bill does not appear to modify the gas tax to replenish the Highway Trust Fund, 
it does propose a National Surface Transportation System Funding Pilot that would 
evaluate the efficacy of a per mile user fee to restore the solvency of the Trust fund.    
 

201

mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.6 
June 17, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
In response to the COVID-19 public health crisis, the bill proposes to replace lost highway 
and transit revenues and authorize 100 percent federal share for certain programs.  Total 
proposed increase over the FAST Act is 62%. 
 
Federal Aid Highway account funding would range from $55.02 billion in FFY 2022 to 
$58.11 billion in FFY 2025.  The Mass Transit Account will be authorized at a range of 
$16.19 billion in FFY 2022 to $16.93 billion in FY 2025.  Table 1 below shows amounts in 
comparison to the FAST Act. 
 
Table 1:  Comparison of INVEST in America Act and Fast Act ($ in Billions) 
 Fast Act              

(FY 2015-
2020) 

INVEST in 
American Act 

(FY 2021-
2025) 

Percent  
Increase over 

FAST Act 

Highway $225 $319 42% 
Transit 61 105 72% 
Rail 10 60 483% 
Other (includes Safety) 9 10 16% 
TOTAL $305 $494 62% 

 
The Act introduces a new program titled Multi-jurisdictional Bus Frequency and Ridership 
Competitive Grants which replaces the Clean Fuels Program. The program would focus 
funding for capital projects that increase system frequency, bus ridership and total person 
throughput.    
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
This report is information only. 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) June 1, 2020 State Legislative Update (Platinum Advisors) 
(2) June 1, 2020 State Bill Matrix (Platinum Advisors) 

202



1 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6 

June 17, 2020 

 
 
June 1, 2020 
 
TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
 
FR: Steve Wallauch 
 Platinum Advisors 
 
RE: Legislative Update           
 
On May 14th, Governor Gavin Newsom released his May Revision, a markedly different 
document than was anticipated earlier this year. Governor Newsom’s message that the 
world has changed dramatically since he proposed his budget in January pretty much 
sums up the dire situation facing the state.   
Since the release of the May Revise the Assembly Budget Subcommittees have held 
several informational hearings on the changes, but the Assembly has not adopted any 
changes.  The Senate Budget Subcommittees held hearings reviewing the May Revise 
changes, adopting some of the changes and rejecting several others.  This revised budget 
was then adopted by the entire Senate Budget Committee last week.   

• The Senate Version approves the vast majority of the Governor’s proposals.  
• The Senate Version rejects solutions subject to the trigger in the May Revision, 

and replaces them with alternative trigger solutions.  
• Under this trigger mechanism, the federal funds are assumed to arrive and are 

deposited into the General Fund. But, if by September 1, 2020 the federal funds 
have not materialized, the trigger solutions take effect October 1, 2020.  The 
Governor’s proposal imposed the cuts and then triggered them off if federal funds 
are received. 

With the June 15th deadline to adopt a budget approaching, the formation of the traditional 
budget conference committee is not expected.  At this time the Senate is expected to 
adopt its version and then send it to the Assembly for consideration.  The budget plan 
adopted by the Senate Budget Committee is very close to the Assembly’s rumored 
version, but the houses will work together to come up with a consensus deal by early next 
week to allow time for a budget bill to be prepared for a June 15 vote.  
 
May Revise: In January, California had experienced 118 months of consecutive 
economic growth. Since that time, due primarily to the COVID-19 pandemic, California’s 
unemployment claims have increased by 4.4 million, the unemployment rate for 2020 is 
forecast at 18%, revenues have declined by a projected $41 billion, and the State fiscal 

203

http://www.ebudget.ca.gov/2020-21/pdf/Revised/BudgetSummary/FullBudgetSummary.pdf


2 
 

outlook has gone from a $6 billion surplus to a deficit of $54 billion prior to the governor’s 
May Revision changes.  
Governor Newsom described the May Revision this year as a fiscal blueprint to fund our 
most essential priorities – public health, public safety, and public education and to support 
workers and businesses. He emphasized repeatedly during the press conference where 
he presented his updated budget proposal that additional substantial federal assistance 
is essential.  
To close the State’s deficit, the May Revise proposes canceling new initiatives, canceling 
and reducing spending in the 2019 Budget Act, drawing down reserves, borrowing from 
special funds, and temporarily increasing revenues. It also reflects savings from the 
Administration’s direction to agencies and departments to increase efficiencies. In 
addition, the May Revision proposes reductions needed to address the budget gap in the 
event the federal government does not provide additional necessary funding (triggers).  

• Cancel $6.1 billion in program expansions and spending increases, including 
canceling or reducing a number of one-time expenditures included in the 2019 
Budget Act. It also includes redirecting $2.4 billion in extraordinary payments to 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) to temporarily offset 
the state’s obligations to CalPERS  

• Draw down $16.2 billion in the Budget Stabilization Account (Rainy Day Fund) over 
three years and allocate the Safety Net Reserves.  

• Borrow and transfer $4.1 billion from special funds.  This includes sweeping some 
transportation interest income and unencumbered Traffic Congestion Relief Fund 
revenue into the general fund. 

• For businesses with over $1 million in annual income, the budget would suspend 
net operating loss carry over and temporarily limit to $5 million the amount of 
credits a taxpayer can use in any given tax year.  These short-term limitations will 
generate new revenue of $4.4 billion in 2020-21, $3.3 billion in 2021-22, and $1.5 
billion in 2022-23. 

• The budget also reflects the Administration’s nationwide request of $1 trillion in 
flexible federal funds to support all 50 states and local governments.  If California 
does not receive at least $14 billion in federal assistance, the May Revise proposes 
several cuts that would be triggered in the amount the federal funds fall short.  The 
trigger cuts range from furloughs or state employee salary cuts to numerous 
program cuts throughout the budget. 

 
Legislative Analyst Office (LAO) Budget Outlook. The LAO released a spring fiscal 
outlook, a document typically produced annually in the fall. Their outlook examines two 
sets of economic conditions, one more optimistic, a “U-shaped” recession, and the other 
more pessimistic, an “L-shaped” recession. 
Under a U-shaped recession, the economy would begin recovering quickly, possibly this 
summer, as measured by personal income and employment. Although economic activity 
would remain below pre-recession levels well into 2021, the recovery would be more rapid 

204

https://lao.ca.gov/reports/2020/4228/spring-outlook-2020.pdf
https://lao.ca.gov/reports/2020/4228/spring-outlook-2020.pdf


3 
 

beginning in the second half of 2021. Under this scenario, the LAO anticipates $26 billion 
in lower revenues, a lower required reserve deposit freeing up $2.4 billion, accessible 
reserves of $9.4 billion, and a budget shortfall of $18.1 billion. The State would face 
annual deficits of about $20 billion under the U-shaped recession through 2023-24, 
totaling $64 billion over the multiyear period.  
Under an L-shaped recession, the economy would remain significantly impacted well into 
2021, and gradual recovery would begin in the second half of 2021, with the economy 
returning to pre-recession levels in 2023 at the earliest. Under this scenario, the LAO 
anticipates $39 billion in lower revenues, a lower required reserve deposit freeing up $2.7 
billion, accessible reserves of $9.2 billion, and a budget shortfall of $31.4 billion. The LAO 
projects that under an L-shaped recession, the State would have annual deficits of around 
$30 billion and a larger budget deficit in 2021-22 than in 2020-21. They estimate a total 
deficit of $126 billion over the multiyear period.  
Under both of the LAO’s models, COVID-19 spending is estimated at $7 billion with 75% 
being reimbursed by the federal government, funding for K-14 spending would remain at 
the 2019-20 level adjusted for inflation and attendance, additional federal funding for 
Medi-Cal would save the State $6 billion, and the governor’s January budget 
augmentations are removed for a savings of $3.8 billion.  
Differences Between DOF and LAO Estimates 

• DOF assumes $41 billion in lower revenues, and the LAO assumes $39 billion in 
lower revenues (under the L-shaped recession). 

• The LAO assumes that the State would not be required to put money into reserves, 
DOF did not adopt that assumption.  

• DOF maintained K-14 Prop 98 spending from the governor’s January proposal, 
while the LAO assumes the State will reduce that spending by $2.4 billion.  

• DOF assumes much higher caseload driven costs than the LAO.  

• The LAO assumes $6 billion more in federal Medi-Cal funding than DOF.  

• DOF adopted the governor’s January discretionary proposals as part of baseline 
costs, while the LAO did not.  

Alternative Budget Assumptions that Could Reduce the Projected Deficit 

• The State could use $9.5 billion from the federal Coronavirus Relief Fund to cover 
costs. Because the Treasury has not implemented guidance, the LAO did not 
assume use of the funding.  

• Eliminating cost-of-living adjustments not required by law, would save an 
estimated $2.1 billion ($1.7 billion from K-14 education).  

• Funding schools and community colleges at the constitutional minimum level 
would save $10.1 billion under the U-shaped recession or $15.4 billion under the 
L-shaped recession scenario.  

• Recent augmentations and allocations that haven’t been disbursed could be pulled 
back to save about $3.8 billion.  

205



4 
 

• $1.7 billion in budget augmentations subject to suspension in 2021-22 could be 
eliminated. 

• The increase in minimum wage could be paused, however the LAO estimates that 
the budget savings in 2020-21 would not be significant.  

Assessment, Guidance, & Comments 

• The LAO advises that long-term solutions will be required to bring the budget into 
structural alignment as the recession will last longer than the 2020-21 fiscal year.  

• The Legislature will need to utilize reserves, reduce spending, increase revenues, 
and/or shift costs to balance the budget, preferably using a combination of these 
methods.  

• Utilizing the State’s reserves could allow the phase-in of budget reductions as well 
as provide the implementation time needed for cuts.  

• Health and economic consequences should be a consideration when evaluating 
budget solutions. Determining whether programmatic reductions will exacerbate 
the adverse impacts of the pandemic on public health or the economy should be a 
focus. 

• Decisions should begin in June as it relates to budgetary reductions rather than 
waiting for revenue returns in August. Cuts to ongoing spending will be necessary 
and waiting will increase the size of the problem as well as make reductions harder 
to implement.  

Assembly Budget Chairman Phil Ting (D-San Francisco) expressed a lack of surprise 
regarding the LAO’s analysis, stating that over the next few weeks all options will be on 
the table including revenue options and expenditure reductions.  
Senate Budget Proposals:  Incorporated into the Senate Budget proposal are two 
interesting proposals aimed at providing relief to renters and landlords, and another 
proposal to incentivize prepayment of income taxes.   

• Renter/Landlord Stabilization program would allow renters to repay unpaid rent 
over a 10-year period of time without interest, beginning in 2024. The program 
would create agreements between renters, landlords, and the State. Landlords 
would provide rent and eviction relief in exchange for tax credits from the State 
equal to the value of the lost rents, spread equally over 2024 through 2033. These 
tax credits could be sold on the open market, so landlords could receive cash 
immediately.  

• Economic Recovery Fund would generate up to $25 billion over two years. The 
program would incentivize the pre-payment of about $3 billion in income taxes 
annually for tax years 2024 to 2033.  Taxpayers would be able to sell to third parties 
to get cash benefit at any time.  The trade-off for the state is that it would lose up 
to $3 billion annually over the 2024-2033 fiscal years.  The general idea is to 
stabilize the economy in the short term by accelerate funds from future years. 
Funds could be used in a variety of ways, including assisting small businesses, 
nonprofits, and workers, as well as infrastructure project acceleration, residential 

206



5 
 

and small business rental assistance, green economy investments, and local 
government relief.  
 

Transportation 
Transportation:  While the economic downturn will impact transportation funding, the 
May Revise did not include significant changes.  Over the next 5 years gasoline excise 
tax revenue is expected to drop by $1.8 billion, with $1.2 billion of the hit being to the 
current 19-20 and 20-21 fiscal years.  This shows that the Department of Finance (DOF) 
is assuming a fairly quick economic rebound.  The budget year is also forecasting a drop 
in diesel sales tax revenue, which will impact transit operating funds.  However, other 
funding sources, such as SB 1 vehicle registration fees, are so far stable.   
General Fund Raid:  The May Revise includes three shifts from transportation accounts 
to the general fund for a total of $184 million.  This includes loaning $22 million from the 
Local Airport Loan Account to the general fund, transferring $32 million in unencumbered 
Traffic Congestion Relief Funds back to the general fund, and transferring $130 million in 
interest income to the general fund.  The interest income is still a little blurry, but it would 
transfer the interest paid from the Surplus Money Investment Account to the State 
Highway Account over the past four years – this appears to be interest on Highway User 
Transportation Account (HUTA).   
The Senate budget proposal rejects the transfer of $130 million in interest income, which 
will provide these funds for transportation projects.   

Transit Funds:  The May Revise adjusts downward the funds allocated to public transit 
operators via the State Transit Assistance (STA) formula from $806 million in January to 
$528 million in May.  However, the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) 
funds remain $115 million.  LCTOP is currently stable as the funding source for this 
program are cap & trade auction revenue.  The primary source of the drop in STA is the 
forecast drop in the value of diesel fuel sales. 
Transit Relief:  The Senate Budget proposal includes place holder language to provide 
transit operators greater flexibility in using existing funds as well as relief from farebox 
requirements.  These proposals are being pushed by the California Transit Association, 
and the items being negotiated include the following:  

• Institute a two-year hold harmless provision for the calculation and allocation of the 
individual transit agency factors the State Controller makes to allocate 50% of 
revenues flowing through the State Transit Assistance Program, the STA-based 
State of Good Repair Program and the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program, 
all programs that rely on calculations of “Local Revenue” earned by transit 
operators; 

• Temporarily create more flexibility in the use of Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Program and STA-based State of Good Repair Program funds; and, 

• Temporarily eliminate counterproductive financial penalties for non-compliance 
with transit funding efficiency measures in the Transportation Development Act 
and the State Transit Assistance Program. 

207



6 
 

 
Cap and Trade Expenditure Plan:  Adoption of the cap & trade expenditure plan will not 
be included in the June 15th budget, but will be deferred until August.  The May Revise 
maintains the January estimate of $965 million being available for the discretionary 
expenditure plan.  However, the Revise cautions that auction proceeds are uncertain 
given the current economy.  To address this uncertainty the Administration is calling for 
a pay-as-you-go approach in allocating auction proceeds, and to prioritize funding for 
specified programs.   
Proposed budget bill language would prohibit any department from encumbering auction 
proceeds prior to results of each auction is known.  The language would allocate on a 
quarterly basis the off-the-top allocations for programs, such as the Low Carbon 
Transportation Program, Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program, and High-Speed Rail, 
among others.  However, before funds are allocated to the discretionary expenditure 
program, such as CARB administered programs, the following programs would be a 
priority: 

• Up to $130 million for the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Program. 
• Up to $200 million for the Community Air Protection Program grants. AB 617, 

Chapter 136, Statutes of 2017 
• Up to $200 million for healthy forest and fire prevention programs. AB 38, Chapter 

391, Statutes of 2019 
According to the budget bill language the funds remaining after the funding caps for these 
programs is reached shall be proportionately allocated to each of the discretionary 
funding programs adopted by the legislature.   
The Senate Budget proposal directs CARB to consider a rulemaking process on 
improvements to the cap & trade program, but the details on this direction are not yet 
available. 

May Auction Results:  The concerns expressed above regarding the cap & trade auction 
came true on May 20th.  The latest auction resulted in only $25 million in net revenue.  A 
significant drop from the $612 million generated at the February 2020 auction.  While the 
current reserves of $550 million can be used to keep current year programs whole, and 
a portion could potentially be used for 2020-21 fiscal year, these dire auction results will 
have an immediate impact on the continuously appropriated programs, such as the Low 
Carbon Transit Operations Program.  It is too soon to tell if this drop is an anomaly or a 
trend.  The next auction will be held in August, which is when the legislature plans to take 
action on the cap & trade budget. 

 

208

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB617
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB617
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB38
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB38


1 
 

 
 
 

June 1, 2020 
 
Bills Subject Status Client - Position 

AB 2542 
(Kalra D) 
Local 
transportation 
funds: State 
Transit 
Assistance 
Program: 
reports. 

AB 2542 revises provisions of annual 
reporting requirements in relation to the 
State Transit Assistance Program 
(STA).  It would shift the deadline for when 
a regional transportation planning agency 
(RTPA) must submit an STA eligibility 
report to the State Controller’s Office 
(SCO) to within seven months of the end 
of each fiscal year.  It would also 
require the SCO to compile, publish, and 
make publicly available on its website the 
data and information of all transit operator 
financial transaction reports (FTRs) on or 
before November 1 of each year. 

ASSEMBLY   APPR. Recommended 
Position: 
SUPPORT 

AB 2730 
(Cervantes D) 
Access and 
functional 
needs: local 
government: 
agreement for 
emergency 
management, 
transportation, 
and 
paratransit 
services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The intent of AB 2730 is to update local 
emergency evacuation plans to include 
agreements on the use of paratransit 
vehicles to evacuate vulnerable 
population.  However, the structure of the 
bill raises concerns by placing these 
agreements outside the normal 
emergency planning process. 

AB 2730 requires a regional transit district, 
county transportation commission, or 
other local transportation authority that 
provides paratransit services to enter into 
an agreement with adjacent regional 
transit districts, county transportation 
commissions, or local transportation 
authorities, upon request of the adjacent 
district, commission, or authority, for 
purposes of permitting the adjacent 
district, commission, or authority to 
borrow, for compensation, paratransit 
vehicles and drivers in the event of an 

ASSEMBLY   APPR. Recommended 
Position: 
WATCH 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6 

June 17, 2020 

209

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202542');
https://a27.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202730');
https://a60.asmdc.org/


2 
 

AB 2730 
(Cervantes D) 
(Continued) 

emergency that requires the evacuation 
and relocation of the access and 
functional needs population in the 
jurisdiction or service area of the adjacent 
district, commission, or authority. 

Provides that a regional transit district, 
county transportation commission, local 
transportation authority, county, or city 
and county is required to enter into an 
agreement described above within 2 years 
of a request for the agreement. 

 
 
 
Existing Positions 

 
Bills 

Subject Status Client 
Positions 

AB 1350 
(Gonzalez D)  
Youth Transit 
Pass Pilot 
Program. 
 
 
 

AB 1350 (Gonzalez) was introduced last 
year with the intent of creating a funding 
program to provide free student bus 
passes.  However, AB 1350 was amended 
earlier this month to replace the grant 
program with a mandate on transit 
operators.   
 
As drafted, if a public transit operator wants 
to receive State Transit Assistance (STA), 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) or 
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 
(LCTOP) funds then it shall provide free 
buses to persons 18 years of age and 
under.  While the bill states that these free 
passes will be counted as a full fare for 
purposes of farebox calculations, this would 
still create a significant fiscal impact on 
transit operators. 
 
While the author intends to address the 
fiscal impact of this bill, on behalf of NVTA 
we intend to work with the author to include 
a stable long-term funding source that is 
sufficient to address the cost impact. 
 

Senate Transp. 
 
Assemblywoman 
Gonzalez will not 
move this bill.  To 
be reintroduced 
next year. 

OPPOSE 
Unless 
Amended  

210

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202730');
https://a60.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201350');
https://a80.asmdc.org/


3 
 

AB 1839 
(Bonta D) 
Climate 
change: 
California 
Green New 
Deal. 
 
 
 

AB 1839 proposes a Green New Deal for 
California.   
 
As currently drafted, this measure would 
establish a policy framework of principles 
and goals to address negative climate 
change impacts and inequity.  One of the 
elements of the New deal include 
increasing affordable housing and public 
transportation by doubling their current 
availability by 2030.  AB 1839 would create 
the California Green New Deal Council, 
which would consist of specified agency 
secretaries.  This Council will develop and 
submit a report to the Legislature on 
recommendations and policies to achieve 
the specified goals. 
 
However, the current version is a general 
outline of future content.  Amendments are 
expected that provide more details on how 
the goals of the Green New Deal will 
achieved. 
 

ASSEMBLY    
PRINT 
 
Assemblyman 
Bonta will not move 
this bill.  To be 
reintroduced next 
year. 

Watch 

AB 2012 
(Chu D)  
Free senior 
transit passes: 
eligibility for 
state funding. 

AB 2012 by Assemblyman Kansen Chu 
was introduced on January 28th.  Similar to 
AB 1350, this bill would mandate all public 
transit operators to provide free transit 
passes to individuals aged 65 and over if 
the operators want to remain eligible to 
receive STA, TDA and LCTOP funds. 
To be consistent with the action on AB 
1350, an Oppose Unless Amended position 
is also recommended on AB 2012. 
 

ASSEMBLY 
TRANS 
 
Assemblyman Chu 
will not move this 
bill.  To be 
reintroduced next 
year. 

Oppose Unless 
Amended 

AB 2057 
(Chiu D) 
San Francisco 
Bay area: 
public 
transportation 

AB 2057 is currently a spot bill that contains 
intent language to establish a seamlessly 
integrated regional transit system.  While 
the impetus for this legislation is from the 
Seamless Bay Area effort, Assemblyman 
Chiu intends to work with transit operators 
to craft legislation that will advance service 
coordination and fare integration throughout 
the Bay Area.  This will not be an easy 
process, but one that we will be actively 
involved in. 
 

 ASSEMBLY  
TRANS 
 
Assemblyman Chiu 
will not move this 
bill.  To be 
reintroduced next 
year. 

WATCH 

211

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201839');
https://a18.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202012');
https://a25.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202057');
https://a17.asmdc.org/


4 
 

AB 2176 
(Holden D) 
Free student 
transit passes: 
eligibility for 
state funding. 

AB 2176 is also structured the same as AB 
1350 and AB 2012, but it would require 
transit operators to provide a free transit 
pass to any student enrolled in community 
college, CSU, or UC. 
 
As proposed to be amended AB 2176 
would require each transit agency and each 
community college, CSU, or UC located 
within the transit operators service area to 
enter into an agreement to offer free or 
reduced fare transit passes to students.  In 
addition, AB 2176 would require any 
community college, CSU or UC that 
currently charges a student fee for public 
transit service shall use that revenue solely 
for transit services.   
 

ASSEMBLY    
TRANS 
 
Assemblyman 
Holden will not 
move this bill.  To 
be reintroduced 
next year. 

Oppose Unless 
Amended 

AB 3209 
(Aguiar-
Curry D) 
California 
Transportation 
Commission. 

As amended, AB 3209 would authorize the 
NVTA to develop and submit to the 
California Transportation Commission a 
local alternative transportation investment 
plan.  The plan would direct the re-
investment of proceeds from the sale 
excess right-of-way located at the 
intersection of State Highway Route 29 and 
State Highway Route 221 to address 
transportation problems and opportunities 
on state highways in the county. 
 

ASSEMBLY    
TRANS 
 
Assemblywoman 
Aguiar-Curry with 
NVTA’s consent 
has decided not to 
move this bill.  To 
be reintroduced 
next year. 

SPONSOR 

ACA 1 
(Aguiar-
Curry D)  
Local 
government 
financing: 
affordable 
housing and 
public 
infrastructure: 
voter approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACA 1 failed passage on the Assembly 
Floor.  Reconsideration was granted, and 
another attempt is possible, but the 
measure was 8 votes short of the 54 
needed for passage.  A few Democrat 
members voted No, and several others 
abstained.  Given the stigma that this 
measure erodes Prop 13 protections makes 
it unlikely it will secure the needed support 
to move to the Senate. 
 
ACA 1 would lower the voter threshold for 
property tax increases, parcel taxes and 
sales taxes to 55% if the funds are used for 
affordable housing and infrastructure 
projects.  This includes capital 

ASSEMBLY 
FLOOR 
 
Failed Passage – 
Reconsideration 
Granted 
 
Assemblywoman 
Aguiar-Curry might 
try again later this 
session. 

SUPPORT 

212

http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=zMIsZ5wmgfredBe%2bQlLUHmv6Oa6%2fNNwMxj6tRz3HcONY89FHCV%2f23diHs4WaNU%2b5
https://a41.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%203209');
https://a04.asmdc.org/
https://a04.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('ACA%201');
https://a04.asmdc.org/
https://a04.asmdc.org/


5 

ACA 1 
(Aguiar-
Curry D) 
(Continued) 

improvements to transit and streets and 
highways.   

However, ACA 1 does not allow for the 55% 
local measure to use the tax revenue for 
transit operations. 

SB 336 
(Dodd D)  
Transportation: 
fully-
automated 
transit 
vehicles. 

SB 336 aims to address safety and 
customer service issues by requiring at 
least one public transit employee to be 
present on any fully automated transit 
vehicle.  The public transit employee shall 
be trained in passenger safety, 
communications, emergency preparedness, 
and assisting the disabled and elderly.   

SB 336 would also require any transit 
operator that deploys an autonomous 
vehicle to submit a report to the legislature 
on that deployment by March 31st, 2025.  
SB 336 would sunset on January 1, 2025.  

ASSEMBLY 
TRANSP – Two-
Year Bill 

This bill will likely 
not move this year. 

SUPPORT 

SB 1408 
(Dodd D) 
State Route 37 
Toll Bridge 
Act. 

SB 1408 would authorize another toll bridge 
in the Bay Area.  While the bill currently 
does not specify the entity that would 
operate and maintain the toll facilities, the 
bill would authorize a toll for the use of the 
Sonoma Creek Bridge along Highway 37.  
The primary purpose of the toll authority is 
to fund improvement to the Highway 37 
corridor that address sea level rise threats, 
flooding, and congestion. 

SENATE   TRANS 

Senator Dodd will 
not move this bill.  
To be reintroduced 
next year. 

SUPPORT 

213

javascript:OpenBillInfo('ACA%201');
https://a04.asmdc.org/
https://a04.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20336');
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%201408');
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/

	0000_Agenda
	0.0_Glossary of Acronyms Updated 05-2020
	0001_1_Draft Meeting Minutes
	0002_1_Staff Report
	9.2_ATAC Bylaws Amendment_Cover_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	______________________________________________________________________
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.2_ATAC Bylaws Amendment_Memo_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT: Approval of Resolution No. 20-08 Amending the Active Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC) Bylaws
	______________________________________________________________________
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.2_ATAC Bylaws Amendment Attch 1 Resolution 20-08 Amending ATAC Bylaws_kes-KM_DMG
	RESOLUTION No. 20-08
	Passed and adopted this 17th day of June, 2020.


	9.2_ATAC Bylaws Amendment Attch 1 Resolution 20-08 Amending ATAC Bylaws Exhibit A-KM (SSYEW Edits) DMG
	Article I - NAME


	0003_1_Staff Report
	9.3_TDA-3 Countywide Claim_Cover_kes-KM change
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.3_TDA-3 Countywide Claim_Memo_kes-KM change
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT: Approval of (1) Resolution No. 20-09 Request to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for the Allocation of Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Funds and (2) Resolution 20-10 Authorizing the Su...
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.3_TDA-3 Countywide Claim Attch 1 Resolution 20-09 TDA-3_Vine Trail Project __sm_05-04-20_dm edits_kes-KM
	Findings

	9.3_TDA-3 Countywide Claim Attch 2 Resolution 20-10_TDA-3 Countywide Claim FY 2020-21_kes-KM

	0004_1_Staff Report
	9.4_LCTOP Imola FINAL_Cover_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Approval of Resolution to Execute the Certifications and Assurances and Authorize Agent Forms for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for Imola Avenue and State Route (SR)- 29/121 Express Bus Stop Improvement Project
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is eligible to receive funds in FY 2019-20 for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP).  These funds are disbursed on a formula basis by the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) and t...
	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.4_LCTOP Imola FINAL_Memo_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.4_LCTOP Imola FINAL Attch 1 Resolution 20-11 LCTOP FY 20 ao_kes-KM DMG
	RESOLUTION No. 20-11


	0005_1_Staff Report
	9.5_CAC Member Appointmnent_Cover_kes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointment
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.5_CAC Member Appointmnent_Memo_kes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION



	0006_1_Staff Report
	10.1_Election of Chair & Vice Chair FY 2020-21_Cover_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	______________________________________________________________________
	SUBJECT
	Nomination, Discussion, and Election of Chair and Vice Chair for Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.1_Election of Chair & Vice Chair FY 2020-21_Memo_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND



	0007_1_Staff Report
	10.2_Vine Trail Environmental Calistoga to St. Helena_Cover_kes-KM changes RS comments
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) approve releasing the Draft Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the Napa Valley Vine Trail Project – St. Helena to Calistoga Segment pending concurrence of State Historic Pre...
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.2_Vine Trail Environmental Calistoga to St. Helena_Memo_kes-KM no changes_ RS changes  DMG eits_
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) approve releasing the Draft Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the Napa Valley Vine Trail Project – St. Helena to Calistoga Segment pending concurrence of State Historic Pre...

	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.2_Vine Trail Environmental Calistoga to St. Helena Attch 1 NOTICE OF INTENT_kes-KM no change_ RS comments

	0008_1_Staff Report
	10.3_SB 1 LPP and SCCP Funding Programs_Cover_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Resolutions of Support for the Soscol Junction for the 2020 Local Partnership Program (LPP) and for the Solutions for Congested Corridor (SCC) Funding and for the Vine Transit Maintenance Facility for the Local Partnership Program Formula Funds.
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.3_SB 1 LPP and SCCP Funding Programs_Memo_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.3_SB 1 LLP and SCCP Funding Programs Attch 1 Resolution 20-12 LPP_kes-KM changes DMG
	A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE
	NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA)
	NOMINATION OF SOSCOL JUNCTION FOR THE
	2020 LOCAL PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM (LLP) COMPETITIVE GRANT

	10.3_SB 1 LPP and SCCP Funding Programs Attch 2 Resolution 20-13 SCC_kes-KM changes DMG
	A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE
	NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA)
	NOMINATION OF SOSCOL JUCNTION FOR THE
	SOULTIONS FOR CONGESTED CORRIDOR (SCC) FUNDING

	10.3_SB 1 LLP and SCCP Funding Programs Attch 3 Resolution 20-14 LPP_kes-KM changes DMG
	A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE
	NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA)
	NOMINATION OF VINE TRANSIT MAINTENANCE FACILITY FOR THE
	LOCAL PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM (LLP) FORMULAIC FUNDS

	10.3_SB 1 LPP and SCCP Funding Programs Attch 4 SB 1 LPP Formula Fund Estimates_kes_1
	10.3_SB 1 LPP and SCCP Funding Programs Attch 3 SB 1 LPP Formula Fund Estimates_kes
	TAC ItemX - Attch 1_sb1-lpp-formulaic-program-staff-recommendations-011018
	LPP Formula Staff Recs-011018
	Formula Projects


	2020-LPP-Formulaic-Funding-Distribution-and-Adopting-Resolution-G-20-34-a11y



	0009_1_Staff Report
	10.4_CBTP Draft Plan_Cover_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	______________________________________________________________________
	SUBJECT
	Draft Napa Valley Community Based Transportation Plan
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve releasing the Draft Napa Valley Community Based Transportation Plan for public review and comment.
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	In 2018 Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) staff began the Community Based Transportation Plan (CBTP) update.  The purpose of the CBTP is to identify Communities of Concern, based on census data and criteria, and conduct specific outreach to ...
	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.4_CBTP Draft Plan_Memo_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve releasing the Draft Napa Valley Community Based Transportation Plan for public review and comment.
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.4_CBTP Draft Plan Attch 1 Draft_CBTP_10jun2020_v69

	0010_1_Staff Report
	10.5_CTP_Cover ds_kes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	______________________________________________________________________
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.5_CTP_Memo ds_kes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT: Countywide Transportation Plan – Advancing Mobility 2045: Performance Measures
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.5_CTP Attch 1 Goals and Objectives_kes
	10.5_CTP_Attch 1 Final_CTP Goals and Objectives
	10.5_CTP_Attch 2-CTP Performance Measures
	10.5_CTP_Attch3_Summary of Performance Metrics

	10.5_CTP Attch 2 NVTA Presentation Performance Measures for Board June 17 2020_kes

	0011_1_Staff Report
	10.6_Legislative Update_Cover - KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.6_Legislative Update_Memo  - KM changes-
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.6_Legislative Update Attch 1 Legislative Report_kes_KM changes
	10.6_Legislative Update Attch 2 State Matrix_kes




